
 

 
 

Governance, Audit and Risk 
Management Committee  AGENDA 
 
 
DATE: 
 

Tuesday 6 September 2011 
 

TIME: 
 

7.30 pm 
 

VENUE: 
 

Committee Room 5, 
Harrow Civic Centre 
 

 
 

 
 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 3) 
   
  Chairman: 

 
Councillor Sachin Shah  

 
  Councillors: 

 
Sue Anderson 
Mano Dharmarajah 
Thaya Idaikkadar (VC) 
 

Chris Mote 
Richard Romain 
Yogesh Teli 
 

  
 

  
 

Reserve Members: 
 

1. Ben Wealthy 
2. Ajay Maru 
3. Krishna Suresh 
4. Krishna James 
 

1. Tony Ferrari 
2. Stephen Wright 
3. Anthony Seymour 
 

  
 

 
 

Contact:  Lysandra Dwyer, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel:  020 8424 1264     E-mail:  lysandra.dwyer@harrow.gov.uk 
 



 

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 6 September 2011 

 AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MEMBER    
 
 To note the appointment of Councillor Chris Mote as a Member of the Governance, 

Audit and Risk Management Committee in place of Councillor Barry Macleod-
Cullinane in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 1.5 and following notification 
from the Conservative Group Leader.  
 

2. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from business to 

be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Committee; 
(b) all other Members present. 
 

4. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 10) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2011 be taken as read and signed 

as a correct record. 
 

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS    
 
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents/organisations under the provisions 

of Committee Procedure Rule 17 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

6. PETITIONS    
 
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under 

the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

7. DEPUTATIONS    
 
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 

16 (Part 4B) of the Constitution. 
 



 

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 6 September 2011 

 
8. REFERENCES FROM COUNCIL AND OTHER COMMITTEES/PANELS    
 
 To receive references from Council and any other Committees or Panels (if any). 

 
9. DRAFT FINAL ACCOUNTS   (To Follow) 
 
 Report of the Interim Director Finance 

 
10. PROGRESS ON AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS    
 
 Oral Update from the Interim Director Finance and External Auditors. 

 
11. WHISTLEBLOWING REPORT   (Pages 11 - 28) 
 
 Report of the Director of Legal and Governance Services. 

 
12. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  2010/11   (Pages 29 - 154) 
 
 Report of the Assistant Chief Executive. 

 
13. MANAGEMENT ASSURANCE REPORT 2010/11   (Pages 155 - 186) 
 
 Report of the Assistant Chief Executive 

 
14. INFORMATION REPORT - RISK, AUDIT & FRAUD ACTIVITY UPDATE REPORT   

(Pages 187 - 198) 
 
 Report of the Assistant Chief Executive. 

 
15. RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE AND DRAFT RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY   

(Pages 199 - 224) 
 
 Report of the Assistant Chief Executive. 

 
16. INFORMATION REPORT - CIVIL CONTINGENCIES TEAM (EMERGENCY 

PLANNING & BUSINESS CONTINUITY) ACTIVITY UPDATE REPORT   (Pages 
225 - 236) 

 
 Report of the Assistant Chief Executive. 

 
17. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 Which cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 



 

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 6 September 2011 

 
18. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC    
 
 To resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following 

item of business, on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential 
information in breach of an obligation of confidence, or of exempt information as 
defined in Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972: 
  
Agenda 
Item No 
 

Title  Description of Exempt Information 

19. Appendices 2 – 4 of 
the INFORMATION 
REPORT - Civil 
Contingencies 
Team (Emergency 
Planning & 
Business 
Continuity) Activity 
Update Report 
 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Information under paragraph 3 (contains 
information relating to the financial and 
business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that 
information)). 

 
 

 AGENDA - PART II   
 

19. INFORMATION REPORT - CIVIL CONTINGENCIES TEAM (EMERGENCY 
PLANNING & BUSINESS CONTINUITY) ACTIVITY UPDATE REPORT   (Pages 
237 - 252) 

 
 Appendices 2-4 to the report of the Assistant Chief Executive. 

 
 



 

 Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 28 June 2011 - 42 - 

 
 
 

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT AND RISK 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  

MINUTES 
 

28 JUNE 2011 
 
 
Chairman: * Councillor Sachin Shah 
   
Councillors: * Sue Anderson 

* Tony Ferrari (1) 
* Thaya Idaikkadar  
 

* Ajay Maru (2) 
* Richard Romain 
* Yogesh Teli 
 

* Denotes Member present 
(1), (2) Denote category of Reserve Members 
 

79. Attendance by Reserve Members   
 
RESOLVED:  To note the attendance at this meeting of the following duly 
appointed Reserve Members:- 
 
Ordinary Member  
 

Reserve Member 
 

Councillor Mano Dharmarajah Councillor Ajay Maru 
Councillor Barry Macleod-Cullinane Councillor Tony Ferrari 
 

80. Vote of Thanks   
 
Members noted the recent death of Councillor John Cowan. All attendees at 
the meeting observed a minutes silence in his honour as former Chairman of 
the Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee.   
 

81. Declarations of Interest   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that the following interest was declared: 

Agenda Item 4 
Pages 1 to 10 

1



 

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 28 June 2011 - 43 - 

 
Agenda Item 10 – Annual Health & Safety Report 2010/11 
Councillor Sue Anderson declared a personal interest in that her husband was 
the Chair of Governors at Kingsley School. She would remain in the room 
whilst the matter was considered and voted upon. 
 

82. Appointment of Vice-Chairman   
 
RESOLVED:  To appoint Councillor Thaya Idaikkadar as Vice-Chairman of 
the Governance, Audit and Risk Committee for the 2011/2012 Municipal Year. 
  
A Member requested that his vote against the appointment of Councillor 
Idaikkadar be recorded. He considered that appointing a Cabinet Member as 
Vice-Chairman of the Committee was a breach of the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) guidance.  
 

83. Minutes   
 
RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 29 March 2011, be 
taken as read and signed as a correct record. 
 

84. Public Questions, Petitions and Deputations   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that no public questions were put, or petitions or 
deputations received at this meeting.  
 
RESOLVED ITEMS   
 

85. References from Council and other Committees/Panels   
 
RESOLVED:  That the reference from Cabinet be considered in conjunction 
with Agenda Item 12 
 

86. INFORMATION REPORT -  Risk, Audit & Fraud Division Activity Update   
 
The Committee received a report that set out the progress made in January to 
March, quarter 4 of 2010/11 and future work planned in respect of the Risk, 
Audit and Fraud group of services. Members were advised that: 
 
• the emergency planning team had participated in a number of events 

and activities both local and London-wide. Preparations for the 
Olympics as part of the PAN London team were also underway. The 
team had also worked with multi-agency partners to formalise an 
emergency response action plan and respond to a number of local 
incidents and their aftermath. A report on the response to the recent 
burst water main on Marsh Lane, Stanmore would be submitted to a 
future Committee meeting;  

 
• the main activity during quarter 4 for the Business Risk Management 

officer was the assurance mapping project which was a comprehensive 
governance exercise that identified sources of assurance against the 
Council’s strategic risk; 

 

2



 

- 44 -  Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 28 June 2011 

• following the conclusion of a LEAN review of the Insurance Service, 
work had commenced on restructuring the team and streamlining its 
processes in line with recommendations arising from the review; 

 
• the Corporate Anti-Fraud Team (CAFT) had conducted a number of 

successful investigations and prosecutions relating to benefit and 
Corporate fraud. Officers would include case studies of successful 
prosecutions in all future reports to the Committee. The team had also 
secured funding to appoint a specialist Housing Investigations Officer 
on a temporary basis to assist in housing tenancy fraud and misuse. 
Officers reported that more detailed reports on the work completed in 
this area would be provided in the quarter 1 activity update. 

 
In response to questions asked by Members, officers reported as follows: 
 
• To assist the Committee in identifying the progress made by the Risk, 

Audit and Fraud division against targets for previous years, officers 
would include performance indicators in future reports; 

 
• as a result of a successful prosecution, the Internal Audit team had 

reviewed stock control throughout all libraries within the borough. 
Following an investigation, the team had made recommendations to 
ensure that existing systems were more robust. An officer confirmed 
that the systems would be reviewed once all the recommendations 
from the review had been implemented; 

 
• the employment of the temporary Housing Investigations Officer had 

been supported by grant funding provided in 2011/12. It was possible 
that future funding for this appointment would be made available if the 
requirement for this role was necessary; 

 
• one member of staff was currently employed to finalise work relating to 

Business Risk Management which primarily supported the strategic risk 
register, updated the risk management strategy and monitored the 
Directorate Risk Register by consulting with Corporate Directors. An 
officer confirmed that the Business Risk Management team would be 
reporting to the Internal Audit team in the future; 

 
• officers would prepare a report relating to the financial cost of 

insurance premiums for the next GARM Committee meeting on 6 
September 2011. 

 
The Chairman requested that where possible Members of the Committee may 
wish to attend court cases relating to work of the CAFT team.  
 
RESOLVED:  That the current workstreams of the Risk, Audit and Fraud 
group of services be noted.  
 

87. INFORMATION REPORT - Annual Health and Safety Report 2010/11   
 
An officer presented a report that summarised the Council’s health and safety 
performance for the year 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2011. The officer also 
provided an update of activities and outlined information on outcome 

3



 

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 28 June 2011 - 45 - 

measures, including training and accidents. The Committee were advised 
that:  
 
• three improvement notices relating to asbestos management were 

served on the Council in June 2010 by the Health & Safety Executive 
(HSE). These notices were all removed in November 2010 following 
the delivery of training to employees on asbestos removal; 

 
• to reinforce safety management within the Council an improvement 

plan had been devised alongside a two year programme that worked 
towards achieving the requirements of the plan; 

 
• the Council had launched a new Accident Reporting procedure on the 

Intranet. This allowed staff to submit accident forms electronically, 
which officers believed could be attributed to the small increase in the 
number of reported accidents. It was considered that this would enable 
officers to identify areas for improvement and trends within each 
Directorate. 

 
Whilst considering the report, Members had a number of queries, to which 
officers reported that: 
 
• Health and safety matters were considered by the Council’s Corporate 

Strategy Board (CSB) on a regular basis. It was noted that three of the 
five staff members in the Corporate Health and Safety team were 
employed on an Interim basis. Members of CSB would discuss the 
structure of the team at a future meeting; 

 
• the majority of reported accidents occurred in schools and were 

typically slips, trips and falls. Many of these incidents related to 
managing children in special needs schools. It was considered that the 
introduction of the new accident report form and database together with 
the support of the Corporate Health and Safety Advisory Service had 
led to an increase in the number of reported accidents. The Corporate 
Health and Safety team would monitor how accidents were reported, 
identify any emerging trends and respond accordingly. Members noted 
that major accidents, such as broken limbs and serious falls were 
reported directly to the Health and Safety Executive; 

 
• issues relating to asbestos in the Council’s housing stock had been 

reported to the Housing department and included in the Decent Homes 
Programme, scheduled for completion in 2015. Officers would seek 
confirmation on whether housing related issues were monitored by the 
Corporate Health and Safety team and advise Members accordingly; 

 
• officers had noted that the existing framework agreement for 

Occupational Health Services had delivered savings of approximately 
£35,000 and improved areas within the service. The Council had 
experienced the benefits of other framework agreements within other 
areas within the Council. 

 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted.  
  

4



 

- 46 -  Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 28 June 2011 

 
88. INFORMATION REPORT - Outturn Report 2010/11 and Progress on Draft 

Accounts Preparation   
 
Members of the Committee received the Outturn report 2010/11 that had been 
considered at the Cabinet meeting on 22 June 2011. The Interim Director of 
Finance reported that: 
 
• the Section 151 officer would complete and approve the accounts by 

30 June 2011. According to the provisions in the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011, the Committee were no longer required to approve 
the draft financial statements prior to them being audited by the 
external auditor. Members would be invited to attend a detailed briefing 
on the draft accounts prior to their formal presentation at the next 
Committee meeting on 6 September 2011; 

 
• there was a net revenue underspend of £1.1 million, which represented 

a 0.7% variation in the budget. Almost two-thirds of the underspend 
had been used to increase general reserves to £7 million. The 
remaining underspend would be used to establish a Transformation 
and Priority Initiatives Fund that would meet redundancy costs and 
support savings initiatives. Any decisions made in relation to the fund 
would be approved by the Leader of the Council and the Chief 
Executive and reported to Cabinet as part of the quarterly budget 
monitoring report. 

 
A verbal update on the progress of the Annual Governance statement was 
provided which advised Members that the draft statement would be ready by 
30 June 2011. The management assurance exercise that supported the 
annual governance statement was underway and would be reported to the 
Committee in September.    
 
RESOLVED:  That: 
 
(1) the progress on preparing the annual accounts for approval by the 

s151 officer be noted; and 
 
(2) the verbal update on the progress of the management assurance 

exercise by Internal Audit be noted. 
 

89. Treasury Management Outturn Report 2010/11   
 
The Committee received a reference and report from the Cabinet meeting on 
22 June 2011 on the Treasury Management Outturn Report 2010/11. The 
report set out a summary of the Treasury Management activities during 
2010/11 and was referred to the GARM Committee for review. Members 
noted the recent changes to the regulatory framework and best practice 
policies for Treasury Management activities. 
 
RESOLVED:  That 
 
(1) the reference be noted; 
 

5



 

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 28 June 2011 - 47 - 

(2) the progress of treasury management activities in accordance with the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Codes 
of Practice on Treasury Management and Capital Financing on Local 
Authorities be noted.  

 
90. INFORMATION REPORT - Capital Governance and Implementation Plan   

 
An officer presented a report that provided an update on Capital Governance 
and set out the progress against the Capital Implementation Plan following the 
investigation into the overspend in the Children’s Services Capital 
Programme. Key staff within Finance, Children’s Services and Community 
and Environment had worked collectively to implement the detailed and 
specific recommendations arising from the investigation. The officer advised 
that some key actions had been implemented and some would develop over 
time.  
 
The key actions that had been implemented included: 
 
• A clear and comprehensive approval process to manage capital 

schemes agreed as part of the 2011/12 Capital Programme; 
 

• enhancing the role of the Capital Forum to ensure that greater financial 
controls were in place.  The Interim Director of Finance had been 
appointed as the Chairman of the Forum. The Forum would consider 
the business case for all new schemes on the current Capital 
Programme.  All schemes required approval from the relevant 
Corporate Director, Portfolio Holder and Finance Business Partner 
before submission to the Capital Forum. All approved business cases 
would then be presented to the Leader of the Council for final approval; 

 
• the appointment of an Interim Capital Project Manager to oversee the 

capital monitoring process and implement the agreed capital 
recommendations within the Finance team; 

 
• Finance Business Partners undertook testing on capital codes 

throughout the year to ensure that all expenditure was charged to the 
right project. 

 
Key actions that would be developed to mitigate against long-term risk to the 
Council included:  
 
• Monitoring monthly expenditure on all approved capital schemes to 

ensure that they were in line with the agreed budget and progressing in 
accordance with the project plan; 

 
• developing a Capital Strategy for 2012/13 onwards that would provide 

an objective framework for decision-making in relation to the size and 
shape of  the Council’s capital programme. It was hoped that this would 
provide a robust framework for capital bids that would initially be 
considered in the third quarter of 2011/12. The final strategy and 
capital bids would be considered in the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy and approved by Cabinet and Council alongside the revenue 
budget; 

6



 

- 48 -  Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 28 June 2011 

 
• reviewing the Council’s Financial Regulations to strengthen rules 

governing capital expenditure and the management and reporting of 
capital projects. Training would be provided to key staff within the 
Council; 

 
• Developing a single mandatory process for project management across 

the Council that would require compliance and support  for the capital 
programme and provide all project managers with compulsory training; 

 
Members were reminded that: 
 
• Cabinet had requested that the GARM Committee monitor and report 

on the implementation of the recommendations made in the 
investigation; 

 
• 53% of the actions outlined in the implementation plan had been 

implemented, 40% were not yet due and 7% of actions were 
incomplete although implementation was imminent or had passed; 

 
• the Internal Audit team had been instructed to verify the process and 

would continue to monitor and review the progress of implementation 
against the planned actions; 

 
• a further update of this work would be presented with the mid-year 

Internal Audit report at a future GARM Committee meeting.  
 
RESOLVED:  That: 
 
(1) the update on capital governance be noted; and  
 
(2) the progress against the Capital Implementation Plan be noted.  
 

91. INFORMATION REPORT - Internal Audit Year-End Report 2010/11   
 
The Committee received a report that set out the progress against the Internal 
Audit Plan 2010/11 and key issues arising from work undertaken. Members 
were advised that: 
 
• The Internal Audit team had achieved 91% of the annual work plan for 

2010/11 and all key service activities identified in the 2010/11 Internal 
Audit Delivery Plan had been achieved; 

 
• the interim audit opinion was based on internal audit risk based work 

and an independent investigation carried out in 2010/11. The opinion 
considered the adequacy and effectiveness of organisational control 
environment for the 2010/11 financial year which was assessed as 
“adequate to good”.  The opinion would be updated once the core 
financial systems work had been completed and the management 
assurance exercise for 2010/11 was available; 

 

7



 

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 28 June 2011 - 49 - 

• Audit reports were traffic lighted to indicate the level of assurance that 
could be obtained from a system under review. Green reports indicated 
that the system was well controlled and presented a low risk to the 
authority. Whereas, red reports required improvements to the control 
environment. As the internal audit plan was risk based and considered 
systems that had been identified as high risk, it was anticipated that a 
high number of audits would be given a red/amber assurance.  Officers 
within the Internal Audit team worked with each respective team to 
ensure that robust measures were taken to strengthen the control 
environment; 

 
• a further report on the performance of the Internal Audit team would be 

presented to the GARM Committee meeting on 1 December 2011. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted.  
 

92. 2011/12 Internal Audit Plan   
 
An officer presented a report of the Assistant Chief Executive that set out the 
2011/12 Internal Audit Plan, Internal Audit Delivery Plan and the Internal Audit 
Strategy. Members were reminded that: 
 
• the draft Internal Audit Plan had been considered at the GARM 

Committee meeting on 29 March 2011; 
 

• the draft plan had been refined to include reviews of key risk that could 
be achieved within the Internal Audit team’s resources. The final plan 
was flexible to enable emerging risks to be addressed.  

 
RESOLVED:  That 
 
(1) the 2011/12 Internal Audit Plan be approved;  
 
(2) the Internal Audit Delivery Plan and Strategy be noted. 
 

93. Appointment of Member   
 
Item withdrawn from the agenda. 
 

94. Exclusion of the Press and Public   
 
RESOLVED:  That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following items for the reasons set out below: 
 
Item Title 

 
Reason 

18.  INFORMATION REPORT – 
Internal Audit Year-End Report 
2010/11 (Appendix B) 

Information under paragraph 1 
(contains information relating to 
any individual). 
 

  Information under paragraph 7 
(contains information relating to 
any action taken or to be taken in 

8



 

- 50 -  Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 28 June 2011 

connection with the prevention, 
investigation or prosecution of 
crime). 

19. INFORMATION REPORT – 
Green and Amber Audit 
Reports 

Information under paragraph 3 
(contains information relating to 
the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including 
the authority holding that 
information). 
 

 
AGENDA - PART II   
 

95. INFORMATION REPORT - Internal Audit Year-End Report 2010/11   
 
The Committee considered Appendix B to the Internal Audit Year-End Report. 
Members were advised that the financial irregularities related to internal and 
external matters.  
 
RESOLVED:  That Appendix B to Agenda Item 14 be noted.  
 

96. INFORMATION REPORT - Green and Amber Internal Audit Reports & 
Follow Up Reports   
 
The Committee considered a report that included an update on the actions 
taken by the Internal Audit team to address areas of key risk within the 
Council. Members were reminded that “red reports” sent to them directly 
outside of Committees were confidential. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the reports be noted.  
 
(Note:  The meeting, having commenced at 7.29 pm, closed at 9.48 pm). 
 
 
 
 
(Signed) COUNCILLOR SACHIN SHAH 
Chairman 
 
 
 
 

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 
 

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT 
AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

6 September 2011 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT - Whistle-
blowing 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Hugh Peart,  Director of Legal and 
Governance Services  
 

Exempt: 
 

No 

 
Enclosures: 
 

 
Whistle-blowing Policy 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary  
 
 
This report sets out information on how the Council deals with Whistle-blowing 
complaints, in accordance with the requirements of the Public Interest 
Disclosure Act 1998. 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 11 
Pages 11 to 28 

11



Section 2 – Report 
 
Background  
 
2.1 The Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 (The Act), commonly referred 

to as the ‘Whistle-blowing Act’, provides legal protection to workers 
against being dismissed or penalised by their employers, as a result of 
making a ‘protected disclosure’ over concerns about malpractice or 
wrongdoing.  

 
2.2 The Act protects workers who disclose information in good faith which 

they reasonably believe tend to show one or more of the following 
matters is either happening now, took place in the past, or is likely to 
happen in the future: 
• a criminal offence;  
• the breach of a legal obligation;  
• a miscarriage of justice;  
• a danger to the health or safety of any individual;  
• damage to the environment; or  
• deliberate covering up of information tending to show any of the 

above five matters.  
 
2.3 The two principal rights covered by the Act are a right not to be 

dismissed and a right not to be subject to a detriment, e.g. the denial of 
promotion, because the worker has made a protected disclosure. 

 
2.4 The provisions of the Act represent an exception to the normal duties 

of confidentiality that a worker owes to their employer as they allow 
concerns to be raised, in specified circumstances, to certain external 
authorities as well as to the employer. 

 
 
Current situation 
 
2.5 The Council does not limit the issue of whistle-blowing to the types of 

concern specifically listed in the Act. In common with most authorities, 
the Council’s policy is broader in scope, covering any impropriety, 
breach of procedure or failure of the manner in which services are 
being provided, including suspected breach of the Council’s 
Constitution, Contract Procedure Rules and Financial Regulations. The 
Policy was most recently considered and approved by the Standards 
Committee on 26 March 2007. 

 
2.6  The Policy has been strongly recommended for adoption by school 

governing bodies, following consultation with their staff. Governing 
bodies are urged to adhere to the principles outlined in the Policy. 

12



 
2.7 The Policy’s stated aims are to:  

 
• encourage workers to feel confident in raising serious genuine   
            concerns and to question and act upon concerns;  
 
• provide avenues for workers to raise those concerns and  

receive feedback on any action taken;  
 
• encourage and enable workers to raise serious concerns within 

the Council rather than overlooking a problem or taking it 
outside of the organisation.   

 
• ensure that workers are aware of how to pursue concerns if 

they are not satisfied with the action taken; 
 
• reassure workers in the strongest terms that they will be 

protected from possible reprisals or victimisation for Whistle-
blowing in good faith in accordance with this procedure. 

  
• ensure for consistency and fairness in dealing with Whistle-

blowing across the council. 
 
2.8 The Policy includes the procedure by which Council workers should 

raise any matter that might qualify as a protected disclosure. The policy 
provides that concerns should be raised in the first instance with the 
worker’s immediate manager, or a senior council official. The person 
who raises the concern will receive a written acknowledgement and an 
explanation of the process by which the matter will be dealt. 

 
2.9 The Policy seeks to ensure that the worker is kept informed throughout 

the process and, at the end of the matter, receives feedback on the 
outcome of any investigation, subject to any legal constraints. If they 
are dissatisfied with the outcome they have the option to refer the 
matter to an external regulator. The policy lists contact details for the 
prescribed regulators that deal with different types of disclosure.  

 
2.10 The Policy makes it clear that the Council endeavours to maintain the 

confidentiality of a person who raises a concern, but in order for the 
matter to be investigated fully and fairly, complete confidentiality may 
not be possible. It is also stressed that concerns must be raised in 
good faith and appropriate action will be taken where the motives 
behind a complaint are otherwise.   

 
2.11 The Monitoring Officer has overall responsibility for the maintenance 

and operation of the Whistle-blowing Policy. The Monitoring Officer 
maintains a register which records all Whistle-blowing complaints. 

 
2.12 The Whistle-blowing Policy is published on the intranet to allow access 

by staff and Members. The Policy is also available to residents, 
partners and the general public on the Council’s website. 

 

13



2.13 The Coalition’s ‘Programme for Government’ indicated an intention to 
‘introduce new protection for whistle-blowing in the public sector’.  
There are currently no proposals to amend provisions in relation to 
whistleblowing for Local Government. Further to this, a Consultation 
concluded in January 2011 on proposals to amend the NHS 
constitution in order to give greater prominence to the issue of whistle-
blowing. A response to the consultation is still awaited.  

 
The Council’s Whistle-blowing Policy in Practice 
 
2.14 Recent efforts have been made to better promote the policy including, 

for example, its inclusion on the Standards Committee’s new webpage. 
Going forward, this will help the Council to monitor the use of the policy 
more effectively.  

 
2.15 During the past ten months, the Council received four complaints under 

the Whistle-blowing Policy. The first involved a range of allegations 
relating to financial matters and safeguarding which, following 
investigation, were found to be unsubstantiated. The second 
concerned alleged misconduct by a governor at a school. The matter 
was not investigated as the subject concerned was not an employee of 
the Council.  The third concerned alleged unfair practices within a 
Council service. Following investigation no malpractice had been 
found. The fourth concerned an allegation of malpractice within an 
organisation the Council had no responsibility for. The Council ensured 
that there were no safeguarding issues in respect those it was 
responsible for. 

 
2.16 One further complaint has been made within the last two months under 

the whistleblowing policy and is currently being investigated. 
 
Risk Management Implications 
 

2.17 The existence of an accessible whistleblowing policy is a key element 
of the Council’s overall risk management. 

 
 
Section 3 - Financial Implications 
 
3.1 All investigations undertaken under the whistleblowing policy were 

completed within existing budgets. 
 
 
Section 4 - Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1  The report relates to the current corporate priority of ‘United and 

Involved Communities: A Council that listens and leads’ by providing 
information on the background to and the operation of the Council’s 
whistleblowing policy. 

 

14



 
 
 

   
 

Name: Julie Alderson X  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 25 August 2011 

   
 
 
Section 5 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Vishal Seegoolam, Senior Democratic Services Officer Ext. 2883
  
 
 
Background Papers:   
 
Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 
 

15



16

This page is intentionally left blank



 

HARROW SCHEME FOR PAY AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 
 
 
SUBJECT: Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure 
 
SECTION: Employment Practices  REF:  3.36 
 
SOURCE:   Approved at Standards Committee 26th March 2007 
AND DATE:  Corporate Joint Committee  7th March 2001 
    
APPLICABLE TO: All workers - see definition below 
  (except staff managed by School Governors) 
 
 

 
1. Policy Statement 

 
The Council is committed to the highest possible standards of conduct, openness, 
honesty and accountability and takes seriously any issues of malpractice or wrongdoing.  
Workers are often the first to realise there may be something seriously wrong within the 
workplace and the Council expects workers who have serious concerns about any aspect 
of the Council's work to come forward and voice those concerns and to feel supported 
when doing so. 
 
The Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 (PIDA) protects workers who 'blow the whistle' 
about malpractice or wrongdoing within an organisation.   This Act makes provision on the 
kinds of disclosures which may be protected, the circumstances in which such disclosures 
are protected and persons who may be protected.   
 
2. Who is covered by the Policy?  

 
This policy and procedure applies to all Council employees, permanent and temporary, 
agency workers, contractors and their staff and Elected Members.  It also covers suppliers 
and those providing services under a contract with the Council in their own premises, for 
example, care homes.  The term “worker” within this document is used to describe any of 
the above. 
 
This policy does not form part of an employee’s contract of employment. 
 
Schools 

 
This policy and procedure is strongly recommended for adoption by School Governing 
bodies, following consultation with their staff.  Governing bodies are urged to adhere to 
the principles outlined within this policy and procedure. 
 
Where this policy and procedure makes reference to a manager, in schools this normally 
will be the Head Teacher.  
 
3. Why do we need a Policy? 

 
This policy and procedure is intended to encourage and enable workers to raise serious 
concerns within the Council rather than overlooking a problem or feeling the need to  
“blow the whistle” outside. 

17



 

 
This policy and procedure aims to:  
 
• encourage workers to feel confident in raising serious genuine concerns and to 

question and act upon concerns;  
• provide avenues for workers to raise those concerns and receive feedback on any 

action taken;  
• encourage and enable workers to raise serious concerns within the Council rather 

than overlooking a problem or taking it outside of the organisation.   
• ensure that workers are aware of how to pursue concerns if they are not satisfied with 

the action taken; 
• reassure workers in the strongest terms that they will be protected from possible 

reprisals or victimisation for Whistleblowing in good faith in accordance with this 
procedure. 

• ensure for consistency and fairness in dealing with Whistleblowing across the council. 
 
It is recognised that cases may have to proceed on a confidential basis. 
 
4. What is covered by this Policy? 
 
Disclosing a concern which the worker honestly and reasonably believes suggests that 
malpractice or wrongdoing has happened, is in the process of being committed or is likely 
to be committed, would qualify for protection under PIDA.   Malpractice or wrongdoing 
include: 
 

• a criminal offence;  
• the breach of a legal obligation;  
• a miscarriage of justice;  
• a danger to the health and safety of any individual;  
• damage to the environment; or  
• deliberate covering up of information tending to show any of the above. 

 
Although not covered by PIDA, it should be noted that Council employees have a duty to 
report to the authority any impropriety, breach of procedure or failure of the manner in 
which services are being provided without fear of recrimination (see Code of Conduct 2.3).   
 
For the avoidance of doubt, this includes a duty to report a suspected breach of the 
Council’s Constitution (including Contract Procedure Rules and Financial Regulations) eg  
under Section 2 para 28 of the Financial Regulations, Council employees have an 
obligation to report financial impropriety to Internal Audit/Corporate Anti Fraud Team. 
 
Issues not covered in the above list will be dealt with in one of the ways outlined in Section 
8.5 below. 
 
Council employees can seek guidance and advice on how to pursue matters of concern 
from Human Resources. 
 
5. Safeguards against Harassment or Victimisation 
 
The Council will not tolerate any harassment or victimisation (including informal 
pressures) and will take appropriate action, within its power, to protect workers when a 
concern is raised.  Workers who suffer harassment or victimisation should inform the 
individual with whom they raised their initial concern. 

18



 

 
Workers raising an issue referred to in Section 4 in good faith and in accordance with the 
PIDA, are protected from harassment, victimisation or any other detrimental treatment, 
even if their disclosure of any wrongdoing or malpractice is not substantiated after 
investigation. 

 
PROCEDURE FOR RAISING A CONCERN 
 
See Appendix 1 
 
6. How to Raise a Concern  

 
• Concerns may be raised orally or in writing.   

 
• The worker needs to ensure that the person with whom they raise the concern is fully 

aware that they are using this procedure. 
 

• Harrow employees may wish to discuss their concern in confidence with their Trade 
Union representative or work colleague and/or invite their trade union representative or 
work colleague to be present during any meetings or interviews in connection with the 
concerns raised. 

   
• Harrow employees can seek guidance or advice on how to pursue matters of concern 

may be obtained from the Human Resources and advice/support may also be sought 
from a Trade Union Representative. 

 
• The earlier the concern is raised the easier it is to take action.  
 
• It will be helpful to provide the background and history of the concern (giving relevant 

dates, names & locations), the reasons for the particular concern about the situation 
and details of evidence / witnesses. 

 
• Harrow employees may seek assistance with preparing this information from an HR 

Adviser or Trade Union representative. 
 

• The earlier the concern is raised the easier it is to take action.  
 

7. To whom do I Report my concerns?  
 

Concerns should normally be raised with a Senior Council Officer, for employees this 
would normally be their immediate manager.   
 
Council employees  
Council employees who do not wish to raise the issue with their manager because of the 
nature, seriousness or sensitivity of the issues involved, can raise their concerns with their 
Director, or go direct to the Director of Finance (151 Officer), Director of Legal and 
Governance Services (Monitoring Officer) or the Chief Executive.   
 
Schools 
In the case of schools if the concern relates to the Headteacher, this should be referred to 
the Chair of the Governing Body.  
 
 

19



 

 
Council Members 
Where Council Members have concerns they may wish to first discuss matters with their 
Group Leader, but this does not discharge the responsibility to report serious matters 
urgently to either to the relevant Director or the Director of Legal and Governance 
Services.   
 
For guidance on raising concerns outside the Council, sees Section 9 below. 
 
8. How the Council will Respond   
 
8.1 Within 5 working days, the person with whom the concern was raised will 

acknowledge its receipt in writing, irrespective of how the concern was raised. 
 
8.2 Where the concern has been raised with a manager, (s)he together with an HR 

Adviser (or other relevant representative eg from Audit or Child Protection Unit) 
will decide whether the matter needs to be referred to a more senior officer e.g. 
Director,  Director of Finance (151 Officer), Director of Legal and Governance 
Services (Monitoring Officer), Chief Executive, Head Teacher, Chair of Governors. 

 
8.3 Investigation does not imply either acceptance or rejection of an individual’s 

concerns 
 
8.4 The initial enquiry will be undertaken, wherever possible within 10 working days, 

by the most appropriate Officer(s).  This will not involve a detailed investigation, 
however, sufficient information will need to be gathered in order that a decision 
can be made as to whether further investigation will take place. 

 
8.5 Where appropriate, the matters raised may:  
 

• be investigated by management, internal audit, or through the disciplinary 
process  

• be referred to the police  
• be referred to the external auditor or other external investigation 
• form the subject of an independent inquiry 
• be investigated under another procedure e.g. child/adult protection 
• be investigated under other forms of prosecution and inspection e.g. to protect 

public health and safety 
 
8.6   In order to protect individuals and those accused of misdeeds or possible 

malpractice or wrongdoing, initial enquiries will be made to decide whether an 
investigation is appropriate and, if so, what form it should take. The overriding 
principle which the Council will have in mind is the public interest. Concerns or 
allegations which fall within the scope of specific procedures (for example, child 
protection or discrimination issues) will normally be referred for consideration under 
those procedures.  

 
8.7 Within fifteen working days of a concern being raised, the person with whom the 

concern has been raised will write to the individual who raised the matter:  
 

• indicating how they propose to deal with the matter  
• giving an estimate of how long it will take to provide a final response  
• informing them whether any initial enquiries have been made  

20



 

• supplying them with information on staff support mechanisms, and  
• informing them whether further investigations will take place and who will 

conduct that investigation, or 
• explaining the reasons why no investigation is to be carried out. 

 
8.8 It may be necessary, as part of the investigation, to obtain additional information 

from the individual who raised the concern. 
 
8.9 The investigation may need to be carried out under the terms of strict 

confidentiality i.e. by not informing the subject of the concern until (or if) it becomes 
necessary to do so.  This may be appropriate in cases of suspected fraud. 

 
8.10 The Council accepts that individuals who raise a concern need to know that the 

matter has been properly addressed. Thus, subject to legal constraints, the worker 
will be given feedback on any action taken.  However, it will not include information 
relating to specific individuals, which will remain confidential. 

 
9. How the Matter can be taken Further  

 
This policy and procedure is intended to provide workers with an avenue within the 
Council to raise concerns. The Council hopes workers will be satisfied with any action 
taken. If not, and they feel it is right to take the matter outside the Council, the matter can 
be raised with the relevant organisation(s) as listed in Appendix 2.  
 

There may be circumstances where a worker considers that (s)he needs to raise the 
matter externally.  This may be because, for example, there is a need to involve the 
appropriate external regulatory body, or the worker considers that the matter has not been 
properly addressed, or that a worker reasonably believes that the matter will be covered 
up. 
 
If a worker is unsure whether or how to raise a concern or wants confidential advice, 
contact can be made with the independent charity Public Concern at Work on 020 7404 
6609 or at helpline@pcaw.co.uk.  Their lawyers can provide free confidential advice on 
how to raise a concern about serious malpractice or wrongdoing at work. 
 
Further information can also be obtained from the website of the employment service, 
ACAS (the Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration Service) at  www.acas.org.uk. 
 
In circumstances where a worker decides to raise the matter externally, (s)he will only be 
protected  under this procedure, and under employment law, where the disclosure is made 
in accordance with the PIDA.  This means that the disclosure must fall under one of the 
categories listed in paragraph 4 above and must be made in one of the following ways: 
 
a) in the course of obtaining legal advice 
b) to a prescribed regulatory body (listed in Appendix 2) provided the disclosure is made 

in good faith and the worker reasonably believes the prescribed body is responsible 
for the matter of concern and that the allegations are substantially true; 

c) to other third parties where the worker makes the disclosure; 
  

• in good faith, with reasonable belief that the information and allegations are 
substantially true, and 

• does not make the disclosure for personal gain, and 
• has already raised the matter with the Council or prescribed regulator, unless the 

worker reasonably believes that (s)he will suffer a detriment, or there is not 
21



 

prescribed regulator and (s)he reasonable believes that evidence will be 
concealed or destroyed if (s)he makes the initial disclosure to the  Council, and 

• in all of the circumstances it is reasonable to make the disclosure. 
 

d) The disclosure is of an exceptionally serious nature and the whistleblower makes the 
disclosure: 

 
• In good faith, with reasonable belief that the information and allegations are 

substantially true, and 
• Does not make the disclosure for personal gain, and 
• In all of the circumstances it is reasonable to make the disclosure. 

 
Council employees who wish to take the matter outside the Council should check with 
their Trade Union representative or Human Resources that they are not in breach of 
the Council’s Code of Conduct.   
 
Council employees should not, in any circumstances, approach the 
media/press. 
 

10. Support for Workers raising a Concern and others affected by the 
Raising of a concern 

 
• The Council is committed to good practice and high standards and wants to be 

supportive of individuals who raise concerns.  
 

• The Council will also support individuals affected by the raising of a concern as 
appropriate. 

 
• Council employees experiencing stress as a result of their involvement in this process 

can seek counselling and support from the Council’s Occupation Health Service or 
Employee Assistance Programme. 

 
• Council employees can also approach their Trade Union for advice/support 

throughout the procedure. 
 
• Council employees may also approach their Employee Support Group for support 

throughout the procedure. 
 

• The employee may find it helpful to involve his or her manager, particularly if they can 
identify specific support that would be helpful and which the manager feels are 
reasonable. 

 
• The Council will take steps to minimise any difficulties which individuals may 

experience as a result of raising a concern, eg  if they are required to give evidence in 
criminal or disciplinary proceedings the Council will arrange for them to receive advice 
about the procedure and, if necessary, be fully prepared for a Court appearance.  

 
• Where the raising of a concern affects a group of staff, the relevant manager will, 

having made an assessment, take appropriate action to support the workgroup.  
 
 
 
 

22



 

11.  Confidentiality   
 
If a worker raises an issue, every effort will be made not to reveal their identity.  It must be 
recognised, however, that in order to investigate the matter, information must be obtained 
and/or other workers questioned, therefore total confidentiality cannot be guaranteed.  If 
criminal proceedings require that information is passed on it may become necessary to 
reveal the worker’s identity.  In such situations the worker will be consulted before this 
action is taken, however, the Council will endeavour to maintain confidentiality whenever 
possible.   
 
12. Anonymous Allegations  

 
 Where a concern is raised anonymously, these will be considered at the discretion of the 

Council taking into account the seriousness of the issues raised; the credibility of the 
concern; and the likelihood of confirming the allegation from attributable sources. 

 
13. Untrue Allegations  

 
 The Council expects that whistleblowing will be made in “good faith” and will treat abuse 

of the Whistleblowing procedure extremely seriously.  The Council reserves the right to 
take appropriate action against the whistleblower if they are found not to be acting in good 
faith. 

 
14. The Responsible Officer  
 
The Director of Legal and Governance Services who is the Council’s Monitoring Officer, 
has overall responsibility for the maintenance and operation of this policy and procedure.  
This officer maintains a record of concerns raised and the outcomes and will report as 
necessary to the Council (but in a form which does not endanger confidentiality).  All 
concerns raised through this policy and procedure should be reported to the Monitoring 
Officer by the manager with whom the concern was originally raised. 

23



 

APPENDIX 1  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Worker has a concern 

Concern directed to Director or Director of Finance, 
 Director of Legal and Governance Services 

(Monitoring Officer) or Chief Executive 

On completion of investigation, worker to receive, subject 
to legal constraints etc, feedback on the outcome 

of any investigation. 

Raises with Senior Council Officer/immediate 
Manager either orally or in writing.  Date noted. 

 

Within 5 working days of noted date – Relevant 
officer to acknowledge concern in writing and 
inform complainant about process involved 

Within 15 working days of noted date – worker to receive 
information on how concern is being addressed ie whether 

further investigation will take place, if not, why not, how 
feedback will be given to worker, timescales, etc. 

If worker remains dissatisfied with action taken and wishes to take the 
matter outside the Council, they contact one of the prescribed regulators 
listed at the back of this policy.   
 
Council employees should, before proceeding, seek advice from their TU 
or HR to ensure they are not breaching the Council Code of Conduct.  
 
 In no circumstances should Council employees contact the media/press. 

Within 10 working days of noted date – decision taken 
on whether further investigation necessary, whether 

disciplinary issue, timescales agreed, etc 

Worker wishes to 
raise concern 
outside of the 
Council – see 
Section 10. 

Monitoring Officer maintains record of concerns raised and 
outcomes and reports to Council as required. 

24



 

 APPENDIX 2 
This is an edited list of the Prescribed Regulators for England, Scotland and Wales - a copy of the 
full list is available on the Public Concern at Work website: www.pcaw.co.uk 
 

Prescribed Regulator Matters in respect of which regulator is 
prescribed  

The Charity Commissioners for England & 
Wales 
Liverpool Head of Operations  
2nd Floor, 20 Kings Parade  
Queens Dock  
Liverpool   L3 4DQ  
Tel: 0870 3330123  
Fax: 0151 703 1556  
www.charity-commission.gov.uk 

The proper administration of charities and of 
funds given or held for charitable purposes. 

Independent Police Complaints 
Commission 
90 High Holborn  
London    WC1V 6BH  
Tel: 020 7166 3000  
www.ipcc.gov.uk 

Matters relating to the conduct of a person 
serving with the police (as defined in section 
12(7) of the Police reform Act 2002) or of any 
other person in relation to whose conduct the 
Independent Police Complaints Commission 
exercises functions in or under any legislation.  

The competent authority under Part IV of 
the Financial Services and Markets Act 
2000  
Head of Listing Department  
London Stock Exchange  
Old Broad Street  
London,  EC2N 1HP  
Tel: 020 7797 3884  
Fax: 020 7334 8976 

The listing of securities on a stock exchange; 
prospectuses on offers of transferable securities 
to the public  

The Commission for Healthcare Audit and 
Inspection 
Finsbury Tower 
103-105 Bunhill Row 
London  EC1Y 8TG 
Tel: 020 7448 9200 
www.healthcarecommission.org.uk  

Matters connected with (a) the provision of 
health care for the purposes of the National 
Health Service (where “health care” has the 
same meaning as in section 45(2) of the Health 
and Social Care (Community Health and 
Standards) Act 2003), (b) the provision of 
independent health care services within the 
meaning of section 5A(8) of the Care Standards 
Act 2000, or (c) any activities not covered by (a) 
and (b) in relation to which the Commission 
exercises its functions.  

The Commission for Social Care 
Inspection 
33 Greycoat Street 
London 
SW1P 2QF 
Tel: 020 7979 2000 
Fax: 020 7979 2111 

Matters relating to the provision of regulated 
social care services as defined in the Care 
Standards Act 2000, and the inspection and 
performance assessment of English local 
authority social services as defined in section 
148 of the Health and Social Care (Community 
Health and Standards) Act 2003. 

25



 

www.csci.org.uk 
The Commissioners for Her Majesty's 
Revenue and Customs 
Cross Cutting Policy 
Room 1E/04 
1 Parliament Street 
London  SW1A  2BQ 
Freephone: 0900 595 000 
Free fax: 0800 523 0506  
E-mail: customs.confidential@hmrc.gov.uk 

Value added tax, insurance premium tax, excise 
duties and landfill tax. The import and export of 
prohibited or restricted goods.  

Income tax, corporation tax, capital gains tax, 
petroleum revenue tax, inheritance tax, stamp 
duties, national insurance contributions, statutory 
maternity pay, statutory sick pay, tax credits, child 
benefits, collection of student loans and the 
enforcement of the national minimum wage.  

Comptroller and Auditor General of the 
National Audit Office  
157-197 Buckingham Palace Road  
Victoria    
London   SW1W 9SP  
Tel: 020 7798 7999 
www.nao.gov.uk 

The proper conduct of public business, value for 
money, fraud and corruption in relation to the 
provision of centrally funded public services.  

Director General of Water Services 
Office of Water Services  
Centre City Tower  
7 Hill Street  
Birmingham    B5 4UA  
Tel: 0121 625 1300  
Fax: 0121 625 1400  
www.ofwat.gov.uk 

The supply of water and the provision of 
sewerage services. 

The Director of the Serious Fraud Office 
Elm House  
10- 16 Elm Street  
London   WC1X 0BJ  
Tel: 020 7239 7272  
Fax: 020 7837 1689  
www.sfo.gov.uk  

Serious or complex fraud. 

The Environment Agency 
Rio House  
Waterside Drive  
Aztec West  
Almondsbury  
Bristol   BS12 4UD  
Tel: 0800 807060 (24 hour line)  
or enquiries 01454 624400  
Fax: 01454 624409 
www.environment-agency.gov.uk  

Acts or omissions which have an actual or 
potential effect on the environment or the 
management or regulation of the environment 
including those relating to pollution, abstraction 
of water, flooding, the flow of rivers, inland 
fisheries and migratory salmon or trout. 

Food Standards Agency 
Personnel and Establishments Division  
Food Standards Agency  
Room 111C, Aviation House  
125 Kingsway, London    WC2B 6NH  
Tel: 020 7276 8120  

Matters which may affect the health of any 
member of the public in relation to the 
consumption of food and other matters 
concerning the protection of the interests of 
consumers in relation to food. 

26



 

Fax: 020 7276 8132 
www.food.gov.uk 
General Social Care Council 
Goldings House  
2 Hays Lane  
London   SE1 2HB  
Tel: 020 7397 5100  
Fax: 020 7397 5145  
www.gscc.org.uk  

Matters relating to the registration of social care 
workers under the Care Standards Act 2000. 

Health and Safety Executive 
Caerphilly Business Park  
Caerphilly  
South Wales     CF83 3GG  
Tel: 0845 345 0055  
Fax: 0845 408 9566  
www.hse.gov.uk/workers/whistleblowing 

Matters which may affect the health or safety of 
any individual at work; matters which may affect 
the health and safety of any member of the 
public arising out of, or in connection with, the 
activities of persons at work. 

Housing Corporation 
Assistant Director Supervision  
Housing Corporation  
149 Tottenham Court Road  
London     W1T 7BN  
Tel: 020 7393 2000 

The registration and operation of registered 
social landlords, including their administration of 
public and private funds and management of 
their housing stock. 

Local Authorities 
(The local authority which under section 18 
of the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 
1974 is responsible for the enforcement of 
the relevant statutory provisions) 

Matters which may affect the health or safety of 
any individual at work; matters which may affect 
the health and safety of any member of the 
public arising out of, or in connection with, the 
activities of persons at work. 

Information Commissioner 
The Office of the Information 
Commissioner   
Wycliffe House  
Water Lane  
Wilmslow  
Cheshire   SK9 5AF  
Tel: 01625 545700  
Fax: 01625 524510  
E-mail: mail@ico.gsi.gov.uk 
www.informationcommissioner.gov.uk  

Compliance with the requirements of legislation 
relating to data protection and to freedom of 
information*.  
(*Data protection legislation regulates the 
processing of information relating to individuals, 
including the obtaining, holding, use or 
disclosure of such information)  
(*Freedom of information legislation provides for 
the disclosure by public authorities of the 
information that they hold). 

National Care Standards Commission 
St Nicholas Building   
St Nicholas Street  
Newcastle      NE1 1NB  
Tel: 0191 233 3556  
Email: enquiries@ncsc.gsi.gov.uk 
 

Matters relating to the provision of regulated 
care services, as defined in the Care Standards 
Act 2000. 

The Pensions Regulator 
Napier House  

Matters relating to occupational pension 
schemes and other private pension 

27



 

Trafalgar Place  
Brighton      BN1 4DW  
Tel: 0870 6063 636  
Textphone: 0870 2433 123 
Fax: 0870 2411144  
www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk  

arrangements. 

Standards Board for England 
1st Floor  
Cottons Centre  
Cottons Lane  
London     SE1 2QL  
Tel: 0845 078 8181 
www.standardsboard.co.uk 

Breaches by a member or co-opted member of 
a relevant authority (as defined in section 49(6) 
of the Local Government Act 2000) of that 
authority's code of conduct. 

HM Treasury 
Insurance Directorate  
Parliament Street  
London      SW1P 3AG  
Tel: 020 7270 1720  
Fax: 020 7270 4694  

The carrying on of insurance business. 

Secretary of State for Trade and Industry 
Vetting Section  
Companies Investigation Branch  
Department of Trade and Industry  
10 Victoria Street  
London  
SW1H 0NN  
Tel: 020 7215 3120  
Fax: 020 7215 3112 
Consumer Affairs Directorate  
V418  
Department of Trade and Industry  
1 Victoria Street  
London    SW1H 0ET  
Tel: 020 7215 5496  
Fax: 020 7215 0339 

Fraud and other misconduct in relation to 
companies, investment business, insurance 
business, or multi-level marketing schemes 
(and similar trading schemes); insider dealing. 

LOCAL AUTHORITIES WHICH HAVE 
RESPONSIBILITY FOR ENFORCEMENT 
OF CONSUMER PROTECTION 
LEGISLATION  

Compliance with the requirements of consumer 
protection legislation. 

Local authorities which are responsible for 
the enforcement of food standards 

Compliance with the requirements of food 
safety legislation. 

 
 

28



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 
 

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT & 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 
 

6th September 2011 

Subject: 
 

Annual Governance Statement  
2010/11 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Tom Whiting, Assistant Chief Executive  
 

Exempt: 
 

No 
 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix 1 - Draft 2010/11 Annual 
Governance Statement  
Appendix 2 - Draft 2010/11 AGS Action 
Plan  
Appendix 3 – 2010/11 AGS Assurance & 
Evidence Table   
Appendix 4 - 2009/10 AGS Action Plan – 
Year End Update  
Appendix 5 - Updated Code of Corporate 
Governance  

 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
This report sets out the Council’s Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for 
2010/11 required to meet the requirements of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011. 
 
Recommendations:  
The Committee is requested to: 
  
1) Critically review the 2010/11 AGS, the 2010/11 AGS Action Plan and the 
2010/11 AGS Evidence Table (Appendix 1, 2 and 3); 

Agenda Item 12 
Pages 29 to 154 

29



 

 
2) Make recommendations as appropriate to enhance the statement or 
improve the annual review process; 
 
3) Note the progress made on the 2009/10 AGS Action Plan; 
 
4) Approve the minor amendments recommended by the Corporate 
Governance Group to the Code of Governance; 
 
5) Note the final Internal Audit opinion on the overall control environment. 
 
Reason:  (For recommendations) 
To confirm the Council’s approach to Corporate Governance and demonstrate 
our commitment to uphold the highest standards of integrity, openness and 
accountability.  To comply with the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE 
guidance which constitutes ‘proper practice’ under the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011. 

 
Section 2 – Report 
 
Introduction 
 
2.1  Harrow Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted 

in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money 
is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, 
efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a duty under the Local 
Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having 
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

 
2.2 In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for 

putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, 
facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes 
arrangements for the management of risk. 

 
2.3 The Council has approved and adopted a corporate governance 

framework and a Code of Corporate Governance , which is consistent 
with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government. The Annual Governance Statement 
explains how the Council has complied with the framework/code and 
also meets the requirements of regulation 4(2) of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011 in relation to the publication of a statement of internal 
control (Annual governance Statement). 

30



 

 
Annual Governance Statement 
 
2.4 Each year the Council undertakes a review of its governance 

arrangements to ensure the delivery of good governance within a local 
government framework and current good practice. The purpose of the 
review is to provide assurance that governance arrangements are 
adequate and operating effectively and to identify action required to 
ensure effective governance in the future (AGS Appendix 1, 2010/11 
Action Plan Appendix 2). 

 
2.5 The Corporate Governance Working Group co-ordinated the annual 

review compiling an evidence/sources of assurance table (Appendix 3) 
which was used as a basis for the preparation of the AGS. This was 
reviewed and ratified on 09/08/11 by the Corporate Governance Group, 
who have ultimate responsibility for drafting the AGS, evaluating 
assurances and the supporting evidence. 

 
2.6 The Annual Governance Statement is prepared on behalf of the Leader 

of the Council and Chief Executive. It is submitted to the Governance, 
Audit and Risk Management (GARM) Committee for consideration and 
review with the annual accounts to meet the statutory requirement of the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 which requires authorities to 
“conduct a review at least once in a year of the effectiveness of its 
system of internal control”  

 
2.7 It is recognised that the Council is going into a much higher risk 

environment due to the financial constraints and all the proposed 
changes in the public sector and that good governance and assurance 
will be even more important than ever before.  It is further recognised 
that in an organisation that is under considerable pressure with limited 
resources, it is a challenge to maintain high standards of governance 
across all areas all of the time.  Governance can and does break down 
on occasions and, when it does, the Council will investigate and learn 
lessons for the future.  Where appropriate, reports on such issues will be 
presented to the GARM Committee. 

 
2009/10 AGS Action Plan Year End Update 
 
2.8 The year end update of the 2009/10 AGS Action Plan shows that the 

governance gaps identified in 2009/10 were closed fully or partially in 
2010/11 for only 55% of gaps identified.  Seven actions from 2009/10 
have been carried forward to the 2010/11 AGS Action Plan attached to 
this statement one of which relates to IT Disaster Recovery which was 
recognised as a significant governance gap in the 2008/09 Annual 
Governance Statement and remained a gap throughout 2009/10 and 
2010/11. Six new gaps have been identified through the annual review of 
governance process, although none are considered significant by CGG, 
actions have been agreed to address these and are shown in 2010/11 
AGS Action Plan. 

31



 

 
Code of Governance Review 
 
2.9 An original Code of Corporate Governance was agreed by the GARM 

committee in September 2008 with agreement for it to be reviewed 
annually.  The Code was incorporated into the Council Constitution in 
February 2010.  The annual review by the Corporate Governance Group 
took place in August 2011 and some minor amendments are 
recommended and shown in blue in Appendix 5 to this report for the 
GARM Committee’s approval. 

 
Internal Audit Opinion on the Overall Control Environment 
 
2.10 An interim opinion was reported to GARM Committee in June 2011 as 

part of the 2010/11 Internal Audit Year End report and this has now been 
finalised and the interim assessment confirmed. The adequacy and 
effectiveness of the organisation’s control environment for the 2010/11 
financial year has been assessed as “adequate - good” based on the 
following: 
• 59% of the traffic lighted systems reviewed during 2010/11 were 

given an amber, an amber/green or a green assurance rating; 
• 95% of recommendations made during 2010/11 were agreed for 

implementation;  
• 100% of schools assessed passed the Financial Management 

Standard in schools within the financial year; 
• 58% of recommendations followed-up have been implemented, 

39% are in progress or are planned at the time of follow-up thus 
it is expected that in due course 97% will be implemented.  89% 
of follow-ups resulted in an improved assurance rating. 

• 22 suspected financial irregularities were reported to Internal 
Audit during 2010/11, the majority of irregularities investigated 
by Internal Audit were either caused by a breakdown/lack of 
control or where fraud was involved this was a contributing 
factor.  In 18 (82%) cases there was no loss or the loss has 
been recouped (e.g. from banks, insurance or individuals); in 1 
(4%) case there was a loss of over £2000 and in 3 (14%) cases 
work is ongoing to establish whether a loss has occurred and/or 
the level.   

• An investigation was undertaken by PWC and a specialist 
consultant into capital expenditure on a small number of schools 
that identified significant weaknesses in the design and 
operation of system controls in place resulting in an overspend 
on the agreed capital programme. A considerable amount of 
work has been undertaken to improve the controls within the 
systems for financial control and monitoring of capital projects.   

• The management assurance exercise confirmed that 77% of the 
areas of assurance covered by the self-assessment process are 
working well across the Council i.e. above the assurance level 
set of 80% for each area, and have been given a green 
assurance rating.   

• 95% of controls reviewed within the Council’s core financial 
systems were either operating fully or substantially, with the 
remaining 5% operating partially.  

32



 

 
Financial Implications 
 
2.11 Financial implications have been addressed, where relevant, in the main 

body of the report. 
 
Risk Management Implications 
 

2.12 The work of internal audit supports the management of risks across the 
council. 

 
Corporate Priorities 
 
2.13 Internal Audit contributes to all the corporate priorities by enhancing the 

robustness of the control environment and governance mechanisms that 
directly or indirectly support these priorities. 

 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

   
 

Name: Julie Alderson 
 

√  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 19 August 2011 

   
 
 

   
 

Name: Hugh Peart √  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date:  17 August 2011 

   
 

 
 
Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Susan Dixson, Service Manager, Internal Audit,  
Tel:0208 424 1420 
 
Background Papers:  None. 
 
 

33



34

This page is intentionally left blank



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT            Appendix 1 
 

1 Annual Governance Statement 
 
1.1 Scope of Responsibility 
 
1.1.1 Harrow Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance 

with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 
accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a 
duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a 
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

 
1.1.2 In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place 

proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its 
functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk i.e. it is responsible for 
ensuring a sound system of governance. 

 
1.1.3 The Council has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance which is 

consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework ‘Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government’. The code has been taken into account in drafting our 
constitution and a copy can be obtained from Harrow Council, Civic Centre, Station Road, 
Harrow, Middlesex HA1 2XF or from our website at: 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/downloads/file/8017/part_5k-code_on_corporate_governance. 
This statement explains how the Council has complied with the code and the governance 
framework and also meets the requirements of regulation 4(2) of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011 in relation to the publication of this Annual Governance Statement. 

 
1.2 The Purpose of the Governance Framework 
 
1.2.1 The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, 

by which the authority is directed and controlled, and its activities through which it accounts 
to, engages with and leads the community. It enables the authority to monitor the 
achievement of its strategic objectives and consider whether those objectives have led to 
the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services. 

 
1.2.2 The system of internal control is a significant part of the framework and is designed to 

manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, 
aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to 
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Harrow Council’s policies, aims and 
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should 
they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 

 
1.2.3 The governance framework has been in place at Harrow Council for the year ended 31 

March 2011 and up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts. 
 
1.3 The Governance Framework 
 

Identifying, communicating and reviewing the authority’s vision 
 
1.3.1 Harrow Council’s vision during 2010/11 was “to be recognised as one of the best London 

Councils by 2012, in a borough that is cosmopolitan, confident and cohesive”.  The vision is 
reviewed annually and Council set a new vision and corporate priorities in March 2011 
alongside the budget. Extensive consultation was undertaken through the Lets Talk 
programme, which is reflected in the new vision for 2011/12 ‘Working together: Our Harrow, 
our community’. 

 

35



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT            Appendix 1 
 

1.3.2 The priorities and flagship actions set out in the corporate plan were set in response to 
consultations with residents and filter down the organisation hierarchically at Directorate, 
Service and individual plan levels. The priorities are communicated to residents through 
“Harrow People” magazine and the harrow.gov internet site. 

 
1.3.3 The Council’s vision and corporate priorities are consistent with the Sustainable 

Community Strategy which has been developed by the Harrow Strategic Partnership (HSP) 
together with the local community, with local agencies, stakeholders and residents involved 
in identifying its priorities. Progress against priorities with residents were also measured 
through the Reputation Tracker in 2010 and the Involvement Tracker in 2011. The 
Strategy shows how the organisations making up the Harrow Strategic Partnership will try 
to shape the effects of global, national, regional and local trends and events to work 
towards successful outcomes for Harrow. These successful outcomes include making 
Harrow a better place to live and work over the long term. 

 
1.3.4 Through this partnership, the HSP Members agreed a Local Area Agreement which ran 

until March 31st 2011 and reflects the work that partners needed to do over 3 years to 
improve the quality of life for local people.   

 
1.3.5 The Better Deal for Residents: Shaping Harrow for the Future (BDfR) programme, agreed 

by Cabinet in July 2010, has been developed to significantly reduce costs each year for the 
foreseeable future, whilst radically considering the manner and scale of services offered, 
given the changing needs of residents. The BDfR programme will, in the first instance, 
include a fundamental review of how the council can deliver more integrated services to 
local taxpayers across all the public sector partners in the borough. It will focus on how the 
council can better align services with residents' needs, whilst being more cost effective.  
The programme will act as the first phase of the Council's Change Management 
Programme, which will be undertaken over the next two to three years. 

 
1.3.6 Five improvement boards, which cover all areas of the Council, oversee all improvement 

initiatives across the Council, and the Corporate Strategy Board (CSB) has regular 
performance monitoring meetings scheduled throughout the year. CSB Membership 
consists of the Council’s 5 Corporate Directors, the Assistant Chief Executive, the Director 
of Legal and Governance Services and is chaired by the Chief Executive or Assistant Chief 
Executive. 

 
1.3.7 Progress towards the Council’s corporate priorities is regularly monitored by the 

improvement boards, Corporate Strategy Board (CSB), the Executive (Members of the 
Cabinet, consisting of the Leader of the Council and nominated Portfolio Holder 
Councillors) and the LAA by the Harrow Strategic Partnership. Improvement boards also 
monitor risks to the achievement of Directorate objectives each quarter and these are 
reported to the quarterly CSB performance morning meetings. 

 
1.3.8 The Executive meets monthly and the Corporate Strategy Board meet weekly to monitor 

performance and to consider the key risks to the achievement of those objectives. There 
are also six weekly ‘leadership meetings’ between CSB and Cabinet Members. 

 
1.3.9 The corporate priorities which support the Council’s vision are reviewed annually and the 

priorities for 2010/11 were to: 
 

• Deliver cleaner and safer streets; 
• Improve support to vulnerable people; 
• Build stronger communities. 

 

36



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT            Appendix 1 
 

Measuring the quality of services and ensuring best use of resources  
 
1.3.10 The Council has an integrated planning and budget framework to develop its Corporate 

Plan and Medium Term Financial Strategy each year, and monitor performance against 
plans and budgets. The Sustainable Community Strategy and the Local Area Agreement 
inform the Council’s Corporate Planning process. The direction provided by the Corporate 
Plan and the Medium Term Financial Strategy is cascaded through directorate service 
improvement plans down to service development plans and then to personal development 
plans and Individual Performance Appraisal & Development (IPADS) for individual staff.  

 
1.3.11 The process commences with the development of a Year Ahead Statement, setting out the 

evidence base to support the Council’s priorities, and this sets the scene for the planning 
round. More detailed work follows, culminating in the approval of the corporate plan and 
budget in February each year. 

 
1.3.12 Performance against plans, key indicators and targets and budgets are monitored during 

the year by Directorate Management Teams, quarterly Improvement Boards and CSB.  
There are quarterly monitoring reports to Cabinet on both the budget and performance 
using a balanced scorecard approach covering projects, budgets, risks, workforce 
performance, complaints, debt and VFM. 

 
1.3.13 The Council has made considerable progress to improve its financial position and financial 

management in the last 3-4 years. This has involved much more robust medium term 
planning, an increase in the number of qualified finance staff, training for budget holders, 
and the replacement of the finance system with an Enterprise Resource Management 
System (ERP).  

 
1.3.14 CSB meet monthly as a Transformation Board to monitor projects under the Better Deal for 

Residents Programme. 
 
1.3.15 A Use of Resources Assessment was carried out annually up to and including 2008/09 by 

the Audit Commission which was wide ranging and covered financial management, 
performance management, internal control and value for money. The outcome of the 
assessment resulted in actions being built into service plans and the Council’s 
Improvement Programme. This assessment was abandoned by the new government and 
as a consequence there was no assessment relating to 2009/10 and a new 
assessment/self-assessment regime has yet to be announced.  However work is still 
undertaken by the External Auditors as part of the VFM conclusion in the accounts. 

 
1.4 Defining roles 
 
1.4.1 The Council’s constitution describes the role and terms of reference of Members, the 

Executive, Portfolio Holders, Mayor, full Council, the Standards Committee and the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  

 
1.4.2 Officer responsibilities are also set out in the Constitution, including the Chief Executive  

Corporate Directors and the Director of Legal & Governance Services. This includes the 
various statutory responsibilities of these roles and role profiles of senior officers are in 
place and relevant officers have written delegated authority to undertake the statutory 
functions. 

 
1.4.3 Democratic services maintain a register of Members’ interests which is published on-line 

via the Council’s web-site. 
 
1.4.4 The Constitution is reviewed on an on-going basis, with full Council making amendments 

as and when required. During 2010/11 work began on a review of the Financial Regulations 
and Contract Procedure Rules.   

37



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT            Appendix 1 
 

 
1.5 Standards of behaviour and codes of conduct  
 
1.5.1 Members and employees have clear codes of conduct, which set out expectations of 

behaviour and are regularly reviewed and re-issued. Two training sessions for Members, 
organised by the Council’s Legal and Democratic Services team, on the code and ethical 
governance were provided during May 2010 and a third covering the code and social media 
took place in June 2011. The employee code forms part of the officer induction training.  

 
1.5.2 A Standards Committee is in place to ensure that individual Members uphold and exemplify 

good governance and behaviour, and the role of the Committee and its structure was 
revised during early 2008/09 to reflect its new powers and responsibilities. The Localism 
Bill includes proposals to abolish Standards for England and means that the Council will be 
able to choose whether or not to have a member code of conduct and a Standards 
Committee.  Officers are currently working with members in a working group to consider 
how the council will ensure the high standards of conduct in public life are maintained in the 
future which is a requirement under the Bill. 

 
1.5.3 Separate mechanisms for Members and Officers are in place in the event that the codes 

are breached and appropriate action is taken as necessary. 
 
1.5.4 Registers of gifts and hospitality are held at Member and Officer level and reviewed 

regularly. Departmental Management Teams review the Officer registers at regular 
intervals. The Members’ register is available on-line via the Council’s web-site. 

 
1.5.5 In September 2008 the Council adopted new Council values which apply to all employees 

and replace the previous competency framework for middle managers and above. The 
values set out expected behavioural standards within 6 themes known as the CREATE 
values: 

 
• Customer first; 
• Respect; 
• Engaged communication; 
• Actively ‘One Council’; 
• Taking responsibility; 
• Energise and improve. 

 
1.5.6 A new suite of employment policies were prepared during 2007/08 and introduced from 

April 2008 which includes key HR policies for dealing with grievance, disciplinary and 
harassment issues. These have been communicated to managers under new capability 
and dignity at work procedures and are available on the Council’s intranet site together with 
the full range of HR policies. 

 
1.6 Decision making 
 
1.6.1 Decision making arrangements are set out in the Constitution which governs the conduct of 

the Council’s business and includes Contract Procedure Rules and Financial Regulations. 
The Council operates a Leader and Cabinet (Executive) model of decision making. 
Although some decisions are reserved for full Council, most are made by the Executive or 
by Committees, Sub-Committees or officers. The Constitution details those decisions that 
may not be taken by the Executive and those decisions that have been formally delegated 
to officers. The powers delegated to individual Portfolio Holders are also set out in the 
Constitution.  

 
1.6.2 The Executive is responsible for the implementation of policy and ensuring the 

effectiveness of service delivery and forthcoming Executive decisions are published on the 

38



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT            Appendix 1 
 

Forward Plan which sets out all future key decisions that may be made within the following 
four month period. 

 
1.6.3 Members are required to make sound decisions based on written reports which are 

prepared in accordance with report writing guidelines and all Cabinet reports have to be 
cleared by officers in Finance, Legal Services, Performance Management and Environment 
together with the relevant Portfolio Holder. Reports must pay due regard to equalities 
issues, crime and disorder implications, and risks. 

 
1.6.4 The Executive receive a briefing (Cabinet Briefing) two weeks before the formal Cabinet 

meeting date when Members can ask detailed technical questions of officers. A Member 
Development programme is in place to support Members and provide them with information 
and the skills to make effective decisions. 

 
1.6.5 In accordance with the Local Government Act 2000 the Council has mechanisms in place 

to allow the effective, independent and rigorous examination of the proposals and decisions 
by the Executive. These mechanisms involve the Overview and Scrutiny process and call-
in. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is responsible for overseeing a targeted work 
programme that can help support service improvement through an in-depth investigation of 
performance and the development of an effective strategy/policy framework for the council 
and its partners. This includes consideration of the Corporate Plan, Local Area Agreements 
and the Medium Term Financial Strategy. The Performance and Finance sub-committee is 
the scrutiny body responsible for monitoring the performance of the council and its partners 
in relation to their stated policy and priorities. 

 
1.6.6 All formal meetings are clerked by well trained and experienced Democratic Services 

Officers who also provide advice on constitutional procedure. Lawyers are present when 
appropriate to provide advice on law and all committee reports must have legal clearance 
before they are published. 

 
1.7 Internal Control and Risk Management 
 
1.7.1 Internal control refers to the systems devised by management to guard against risk and 

promote achievement of objectives. More specifically, internal controls promote:  
 

 • achievement of business objectives and performance standards;  
 • compliance with plans, policies, procedures, codes of conduct, laws and  
   regulations;  
 • the reliability, integrity, timeliness and usefulness of information;  
 • the legality of transactions and compliance with approved budgets and 
   procedures; and  
 • the safeguarding of people, property, finances, services, continued operations and 
   reputation.  

 
1.7.2 Internal controls are an essential part of the Council’s risk management arrangements and 

are required to be reviewed on a regular basis by management under the Council’s 
Financial Regulations. Control systems provide for clarity of policies, objectives, targets, 
responsibilities and accountabilities, and appropriate authorisations and approvals, 
separation of duties, level of internal check, management information and physical 
safeguards.  

 
1.7.3 The Director of Finance and the Assistant Chief Executive are responsible for assisting the 

authority in putting in place an appropriate control environment and effective internal 
controls which provide reasonable assurance of effective and efficient operations, financial 
stewardship, probity and compliance with all applicable statutes, regulations and codes of 
practice.  

 

39



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT            Appendix 1 
 

1.7.4 The Council has a duty to manage its risks effectively and this is achieved through a 
consistent corporate process in a hierarchical series of risk registers. A risk management 
strategy is reviewed and agreed by the Executive each year. The strategic risk register is 
reviewed by the Corporate Strategy Board on a quarterly basis. All Directorates have risk 
registers as part of Service Improvement Plans and these are reviewed by Directorate 
Management Teams regularly and the Improvement boards quarterly. 

 
1.7.5 The Corporate Risk Steering Group, consisting of nominated directorate risk champions 

and chaired by the Assistant Chief Executive, met 4 times during 2010/11 and provides 
challenge on the robustness of the strategic and corporate operational risk registers and 
the adequacy of controls to mitigate the risk. 

 
1.7.6 All risk registers identify risks to the achievement of objectives, the impact and likelihood of 

current and target risk scores, mitigating actions to control the risks and assign risk 
owners/champions and control owners. 

 
1.7.7 Business as usual projects are managed through the corporate risk management process, 

with dedicated risk registers in place to ensure risks are being managed throughout the life 
of a change programme/project. 

 
1.7.8 All committee reports requiring decisions are required to include commentary on the risks 

associated with the subject matter of the report so that Members can take informed 
decisions based on the balance of opportunities versus risks. 

 
1.8 Audit arrangements 
 
1.8.1 The Council considers that it has an effective Internal Audit service provided by an in-house 

team, which operates in accordance with the standards set out in the CIPFA Code of 
Practice for Internal Audit for Local Government. 

 
1.8.2 The Council’s External Auditors, Deloitte LLP, rely on the Internal Audit team’s work on the 

authority’s core financial systems to inform their risk assessment that guides the external 
audit approach.  

 
1.8.3 The Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee undertake the core functions of 

an audit committee as identified in CIPFA’s Guidance Audit Committees – Practical 
Guidance for Local Authorities. Its terms of reference which encompasses the review and 
monitoring role of a range of risk related services, including monitoring performance on 
corporate governance generally, were reviewed and updated during 2010/11.  

 
1.8.4 Training was undertaken for the members of the GARM Committee in September 2010 and 

lead members were nominated as specialists in distinct areas of the GARM Committee 
responsibilities.  Following a change of Chair and membership between the April and June 
2011 meetings further training was undertaken in June 2011 to ensure that all new 
members were aware of the role and responsibilities of the GARM Committee. 

 
1.9 Compliance with statute and internal policies and procedures 
 
1.9.1 The Council’s legal service tracks new legislation and keeps the relevant Directorate(s) 

informed of the implications for future service delivery. Corporate issues are discussed at 
the Corporate Strategy Board and Corporate Leadership Group. 

 
1.9.2 All internal policies and procedures are contained on the Council’s intranet site and 

communicated to staff. Compliance is monitored through the annual management 
assurance exercise, Internal Audit reviews and specific monitoring at Directorate 
Management Team meetings and the quarterly improvement boards. 

 

40



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT            Appendix 1 
 

1.9.3 Key internal policies and procedures are reviewed and communicated regularly, such as 
the Council’s Financial Regulations and Contract Procedure Rules both updated during 
2009/10 with a further review currently underway. 

 
1.9.4 Serious breaches of policies and procedures are subject to the Council’s disciplinary 

procedures and where necessary investigated by the Council’s Internal Audit service which 
works closely with the Council’s Corporate Anti-Fraud team who maintain the Council’s 
Corporate Anti-fraud Policy and Corruption Strategy. 

 
1.10 Whistle blowing and complaints 
 
1.10.1 The Council has a whistle blowing policy, publicised to staff and available on the intranet. 

The policy is primarily designed for staff to raise concerns but also explicitly encompasses 
contractors, councillors and agents outside the authority. A register of whistleblowing 
complaints is maintained by the Monitoring Officer and reported to the GARM Committee 
annually. 

 
1.10.2 The Council has a three stage complaints procedure for members of the public to complain 

about individual service areas. This was refreshed in 2008/09 and details of the procedure 
and an online form are contained on the Harrow.gov website. Details of the Local 
Government Ombudsman Service are included and a printable information pack is 
available to download. The facility also enables members of the public to provide general 
comments and suggestions, or compliments.  

 
1.10.3 The aim of the complaints procedure is: 

• To provide an accessible means to all our customers who wish to express either 
satisfaction or dissatisfaction with a service they have received.  

• To provide a fair, consistent and structured process for resolving complaints in a 
courteous and efficient manner.  

• To enable customers to complain with the assistance of a representative or advocate if 
required.  

• To record all complaints and compliments to help us analyse customer feedback and 
inform future service planning and delivery.  

• To obtain records of complaints and compliments made so that regular reviews can be 
produced for internal performance monitoring and public accountability.  

 
1.11 Training and development 
 
1.11.1 The Council runs a Member induction programme for new Members and a development 

programme for all Members. The latter consists of a schedule of events throughout the year 
in a variety of formats, including events led by key officers from across the organisation and 
quarterly update sessions to keep Members up to speed on new developments/ideas. 

 
1.11.2 A staff appraisal programme (IPAD) exists for all employees which is conducted on an 

annual basis with a mid year review. The process is formal with a corporate template and is 
designed to record achievements of staff, enable discussion about training and 
development needs, personal development and provide a clear understanding of how each 
individual’s work contributes to the Team, Service, Directorate and Corporate priorities. The 
2010/11 Management Assurance process highlighted that the appraisal process is working 
well in 92% of departments across the Council. Action was also identified in the action plan 
arising from the Staff Survey in November 2010 and although an increased compliance 
was noted in the 2011 Staff Survey the IPAD process is being reviewed with senior 
management to address the cultural challenges in ensuring effective performance 
management. This includes considering whether an on-line appraisal system is introduced 
(though this is subject to funding) or alternative approaches to IPAD. 

 

41



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT            Appendix 1 
 

1.11.3 The appraisals process is monitored at Divisional Management Team level, at Council 
Improvement Boards and as part of the annual management assurance exercise. 

 
1.11.4 All Directorates have developed workforce strategies. Learning and development plans for 

staff are integral to these strategies, as are initiatives to provide career opportunities for 
existing staff within the Council and Directorates. 

 
1.11.5 A manager’s development programme (MDP) foundation stage has been delivered and an 

MDP practitioner stage is being developed during 2010/11.  
 
1.11.6 Most service areas have a budget allocated for training and development of staff.  
 
1.12 Communication and consultation 
 
1.12.1 The Council launched a new corporate consultation strategy in 2008/09 to ensure that there 

is a joined-up co-ordinated approach to consultation with local people at Harrow Council 
and the HSP. Consultations are managed through a number of channels, including the 
Residents Panel and the Council magazine “Harrow People”, which is delivered to every 
household in Harrow six times a year, and is used to communicate important messages to 
residents. Consultation on the Better Deal for Residents programme is co-ordinated 
through the Better Together Board. 

 
1.12.2 Internally a variety of media are used to keep staff informed of developments and important 

information. These range from communications e-letters to poster campaigns, “The Arrow” 
internal newsletter, the ‘Grapevine’ an e-newsletter, the Chief Executive’s newsletter and 
staff forums held jointly by the Chief Executive and Leader of the Council when all staff are 
able to attend and ask questions, as well as managers’ conferences. 

 
1.12.3 The Council’s communications strategy, the Council’s Involvement and Reputation Plan  

was reviewed in October 2010 and again in May 2011.   
 
1.12.4 Protocols for 2 way communication between the Council and the Trade Unions are well 

established. 
 
1.12.5 All Committee meetings are held in public except where items on the agenda are exempt 

from publication due to confidentiality. 
 
1.13 Partnerships 
 
1.13.1 The Local Strategic Partnership in Harrow is called the Harrow Strategic Partnership 

(HSP).  The HSP brings together a group of people who represent the statutory, private, 
business, community and voluntary sectors in Harrow.  The HSP constitution and protocols 
provide details on the governance of the partnership and the structure and function of the 
HSP. 

 
1.13.2 Community views and partners data are used by the partnership to shape and influence the 

borough’s priorities in the Sustainable Community Strategy and the Harrow Compact sets 
out the agreement on how statutory partners interact with the voluntary and community 
sector. 

 
1.13.3 The Sustainable Community Strategy provides the partnership with a shared vision for the 

future of Harrow, and is delivered through the three year Local Area Agreement that ran 
until March 2011. 

 
1.13.4  There will not be an LAA in the future as the Coalition Government has abolished the CAA 

and reduce the reward grant in-year.   There is an ongoing debate throughout local 
government about the role of partnerships without the driver of LAAs.  However, the council 

42



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT            Appendix 1 
 

adopted new priorities for the partnership in April 2011 and is working up targets and action 
plans supported by the last receipt of the Reward Grant. 

 
1.13.5 The Council has engaged a number of commercial partners to support the delivery of 

services, from a business transformation partner to construction and infrastructure partners. 
The partnerships have been secured under framework agreements and are subject to 
strong governance and accountability processes. 

 
1.13.6 Directorate Service Improvement Plans are required to list key partnerships and to consider 

partnership risks. Joint risk registers exist with key commercial and public partners.  
 
1.14 Review of Effectiveness 
 
1.14.1 The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 

effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control. The 
review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the senior managers within the authority 
who have the responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance 
environment, the Corporate Governance Group, the Corporate Governance Working 
Group, the Internal Audit annual report, and also by comments made by the External 
Auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. 

 
1.14.2 The process and activities that have been applied in maintaining and reviewing the 

effectiveness of the governance framework in the 2010/11 financial year are described 
below. 

 
The Council 
 

• Approved the policy framework and the annual revenue and capital budget; 
• Contributed to the good governance of the Council and maintained the highest standards of 

conduct and ethics through the role of Councillors; 
• Aimed to govern within a framework of fairness, openness, integrity and accountability and 

provided excellent standards of ethics and probity in decision making.  
  
The Executive 
 

• Made decisions in accordance with corporate priorities; 
• Allocated responsibility for Member Portfolio Holders to specific areas of responsibility; 
• Considered risks and opportunities as part of the decision making process; 
• Monitored performance against the corporate priorities. 

 
The Audit Committee (GARM Committee) 
 

• Met 6 times during 2010/11 and has considered the work of Internal Audit during the year 
including mid year and end of year reports, will consider the results of the management 
assurance exercise, approved the Internal Audit Annual work plan, the Internal Audit 
delivery plan and the results of the updated Internal Audit self assessment against the 
CIPFA Code of Practice for 2010/11; 

• Monitored the effective development of the Council’s corporate governance framework; 
• Will review and approve the Annual Statement of Accounts. Specifically to consider 

whether appropriate accounting policies have been followed and whether there are 
concerns arising from the financial statements or from the audit that need to be brought to 
the attention of the Council; 

• Reviewed and challenged the reports provided by External Auditors on behalf of the Audit 
Commission including the annual audit and inspection letter; 

• Will review and approved the Annual Governance Statement and the supporting evidence. 
 

43



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT            Appendix 1 
 

The Standards Committee 
 

• Received reports from the Council’s Monitoring Officer. It also considered and made 
decisions on allegations of breaches of the member’s code of conduct. 

 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

• Supported the Council and Executive in developing the policy framework and budget for the 
Council and worked with partner organisations on issues that may be outside the remit of 
the Council; 

• Considered the Council and its partners’ performance against stated policy and priorities; 
• Reviewed specific services by making reports and/or recommendations to the full Council, 

Executive, Portfolio Holders and any joint or area committees on any of their functions; 
• Reviewed policy and decisions developed by others by reviewing and/or scrutinising 

decisions made or actions taken in connection with the discharge of the Council’s functions; 
• Reviewed issues of concern to local people by considering matters affecting the area or its 

inhabitants and monitoring and scrutinising the activities of others; 
• Considered the Forward Plan prior to key decisions as appropriate. 

 
Internal Audit 
 

• Provided assurance to the Council on operational and financial controls through the 
delivery of an agreed audit plan and follow-up reviews; 

• Produced mid and end of year reports including the annual interim audit opinion on the 
Council’s internal control framework; 

• Supported the Corporate Governance Group and Corporate Governance Working Group; 
• Provided assurance and advice to major project boards and partnership arrangements; 
• Co-ordinated an annual management assurance exercise the results of which will inform 

risk registers, corporate governance update reports, action plans and also this annual 
governance statement; 

• Contributed to the drafting of the annual governance statement; 
• Implemented an escalation procedure to the Corporate Strategy Board and Audit 

Committee on audit reviews that gave rise to concern; 
• Worked closely with the Corporate Anti-Fraud Team in relation to system controls and 

investigations to counter fraud; 
• The Internal Audit plan for 2010/11 was approved by the Audit Committee in June 2010 

and 91% of the plan was completed, including all the key financial system reviews relied 
upon by the External Auditors. A total of 232 recommendations were made during the audit 
year and 221 (95%) were agreed for implementation by the various managers; 

• Undertook work on the authority’s core financial systems for external audit reliance 
purposes; 

• The interim overall audit opinion for the Council’s control environment for 2010/11 was 
assessed as “adequate - good”. The detailed report setting out the reasoning behind this 
assessment was considered and approved by the Governance, Audit and Risk 
Management Committee (GARM) in June 2011 and the final opinion will be produced once 
the work on the core financial systems has been completed and the results of the 
Management Assurance exercise for 2010/11 are available. 

 
Corporate anti-fraud team 
 

• Is responsible for reviewing and updating the Council’s corporate anti-fraud policy and 
corruption strategy; 

• Investigated allegations of fraud both from external and internal sources; 
• Worked closely with Police partners to secure convictions where appropriate; 
• Published successful prosecutions as part of a deterrent communication strategy. 

 

44



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT            Appendix 1 
 

1.15 Management Assurance Exercise  
 
1.15.1 The management assurance process was developed and introduced across the Council in 

2005/2006 (the 2004/2005 exercise). The areas of assurance are reviewed and updated 
annually by Internal Audit and the Corporate Governance Group using the corporate risk 
register to provide a clear link between the controls identified in the risk management 
process and the assurances being obtained. 

 
1.15.2 The management assurance process involves obtaining self-assessments supported by 

documentary evidence from every third tier manager across the Council.  These are then 
used to produce a statement for each directorate and an overall corporate statement that 
feeds into this Annual Governance Statement. The exercise is co-ordinated and ‘reality 
checked’ by Internal Audit.   

 
1.15.3 The management assurance exercise is usually undertaken during March and April each 

year however this year’s exercise was delayed until May to take account of the work on the 
assurance mapping exercise being undertaken to provide information on assurance 
provided across the Council. 

   
1.15.4 In the spirit of reducing the burden of assurance on managers the self-assessment areas 

were reviewed by the Corporate Governance Group and a 51% reduction made in those 
that managers need to self-assess.  Assurance on the areas taken out of the self-
assessment process was obtained from other sources and included in the Corporate 
Management Assurance Statement. 

 
1.15.5 Overall the 2010/11 management assurance exercise confirmed that 77% of the areas of 

assurance covered by the process are working well across the Council i.e. above the 
assurance level of 80% set for each area, and have been given a green assurance rating.  
This is a 4% increase on areas given a green assurance rating in 2009/10 but 3% below 
the 80% target set.  Overall this reflects a continuing improvement in governance 
arrangements across the Council and is a significant achievement given the level of 
change/transformation that took place during the year.     

 
1.15.6 Action points were agreed as part of the management assurance statements sign off by the 

3rd tier managers for all areas of assurance identified as working towards or where a gap 
was identified.  These will be monitored throughout 2011/12 by Internal Audit and the 
quarterly Improvement Boards.   

 
1.16 Significant Governance Issues/Progress on Previous Agreed Actions  
 
1.16.1 The annual review of the Council’s governance arrangements and the annual management 

assurance exercise identified a number of governance issues for which detailed action 
plans have been developed.  The year end update of the 2009/10 AGS Action Plan shows 
that the governance gaps identified in 2009/10 were closed fully or partially in 2010/11 for 
only 55% of gaps identified.  Seven actions from 2009/10 have been carried forward to the 
2010/11 AGS Action Plan attached to this statement one of which relates to IT Disaster 
Recovery which was recognised as a significant governance gap in the 2008/09 Annual 
Governance Statement and remained a gap throughout 2009/10 and 2010/11. There are 
already some arrangements in place to meet this requirement (including an annual DR test) 
and a comprehensive range of improvements have been developed to ensure resilience 
and recovery capabilities as part of the new Capita IT contract. One of the main projects to 
support this is the migration of the council’s IT applications to the Capita West Malling site, 
which is due to commence in September on a phased programme which will be completed 
in April 2012. There is a continuing risk until this project is complete although the wider 
business continuity plan takes this into account and the risk is no greater than it has been 
historically over a number of years. 

 

45



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT            Appendix 1 
 

1.16.2 Six new gaps have been identified through the annual review of governance process, 
although none are considered significant by CGG, actions have been agreed to address 
these and are shown in 2010/11 AGS Action Plan.  

 
1.16.3 The serious weakness identified in the 2009/10 statement in relation to the management 

and control of certain capital projects was followed by investigations into the overspend in 
the Children’s Services capital programme.  Cabinet received a report in December 2010 
setting out issues and the outcomes of two investigations, one focussing on project 
management, one on financial management.  The investigations made a series of specific 
detailed recommendations to avoid any recurrence of the issues which had affected the 
programme. Key staff within Finance, Children’s Services and Community & Environment 
have been working together on implementing these recommendations and in addition on a 
fundamental review of process to ensure that the Council has robust and holistic 
arrangements in place for both the development and implementation of its capital 
programme.  Cabinet requested that the GARM Committee monitor and report on 
implementation of the recommendations made in the investigation reports, supported by 
Internal Audit, who have been instructed to independently verify the process. Progress 
against the detailed implementation plan shows that 50% of actions are reported as 
implemented by management and Internal Audit is in the process of reviewing evidence to 
support this assertion; 43% of actions are not yet due/are in progress; 3.5% of actions are 
incomplete and the implementation date is imminent or has been extended and 3.5% of 
actions are incomplete and the implementation date has passed. 

 
1.16.4 We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further 

enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the 
need for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor 
their implementation and operation as part of our follow-up review in December with 
particular emphasis given to ensuring that actions carried forward from previous years are 
implemented. 

 
1.17 Declaration 
 
1.17.1 We have been advised on the implications of the review of the effectiveness of the 

governance framework by the Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee and a 
plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed …………………………………   ……………………………….. 
  Councillor Bill Stephenson   Michael Lockwood 
  Leader of the Council   Chief Executive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

46



20
10

/11
 AG

S A
cti

on
 Pl

an
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
   A

pp
en

dix
 2 

07
/07

/10
 

 
AG

S 
Re

f 
Ar

ea
 of

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

Ga
p I

de
nti

fie
d 

Ag
ree

d A
cti

on
 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
Of

fic
er 

Tim
es

ca
le  

1.3
 

Ne
w 

Eff
ec

tiv
e p

roc
ed

ure
s 

to 
ide

nti
fy,

 ev
alu

ate
, 

co
mm

un
ica

te,
 

im
ple

me
nt,

 co
mp

ly 
wit

h a
nd

 m
on

ito
r 

leg
isla

tiv
e c

ha
ng

e 
ex

ist
 an

d a
re 

us
ed

 

Qu
art

erl
y l

eg
isl
ati

on
 tra

ck
er 

no
 

lon
ge

r p
rod

uc
ed

 by
 le

ga
l 

Le
ga

l &
Go

ve
rna

nc
e S

erv
ice

s 
to 

ex
plo

re 
a c

os
t e

ffe
cti

ve
 

wa
y o

f e
ns

uri
ng

 le
gis

lat
ive

 
ch

an
ge

s a
re 

ide
nti

fie
d 

Dir
ec

tor
 of

 Le
ga

l &
 

Go
ve

rna
nc

e S
erv

ice
s 

No
v 2

01
1 

1.7
 

c/f
 

Ob
jec

tiv
es

 ar
e 

ref
lec

ted
 in

 
de

pa
rtm

en
tal

 pl
an

s 
an

d a
re 

cle
arl

y 
ma

tch
ed

 w
ith

 
as

so
cia

ted
 bu

dg
ets

 

No
 co

rpo
rat

e r
eq

uir
em

en
t fo

r 
se

rvi
ce

s w
ith

in 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
s t

o 
ha

ve
 Se

rvi
ce

 D
eli

ve
ry 

Pla
ns

. 
As

sis
tan

t C
hie

f E
xe

cu
tiv

e t
o 

pro
du

ce
 pa

pe
r fo

r C
SB

 
co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 on
 ho

w 
to 

clo
se

 th
is 

ga
p. 

(as
 ag

ree
d b

y 
CG

G 
09

/08
/11

) 

As
sis

tan
t C

hie
f E

xe
cu

tiv
e  

No
v 2

01
1 

3.4
 

c/f
 

Th
ere

 is
 a 

co
un

ter
 

fra
ud

 an
d c

orr
up

tio
n 

po
lic

y i
n p

lac
e w

hic
h 

ha
s b

ee
n f

orm
all

y 
ap

pro
ve

d, 
reg

ula
rly

 
rev

iew
ed

 an
d w

ide
ly 

co
mm

un
ica

ted
 to

 al
l 

rel
ev

an
t s

taf
f. 

Po
lic
y a

cc
es

sib
le 

on
 in

ter
ne

t 
sit

e b
ut 

on
ly 

via
 se

arc
h f

ac
ility

 
on

 in
tra

ne
t (C

AF
T h

av
e n

o 
sp

ec
ific

 pa
ge

s).
 

 No
 aw

are
ne

ss
 se

ss
ion

s e
tc.

 
are

 ru
n. 

 

Int
ran

et 
to 

be
 en

ha
nc

ed
 to

 
en

ab
le 

po
lic
y t

o b
e m

ore
 

ac
ce

ss
ibl

e t
o s

taf
f. 

  Co
rpo

rat
e f

rau
d a

wa
ren

es
s 

e-l
ea

rni
ng

 to
ol 

to 
be

 
de

ve
lop

ed
 in

-ho
us

e. 
 

Co
rpo

rat
e A

nti
-fra

ud
 

Se
rvi

ce
 M

an
ag

er 
(w

ith
 

he
lp 

fro
m 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt)

 
 Co

rpo
rat

e A
nti

-fra
ud

 
Se

rvi
ce

 M
an

ag
er 

 

No
v 2

01
1 

    Ma
rch

 
20

12
 

3.7
 

Ne
w 

W
he

re 
a s

ch
em

e o
f 

de
leg

ati
on

 ha
s b

ee
n 

dra
wn

 up
, it

 ha
s b

ee
n 

for
ma

lly 
ap

pro
ve

d 
an

d c
om

mu
nic

ate
d t

o 
all

 re
lev

an
t s

taf
f 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
As

su
ran

ce
 

Ex
erc

ise
 id

en
tifi

ed
 

dir
ec

tor
ate

/se
rvi

ce
 sp

ec
ific

 
sc

he
me

s o
f d

ele
ga

tio
n 

co
ve

rin
g H

R 
/ s

erv
ice

 sp
ec

ific
 

res
po

ns
ibi

litie
s n

ot 
co

ns
ist

en
tly

 in
 pl

ac
e a

cro
ss

 
the

 C
ou

nc
il 

Re
mi

nd
er 

on
 th

e r
eq

uir
em

en
t 

for
 a 

dir
ec

tor
ate

/se
rvi

ce
 

sp
ec

ific
 sc

he
me

 of
 

de
leg

ati
on

 to
 be

 pu
t in

 pl
ac

e 
to 

be
 se

nt 
to 

all
 C

orp
ora

te 
Dir

ec
tor

s. 
 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f d
ele

ga
tio

ns
 in

 
pla

ce
 to

 be
 pr

ov
ide

d t
o 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
.  

As
sis

tan
t C

hie
f 

Ex
ec

uti
ve

/D
ire

cto
r o

f 
Fin

an
ce

 
    Co

rpo
rat

e D
ire

cto
rs 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
11

 
     De

c 2
01

1 

47



20
10

/11
 AG

S A
cti

on
 Pl

an
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
   A

pp
en

dix
 2 

07
/07

/10
 

AG
S 

Re
f 

Ar
ea

 of
 A

ss
ur

an
ce

 
Ga

p I
de

nti
fie

d 
Ag

ree
d A

cti
on

 
Re

sp
on

sib
le 

Of
fic

er 
Tim

es
ca

le  
3.3

4 
c/f

 
Th

ere
 ar

e u
p-t

o-d
ate

 
da

ta 
se

cu
rity

 po
lici

es
 

an
d g

uid
an

ce
 in

 
pla

ce
 co

ve
rin

g: 
 

 • 
ke

y b
us

ine
ss

 ar
ea

s  
  

Th
ere

 is
 no

 co
ns

ist
en

t 
ap

pro
ac

h f
or 

va
lid

ati
ng

 
inf

orm
ati

on
 fro

m 
thi

rd 
pa

rtie
s 

as
 it 

is 
the

 re
sp

on
sib

ility
 of

 th
e 

co
ntr

ac
t ‘o

wn
er’

 

Pa
pe

r to
 C

SB
 to

 be
 pr

od
uc

ed
 

to 
ad

dre
ss

 th
e G

AP
 

Div
isio

na
l D

ire
cto

r - 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 D

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
& P

erf
orm

an
ce

  
No

ve
mb

er 
20

11
 

3.3
7 

Ne
w 

Th
e c

ou
nc

il m
an

ag
es

 
inf

orm
ati

on
 ris

k 
eff

ec
tiv

ely
. 

Ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 m

ee
t 

the
 re

qu
ire

me
nts

 
ex

pe
cte

d i
n 

go
ve

rnm
en

t in
clu

din
g 

ha
vin

g a
 ca

pa
ble

 
Se

nio
r In

for
ma

tio
n 

Ris
k O

wn
er 

(S
IR

O)
. 

Th
e c

ou
nc

il c
om

pli
es

 
wit

h t
he

 re
qu

ire
me

nts
 

se
t o

ut 
in 

an
y 

rel
ev

an
t c

od
es

 of
 

co
nn

ec
tio

n f
or 

se
rvi

ce
s i

t h
as

 in
 

pla
ce

, fo
r e

xa
mp

le 
the

 G
ov

ern
me

nt 
Se

cu
re 

Int
ran

et 
/ 

Go
ve

rnm
en

t 
Co

nn
ec

t. 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 co
mp

lie
d w

ith
 

the
 G

ov
ern

me
nts

 C
od

e o
f 

Co
nn

ec
tio

n a
nd

 w
as

 fo
rm

all
y 

ce
rtif

ied
 on

 1s
t  S

ep
t 0

9 a
nd

 
up

da
ted

 29
/07

/11
.  H

ow
ev

er 
CA

FT
 m

ov
ed

 01
/08

/11
 to

 
op

en
 pl

an
 of

fic
e t

ha
t d

oe
s n

ot,
 

in 
the

 op
ini

on
 of

 th
e C

AF
T 

Se
rvi

ce
 M

an
ag

er 
an

d t
he

 
Inf

orm
ati

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Se

rvi
ce

 M
an

ag
er 

co
mp

ly 
wit

h 
the

 re
lev

an
t c

od
e o

f 
co

nn
ec

tio
n. 

Pla
n t

o b
e d

ev
elo

pe
d t

o 
ad

dre
ss

 ho
w 

to 
me

et 
req

uir
em

en
ts.

 
Co

rpo
rat

e A
nti

-fra
ud

 
Se

rvi
ce

 M
an

ag
er/

 Se
rvi

ce
 

Ma
na

ge
r - 

Pr
op

ert
y  

No
ve

mb
er 

20
11

 

48



20
10

/11
 AG

S A
cti

on
 Pl

an
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
   A

pp
en

dix
 2 

07
/07

/10
 

 
AG

S 
Re

f 
Ar

ea
 of

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

Ga
p I

de
nti

fie
d 

Ag
ree

d A
cti

on
 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
Of

fic
er 

Tim
es

ca
le 

3.3
8 

Ne
w 

Th
e c

ou
nc

il 
inc

orp
ora

tes
 go

od
 

pra
cti

ce
 st

an
da

rds
 

an
d s

pe
cif

ied
 pu

bli
c 

se
cto

r p
oli

cie
s o

n 
da

ta 
an

d i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 

se
cu

rity
 in

to 
its

 ow
n 

po
lic
ies

 an
d 

pro
ce

du
res

. F
or 

ex
am

ple
, IS

O2
70

01
 

an
d r

ele
va

nt 
Co

de
s 

of 
Co

nn
ec

tio
n f

or 
the

 
NH

S N
etw

ork
 (N

3) 
an

d G
ov

ern
me

nt 
Se

cu
re 

Int
ran

et 
an

d 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t 

Co
nn

ec
t. 

In 
ord

er 
to 

im
pro

ve
 on

 da
ta 

se
cu

rity
, th

e C
ou

nc
il h

as
 

co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 a 

ga
p a

na
lys

is 
ex

erc
ise

 (D
ec

 09
) to

 he
lp 

ide
nti

fy 
ga

ps
 in

 da
ta 

se
cu

rity
 

pra
cti

ce
s t

o e
na

ble
 us

 to
 

im
be

d a
n I

SM
S t

o I
SO

27
00

1 
sta

nd
ard

s. 
 

 Ca
pit

a a
nd

 th
e C

ou
nc

il a
re 

no
w 

wo
rki

ng
 to

ge
the

r to
 

im
ple

me
nt 

so
me

 of
 th

e g
ap

s 
to 

im
be

d a
n I

SM
S t

o I
SO

 
sta

nd
ard

. 

Ac
tio

n i
de

nti
fie

d a
nd

 ag
ree

d 
in 

ISM
S/I

SO
 ac

tio
n p

lan
 

the
ref

ore
 no

 ac
tio

n r
eq

uir
ed

 
he

re.
 

N/
A 

N/
A 

10
.5 

Ne
w 

 D
ev

elo
p p

rot
oc

ols
 to

 
en

su
re 

tha
t th

e 
lea

de
r a

nd
 ch

ief
 

ex
ec

uti
ve

 (o
r 

eq
uiv

ale
nt)

 ne
go

tia
te 

the
ir r

es
pe

cti
ve

 ro
les

 
ea

rly
 in

 th
e 

rel
ati

on
sh

ip 
an

d t
ha

t 
a s

ha
red

 
un

de
rst

an
din

g o
f 

rol
es

 an
d o

bje
cti

ve
s 

is 
ma

int
ain

ed
 

No
 pr

oto
co

l c
urr

en
tly

 in
 pl

ac
e 

Pr
oto

co
l to

 be
 de

ve
lop

ed
 an

d 
ag

ree
d 

Dir
ec

tor
 of

 Le
ga

l &
 

Go
ve

rna
nc

e S
erv

ice
s  

No
ve

mb
er 

20
11

 

49



20
10

/11
 AG

S A
cti

on
 Pl

an
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
   A

pp
en

dix
 2 

07
/07

/10
 

 
AG

S 
Re

f 
Ar

ea
 of

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

Ga
p I

de
nti

fie
d 

Ag
ree

d A
cti

on
 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
Of

fic
er 

Tim
es

ca
le 

13
.11

 
c/f

 
Jo

int
 w

ork
for

ce
 

pla
nn

ing
. 

Alt
ho

ug
h t

he
re 

is 
an

 
int

eg
rat

ed
 C

hil
dre

n’s
 

W
ork

for
ce

 St
rat

eg
y a

nd
 jo

int
 

ind
uc

tio
n a

rra
ng

em
en

ts 
for

 
tho

se
 w

ork
ing

 w
ith

 ch
ild

ren
 

ac
ros

s l
oc

al 
pa

rtn
ers

 th
is 

do
es

 
no

t e
xis

t to
 an

y s
ign

ific
an

t 
ex

ten
t in

 ot
he

r D
ire

cto
rat

es
 

Th
is 

ha
s b

ee
n i

de
nti

fie
d i

n 
the

 St
rat

eg
y f

or 
Pe

op
le 

20
10

-
20

12
 as

 an
 ac

tio
n f

or 
20

11
 

the
ref

ore
 no

 fu
rth

er 
ac

tio
n i

s 
ne

ed
ed

 he
re.

 

N/
A 

N/
A 

13
.19

 
Ne

w 
En

su
re 

tha
t c

are
er 

str
uc

tur
es

 ar
e i

n 
pla

ce
 fo

r m
em

be
rs 

an
d o

ffic
ers

 to
 

en
co

ura
ge

 
pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n a

nd
 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
 

Th
ere

 is
 no

 ca
ree

r-p
lan

nin
g 

pro
gra

mm
e i

n p
lac

e a
t th

e 
off

ice
r le

ve
l 

Th
is 

is 
ref

lec
ted

 in
 th

e 
Str

ate
gy

 fo
r P

eo
ple

 20
10

-12
 

ac
tio

n p
lan

 th
ere

for
e n

o 
fur

the
r a

cti
on

 ne
ed

ed
 he

re.
 

N/
A 

N/
A 

50



20
10

/11
 AG

S A
cti

on
 Pl

an
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
   A

pp
en

dix
 2 

07
/07

/10
 

OG
F7

 
c/f

 
Ma

kin
g s

ure
 th

at 
an

 
eff

ec
tiv

e r
isk

 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

sy
ste

m 
is 

in 
op

era
tio

n 

No
 Bu

sin
es

s C
on

tin
uit

y/I
T 

Dis
as

ter
 re

co
ve

ry 
pla

n 
No

t in
 pl

ac
e f

or 
20

10
/11

. W
ill 

be
 co

mp
let

e b
y A

pri
l 2

01
2. 

 Th
ere

 ar
e a

lre
ad

y s
om

e 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

 in
 pl

ac
e t

o 
me

et 
thi

s r
eq

uir
em

en
t 

(in
clu

din
g a

n a
nn

ua
l D

R 
tes

t) 
an

d a
 co

mp
reh

en
siv

e r
an

ge
 

of 
im

pro
ve

me
nts

 ha
ve

 be
en

 
de

ve
lop

ed
 to

 en
su

re 
res

ilie
nc

e a
nd

 re
co

ve
ry 

ca
pa

bil
itie

s a
s p

art
 of

 th
e 

ne
w 

Ca
pit

a I
T c

on
tra

ct.
 

 On
e o

f th
e m

ain
 pr

oje
cts

 to
 

su
pp

ort
 th

is 
is 

the
 m

igr
ati

on
 

of 
the

 co
un

cil’
s I

T 
ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

 to
 th

e C
ap

ita
 

W
es

t M
all

ing
 si

te,
 w

hic
h i

s 
du

e t
o c

om
me

nc
e i

n 
Se

pte
mb

er 
on

 a 
ph

as
ed

 
pro

gra
mm

e w
hic

h w
ill b

e 
co

mp
let

ed
 in

 Ap
ril 

20
12

. 
 Th

ere
 is

 a 
co

nti
nu

ing
 ris

k 
un

til 
thi

s p
roj

ec
t is

 co
mp

let
e 

alt
ho

ug
h t

he
 w

ide
r b

us
ine

ss
 

co
nti

nu
ity

 pl
an

 ta
ke

s t
his

 in
to 

ac
co

un
t a

nd
 th

e r
isk

 is
 no

 
gre

ate
r th

an
 it 

ha
s b

ee
n 

his
tor

ica
lly 

ov
er 

a n
um

be
r o

f 
ye

ars
. 

 

He
ad

 of
 IT

 C
lie

nt 
Te

am
 

Ap
ril 

 20
12

 

51



20
10

/11
 AG

S A
cti

on
 Pl

an
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
   A

pp
en

dix
 2 

07
/07

/10
 

OG
F8

 
c/f

 
Ma

kin
g s

ure
 th

at 
an

 
eff

ec
tiv

e r
isk

 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

sy
ste

m 
is 

in 
op

era
tio

n 

He
alt

h &
 Sa

fet
y  

 Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
As

su
ran

ce
 

Ex
erc

ise
 id

en
tifi

ed
 th

at 
He

alt
h 

& S
afe

ty 
no

t w
ork

ing
 w

ell
 

ac
ros

s a
ll a

rea
s o

f th
e 

Co
un

cil.
 

A c
om

pre
he

ns
ive

 re
vie

w 
of 

H&
S h

as
 be

en
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
an

d a
 ne

w 
res

tru
ctu

re 
an

d a
 

tw
o y

ea
r im

pro
ve

me
nt 

pla
n i

s 
co

mm
en

cin
g. 

 Pr
og

res
s a

ga
ins

t p
lan

 re
po

rt 
to 

be
 pr

ov
ide

d t
o I

nte
rna

l 
Au

dit
 (a

t th
e r

eq
ue

st 
of 

Ch
ief

 
Ex

ec
uti

ve
) 

 

Div
isio

na
l D

ire
cto

r R
isk

, 
Au

dit
 & 

Fra
ud

 
De

c 2
01

1 

52



20
10

/11
 AG

S A
cti

on
 Pl

an
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
   A

pp
en

dix
 2 

07
/07

/10
 

 
AG

S 
Re

f 
Ar

ea
 of

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

Ga
p I

de
nti

fie
d 

Ag
ree

d A
cti

on
 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
Of

fic
er 

Tim
es

ca
le 

3.4
2 

c/f
 

Th
e c

ou
nc

il e
ng

ag
es

 
wit

h i
ts 

sta
ff a

nd
 

ga
ins

 th
eir

 
co

mm
itm

en
t to

, a
nd

 
ow

ne
rsh

ip 
of,

 th
e 

co
un

cil’
s a

pp
roa

ch
 to

 
red

uc
ing

 its
 im

pa
ct 

on
 th

e e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

Alt
ho

ug
h a

 w
ell

 pu
bli

cis
ed

 
En

erg
y S

av
ing

 C
am

pa
ign

 w
as

 
run

 in
 20

08
/09

 it 
is 

rec
og

nis
ed

 
tha

t a
 m

ore
 pr

o-a
cti

ve
 

en
ga

ge
me

nt 
wit

h s
taf

f is
 

ne
ed

ed
. 

 Re
du

ce
d s

taf
fin

g l
ev

els
 an

d a
 

fre
ez

e o
n r

ec
rui

tm
en

t d
uri

ng
 

20
10

/11
 ha

ve
 m

ea
nt 

tha
t it

 
ha

s n
ot 

be
en

 po
ss

ibl
e t

o  
de

vis
e a

 pr
og

ram
me

. W
e 

an
tic

ipa
te 

rec
rui

tin
g a

nd
 

ini
tia

tin
g a

 pr
og

ram
me

 in
 th

e 
Au

tum
n 

  

To
 de

vis
e a

 pr
o-a

cti
ve

 
en

ga
ge

me
nt 

pro
gra

mm
e o

n 
the

 co
un

cil’
s a

pp
roa

ch
 to

 
red

uc
ing

 its
 im

pa
ct 

on
 th

e 
en

vir
on

me
nt.

 

He
ad

 of
 C

lim
ate

 C
ha

ng
e  

No
v 2

01
1 

   

53



54

This page is intentionally left blank



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

3 

Pa
ge

 1 
of 

87
 

  
 H
AR
RO

W 
CO

UN
CI
L 

 
AN
NU

AL
 G
OV
ER
NA
NC

E S
TA
TE
ME

NT
 20
10
/11
 

As
su
ran

ce
 an

d E
vid
en
ce
 

KE
Y 

 OW
NE

RS
 

HP
 

Hu
gh

 Pe
art

 - D
ire

cto
r o

f L
eg

al 
& G

ov
ern

an
ce

 Se
rvi

ce
s (

CG
G)

 
JA

 
Ju

lie
 Al

de
rso

n –
 In

ter
im

 D
ire

cto
r o

f F
ina

nc
e (

CG
G)

 
TW

 
To

m 
W

hit
ing

 – 
As

sis
tan

t C
hie

f E
xe

cu
tiv

e (
CG

G)
 

DW
 

Da
vid

 W
ard

 – 
Div

isio
na

l D
ire

cto
r R

isk
, A

ud
it &

 Fr
au

d (
CG

G)
 

JT
 

Jo
n T

urn
er 

-  D
ivis

ion
al 

Dir
ec

tor
 H

RD
 & 

Sh
are

d S
erv

ice
s (

CG
G)

 
AD

 
Ale

x D
ew

sn
ap

 – 
Div

isio
na

l  D
ire

cto
r - 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t &

 Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 (C

GG
) 

JE
 

Jo
hn

 Ed
wa

rds
 - D

ivis
ion

al 
Dir

ec
tor

-E
nv

iro
nm

en
tal

 Se
rvi

ce
s 

MB
r 

Mi
ke

 Br
ow

n -
 Se

rvi
ce

 M
an

ag
er 

- P
rop

ert
y 

CG
G 

Co
rpo

rat
e G

ov
ern

an
ce

 G
rou

p 
 SP

ON
SO

RS
 

JF
 

Je
ss

ica
 Fa

rm
er 

– H
ea

d o
f L

eg
al 

Pr
ac

tic
e (

CG
W

G)
 

SD
 

Su
sa

n D
ixs

on
 – 

Se
rvi

ce
 M

an
ag

er,
 In

ter
na

l A
ud

it (
CG

W
G)

 
LM

 
Lo

ra 
Mc

Ga
nn

 - P
roj

ec
t M

an
ag

er 
- P

rog
ram

me
 O

ffic
e (

CG
W

G)
 

NB
 

Ne
al 

Bu
rns

 – 
Int

eri
m 

Ris
k M

an
ag

er 
(C

GW
G)

 
LD

 
Liz

 D
efr

ies
 - S

erv
ice

 M
an

ag
er-

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 & 

Da
ta 

Se
rvi

ce
s (

CG
W

G)
 

LC
 

Le
sle

y C
lar

ke
 - O

rga
nis

ati
on

al 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Ma
na

ge
r (C

GW
G)

 
TM

 
To

ny
 M

on
ac

he
llo

 - S
erv

ice
 M

an
ag

er,
 In

for
ma

tio
n M

an
ag

em
en

t (C
GW

G)
 

VS
 

Vis
ha

l S
ee

go
ola

m 
- S

en
ior

 D
em

oc
rat

ic 
Se

rvi
ce

s O
ffic

er 
(C

GW
G)

 
JH

 
Je

nn
y H

yd
ari

 - D
ivis

ion
al 

Dir
ec

tor
-C

orp
 Fi

na
nc

e &
 Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

(C
GW

G)
 

CG
W

G 
Co

rpo
rat

e G
ov

ern
an

ce
 W

ork
ing

 G
rou

p 
 

 
Pr
ep
are

d b
y C

or
po
rat
e G

ov
ern

an
ce
 W
or
kin

g G
ro
up
 

55



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

3 

Pa
ge

 2 
of 

87
 

 Ob
jec

tiv
e 1

: E
sta

bli
sh

ing
 pr

inc
ipa

l s
tat

uto
ry 

ob
lig

ati
on

s a
nd

 or
ga

nis
ati

on
al 

ob
jec

tiv
es

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
3 

Ste
p 1

: –
 M

ec
ha

nis
m 

es
tab

lish
ed

 to
 id

en
tify

 pr
inc

ipa
l s

tat
uto

ry 
ob

lig
ati

on
s..

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

3 
Ste

p 2
: –

 M
ec

ha
nis

m 
in 

pla
ce

 to
 es

tab
lish

 or
ga

nis
ati

on
al 

ob
jec

tiv
es

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
5 

Ste
p 3

: –
 Ef

fec
tiv

e c
orp

ora
te 

go
ve

rna
nc

e a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

are
 em

be
dd

ed
 w

ith
in 

the
 au

tho
rity

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
.1

1 
Ste

p 4
: –

 Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

are
 in

 pl
ac

e.
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

..1
4 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 2

: Id
en

tify
 pr

inc
ipa

l ri
sk

s t
o a

ch
iev

em
en

t o
f o

bje
cti

ve
s..

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

.2
4 

Ste
p 1

: –
 Th

e a
uth

ori
ty 

ha
s r

ob
us

t s
ys

tem
s a

nd
 pr

oc
es

se
s i

n p
lac

e f
or 

the
 id

en
tifi

ca
tio

n a
nd

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f s
tra

teg
ic 

an
d o

pe
rat

ion
al 

ris
k

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
24

 
Ob

jec
tiv

e 3
: Id

en
tify

 an
d e

va
lua

te 
ke

y c
on

tro
ls 

to 
ma

na
ge

 pr
inc

ipa
l ri

sk
s..

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
35

 
Ste

p 1
: –

 Th
e a

uth
ori

ty 
ha

s r
ob

us
t s

ys
tem

 of
 in

ter
na

l c
on

tro
l w

hic
h i

nc
lud

es
 sy

ste
ms

 an
d p

roc
ed

ure
s t

o m
itig

ate
 pr

inc
ipa

l ri
sk

s..
....

....
...

35
 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 4

: O
bta

in 
as

su
ran

ce
 on

 th
e e

ffe
cti

ve
ne

ss
 of

 ke
y c

on
tro

ls.
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

..4
7 

Ste
p 1

– A
pp

rop
ria

te 
as

su
ran

ce
 st

ate
me

nts
 ar

e r
ec

eiv
ed

 fro
m 

de
sig

na
ted

 in
ter

na
l a

nd
 ex

ter
na

l a
ss

ura
nc

e p
rov

ide
rs:

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
.4

7 
Ob

jec
tiv

e 5
: E

va
lua

te 
as

su
ran

ce
s a

nd
 id

en
tify

 ga
ps

 in
 co

ntr
ol/

 as
su

ran
ce

s.
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
.5

0 
Ste

p 1
: T

he
 au

tho
rity

 ha
s m

ad
e a

de
qu

ate
 ar

ran
ge

me
nts

 to
 id

en
tify

, re
ce

ive
 an

d e
va

lua
te 

rep
ort

s f
rom

 th
e d

efi
ne

d i
nte

rna
l a

nd
 ex

ter
na

l 
as

su
ran

ce
 pr

ov
ide

rs 
to 

ide
nti

fy 
are

as
 of

 w
ea

kn
es

s i
n c

on
tro

ls.
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
..5

0 
Ob

jec
tiv

e 6
: A

cti
on

 pl
an

 to
 ad

dre
ss

 w
ea

kn
es

se
s a

nd
 en

su
re 

co
nti

nu
ou

s i
mp

rov
em

en
t o

f th
e s

ys
tem

 of
 co

rpo
rat

e g
ov

ern
an

ce
....

....
....

....
...

53
 

Ste
p 1

: –
 Th

ere
 is

 a 
rob

us
t m

ec
ha

nis
m 

to 
en

su
re 

tha
t a

n a
pp

rop
ria

te 
ac

tio
n p

lan
 is

 ag
ree

d t
o a

dd
res

s i
de

nti
fie

d c
on

tro
l w

ea
kn

es
se

s a
nd

 
is 

im
ple

me
nte

d a
nd

 m
on

ito
red

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
53

 
Ob

jec
tiv

e 7
: A

nn
ua

l G
ov

ern
an

ce
 St

ate
me

nt
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
..5

4 
Ste

p 1
: –

 An
 An

nu
al 

Go
ve

rna
nc

e S
tat

em
en

t h
as

 be
en

 dr
aft

ed
 in

 ac
co

rda
nc

e w
ith

 th
e s

tat
uto

ry 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

an
d t

im
eta

ble
 se

t o
ut 

in 
the

 
Ac

co
un

ts 
an

d A
ud

it R
eg

ula
tio

ns
 20

03
, a

s r
ev

ise
d b

y t
he

 Ac
co

un
ts 

an
d A

ud
it (

Am
en

dm
en

t) (
En

gla
nd

) R
eg

ula
tio

ns
 20

06
, a

nd
 is

 in
 

ac
co

rda
nc

e w
ith

 C
IPF

A g
uid

an
ce

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
...

54
 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 8

: R
ep

ort
 to

 ca
bin

et 
/ e

xe
cu

tiv
e c

om
mi

tte
e..

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

...
55

 
Ste

p 1
: In

 su
pp

ort
 of

 ob
jec

tiv
e 8

 – 
An

 an
nu

al 
rep

ort
 to

 th
e a

uth
ori

ty 
(or

 de
leg

ate
d c

om
mi

tte
e) 

on
 th

e A
nn

ua
l G

ov
ern

an
ce

 St
ate

me
nt 

is 
pre

se
nte

d, 
in 

ac
co

rda
nc

e w
ith

 th
e C

IPF
A p

ro 
for

ma
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
..5

5 
Ap

ply
ing

 th
e C

IPF
A/S

OL
AC

E C
ore

 Pr
inc

ipl
es

 (In
 su

pp
ort

 of
 ob

jec
tiv

e 1
)..

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
56

 
Ste

p 1
 - F

oc
us

ing
 on

 th
e p

urp
os

e o
f th

e a
uth

ori
ty 

an
d o

n o
utc

om
es

 fo
r th

e c
om

mu
nit

y a
nd

 cr
ea

tin
g a

nd
 im

ple
me

nti
ng

 a 
vis

ion
 fo

r th
e 

loc
al 

are
a.

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

...
56

 
Ste

p 2
 – 

Me
mb

ers
 an

d o
ffic

ers
 w

ork
ing

 to
ge

the
r to

 ac
hie

ve
 a 

co
mm

on
 pu

rpo
se

 w
ith

 cl
ea

rly
 de

fin
ed

 fu
nc

tio
ns

 an
d r

ole
s.

....
....

....
....

....
...

58
 

Ste
p 3

 – 
Pr

om
oti

ng
 va

lue
s f

or 
the

 au
tho

rity
 an

d d
em

on
str

ati
ng

 th
e v

alu
es

 of
 go

od
 go

ve
rna

nc
e t

hro
ug

h u
ph

old
ing

 hi
gh

 st
an

da
rds

 of
 

co
nd

uc
t a

nd
 be

ha
vio

ur
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

...
64

 
Ste

p 4
 – 

Ta
kin

g i
nfo

rm
ed

 an
d t

ran
sp

are
nt 

de
cis

ion
s w

hic
h a

re 
su

bje
ct 

to 
eff

ec
tiv

e s
cru

tin
y a

nd
 m

an
ag

ing
 ris

k.
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

..6
8 

Ste
p 5

 - D
ev

elo
pin

g t
he

 ca
pa

cit
y a

nd
 ca

pa
bil

ity
 of

 m
em

be
rs 

an
d o

ffic
ers

 to
 be

 ef
fec

tiv
e..

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

.7
1 

Ste
p 6

 – 
En

ga
gin

g w
ith

 lo
ca

l p
eo

ple
 an

d o
the

r s
tak

eh
old

ers
 to

 en
su

re 
rob

us
t p

ub
lic 

ac
co

un
tab

ility
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
..8

3 

56



 

Pa
ge

 3 
of 

87
 

 Ob
jec

tiv
e 1

: E
sta

bli
sh

ing
 pr

inc
ipa

l s
tat

uto
ry 

ob
lig

ati
on

s a
nd

 or
ga

nis
ati

on
al 

ob
jec

tiv
es

 
St
ep

 1:
 – 

Me
ch

an
ism

 es
tab

lis
he

d t
o i

de
nti

fy 
pr
inc

ipa
l s
tat

uto
ry 

ob
lig

ati
on

s 
  

Ex
am

ple
s 

of 
as

su
ran

ce
: 

FA
N 

Su
gg

es
ted

 Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

1.1
 

Re
sp
on
sib
iliti
es
 fo
r 

sta
tut
ory

 ob
lig
ati
on
s 

are
 fo
rm
all
y 

es
tab

lish
ed
 

Do
cu
me

nts
 (e
.g.
 co

ns
titu

tio
n) 

rec
ord

ing
 in
div
idu

al 
off
ice
r a
nd
 

me
mb

er 
res

po
ns
ibil
itie
s  

 Mi
nu
tes

 of
 de

leg
ati
on
s t
o o

ffic
ers

 
an
d c

om
mi
tte
es
 

 Co
mm

itte
e t
erm

s o
f re

fer
en
ce
 

 Jo
b d

es
cri
pti
on
s o

f k
ey
 of
fic
ers

  
 Str
uc
tur
e c

ha
rts
 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 C
on
sti
tut
ion

 in
clu
de
s d

eta
ils 
of 
Dir
ec
tor
 

res
po
ns
ibi
lity
 an

d c
om

mi
tte
e t
erm

s o
f re

fer
en
ce
.  T

he
 

Co
ns
titu

tio
n i
s a

va
ila
ble

 at
 

htt
p:/
/w
ww

.ha
rro
w.g

ov
.uk

/si
te/
sc
rip
ts/
do
cu
me

nts
_in
fo.
ph
p

?c
ate

go
ryI
D=
10
01
6&
do
cu
me

ntI
D=
91
9 

 Mi
nu
tes

 of
 cu

rre
nt 
de
leg

ati
on
s c
an
 be

 fo
un
d i
n t
he
 

Co
un
cil 
Mi
nu
tes

 fo
r 1
2 M

ay
 20

11
 w
hic
h i
s a

va
ila
ble

 at
 

htt
p:/
/m
od
ern

go
v:8

08
0/i
eL
ist
Do
cu
me

nts
.as

px
?C
Id=

28
8&

MI
d=
60
27
3&
Ve
r=4

 
 Ro
le 
pro

file
s f
or 
the

 st
atu

tor
y o
bli
ga
tio
ns
 (C

hie
f 

Ex
ec
uti
ve
, C
orp

ora
te 
Dir
ec
tor
s o

f C
hil
dre

n’s
, A
du
lts
 & 

Ho
us
ing

, C
orp

ora
te 
Fin

an
ce
 an

d D
ire
cto

r o
f L
eg
al 
an
d 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e S

erv
ice
s) 
are

 av
ail
ab
le 
in 
Pa
rt 3

B o
f th

e 
co
ns
titu
tio
n: 

htt
p:/
/w
ww

.ha
rro
w.g

ov
.uk

/do
wn
loa

ds
/fil
e/7

99
3/p

art
_3
a1
-

ter
ms

_o
f_r
efe

ren
ce
_s
ch
ed
ule

 
 

HP
/JF

  
JF
 – 
10
 

Ju
ne
 

 

1.2
 

Re
co
rd 
he
ld 
of 

sta
tut
ory

 ob
lig
ati
on
s 

Ac
ce
ss
ible

 re
co
rd 
of 
sta

tut
ory

 
ob
lig
ati
on
s (
e.g

. c
en
tra
l re

gis
try
 or
 

leg
al 
lib
rar
y, 
int
ran

et)
 

It i
s v
ery

 di
ffic
ult
 to
 ho

ld 
a c

om
ple
te 
list
 of
 al
l s
tat
uto

ry 
ob
lig
ati
on
s. 
 H
ow
ev
er,
 th
es
e s

tat
uto

ry 
ob
lig
ati
on
s a

re 
av
ail
ab
le 
fro
m 
a v
ari
ety

 of
 so

urc
es
.  R

efe
ren

ce
 m
ate

ria
l is
 

av
ail
ab
le 
fro
m 
Le
ga
l S
erv

ice
s a

nd
 th
e i
nte

rne
t e
g H

MS
O,
 

La
wte

l, L
ex
is 
Ne
xis
.  C

on
sti
tut
ion

 ou
tlin
es
 al
l o
ffic
ers

 wi
th 

sta
tut
ory

 ob
lig
ati
on
s. 

 

HP
/JF

 
JF
 – 
10
 

Ju
ne
 

 

1.3
 

Eff
ec
tive

 pr
oc
ed
ure

s 
to 
ide

nti
fy,
 ev

alu
ate

, 
co
mm

un
ica
te,
 

im
ple
me

nt,
 co
mp

ly 

Re
vie
w 
of 
es
tab

lish
ed
 pr
oc
es
se
s i
n 

pla
ce
 

 Ap
po
int
me

nt 
of 
su
ita
bly
 qu

alif
ied

 an
d 

Me
mb

ers
 ar
e p

rov
ide

d w
ith
 up

da
tes

 on
 re
lev
an
t 

leg
isla

tio
n e

ith
er 
by
 w
ay
 of
 th
e i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 ci
rcu

lar
 or
 at
 

the
 M
em

be
rs 
Qu

art
erl
y b
rie
fin
gs
. L
eg
al 
Se
rvi
ce
s p

rod
uc
e 

inf
orm

ati
on
 bu

lle
tin
s f
or 
Me

mb
ers

 an
d c

olle
ag
ue
s. 

HP
/JF

  
JF
 – 
10
 

Ju
ne
 

    

57



 

Pa
ge

 4 
of 

87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s 
of 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

wit
h a

nd
 m
on
ito
r 

leg
isla

tiv
e c

ha
ng
e 

ex
ist
 an

d a
re 
us
ed
 

ex
pe
rie
nc
ed
 em

plo
ye
es
, s
ele

cte
d 

ag
ain

st 
ac
cu
rat
e a

nd
 sp

ec
ific
 jo
b 

de
sc
rip
tio
ns
 an

d p
ers

on
 

sp
ec
ific
ati
on
s 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f e
ffe
cti
ve
 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 

for
 in
ter
na
l a
nd
 ex

ter
na
l 

co
mm

un
ica
tio
n (
e.g

. b
y r
ev
iew

 of
 

co
mm

un
ica
tio
n o

f re
ce
nt 
leg

isla
tio
n 

to 
rel
ev
an
t o
ffic
ers

 an
d m

em
be
rs)
 

 Ap
pro

pri
ate

 in
du
cti
on
 tra

ini
ng
 ha

s 
be
en
 gi
ve
n t
o s

pe
cif
ic 
po
st 
ho
lde

rs 
 

 Aw
are

ne
ss
 tra

ini
ng
 ta
ilo
red

 to
 jo
b 

pro
file
s h

as
 be

en
 pr
ov
ide

d 
Ins

pe
cti
on
 of
 re
po
rts
 to
 m
em

be
rs 
on
 

im
plic

ati
on
s o

f n
ew
 le
gis
lat
ion

 
 Ev
ide

nc
e t
ha
t a
ss
ura

nc
e h

as
 be

en
 

giv
en
 to
 C
hie
f E
xe
cu
tiv
e (
or 

eq
uiv
ale

nt)
 th
at 
all
 re
lev
an
t 

leg
isla

tiv
e c

ha
ng
es
 ha

ve
 be

en
 

rep
ort
ed
 an

d a
dd
res

se
d 

 Ro
le 
of 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 of
fic
er 
inc
lud
ing

 cl
ea
ran

ce
 fo
r re

po
rts
 

etc
. 

 Le
ga
l o
ffic
ers

 re
po
rt l
eg
isla

tiv
e c

ha
ng
es
 to
 C
SB

, 
Sta

nd
ard

s C
om

mi
tte
e, 
an
d G

AR
M 
as
 w
ell
 as

 pr
ov
ide

 
tra
ini
ng
 an

d u
pd
ate

s t
o r
ele

va
nt 
off
ice
rs.
 

 Qu
art
erl
y le

gis
lat
ion

 tra
ck
er 
no
 lo
ng
er 
pro

du
ce
d b

y le
ga
l . 

        GA
P 

 Dis
cu
ss
ion
 

at 
CC

G 
09
/08

/11
 – 

HP
 to
 fo
rm
 

a v
iew

 by
 

12
/08

/11
 

 HP
 

co
nfi
rm
ed
 

GA
P -

L&
GS

 to
 

ex
plo
re 
a 

co
st 

eff
ec
tive

 
wa
y o
f 

en
su
rin
g 

leg
isla

tiv
e 

ch
an
ge
s 

are
 

ide
nti
fie
d 

1.4
 

Eff
ec
tive

 ac
tio
n i
s 

tak
en
 w
he
re 
are

as
 of
 

no
n-c

om
plia

nc
e a

re 
fou

nd
 in
 ei
the

r 
me

ch
an
ism

 or
 

leg
isla

tio
n a

nd
 

rep
ort
ed
 to
 th
e 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e, 
Au
dit
 

Re
vie
w 
of 
ev
ide

nc
e t
o d

em
on
str
ate

 
tha

t a
cti
on
 ha

s b
ee
n t
ak
en
 to
 

ov
erc

om
e i
de
nti
fie
d a

rea
s o

f n
on
-

co
mp

lia
nc
e, 
for
 ex

am
ple
: 

Int
ern

al 
/ex

ter
na
l a
ud
it r
ep
ort
s t
o 

au
dit
 co

mm
itte
e o

r e
qu
iva
len

t; 
 Mo

nit
ori
ng
 re
po
rts
 on

 pr
og
res

s o
n 

All
 In
ter
na
l A
ud
it r
ep
ort
s a

re 
iss
ue
d t
o G

ov
ern

an
ce
, A
ud
it 

& R
isk
 M
an
ag
em

en
t (G

AR
M)
 co

mm
itte
e. 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 
Ex
am

ple
 re
po
rt t
o G

AR
M 
co
ve
rin
g 

Gr
ee
n/A

mb
er 
IA 
rep

ort
s. 
  

   Ac
tio
n w

ou
ld 
be
 re
lat
ed
 to
 ea

ch
 in
div
idu

al 
ca
se
 as

 

TW
/SD

 
      HP

/JF
  

10
/6/
11
 

CC
 

     JF
-10

 

 

58



 

Pa
ge

 5 
of 

87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s 
of 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

an
d R

isk
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
(G
AR

M)
 C
om

mi
tte
e 

ac
co
rdi
ng
ly.
 

de
live

rin
g a

cti
on
 pl
an
s i
n r
es
po
ns
e 

to 
ide

nti
fie
d l
eg
al/
sta

tut
ory

 ris
ks
 in
 

ris
k r
eg
ist
er 
(e.
g. 
on
 im

ple
me

nta
tio
n 

of 
Fre

ed
om

 of
 In
for
ma

tio
n A

ct 
20
00
) 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f c
orr
ec
tiv
e a

cti
on
 be

ing
 

tak
en
 in
 re
sp
on
se
 to
 up

he
ld 

co
mp

lai
nts

 ag
ain
st 
the

 au
tho

rity
 

de
ter
mi
ne
d a

nd
 ap

pro
ve
d b

y G
AR

M 
    Se
rvi
ce
 im

pro
ve
me

nts
 te
mp

lat
e i
mp

lem
en
ted

 in
 

Se
pte

mb
er 
20
09
 as

so
cia
ted

 w
ith
 co

mp
lain

ts 
wh
ere

 w
e 

ha
ve
 id
en
tifi
ed
 er
ror
s/s
erv

ice
 fa
ilur
es
 on

 th
e p

art
 of
 th
e 

Co
un
cil 
(ex

am
ple
 pr
ov
ide

d) 
Se
rvi
ce
 im

pro
ve
me

nts
/le
ss
on
s a

ris
ing

 fro
m 
co
mp

lain
ts 

are
 re
po
rte
d i
n  
co
mp

lai
nt 
rep

ort
 to
 Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Bo
ard

s   
 

     TW
/LM

 

Ju
ne
 

    LM
 

14
/06

/11
 

  Ob
jec

tiv
e 1

: E
sta

bli
sh

ing
 pr

inc
ipa

l s
tat

uto
ry 

ob
lig

ati
on

s a
nd

 or
ga

nis
ati

on
al 

ob
jec

tiv
es
 

St
ep

 2:
 – 

Me
ch

an
ism

 in
 pl

ac
e t

o e
sta

bli
sh

 or
ga

nis
ati

on
al 

ob
jec

tiv
es

 
  

Ex
am

ple
s o

f 
as

su
ran

ce
: 

FA
N 

Su
gg

es
ted

 Ev
ide

nc
ed

: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

 Id
en

tifi
ed

 

1.5
 

Th
e o

rga
nis
ati
on
’s 

vis
ion

, s
tra
teg

ic 
pla

ns
, p
rio
riti
es
 an

d 
tar
ge
ts 
are

 de
ve
lop

ed
 

thr
ou
gh
 ro
bu
st 

me
ch
an
ism

s, 
an
d i
n 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 th
e 

loc
al 
co
mm

un
ity 
an
d 

oth
er 
ke
y 

sta
ke
ho
lde
rs,
 an

d 
tha

t th
ey
 ar
e c

lea
rly
 

art
icu
lat
ed
 an

d 
dis
se
mi
na
ted

 

Re
su
lts
 fro

m 
int
ern

al 
an
d/o

r e
xte

rna
l 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 ex

erc
ise
s h

av
e b

ee
n 

an
aly
se
d a

nd
 pu

bli
sh
ed
 

 Au
tho

rity
’s 
ap
pro

ve
d a

nd
 pu

bli
sh
ed
 

str
ate

gic
 pl
an
 ta
ke
s a

cc
ou
nt 
of 
all
 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 an

d l
oc
al 
an
d n

ati
on
al 

pri
ori
tie
s. 

 Pr
ior
itie
s a

nd
 ob

jec
tiv
es
 in
 st
rat
eg
ic 

pa
rtn
ers

hip
s a

re 
ali
gn
ed
 w
ith
 

co
rpo

rat
e p

rio
riti
es
 an

d o
bje

cti
ve
s 

 Vis
ion

, s
tra
teg

y, 
co
rpo

rat
e p

lan
s, 

bu
dg
ets

, p
erf
orm

an
ce
 pl
an
/re
gim

e 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 co

rpo
rat
e p

rio
riti
es
 br
ing

 to
ge
the

r th
e 

pri
ori
tie
s f
rom

 th
e S

us
tai
na
ble
 C
om

mu
nit
y S

tra
teg

y, 
va
lue

 
for
 m
on
ey
 da

ta,
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 da

ta,
 fin

an
cia
l in
for
ma

tio
n 

an
d p

ub
lic 
att
itu
de
 su

rve
y d

ata
 + 
ex
ter
na
l p
oli
cy
 

de
ve
lop

me
nts

.  T
he
 dr
aft
 pr
ior
itie
s a

re 
ag
ree

d b
y t
he
 

Ma
jor
ity
 G
rou

p b
efo

re 
be
ing

 ap
pro

ve
d f
or 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 at
 

Ca
bin

et.
  T
he
se
 ar
e t
he
n t
he
 su

bje
ct 
of 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 

the
 pu

bli
c, 
in 
No
ve
mb

er 
an
d D

ec
em

be
r 2
01
0 t
hro

ug
h t
he
 

Co
un
cil’
s “
Le
t’s
 ta
lk”
 ca
mp

aig
n: 

htt
p:/
/w
ww

.ha
rro
w.g

ov
.uk

/in
fo/
20
01
16
/m
ed
ia_

pu
bli
cit
y_
an

d_
we
b/2

13
0/l
ets

_ta
lk-
a_
ne
w_
co
nv
ers

ati
on
_fo

r_h
arr
ow
/3 

  Th
e p

rio
riti
es
 ar
e s

ha
red

 w
ith
 m
em

be
rs 
of 
the

 Lo
ca
l 

Str
ate

gic
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 fo
r c
om

me
nt.
  T
he
 C
ou
nc
il r
ev
ise
s 

TW
/LD

 
              

LD
 

6/7
/11

 
             

 

59



 

Pa
ge

 6 
of 

87
 

   
the

 dr
aft
 pr
ior
itie
s i
n t
he
 lig
ht 
of 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 fe
ed
ba
ck
 as

 
ap
pro

pri
ate

. E
vid
en
ce
 –a

nd
 C
orp

ora
te 
Pla

n 2
01
1/1

2  
 htt

p:/
/w
ww

.ha
rro

w.
go
v.u

k/i
nfo

/72
5/c

ou
nc
il_

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce/

84
1/h

arr
ow

_c
orp

ora
te_

pla
n_
20
10

20
11
  

 Th
e L

oc
al 
Str
ate

gic
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
’s 
pri
ori
tie
s a

re 
als
o 

sh
ap
ed
 by

 th
e S

us
tai
na
ble

 C
om

mu
nit
y S

tra
teg

y w
hic
h 

pro
vid
es
 fo
r a
 st
ron

g c
orr
ela

tio
n b

etw
ee
n t
he
 C
ou
nc
il’s
 

an
d t
he
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
’s 
se
rvi
ce
 pr
ior
itie
s. 
Ev
ide

nc
e –

 
Su
sta

ina
ble

 C
om

mu
nit
y S

tra
teg

y 2
00
9-2

02
0. 

 A P
ub
lish

ed
 C
om

mu
nic
ati
on
s P

lan
:  2

01
0/1

1 h
as
 be

en
 

ag
ree

d a
t C
ab
ine

t M
arc

h 2
01
0. 
 Th

is 
is 
pro

vid
ed
 as

 
ev
ide

nc
e. 

 

     TW
/LM

 

     

1.6
 

Pr
ior
itie
s a

nd
 

ob
jec
tiv
es
 ar
e a

lig
ne
d 

to 
pri
nc
ipa

l s
tat
uto

ry 
ob
lig
ati
on
s a

nd
 re
lat
e 

to 
av
ail
ab
le 
fun

din
g 

Co
rpo

rat
e p

rio
riti
es
 an

d o
bje

cti
ve
s 

are
 cl
ea
rly
 se

t o
ut 
in 
the

 st
rat
eg
ic 

pla
n 

 Str
ate

gic
 pl
an
 ta
ke
s a

cc
ou
nt 
of 

an
nu
al 
bu
dg
et 
an
d m

ed
ium

 te
rm
 

fin
an
cia
l p
lan
 

           Fin
an
cia
l p
lan
s t
ak
e a

cc
ou
nt 
of 

str
ate

gic
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns
 

an
d i
nc
om

e s
tre
am

s 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 pr
ior
itie
s a

re 
se
t o
ut 
in 
the

 C
orp

ora
te 
Pla

n 
(se

e 1
.5)
 w
hic
h i
s p

rod
uc
ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
e s

erv
ice
 

pla
nn
ing

, p
erf
orm

an
ce
 an

d b
ud
ge
tin
g p

roc
es
s w

hic
h i
s 

its
elf
 go

ve
rne

d b
y a
 fra

me
wo
rk 
sh
ow
ing

 ho
w t
he
 el
em

en
ts 

int
era

ct 
an
d a

re 
mu

tua
lly 
int
er-
de
pe
nd
en
t.  
 

 Th
e f
ram

ew
ork

 is
 av
ail
ab
le 
at 

htt
p:/

/ha
rro

wh
ub
.ha

rro
w.
go
v.u

k/d
ow

nlo
ad
s/d

ow
nlo

ad
/6/

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce_

fra
me

wo
rk_

tim
eta

ble
_a
nd
_a
dm

ini
str
ati
on
  

 an
d i
s p

rov
ide

d a
s e

vid
en
ce
 

 All
 fin

an
cia
l p
lan

nin
g 
inc
lud

es
 st
rat
eg
ic 
pa
rtn
ers

hip
s a

nd
 

inc
om

e s
tre
am

s a
s c
on
tai
ne
d i
n t
he
 M
TF
S. 
  

Se
e a

lso
 C
orp

ora
te 
Pla

n &
 B
ud
ge
t 2
01
1/1

2 –
 20

15
/16

 as
 

ag
ree

d b
y C

ab
ine

t o
n 1

0/0
2/1

1 w
hic
h i
de
nti
fie
s a

ll i
nc
om

e 
str
ea
ms

. 
Re
ve
nu
e 
& 
Ca
pit
al 
Ou

ttu
rn 

rep
ort
 o
f 2

2/0
6/1

1 
ide

nti
fie
s 

PC
T 
inc
om

e a
s a

n e
xa
mp

le 
of 
pa
rtn
ers

hip
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns
.  

Ev
ide

nc
ed
. 

TW
(M
H)
/

LD
 

               JA
/JH

 

LD
 

6/7
/11

 
               JH
 9/
8/1

1 

 

1.7
 

Ob
jec
tive

s a
re 

ref
lec
ted

 in
 

de
pa
rtm

en
tal
 pl
an
s 

an
d a

re 
cle
arl
y 

ma
tch

ed
 w
ith
 

as
so
cia
ted

 bu
dg
ets

 

Cle
ar 
ter
ms

 of
 re
fer
en
ce
 ar
e s

et 
for
 

the
 pr
ep
ara

tio
n o

f d
ep
art
me

nta
l 

an
d/o

r s
erv

ice
 pl
an
s 

 De
pa
rtm

en
tal
 an

d/o
r s
erv

ice
 pl
an
s 

cle
arl
y r
efl
ec
t c
orp

ora
te 
ob
jec
tiv
es
 

Pla
nn
ing

 gu
ida

nc
e f
or 
Dir
ec
tor
ate

 Se
rvi
ce
 Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Pla

ns
 (S
IPs

) fo
r D

ire
cto

rat
es
, a
nd
 D
eli
ve
ry 
Pla

ns
 fo
r 

se
rvi
ce
s w

as
 is
su
ed
 in
 Ju

ly 
20
10
.   
Th
e P

lan
nin

g g
uid

an
ce
 

do
cu
me

nt,
 re
qu
ire
d D

ire
cto

rat
e t
em

pla
te 
an
d t
he
 

rec
om

me
nd
ed
 te
mp

lat
e f
or 
a S

erv
ice
 D
eli
ve
ry 
Pla

n a
re 

pro
vid
ed
 as

 ev
ide

nc
e. 
 (S
ho
rt g

uid
an
ce
 20

11
-12

 Fi
na
l.d
oc
; 

AD
/LD

 
   

LD
 

6/7
/11

 
 

      

60



 

Pa
ge

 7 
of 

87
 

an
d m

atc
h a

pp
rov

ed
 fu
nd
ing

   
 An
nu
al 
rep

ort
s a

re 
pro

du
ce
d o

n t
he
 

ou
tco

me
 of
 de

pa
rtm

en
tal
 an

d/o
r 

se
rvi
ce
 pl
an
s 

CD
SIP

B f
ull
 te
mp

lat
e 2

01
1-1

2 F
ina

l.p
df;
 Se

rvi
ce
 D
eli
ve
ry 

Pla
n t
em

pla
te 
20
11
-12

 w
ith
 em

be
dd
ed
 gu

ida
nc
e n

ote
s 

v9
.do

c) 
 

  Co
rpo

rat
e D

ire
cto

rat
e S

erv
ice
 Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Pla

ns
 

ref
ere

nc
e c

orp
ora

te 
pri
ori
tie
s, 
an
d a

re 
rel
ate

d t
o a

pp
rov

ed
 

fun
din
g. 
  

 An
 ex

am
ple
 C
orp

ora
te 
Se
rvi
ce
 Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Pla

n 2
01
1/1

2 
is 
pro

vid
ed
 as

 ev
ide

nc
e –

 C
hie
f E
xe
cu
tiv
e’s
   

 Ea
ch
 C
orp

ora
te 
Dir
ec
tor
ate

 SI
P c

on
tai
ns
 th
e p

rio
r y
ea
r P
I 

ou
ttu
rn,
 an

d a
 se

cti
on
 re
po
rtin

g p
rog

res
s w

ith
 pr
ior
 ye

ar 
pro

jec
ts.
  

 Wh
ere

 D
eli
ve
ry 
Pla

ns
 ar
e d

ev
elo

pe
d t
he
se
 to
o c

on
tai
n 

pri
or 
ye
ar 
PI 
ou
ttu
rn 
an
d a

 se
cti
on
 re
po
rtin

g p
rog

res
s w

ith
 

pri
or 
ye
ar 
pro

jec
ts.
 

 A D
eli
ve
ry 
Pla

nn
ing
 In
ter
na
l A
ud
it r
ev
iew

 w
as
 sc
he
du
led

 
for
 20

10
/11

 bu
t d
id 
no
t ta

ke
 pl
ac
e a

s l
im
ite
d I
A r
es
ou
rce

s 
we
re 
dir
ec
ted

, b
y a
gre

em
en
t w
ith
 m
an
ag
em

en
t, t
o h

igh
er 

ris
ks
.  I
f re

so
urc

es
 al
low

, s
uc
h r
ev
iew

 co
uld

 cl
ari
fy 
wh
eth

er 
the

re 
is 
ali
gn
me

nt 
be
tw
ee
n S

IPs
 an

d d
eli
ve
ry 
pla

ns
   

 

                    GA
P 1

0/1
1 

(c/
f 0
9/1

0) 
 CC

G 
09
/08

/11
 – 

ag
ree

d 
ga
p –

 
ac
tio
n t
o 

be
 

am
en
de
d 

to 
TW

 to
 

pre
pa
re 
a 

pa
pe
r fo

r 
CS

B 
1.8

 
Th
e a

uth
ori
ty’
s 

ob
jec
tiv
es
 ar
e c

lea
rly
 

co
mm

un
ica
ted

 to
 

sta
ff a

nd
 to
 al
l 

sta
ke
ho
lde
rs,
 

inc
lud

ing
 pa

rtn
ers

 
an
d o

n a
n a

nn
ua
l 

ba
sis
, th

e a
uth

ori
ty 

pu
bli
sh
es
 a 

A c
om

mu
nic
ati
on
 st
rat
eg
y in

 re
sp
ec
t 

of 
the

 co
rpo

rat
e o

bje
cti
ve
s h

as
 be

en
 

de
ve
lop

ed
, a
pp
rov

ed
 an

d 
im
ple
me

nte
d 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f c
on
su
lta
tio
n w

ith
 

sta
ke
ho
lde
rs 
(e.
g. 
pu
bli
c a

nd
 

int
ern

al 
su
rve

ys 
etc

) a
nd
 st
rat
eg
ic 

pa
rtn
ers

 on
 se

rvi
ce
 pr
ov
isio

n a
ga
ins
t 

A P
ub
lish

ed
 C
om

mu
nic
ati
on
s P

lan
:  2

01
0/1

1 h
as
 be

en
 

ag
ree

d a
t C
ab
ine

t M
arc

h 2
01
0. 
 Th

is 
is 
pro

vid
ed
 as

 
ev
ide

nc
e. 
  

 De
pa
rtm

en
ts 
ma

ke
 th
eir
 ow

n p
lan

s f
or 
co
mm

un
ica
tin
g t
o 

the
ir m

an
ag
ers

 an
d s

taf
f a
t lo

ca
l m

an
ag
em

en
t m

ee
tin
gs
 

an
d f
oru

ms
 + 
reg

ula
r m

an
ag
ers

 co
nfe

ren
ce
 + 
sta

ff f
oru

ms
. 

 Th
e A

rro
w 
+ C

hie
f E
xe
cu
tiv
e’s
 ne

ws
let
ter
 + 
Gr
ap
ev
ine

 

TW
/LD

 
       

LD
 

6/7
/11

 
       

 

61



 

Pa
ge

 8 
of 

87
 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 pl
an
 

giv
ing

 in
for
ma

tio
n o

n 
the

 au
tho

rity
’s 
vis
ion

, 
str
ate

gy
, p
lan
s a

nd
 

fin
an
cia
l s
tat
em

en
ts 

as
 w
ell
 as

 in
for
ma

tio
n 

ab
ou
t it
s o

utc
om

es
, 

ac
hie

ve
me

nts
 an

d 
the

 sa
tis
fac

tio
n o

f 
se
rvi
ce
 us

ers
 in
 th
e 

pre
vio
us
 pe

rio
d. 
 

co
st.
 

 Do
cu
me

nte
d m

ee
tin
gs
 ac

ros
s 

de
pa
rtm

en
ts 
to 
dis
cu
ss
 ke

y 
ob
jec
tiv
es
 in
 co

rpo
rat
e a

nd
 

de
pa
rtm

en
tal
 an

d/o
r s
erv

ice
 pl
an
s  

 Co
rpo

rat
e o

bje
cti
ve
s a

nd
 ai
ms

 ar
e 

se
t o
ut 
in 
ke
y d
oc
um

en
ts 
(an

nu
al 

pla
ns
, L
oc
al 
Ar
ea
 Ag

ree
me

nts
 et
c) 

on
 th
e a

uth
ori
ty’
s w

eb
sit
e a

nd
 

int
ran

et 
sit
e 

 an
nu
al 
rep

ort
 

 an
nu
al 
fin
an
cia
l s
tat
em

en
ts 

 an
nu
al 
bu
sin
es
s p

lan
 

 for
ma

l a
nn
ua
l re

po
rt 

 

(S
taf
f n
ew
sle
tte
r) a

nd
 po

ste
rs 
co
ve
rin
g p

rio
riti
es
 ar
ou
nd
 

the
 bu

ild
ing
s. 

 Th
e S

us
tai
na
ble

 C
om

mu
nit
y S

tra
teg

y is
 av

ail
ab
le 
at 

htt
p:/
/w
ww

.ha
rro
w.g

ov
.uk

/in
fo/
20
00
09
/pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
/99

8/s
u

sta
ina

ble
_c
om

mu
nit
y_
str
ate

gy
_2
02
0 

Th
e C

orp
ora

te 
Pla

n i
s p

rov
ide

d a
s e

vid
en
ce
. 

Th
e L

AA
 is
 av

ail
ab
le 
at 
  

htt
p:/
/w
ww

.ha
rro
w.g

ov
.uk

/in
fo/
20
00
09
/pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
/10

19
/l

oc
al_

are
a_
ag
ree

me
nt 
 

on
 th
e W

eb
sit
e 

 Th
e n

ew
 LA

A 2
00
8 –

 11
 w
as
 ad

op
ted

 by
 th
e C

ou
nc
il o
n 

17
 Ju

ly 
20
08
 an

d p
rov

ide
d p

art
ne
rsh

ip 
pri
ori
tie
s. 
 Th

e 
Co
ali
tio
n G

ov
ern

me
nt 
ab
an
do
ne
d L

AA
s i
n J

un
e 2

01
0 b

ut 
the

 pa
rtn
ers

hip
 co

nti
nu
es
 to
 pu

rsu
e a

nd
 m
on
ito
r th

e 
pri
ori
tie
s a

lth
ou
gh
 th
ere

 no
 lo
ng
er 
Re
wa
rd 
Gr
an
t 

as
so
cia
ted

 w
ith
 su

cc
es
s. 
  

  Th
e 
Ca
bin

et 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 re

po
rt 
(qu

art
erl
y) 
als
o 
rep

ort
s 

on
 an

nu
al 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
e c

om
mi
tte
e c

ycl
e. 

 Ev
ide

nc
e 
of 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 is
 a
va
ila
ble

 a
t t
he
 C
on
su
lta
tio
n 

Fin
de
r. 

htt
p:/
/w
ww

.ha
rro
w.g

ov
.uk

/si
te/
sc
rip
ts/
do
cu
me

nts
.ph

p?
ca
te

go
ryI
D=
20
00
24
 

 Ev
ide

nc
e a

lso
 ci
ted

 is
 th
e I
nv
olv
em

en
t T
rac

ke
r in

 th
e 

ev
ide

nc
e f
ile 

            

1.9
 

 
Th
e c

ou
nc
il h
as
 

str
ate

gic
 pl
an
s t
ha
t 

sh
ow
 ho

w 
it w

ill 
de
ve
lop

 its
 as

se
ts 
to 

me
et 
str
ate

gic
 

pri
ori
tie
s a

nd
 

op
era

tio
na
l a
nd
 

se
rvi
ce
 ne

ed
s. 
 

Au
dit

 C
om

mi
ss

ion
 Su

gg
es

ted
 

Ev
ide

nc
e f

or
 U

oR
 3.

2: 
Or

ga
nis

ati
on

 st
rat

eg
ies

 an
d p

lan
s  

• A
ss
et 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
str
ate

gy
/pl
an
.  

• O
ffic
e a

cc
om

mo
da
tio
n s

tra
teg

y. 
 

• M
ed
ium

-te
rm
 fin
an
cia
l p
lan

.  

Fo
llo
win

g s
tra
teg

ic 
Pla

ns
 in
 pl
ac
e: 

 As
se
t M

an
ag
em

en
t P
lan

  2
01
0-2

01
3 (
Ev
ide

nc
ed
 20

09
/10

) 
Sp
ac
e P

lan
nin

g P
oli
cy
 N
ov
 20

07
 (E
vid
en
ce
d 2

00
9/1

0) 
 

Dr
aft
 pr
op
ert
y S

tra
teg

y 2
01
0-2

01
5 F

eb
 20

10
 (E
vid
en
ce
d 

20
09
/10

 ) 
 De
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
a C

on
so
lid
ate

d I
nte

gra
ted

 C
ivic

 O
ne
 

Bu
ild
ing

 Ap
ril 
20
11
  - 
no
t o
n i
ntr
an
et/
no
t p
rov

ide
d a

s 
ev
ide

nc
e (
req

ue
ste

d 0
3/0

8/1
1).
 

 

MB
r/S
D 

 M
Br
 

 27
/07

/11
 

 

62



 

Pa
ge

 9 
of 

87
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
a F

lex
ibl
e a

nd
 M
ob
ile
 W
ork

ing
 

En
vir
on
me

nt 
 Ap

ril 
20
11
 

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
.ha

rro
w.
go
v.u
k/i
nfo

/20
02
22
/be

tte
r_d

ea
l_f

or_
res

ide
nts

/46
3/m

ob
ile
_a
nd
_fl
ex
ibl
e_
wo
rki
ng
  

 
1.1

0 
Th
e c

ou
nc
il’s
 

fin
an
cia
l a
nd
 ot
he
r 

pla
ns
 su

pp
ort
 th
e 

de
live

ry 
of 
the

 
str
ate

gic
 pl
an
s f
or 

as
se
ts,
 ei
the

r th
rou

gh
 

inv
es
tm
en
t, 

dis
po
sa
ls,
 tra

ns
fer
s, 

an
d r
ati
on
ali
sa
tio
n, 
or 

by
 m
ore

 ef
fic
ien
t 

as
se
t u
se
. F
ina

nc
ial
 

pla
ns
 sh

ow
 ho

w a
ny
 

fin
an
cia
l g
ap
s, 

be
tw
ee
n t
he
 ne

ed
 to
 

inv
es
t in

 as
se
ts 
an
d 

the
 bu

dg
et 
av
ail
ab
le,
 

wil
l b
e f
ille
d o

ve
r th

e 
lon

g t
erm

, fo
r 

ex
am

ple
 th
rou

gh
 

pru
de
nti
al 
bo
rro
win

g, 
rat
ion

ali
sa
tio
n o

f 
as
se
ts 
or 
ca
pit
al 

rec
eip
ts 

• A
ss
et 
reg

ist
er.
  

• C
orp

ora
te 
pla

n. 
 

• C
ap
ita
l s
tra
teg

y. 
 

• O
the

r s
tra
teg

ies
 an

d p
lan

s w
ith
 

as
se
ts 
link

s (
for
 ex

am
ple
, fl
ex
ibl
e 

wo
rki
ng
, IC

T).
  

Lo
ca

l n
ee

ds
 an

d p
rio

rit
ies

 th
at 

inf
lue

nc
e a

ss
et 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
 

• S
us
tai
na
ble

 co
mm

un
ity 
str
ate

gy
.  

• L
oc
al 
Ar
ea
 Ag

ree
me

nt.
  

• C
lim
ate

 ch
an
ge
 st
rat
eg
y. 
 

• L
oc
al 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
fra
me

wo
rk.
  

• A
cc
es
s t
o s

erv
ice
s. 
 

• S
erv

ice
 bu

sin
es
s p

lan
s (
for
 

ex
am

ple
, li
bra

rie
s a

nd
 le
isu
re)
.  

 

All
 en

ter
ed
 on

 SA
P 

 Ca
bin

et 
ca
pit
al 
Pla

n D
ec
em

be
r 2
01
0. 
Ev
ide

nc
e: 
ca
bin

et 
rep

ort
 + 
mi
nu
tes

  
    IC
T o

uts
ou
rci
ng
 pr
oje

ct 
co
mp

let
ed
  O

cto
be
r 2
01
0  
 

 Ha
rro
w’s

 Su
sta

ina
ble

 C
om

mu
nit
y S

tra
teg

y. 
Ev
ide

nc
ed
   

 LA
A a

gre
ed
 in
 m
id 
20
09
  

 Ha
rro
w C

lim
ate

 C
ha
ng
e S

tra
teg

y 1
9 M

ay
 20

11
  

Ev
ide

nc
ed
  

 Fin
an
cia
l g
ap
s s
ho
wn
 in
 AM

P p
g 1

7 

MB
r/S
D 

 M
Br
 

 27
/07

/11
 

 

1.1
1 

Po
lici
es
, d
ec
isio

n-
ma

kin
g s

tru
ctu

res
 

an
d r
ole

s u
nd
erp

in 
the

 m
an
ag
em

en
t o
f 

as
se
ts 
as
 a 
co
rpo

rat
e 

res
ou
rce

. 
Re
sp
on
sib
iliti
es
 fo
r 

as
se
ts 
are

 cl
ea
rly
 

de
sig
na
ted

 to
 

fun
cti
on
s a

nd
 ro
les
 

wit
hin

 th
e c

ou
nc
il. 
Fo
r 

ex
am

ple
, th

ere
 m
igh
t 

be
 a 
de
sig
na
ted

 
co
rpo

rat
e p

rop
ert
y 

 
Re
sp
on
sib
iliti
es
 an

d s
tru
ctu

res
 in
clu
de
d i
n t
he
 20

10
 -2
01
3 

AM
P S

ec
tio
n 2

. 
    CS

B i
s t
he
 co

rpo
rat
e g

rou
p p

rov
idi
ng
 di
rec

tio
n o

n a
ss
et 

rel
ate

d s
tra
teg

ies
. 

 Re
gu
lar
 m
ee
tin
gs
 ar
e h

eld
 w
ith
 Po

rtfo
lio
 H
old

ers
 – 

su
mm

ary
 of
 m
ee
tin
g m

ain
tai
ne
d  

Pla
ce
 Sh

ap
ing

 an
d P

rop
ert
y B

oa
rd 
in 
pla

ce
 – 
Ch
air
ed
 by

 
Co
rpo

rat
e D

ire
cto

r P
lac
e S

ha
pin

g –
 re
po
rtin

g t
o C

ab
ine

t 
(A
ge
nd
a, 
Bo
ard

 Ac
tio
ns
 & 
Pr
oje

ct 
up
da
tes

 Ev
ide

nc
ed
 

20
09
/10

) 

MB
r/S
D 

 M
Br
 

 27
/07

/11
 

 

63



 

Pa
ge

 10
 of

 87
 

off
ice
r w
ith
 

res
po
ns
ibi
lity
 fo
r 

str
ate

gic
 as

se
t 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
ac
tiv
itie
s, 
an
d a

 
co
rpo

rat
e g

rou
p 

pro
vid
ing
 di
rec

tio
n o

n 
as
se
t re

lat
ed
 

str
ate

gie
s a

cro
ss
 th
e 

org
an
isa
tio
n. 

Me
mb

ers
 ac

tive
ly 

en
ga
ge
 in
 po

licy
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
for
 th
e 

as
se
t b
as
e. 
 

 
1.1

2 
Th
e c

ou
nc
il h
as
 an

 
org

an
isa
tio
n-w

ide
 

ap
pro

ac
h t
o 

ma
na
gin
g a

ss
ets

 as
 

a c
orp

ora
te 
res

ou
rce

, 
rat
he
r th

an
 a 

co
mp

art
me

nta
lise

d, 
de
pa
rtm

en
tal
 dr
ive
n 

ap
pro

ac
h. 
Th
e 

co
un
cil 
foc

us
es
 on

 
us
ing
 th
e a

ss
et 
ba
se
 

to 
he
lp 
de
live

r 
su
sta

ina
ble

 so
cia
l, 

en
vir
on
me

nta
l a
nd
 

ec
on
om

ic 
ou
tco

me
s 

for
 lo
ca
l c
om

mu
nit
ies
 

 
“P
rop

ert
y B

oa
rd”
 m
ee
ts 
mo

nth
ly 
an
d a

ge
nd
a a

nd
 m
inu
tes

 
are

 av
ail
ab
le.
 Al
l D
ivis

ion
s a

re 
rep

res
en
ted

. 
Se
e 2

01
0-2

01
3 A

MP
 + 
ex
am

ple
 ag

en
da
 as

 ab
ov
e  
+ 

ev
ide

nc
ed
 in
 C
ou
nc
il s
tra
teg

ies
. 

 Co
ve
red

 in
 AM

P. 
  

MB
r/S
D 

MB
r 

 27
/07

/11
 

 

1.1
3 

As
se
t m

an
ag
em

en
t 

pla
nn
ing

 fu
lly 

int
eg
rat
es
 w
ith
 th
e 

co
un
cil’
s c
orp

ora
te 

an
d s

erv
ice
 pl
an
nin

g, 
wit
h a

 cl
ea
r a
lig
nm

en
t 

be
tw
ee
n a

ss
et 
pla

ns
 

an
d o

the
r c
orp

ora
te 

an
d s

erv
ice
 pl
an
s. 

As
se
t p
lan

s c
on
sid
er 

the
 im

plic
ati
on
s f
or 

 
Inf
orm

ati
on
 on

 co
-or
din

ati
on
 in
clu
de
d i
n A

MP
. 

 Me
mb

ers
 an

d o
ffic
ers

 of
 re
lev
an
t s
ec
tio
ns
 co

ns
ult
ed
 an

d 
pro

vid
e i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 fo
r A
MP

 to
 al
ign

 w
ith
 se

rvi
ce
 pl
an
s. 

  

MB
r/S
D 

MB
r 

 27
/07

/11
 

 

64



 

Pa
ge

 11
 of

 87
 

the
 as

se
t b
as
e o

f 
me

diu
m 
lon
ge
r-te

rm
 

se
rvi
ce
 pl
an
nin

g, 
an
d 

thi
s i
s c
oo
rdi
na
ted

 
ac
ros

s s
erv

ice
 

bo
un
da
rie
s. 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 Ob

jec
tiv

e 1
: E

sta
bli

sh
ing

 pr
inc

ipa
l s

tat
uto

ry 
ob

lig
ati

on
s a

nd
 or

ga
nis

ati
on

al 
ob

jec
tiv

es
 

St
ep

 3:
 – 

Ef
fec

tiv
e c

or
po

rat
e g

ov
ern

an
ce

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 ar

e e
mb

ed
de

d w
ith

in 
the

 au
tho

rit
y 

  
Ex

am
ple

s o
f 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

1.1
5 

Co
de
 of
 co

rpo
rat
e 

go
ve
rna

nc
e 

es
tab

lish
ed
 

A C
od
e o

f C
orp

ora
te 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e i
n 

lin
e w

ith
 th
e C

IPF
A/S

OL
AC

E 
gu
ida

nc
e r
ele

va
nt 
to 
the

 ty
pe
 of
 

au
tho

rity
 ha

s b
ee
n a

do
pte

d b
y t
he
 

au
tho

rity
. 

     A c
om

mu
nic
ati
on
 st
rat
eg
y in

 re
lat
ion

 
to 
the

 C
od
e h

as
 be

en
 de

ve
lop

ed
, 

ap
pro

ve
d a

nd
 im

ple
me

nte
d  

Co
de
 of
 G
ov
ern

an
ce
 in
 lin
e w

ith
 C
IPF

A/S
OL

AC
E 

gu
ida

nc
e. 
Or
igi
na
lly 
ad
op
ted

 by
 G
AR

M  
01
/09

/08
. R
ep
ort
 

an
d m

inu
tes

 of
 m
ee
tin
g i
nc
lud

ed
 in
 08

/09
 ev

ide
nc
e f
old

er.
 

Co
de
 re
vie
we
d a

nd
 up

da
ted

 by
 C
GW

G/
CG

G 
Ju
ly 2

00
9 

ch
an
ge
s a

gre
ed
 by

 G
AR

M 
Se
pte

mb
er 
20
09
. A
gre

ed
 by

 
Ca
bin

et 
to 
for
m 
pa
rt o

f th
e C

on
sti
tut
ion

 an
d i
nc
lud

ed
 in
 

cu
rre
nt 
ve
rsi
on
.  P

art
 K 
 

 htt
p:/
/w
ww

.ha
rro
w.g

ov
.uk

/si
te/
sc
rip
ts/
do
cu
me

nts
_in
fo.
ph
p

?c
ate

go
ryI
D=
10
01
6&
do
cu
me

ntI
D=
91
9  

 Co
de
 av

ail
ab
le 
on
 in
tra
ne
t to

 be
 co

mm
un
ica
ted

 to
 st
aff
 – 

em
ail 
ale

rt s
en
t A
ug
us
t 2
01
0 +

 pr
es
en
tat
ion

 to
 C
LG

 
Au
gu
st 
20
10
 . 

CG
G/
SD

 
     

SD
 

08
/08

/11
 

 

1.1
6 

Re
vie
w 
an
d 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 in
 

pla
ce
 

Th
e C

od
e i
tse

lf i
nc
orp

ora
tes

 a 
rev

iew
 da

te 
an
d/o

r a
 sy
ste

m 
for
 

co
nti
nu
ou
s u

pd
ate

 in
 re
sp
on
se
 to
 

ch
an
ge
d r
eq
uir
em

en
ts 

 Th
ere

 ar
e c

lea
r a
rra
ng
em

en
ts 
for
 

co
nti
nu
ou
sly
 m
on
ito
rin
g c

om
plia

nc
e 

wit
h t
he
 C
od
e e

.g.
 re
po
rts
 on

 
co
mp

lia
nc
e a

re 
reg

ula
rly
 su

bm
itte
d 

to 
the

 co
mm

itte
e c

ha
rge

d w
ith
 

Co
de
 in
co
rpo

rat
es
 a 
rev

iew
 da

te 
– J

uly
/Au

gu
st 
ea
ch
 ye

ar.
  

CG
WG

 un
de
rto
ok
 th
e r
ev
iew

 an
d r
ep
ort
ed
 to
 C
GG

 Ju
ly 

20
09
 an

d G
AR

M 
Se
pte

mb
er 
20
10
. A
nn
ua
l re

vie
w 
by
 C
GG

 
09
/08

/11
. 

 GA
RM

 re
ce
ive
d r
eg
ula

r u
pd
ate

 re
po
rts
 on

 C
orp

ora
te 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e d

uri
ng
 20

10
/11

.   
   

CG
G/
SD

 
         

          

 

65



 

Pa
ge

 12
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

co
rpo

rat
e g

ov
ern

an
ce
 re
sp
on
sib
ility

 
 An
 an

nu
al 
rep

ort
 on

 co
mp

lia
nc
e w

ith
 

the
 C
od
e o

f C
orp

ora
te 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

is 
pre

pa
red

 an
d s

ub
mi
tte
d t
o 

me
mb

ers
 

 Int
ern

al/
ex
ter
na
l a
ud
it r
ep
ort
s o

n 
ad
eq
ua
cy
 of
 co

rpo
rat
e g

ov
ern

an
ce
 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

 An
 ac

tio
n p

lan
 is
 pr
ep
are

d t
o 

ad
dre

ss
 an

y s
ign

ific
an
t id

en
tifi
ed
 

we
ak
ne
ss
es
 in
 co

mp
lyin

g w
ith
 th
e 

Co
de
 an

d i
s c
on
tin
uo
us
ly 
mo

nit
ore

d 
by
 th
e a

uth
ori
ty 
or 
co
mm

itte
e 

ch
arg

ed
 w
ith
 co

rpo
rat
e g

ov
ern

an
ce
 

res
po
ns
ibi
lity
 

 

  Pa
rt o

f A
GS

 re
po
rt s

ub
mi
tte
d t
o G

AR
M 
an
nu
all
y. 
 

    Alt
ho
ug
h n

o s
pe
cif
ic 
int
ern

al/
ex
ter
na
l re

po
rts
 on

 ad
eq
ua
cy
 

of 
co
rpo

rat
e g

ov
ern

an
ce
 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 pr
od
uc
ed
 du

rin
g 

20
10
/11

 a 
nu
mb

er 
of 
int
ern

al 
au
dit
 re
po
rts
 co

ve
red

 
go
ve
rna

nc
e a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 
of 
sys

tem
s r
ev
iew

ed
. 

 An
 AG

S A
cti
on
 pl
an
 w
as
 dr
aw
n u

p a
fte
r th

e 0
9/1

0 r
ev
iew

 
an
d m

on
ito
red

 an
d y

ea
r –
en
d p

os
itio
n t
o b

e r
ep
ort
ed
 to
 

GA
RM

 Ju
ne
 20

10
. E
vid
en
ce
 

  DW
/SD

 
    CG

G/
SD

 

  CC
 

13
/6/
11
 

   CC
 

13
/6/
11
 

1.1
7 

Co
mm

itte
e c

ha
rge

d 
wit
h g

ov
ern

an
ce
 

res
po
ns
ibi
litie

s 
Re
sp
on
sib
ility

 fo
r o
ve
rse

ein
g 

co
rpo

rat
e g

ov
ern

an
ce
 ha

s b
ee
n 

for
ma

lly 
de
leg

ate
d t
o a

n a
pp
rop

ria
te 

co
mm

itte
e 

 Co
mm

itte
e t
erm

s o
f re

fer
en
ce
 

cle
arl
y d
em

on
str
ati
ng
 re
sp
on
sib
ility

 
for
 co

rpo
rat
e g

ov
ern

an
ce
 is
su
es
 

ha
ve
 be

en
 ap

pro
ve
d b

y t
he
 au

tho
rity

  
 Te
rm
s o

f re
fer
en
ce
 ar
e s

uff
icie

ntl
y 

co
mp

reh
en
siv
e t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 
all
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 as
pe
cts
 of
 co

rpo
rat
e 

go
ve
rna

nc
e a

re 
co
ve
red

 
 Ag
en
da
s a

nd
 m
inu
tes

 fro
m 
the

 
co
mm

itte
e c

ha
rge

d w
ith
 co

rpo
rat
e 

go
ve
rna

nc
e r
es
po
ns
ibi
lity
 in
dic
ate

 
tha

t th
e r
es
po
ns
ibi
lity
 is
 be

ing
 

dis
ch
arg

ed
 ad

eq
ua
tel
y in

 

Re
sp
on
sib
ility

 fo
rm
all
y d
ele

ga
ted

 to
 G
AR

M 
co
mm

itte
e. 

    GA
RM

 Te
rm
s o

f R
efe

ren
ce
 or
igi
na
lly 
ap
pro

ve
d 0

3/0
9/0

7 –
 

up
da
ted

 an
d a

pp
rov

ed
 by

 G
AR

M 
 08

/04
/10

 .  
   Te
rm
s o

f R
efe

ren
ce
 ar
e s

uff
icie

ntl
y c
om

pre
he
ns
ive
. 

    Se
e a

ge
nd
a/m

inu
tes

 fo
r G

AR
M  
 

GA
RM

 
/SD

 
10
/6/
11
 

CC
 

     

 

66



 

Pa
ge

 13
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 te
rm
s o
f re

fer
en
ce
 

 
1.1

8 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e t
rai
nin

g 
ide

nti
fie
d, 
pro

vid
ed
 

to 
ke
y o
ffic
ers

 an
d 

all
 m
em

be
rs.
 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e t
rai
nin

g 
att
en
da
nc
e o

f a
 

go
od
 le
ve
l. 

Ind
uc
tio
n t
rai
nin

g f
or 
ke
y n
ew
 

off
ice
rs 
an
d a

ll n
ew
 m
em

be
rs 

inc
orp

ora
te 
su
ita
ble

 co
ve
rag

e o
n 

co
rpo

rat
e g

ov
ern

an
ce
 is
su
es
 

ac
co
rdi
ng
 to
 re
sp
on
sib
iliti
es
 

 On
go
ing

 aw
are

ne
ss
 tra

ini
ng
 is
 

pro
vid
ed
 as

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 to
 ke

y s
taf
f 

an
d a

ll m
em

be
rs 
to 
en
su
re 
tha

t 
ch
an
ge
s i
n t
he
 C
od
e a

re 
ma

de
 

kn
ow
n w

ith
in 
the

 au
tho

rity
 

GA
RM

 co
mm

itte
e m

em
be
rs 
tra
ine

d M
ay
 20

08
 + 

Se
pte

mb
er 
20
10
 + 
Ju
ne
 20

11
.   

  Ind
uc
tio
n t
rai
nin

g o
n e

thi
ca
l g
ov
ern

an
ce
 an

d s
tan

da
rds

 
pro

vid
ed
 fo
r n
ew
 el
ec
ted

 M
em

be
rs 
on
 17

 M
ay
 20

10
. 

htt
p:/
/m
od
ern

go
v:8

08
0/d

oc
um

en
ts/
s6
97
51
/M
em

be
r%
20
D

ev
elo

pm
en
t%
20
Re
po
rt%

20
20
10
%2

0F
ina

l.p
df 

Ma
na
ge
rs 
ind

uc
tio
n t
rai
nin

g (
ad
dit
ion

al 
2 d

ay
s) 
inc
lud

es
 

ref
ere

nc
e t
o t
he
 co

rpo
rat
e g

ov
ern

an
ce
 fra

me
wo
rk 
an
d c

an
 

be
 ac

ce
ss
ed
 on

 th
e i
ntr
an
et 
at:
 

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
.ha

rro
w.
go
v.u
k/i
nfo

/20
02
10
/co

urs
es
_q
ua
li

fic
ati
on
s_
an
d_
ev
en
ts/
35
6/m

an
ag
ers

_in
du
cti
on
_a
ge
nd
a 

A M
em

be
rs 
De
ve
lop

me
nt 
Pr
og
ram

me
 in
clu
de
s m

an
da
tor
y 

tra
ini
ng
 on

 th
eir
 st
atu

tor
y r
ole

.  A
cc
es
s i
s a

va
ila
ble

 to
 al
l 

me
mb

ers
 to
 e-
lea
rni
ng
   D

eta
ils 
ca
n b

e a
cc
es
se
d o

n t
he
 

int
ran

et 
at:
  

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
/in
fo/
20
02
11
/e-
lea

rni
ng
/34

0/e
-

lea
rni
ng
_s
erv

ice
_fo

r_c
ou
nc
illo
rs 

Als
o a

cc
es
sib
le 
is 
a r
ep
ort
 to
 th
e M

em
be
r D

ev
elo

pm
en
t 

Pa
ne
l o
n 7

 Ap
ril 
20
09
 gi
vin
g a

 pr
es
en
tat
ion

 on
 th
e 

Me
mb

er 
De
ve
lop

me
nt 
Ch
art
er 
an
d a

n u
pd
ate

 on
 th
e 

pro
gra

mm
e o

f tr
ain
ing
.:  

htt
p:/
/m
od
ern

go
v:8

08
0/P

ub
lish

ed
/C
00
00
02
86
/M
00
00
45
30

/$$
AD

oc
Pa
ck
Pu
blic

.pd
f  

 

JT
/LC

 
SD

 
08
/08

/11
 

   LC
 27

/6/
11
 

No
ne
 

1.1
9 

Sta
ff, 
pu
bli
c, 

Me
mb

ers
  a
nd
 ot
he
r 

sta
ke
ho
lde
r 

aw
are

ne
ss
 of
 

co
rpo

rat
e 

Th
ere

 is
 a 
ge
ne
ral
 st
aff
 aw

are
ne
ss
 

tra
ini
ng
 pr
og
ram

me
 

 Th
e C

od
e h

as
 be

en
 pu

bli
sh
ed
 an

d i
s 

ac
ce
ss
ible

 to
 al
l s
taf
f, t
he
 pu

bli
c a

nd
 

Me
mb

er 
aw
are

ne
ss
 of
 co

rpo
rat
e g

ov
ern

an
ce
 is
 co

ve
red

 at
 

1.1
8 

 All
 H
arr
ow
 m
idd
le 
an
d s

en
ior
 m
an
ag
ers

 ha
ve
 ha

d t
rai
nin

g 
on
 C
orp

ora
te 
go
ve
rna

nc
e i
ss
ue
s t
hro

ug
h a

 ‘H
arr
ow
 R
ule
s’ 

JT
/LC

 
 

LC
 27

.6.
11
 
  

67



 

Pa
ge

 14
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

go
ve
rna

nc
e 

oth
er 
sta

ke
ho
lde
rs 

 
pro

gra
mm

e. 
 Th

is 
wa
s s
ub
su
me

d i
nto

 a 
ne
w 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
De
ve
lop

me
nt 
Fo
un
da
tio
n P

rog
ram

me
 (M

DP
F) 
tha

t s
tar
ted

 
in 
Se
pte

mb
er 
20
08
.  T

he
 m
ain
 pr
og
ram

me
 co

nc
lud
ed
 in
 

lat
e 2

00
9 b

ut 
fur
the

r c
ou
rse

s w
ere

 de
live

red
 in
to 
20
10
.   

 Co
rpo

rat
e G

ov
ern

an
ce
 w
as
 in
clu
de
d i
n t
he
 st
aff
 an

d 
ma

na
ge
r in

du
cti
on
 pr
og
ram

me
s. 
 Th

e m
an
ag
er 
ind

uc
tio
n 

pro
gra

mm
e h

as
 be

en
 sh

ort
en
ed
 fro

m 
2 t
o  
0.5

 da
ys 
in 

20
11
/12

 bu
t s
till 
inc
lud

es
 th
e l
eg
al 
fra
me

wo
rk,
 in
clu
din

g 
co
rpo

rat
e g

ov
ern

an
ce
. 

: Ma
na
ge
r: 

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
.ha

rro
w.
go
v.u
k/i
nfo

/20
02
10
/co

urs
es
_q
ua
li

fic
ati
on
s_
an
d_
ev
en
ts/
35
6/m

an
ag
ers

_in
du
cti
on
_a
ge
nd
a 

 Th
e a

ge
nd
a f
or 
the

 re
fre
sh
ed
 st
aff
 in
du
cti
on
 pr
og
ram

me
 is
 

no
 lo
ng
er 
on
 th
e i
ntr
an
et 
– t
his
 w
ill b

e r
em

ed
ied
 (L
C)
 

 Th
e C

on
sti
tut
ion

 is
 av

ail
ab
le 
on
 th
e c

ou
nc
il’s
 in
tra
ne
t a
nd
 

we
bs
ite
 at
: 

htt
p:/
/w
ww

.ha
rro
w.g

ov
.uk

/si
te/
sc
rip
ts/
do
cu
me

nts
_in
fo.
ph
p

?c
ate

go
ryI
D=
10
01
6&
do
cu
me

ntI
D=
91
9 

  
 

 
Ob

jec
tiv

e 1
: E

sta
bli

sh
ing

 pr
inc

ipa
l s

tat
uto

ry 
ob

lig
ati

on
s a

nd
 or

ga
nis

ati
on

al 
ob

jec
tiv

es
 

St
ep

 4:
 – 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

are
 in

 pl
ac

e 
  

Ex
am

ple
s o

f 
as

su
ran

ce
: 

FA
N 

Su
gg

es
ted

 Ev
ide

nc
ed

: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

1.2
0 

Co
mp

reh
en
siv
e a

nd
 

eff
ec
tive

 pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
sys

tem
s o

pe
rat
e 

rou
tin
ely
 to
 m
on
ito
r 

se
rvi
ce
 de

live
ry.
 

Th
ere

 is
 a 
cle
arl
y d
efi
ne
d 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t fr
am

ew
ork

 
tha

t id
en
tifi
es
: 

(i) 
 al
l s
ou
rce

s o
f p
erf
orm

an
ce
 

me
as
ure

s; 
(ii)
  w
ho
 is
 re
sp
on
sib
le 
for
 ac

hie
vin
g 

Ha
rro
w h

as
 a 
de
fin
ed
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

fra
me

wo
rk.
  T
his
 w
as
 re
vis
ed
 as

 Ju
ly 
20
10
 an

d i
s 

pro
vid
ed
 as

 ev
ide

nc
e  
 (F
ina

l P
MF

 21
 Ju

ly 
20
10
.do

c) 
Th
e f
ram

ew
ork

 ai
ms

 to
 co

mp
reh

en
siv
ely
 ad

dre
ss
 

bu
dg
et,
 se

rvi
ce
 de

live
ry 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

, p
roj
ec
t 

de
live

ry 
me

as
ure

s, 
wo
rkf
orc

e a
nd
 ‘c
om

plia
nc
e’ 
typ

e 

TW
/LD

 
     

LD
 

6/7
/11

 
    

 

68



 

Pa
ge

 15
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

  
ea
ch
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
re;
 

(iii)
  w
ho
 is
 re
sp
on
sib
le 
for
 co

lla
tin
g 

the
 da

ta 
for
 ea

ch
 on

e; 
(iv
)  w

ho
 de

ter
mi
ne
s a

nd
 ap

pro
ve
s 

the
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

; 
(v)
  w
ho
 re
ce
ive
s r
ep
ort
s o

n  
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 an

d h
ow
 of
ten

; 
(vi
)  h

ow
 da

ta 
qu
ali
ty 
is 
as
su
red

; 
(vi
i)  
ho
w 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 da

ta 
is 

ca
ptu

red
 an

d i
ts 
int
eg
rity

 m
ain
tai
ne
d; 

(vi
ii) 
 ho

w p
oo
r p
erf
orm

an
ce
 is
 

ad
dre

ss
ed
; 

(ix
)  h

ow
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 is
 dr
ive
n 

 
up
wa
rds

 ov
er 
tim

e 
 Re
po
rts
 re
su
ltin
g f
rom

 in
ter
na
l o
r 

ex
ter
na
l re

vie
ws
 of
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
 

 Ye
ar-
on
-ye

ar 
co
mp

ari
so
n o

f 
ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
ag
ain

st 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

tar
ge
ts 
(e.
g. 
in 
an
nu
al 
rep

ort
s) 

Be
st 
va
lue

 re
vie
ws
, in

clu
din

g 
be
nc
hm

ark
ing
 re
su
lts
 

 De
pa
rtm

en
tal
 an

d/o
r s
erv

ice
 

be
nc
hm

ark
ing
 re
su
lts
 

 An
nu
al 
rep

ort
s i
ss
ue
d b

y, 
or 
in 

rel
ati
on
 to
, s
tra
teg

ic 
pa
rtn
ers

hip
s 

 

ou
tco

me
s. 

 Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Bo
ard

 R
ep
ort
s a

re 
pro

vid
ed
 by

 ea
ch
 

Co
rpo

rat
e D

ire
cto

rat
e q

ua
rte
rly
 to
 an

 ag
ree

d t
em

pla
te,
 

an
d t
he
se
 ar
e r
ev
iew

ed
 by

 th
e I
mp

rov
em

en
t B
oa
rds

.  
Ac
tio
n n

ote
s a

re 
pro

du
ce
d f
rom

 ea
ch
 m
ee
tin
g. 
 Th

e 
Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Bo
ard

 te
mp

lat
e i
s r
eg
ula

rly
 re
fre
sh
ed
. –
 

se
e e

xa
mp

le 
in 
the

 ev
ide

nc
e f
ile 
(Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Bo
ard

 
Gu

ida
nc
e v

25
 M
ay
 20

11
.do

c) 
 Ea
ch
 C
orp

ora
te 
Dir
ec
tor
ate

 SI
P c

on
tai
ns
 th
e p

rio
r y
ea
r 

PI 
ou
ttu
rn,
 an

d a
 se

cti
on
 re
po
rtin

g p
rog

res
s w

ith
 pr
ior
 

ye
ar 
pro

jec
ts.
  S
ee
 1.
7 

 A p
rog

ram
me

 of
 se

rvi
ce
 re
vie
ws
 ha

s b
ee
n d

ev
elo

pe
d, 

ov
ers

ee
n b

y a
n E

ffic
ien
cy
 & 
Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Bo
ard

.  
 A r
an
ge
 of
 vf
m 
be
nc
hm

ark
ing
 to
ols
 ar
e a

na
lys
ed
 (in

c 
CI
PF
A, 
LA
PS

, D
oH
, H
ou
se
ma

rk,
 Bu

ild
ing

 C
on
tro
l),,
 an

d 
for
wa
rde

d t
o e

ac
h C

orp
ora

te 
Dir
ec
tor
ate

.  W
ork

 is
 be

ing
 

do
ne
 w
ith
 ea

ch
 di
rec

tor
ate

 on
 co

st 
an
d p

erf
orm

an
ce
 

be
nc
hm

ark
ing
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
e p

lan
nin

g a
nd
 im

pro
ve
me

nt 
cyc

le.
 

 Fo
r in

for
ma

tio
n r
ela

tin
g t
o V

alu
e f
or 
Mo

ne
y, 
se
e 

ev
ide

nc
e p

rov
ide

d u
nd
er 
9.6

. 
 A n

um
be
r o
f s
erv

ice
s a

re 
me

mb
ers

 of
 C
IPF

A a
nd
 ot
he
r 

be
nc
hm

ark
ing
 cl
ub
s. 
Th
e C

ou
nc
il r
ec
eiv
es
 

be
nc
hm

ark
ing
 da

ta 
fro
m 
the

 Lo
nd
on
 C
ou
nc
il’s
 LA

PS
 

be
nc
hm

ark
ing
 sy
ste

m.
 

 Ha
rro
w S

tra
teg

ic 
Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 di
d n

ot 
pro

du
ce
 an

 an
nu
al 

rep
ort
 in
 20

10
-11

 in
 vi
ew
 of
 th
e a

bo
litio

n o
f th

e L
AA

 an
d 

oth
er 
ch
an
ge
s t
ha
t w
ere

 ta
kin
g p

lac
e 

 Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 da

ta 
ag
ain

st 
LA
A t
arg

ets
 is
 pu

bli
sh
ed
 

qu
art
erl
y. 
 Ev

ide
nc
e –

 Q
ua
rte
rly
 LA

A P
erf
orm

an
ce
 

Re
po
rt. 
 H
arr
ow
 C
hie

f E
xe
cu
tiv
es
 no

w d
ev
ote

 ev
ery

 

                                     

                                      

69



 

Pa
ge

 16
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

oth
er 
me

eti
ng
 to
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 is
su
es
. 

 Se
rvi
ce
 d
eli
ve
ry 

is 
mo

nit
ore

d 
via
 s
erv

ice
 p
lan

s 
an
d 

rep
ort
ed
 to
 D
MT

s a
nd
 im

pro
ve
me

nt 
bo
ard

s. 
Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Bo
ard

 
ou
tco

me
s 

fee
d 

int
o 

CS
B 

Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 
mo

rni
ng
 
wh
ich
 
co
ns
ide

rs 
ex
ce
pti
on
 

rep
ort
ing

, 
an
d 
thi
s 
in 

tur
n 
fee

ds
 in

to 
the

 S
tra
teg

ic 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 R
ep
ort
. 

1.2
1 

Ke
y p
erf
orm

an
ce
 

ind
ica
tor
s a

re 
es
tab

lish
ed
 an

d 
mo

nit
ore

d 

Ap
pro

pri
ate

 ke
y p
erf
orm

an
ce
 

ind
ica
tor
s (
KP

Is)
 ha

ve
 be

en
 

es
tab

lish
ed
 an

d a
pp
rov

ed
 fo
r e
ac
h 

se
rvi
ce
 el
em

en
t a
nd
 ar
e i
nc
lud

ed
 in
 

de
pa
rtm

en
tal
 an

d s
erv

ice
 

bu
sin
es
s/a

nn
ua
l p
lan

s 
 KP

Is 
ha
ve
 be

en
 de

ve
lop

ed
 an

d a
re 

mo
nit
ore

d i
n r
es
pe
ct 
of 
ke
y 

pa
rtn
ers

hip
s 

 A r
ob
us
t m

on
ito
rin
g s

yst
em

 ha
s b

ee
n 

ap
pro

ve
d a

nd
 im

ple
me

nte
d 

 Th
ere

 ar
e r
eg
ula

r re
po
rts
 on

 pr
og
res

s 
on
 de

live
rin
g a

pp
rov

ed
 KP

Is 
 Th
ere

 is
 an

 ap
pro

ve
d m

ec
ha
nis
m 
for
 

rev
iew

ing
 th
e c

on
tin
uin

g s
uit
ab
ility

 of
 

KP
Is 
an
d f
or 
se
cu
rin
g c

on
tin
uo
us
 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
 

  

KP
Is 
are

 in
clu
de
d i
n C

orp
ora

te 
Dir
ec
tor
ate

 Se
rvi
ce
 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pla

ns
.  A

ll n
ati
on
al 
an
d r
eg
ula

tor
y K

PIs
 ar
e 

mo
nit
ore

d a
pp
rop

ria
tel
y. 
Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
bo
ard

s a
nd
 

Wo
rkf
orc

e s
tra
teg

y g
rou

ps
 re
ce
ive
 re
po
rts
 on

 KP
Is 

inc
lud

ing
 w
ork

for
ce
 an

d o
the

r lo
ca
l P
Is 

 Ke
y p
art
ne
rsh

ips
 – 
HS

P –
 se

e 1
.20

 
 Se
rvi
ce
 de

live
ry 
KP

Is 
ag
ree

d f
or 
co
mm

erc
ial 

pa
rtn
ers

hip
s (
eg
 Ki
er)
 (s
ee
 sc
ore

ca
rd 
ev
ide

nc
e) 

 Se
rvi
ce
 KP

Is 
are

 m
on
ito
red

 m
on
thl
y a
t th

e O
pe
rat
ion

al 
Gr
ou
p m

ee
tin
gs
 an

d t
he
 C
on
tra
ct 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
me

eti
ng
s 

an
d q

ua
rte
rly
 by

 th
e S

tra
teg

ic 
Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 Bo

ard
.  (
se
e 

mi
nu
tes

 ev
ide

nc
e) 
 

 Th
e s

tru
ctu

re 
of 
the

 pa
rtn
ers

hip
 is
 ch

an
gin

g t
o r
efl
ec
t th

e 
po
st 
LA
A w

orl
d s

ee
 re
po
rt t
o P

art
ne
rsh

ip 
Bo
ard

 Ju
ly 

20
11
. 

 Co
rpo

rat
e D

ire
cto

rat
e K

PIs
 ar
e m

on
ito
red

 at
 qu

art
erl
y 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Bo
ard

s. 
Se
e 1

.20
 

 Me
ch
an
ism

s f
or 
rev

iew
ing

 KP
Is 
at 
se
rvi
ce
 de

live
ry 
lev
el 

are
 le
ft t
o l
oc
al 
Dir
ec
tor
ate

s t
o d

ete
rm
ine
. 

 A r
ev
iew

 of
 KP

Is 
an
d t
he
 St
rat
eg
ic 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 R
ep
ort
 

(S
PR

) w
as
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
in 
20
10
/11

; th
e C

orp
ora

te 
Ba
lan

ce
d S

co
rec

ard
 w
as
 re
fre
sh
ed
 fo
r 2
01
0/1

1 a
nd
 

su
bs
eq
ue
ntl
y f
or 
20
11
/12

. 

TW
/LD

 
LD
 

6/7
/11

 
 

 

1.2
2 

Th
e a

uth
ori
ty 
kn
ow
s 

Re
gu
lar
 re
po
rts
 ar
e p

res
en
ted

 to
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 ho

lde
rs 
rec

eiv
e q

ua
rte
rly
 Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Bo
ard

 
TW

/LD
 

LD
 

 

70



 

Pa
ge

 17
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

ho
w 
we
ll it
 is
 

pe
rfo
rm
ing
 ag

ain
st 
its
 

pla
nn
ed
 ou

tco
me

s 
me

mb
ers

 on
 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 
of 
na
tio
na
l, 

au
tho

rity
, d
ep
art
me

nta
l a
nd
 

pa
rtn
ers

hip
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 ta
rge

ts 
 Int
ern

al 
an
d e

xte
rna

l a
ud
ito
r’s
 re
po
rts
 

on
 ke

y p
erf
orm

an
ce
 in
dic
ato

rs 
 

 Ke
y p
erf
orm

an
ce
 in
dic
ato

r ri
sk
 

sc
ore

ca
rds

 
 Us
e o

f R
es
ou
rce

s (
PU

RE
 fo
r p
oli
ce
 

se
rvi
ce
) re

vie
ws
 an

d p
rog

res
s 

rev
iew

s a
ga
ins
t th

e a
cti
on
 pl
an
s. 

 Mo
nit
ori
ng
 re
po
rts
 on

 th
e 

ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
of 
loc
al 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

tar
ge
ts 
in 
the

 Lo
ca
l P
oli
cin
g P

lan
 

 Be
st 
Va
lue

 Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic
ato

rs 
 

 Int
ern

al 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 in
dic
ato

rs 
 

 Re
gu
lar
 bu

dg
et 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 re
po
rts
 

(ca
pit
al 
an
d r
ev
en
ue
, c
urr
en
t y
ea
r a
nd
 

me
diu
m-
ter
m)
 

 Vo
lun

tar
y b
en
ch
ma

rki
ng
 ex

erc
ise
s 

wit
h p

ee
r g
rou

ps
  

 Na
tio
na
l c
om

pa
rat
ive
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 

me
as
ure

s a
ga
ins
t c
om

pa
rab

le 
au
tho

riti
es
 (e
.g.
 Q
uA
nT
a d

ata
 on

 
co
mp

ara
tiv
e p

oli
cin
g p

erf
orm

an
ce
 

ag
ain

st 
‘m
os
t s
im
ilar
 fo
rce

’)  
 

 Lo
ca
l A
rea

 Ag
ree

me
nts

 an
d o

the
r 

str
ate

gic
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
s  
 

 Ba
lan

ce
d s

co
re 
ca
rd 
 

rep
ort
s, 
se
e 1

.20
 fo
r te

mp
lat
e  

 Ca
bin

et 
rec

eiv
e a

 qu
art
erl
y S

tra
teg

ic 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

Re
po
rt (
SP

R)
, T
he
 Q
3 r
ep
ort
 is
 pr
ov
ide

d i
n t
he
 ev

ide
nc
e 

file
 (c
om

pri
sin
g t
he
 co

ve
rin
g r
ep
ort
 to
 C
ab
ine

t a
nd
 th
e 

SP
R 
as
 an

 Ap
pe
nd
ix)
. 

 Th
e c

ha
ir a

nd
 vi
ce
 ch

air
 of
 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce
 an

d F
ina

nc
e 

sc
rut
iny
 su

b c
om

mi
tte
e m

ee
t o
n a

 m
on
thl
y b
as
is 
wit
h 

off
ice
rs 
fro
m 
fin
an
ce
 an

d c
orp

ora
te 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 to
 

co
ns
ide
r w

he
the

r th
ere

 ar
e a

ny
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 or
 fin

an
cia
l 

iss
ue
s w

hic
h w

arr
an
t c
on
sid
era

tio
n b

y t
he
 co

mm
itte
e. 
 

Wh
ere

 th
is 
is 
the

 ca
se
, o
ffic
ers

 ar
e a

sk
ed
 to
 pr
ov
ide

 
de
tai
led

 in
for
ma

tio
n w

ith
 re
ga
rd 
to 
the

 pa
rtic

ula
r s
erv

ice
 

are
a f
or 
dis
cu
ss
ion

 at
 co

mm
itte
e. 
 If 
the

re 
is 
ins
uff
icie

nt 
cla
rity

 re
ga
rdi
ng
 th
e i
ss
ue
, th

en
 it 
ma

y b
e m

on
ito
red

 
fur
the

r p
erh

ap
s v
ia 
for
ma

l re
vie
w. 

 Ag
en
da
 re
po
rts
 pa

ck
 an

d m
inu
tes

 fo
r e
ac
h m

ee
tin
g 

du
rin
g 2

01
0/1

1 a
re 
av
ail
ab
le 
he
re:

 
  Mo

nth
ly 
bu
dg
et 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 re
po
rts
 to
 C
SB

 in
 ac

co
rda

nc
e 

wit
h C

SB
 tim

eta
ble
. 

Qu
art
erl
y r
ep
ort
 to
 C
ab
ine

t w
hic
h a

re 
av
ail
ab
le 
on
 th
e 

int
ran

et.
  E
vid
en
ce
d. 
 

 htt
p:/
/w
ww

.ha
rro
w.g

ov
.uk

/w
ww

2/i
eL
ist
Do
cu
me

nts
.as

px
?

CI
d=
81
7&
MI
d=
60
56
8&
Ve
r=4

 
 htt
p:/
/w
ww

.ha
rro
w.g

ov
.uk

/w
ww

2/i
eL
ist
Do
cu
me

nts
.as

px
?

CI
d=
81
7&
MI
d=
60
32
9&
Ve
r=4

 
 htt
p:/
/w
ww

.ha
rro
w.g

ov
.uk

/w
ww

2/i
eL
ist
Do
cu
me

nts
.as

px
?

CI
d=
81
7&
MI
d=
60
84
6&
Ve
r=4

 
  Ke
y p
art
ne
rsh

ips
 – 
HS

P –
 se

e 1
.20

 
 

                      JA
/JH

 
                

6/7
/11

 
                     JH
 9/
8/1

1 
                

                       

71



 

Pa
ge

 18
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

 EF
QM

 m
od
el 
ad
op
ted

 
 Ex
ter
na
l a
ud
it/a

ge
nc
y r
ep
ort
s o

n 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 (e
.g.
 co

mp
lian

ce
 w
ith
 

Na
tio
na
l C
rim

e R
ec
ord

ing
 St
an
da
rd,
 

HM
IC
 re
po
rts
, P
oli
ce
 St
an
da
rds

 U
nit
 

rep
ort
s) 

 

An
 In
ter
na
l A
ud
it r
ev
iew

 of
  N
ati
on
al 
Ind

ica
tor
s w

as
 

co
nd
uc
ted

 in
 20

10
 an

d i
s a

va
ila
ble

 fro
m 
Int
ern

al 
Au
dit
  

  Th
e C

ou
nc
il m

ain
tai
ns
 a 
Co
rpo

rat
e R

isk
 R
eg
ist
er 
wh
ich
 

is 
rev

iew
ed
 at
 th
e C

SB
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
orn

ing
, a
nd
 R
isk
 

Re
gis
ter
s a

re 
als
o r
ev
iew

ed
 at
 qu

art
erl
y I
mp

rov
em

en
t 

Bo
ard

s. 
 Na
tio
na
l In

dic
ato

rs 
(N
Is)
 w
he
re 
 st
ill i
n u

se
 ar
e p

ub
lish

ed
 

as
 pa

rt o
f th

e C
orp

ora
te 
Pla

n, 
mo

nit
ore

d i
n s

co
rec

ard
s, 

an
d i
n r
ep
ort
s t
o I
mp

rov
em

en
t B
oa
rds

 an
d C

SB
 (w

he
re 

rel
ev
an
t). 
 Th

e I
mp

rov
em

en
t B
oa
rd 
rep

ort
 1.
20
 re
fer
s 

 Fo
r in

ter
na
l p
erf
orm

an
ce
 in
dic
ato

rs 
the

 sa
me

 ap
pli
es
  

 PW
C 
be
nc
hm

ark
ing
 cl
ub
, a
nd
 in
 20

10
/11

 LA
PS

, p
rov

ide
 

co
mp

ara
tiv
e d

ata
 on

 KP
Is.
 

 Sc
ore

ca
rds

 ar
e u

se
d, 
bo
th 
at 
a c

orp
ora

te 
lev
el 
an
d a

 
se
rvi
ce
 le
ve
l.  
Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Bo
ard

 re
po
rtin

g t
ak
es
 a 

ba
lan

ce
d a

pp
roa

ch
 ag

ain
st 
the

 co
rpo

rat
e a

nd
 se

rvi
ce
 

sc
ore

ca
rds

. 
 Fo
r 2
01
0/1

1 s
co
rec

ard
s a

t C
orp

ora
te 
Dir
ec
tor
ate

 le
ve
l 

ha
ve
 be

en
 re
fre
sh
ed
. 

 Ex
ter
na
l a
ud
it r
ep
ort
s b

y C
QC

, O
fst
ed
, a
va
ila
ble

 fro
m 

the
ir  
we
bs
ite
s 

 Fo
r L
oc
al 
Ar
ea
 Ag

ree
me

nt 
se
e 1

.20
. 

 

    

       

1.2
3 

Kn
ow
led

ge
 of
 

ab
so
lut
e a

nd
 re
lat
ive
 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
s 

ac
hie

ve
d i
s u

se
d t
o 

su
pp
ort
 de

cis
ion

s 
tha

t d
riv
e 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 in
 

Mo
nit
ori
ng
 re
po
rts
 ar
e r
eg
ula

rly
 

pre
se
nte

d t
o t
he
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 
co
mm

itte
e 

 Th
e r
ep
ort
s i
nc
lud

e d
eta

ile
d 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 re
su
lts
, b
oth

 ab
so
lut
e 

an
d r
ela

tiv
e t
o p

ee
r a
uth

ori
tie
s, 
a 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Bo
ard

 R
ep
ort
s a

re 
pro

vid
ed
 by

 ea
ch
 

Dir
ec
tor
ate

 qu
art
erl
y, 
se
e 1

.20
. 

 Ab
so
lut
e p

erf
orm

an
ce
 in
for
ma

tio
n i
s p

rov
ide

d i
n r
ep
ort
s 

to 
Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Bo
ard

s, 
 Th

e r
ep
ort
s s
ho
w p

erf
orm

an
ce
 

rel
ati
ve
 to
 pe

er 
au
tho

riti
es
 w
he
n a

va
ila
ble

 (u
su
all
y o
n a

n 
an
nu
al 
ba
sis
) 

TW
/LD

 
 Co
rp 

Dir
ec
tor

s 

LD
 

6/7
/11

 
     

 

72



 

Pa
ge

 19
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

ou
tco

me
s 

cle
ar 
ind

ica
tio
n o

f b
elo

w 
tar
ge
t, o

n 
tar
ge
t a
nd
 at
, o
r a
bo
ve
, ta

rge
t re

su
lts
, 

hig
hli
gh
tin
g a

rea
s w

he
re 
co
rre
cti
ve
 

ac
tio
n i
s n

ec
es
sa
ry 
 

 Co
mm

itte
e r
ep
ort
s o

n b
elo

w 
pa
r 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 in
clu
de
 ‘S
MA

RT
’ a
cti
on
 

pla
ns
 to
 im

pro
ve
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 

 Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 ta
rge

ts 
in 
su
bs
eq
ue
nt 

co
rpo

rat
e a

nd
 de

pa
rtm

en
tal
 an

d/o
r 

se
rvi
ce
 bu

sin
es
s p

lan
s a

re 
rev

ise
d i
n 

the
 lig
ht 
of 
ac
tua

l p
erf
orm

an
ce
 

 Co
nti
nu
ou
s i
mp

rov
em

en
t is
 st
riv
ed
 fo
r 

by
 in
cre

as
ing

 th
e d

iffi
cu
lty 
of 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 ta
rge

ts 
wh
en
 th
ey
 ha

ve
 

be
en
 m
et 
ov
er 
a p

eri
od
 (e
.g.
 

mo
ve
me

nts
 on

 KP
I re

su
lts
) 

 Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 tre

nd
s a

re 
es
tab

lish
ed
 

an
d r
ep
ort
ed
 up

on
 ov

er 
the

 m
ed
ium

 
ter
m 
an
d a

re 
fed

 in
to 
the

 co
rpo

rat
e 

an
d d

ep
art
me

nta
l a
nd
/or
 se

rvi
ce
 

pla
nn
ing

 pr
oc
es
s a

nd
 in
to 
the

 
pla

nn
ing

 pr
oc
es
s o

f k
ey
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
s  
 

 Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 ta
rge

ts 
are

 ad
jus
ted

 in
 

the
 lig
ht 
of 
the

 pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
s o

f p
ee
r 

au
tho

riti
es
 

 Inf
orm

ati
on
 on

 re
lat
ive
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 is
 an

aly
se
d, 
thr
ou
gh
 

pu
bli
sh
ed
 be

nc
hm

ark
ing
 in
for
ma

tio
n a

nd
 th
rou

gh
 

be
nc
hm

ark
ing
 cl
ub
s e

.g.
 Lo

nd
on
 In
for
ma

tio
n E

xc
ha
ng
e 

Gr
ou
p, 
Ho
us
em

ark
, P
WC

, L
AP

S. 
 .  We

 st
riv
e f
or 
co
nti
nu
ou
s i
mp

rov
em

en
t th

rou
gh
 ta
rge

t 
se
ttin

g a
nd
 re
gu
lar
 co

mp
ari
so
n w

ith
 st
ati
sti
ca
l 

ne
igh

bo
urs

, a
nd
 m
on
ito
r tr
en
ds
. 

 Ca
bin

et 
an
d P

ort
fol
io 
Ho
lde

r re
po
rts
 in
clu
de
 a 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 se

cti
on
 an

d s
ign

 of
f is
 re
qu
ire
d f
rom

 a 
me

mb
er 
of 
the

 Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t a
nd
 

Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 te
am

. 
  

                       

1.2
4 

Th
e a

uth
ori
ty 

co
nti
nu
ou
sly
 

im
pro

ve
s i
ts 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
  

Th
e p

erf
orm

an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

sys
tem

s a
re 
reg

ula
rly
 re
vie
we
d a

nd
 

up
da
ted

 to
 ta
ke
 ac

co
un
t o
f c
ha
ng
es
 in
 

org
an
isa
tio
na
l s
tru
ctu

re,
 ne

w 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
rem

en
t 

fra
me

wo
rks

 (i.
e. 
ne
w G

ov
ern

me
nt 

ini
tia
tiv
es
, n
ew
 in
ter
na
l p
erf
orm

an
ce
 

me
as
ure

s e
tc)
 an

d o
the

r fa
cto

rs 
 

Th
e p

erf
orm

an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t fr
am

ew
ork

 de
fin
ed
 in
 

20
07
 an

d d
es
cri
be
d a

t 1
.6 
an
d 1

.20
 ha

s b
ee
n r
ev
iew

ed
 

reg
ula

rly
. T
he
 la
tes

t v
ers

ion
 is
 av

ail
ab
le 
in 
the

 ev
ide

nc
e 

file
. . 

 Th
e c

ou
nc
il’s
 m
igr
ati
on
 to
 SA

P M
IS 
fro
m 
20
06
 on

wa
rds

, 
as
 pa

rt o
f th

e B
us
ine
ss
 Tr
an
sfo

rm
ati
on
 Pr
og
ram

me
 ha

s 
res

ult
ed
 in
 ch

an
ge
s t
o t
he
 so

ftw
are

 ba
se
 fo
r p
erf
orm

an
ce
 

rel
ate

d i
nfo

rm
ati
on
.   

TW
/LD

 
LD
 

6/7
/11

 
 

 

73



 

Pa
ge

 20
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

Th
e p

erf
orm

an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 ar
e r
ev
ise
d i
n l
ine
 w
ith
 

ex
ter
na
l o
r in

ter
na
l re

vie
w 
of 
the

 
arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

 Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 ar
e r
ev
iew

ed
 to
 

as
sim

ilat
e n

ew
 te
ch
niq

ue
s a

nd
/or
 

tec
hn
olo

gy
 e.
g. 
de
ve
lop
me

nts
 in
 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

inf
orm

ati
on
 sy
ste

ms
 

 Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 ar
e d

ev
elo

pe
d a

nd
 

mo
nit
ore

d i
n r
ela

tio
n t
o k

ey
 

pa
rtn
ers

hip
s 

 

   Th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce
 M
an
ag
em

en
t S
yst
em

 fo
r H

arr
ow
 

Str
ate

gic
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 ha

s b
ee
n r
ev
iew

ed
 an

d 
str
en
gth

en
ed
 in
 re
lat
ion

 to
 th
e L

oc
al 
Ar
ea
 Ag

ree
me

nt 
an
d o

the
r P
art
ne
rsh

ip 
pri
ori
tie
s. 
 Ev

ide
nc
e –

Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

rep
ort
s  

 

1.3
8  

Th
e c

ou
nc
il h
as
 

rel
iab

le 
inf
orm

ati
on
 

(th
is 
lin
ks
 wi
th 
KL
OE

 
2.2

) w
hic
h i
t u
se
s t
o 

mo
nit
or 
its
 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 an

d 
ma

na
ge
 pr
og
res

s i
n 

ac
hie

vin
g i
ts 

str
ate

gy
(na

tur
al 

res
ou
rce

s/i
mp

ac
t o
n 

en
vir
on
me

nt 
–s
ee
 

3.4
0).
 It 
is 

co
mm

un
ica
tin
g 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 ag

ain
st 

its
 st
rat
eg
y t
o t
he
 

pu
bli
c, 
sta

ke
ho
lde

rs 
an
d s

taf
f a
nd
 

en
ga
gin

g w
ith
 th
em

 
eff
ec
tive

ly 

 
Th
e c

ou
nc
il s
ign

ed
 th
e N

ott
ing

ha
m 
De
cla
rat
ion

 in
 Ju

ly 
20
07
. D
ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f th

e s
ub
se
qu
en
t C
lim
ate

 C
ha
ng
e 

Str
ate

gy
 w
as
 su

bje
ct 
to 
pu
blic

 co
ns
ult
ati
on
. A
s p

art
 of
 

thi
s c
on
su
lta
tio
n p

roc
es
s a

 pr
es
en
tat
ion

 w
as
 m
ad
e t
o t
he
  

Gr
ee
ne
r H

arr
ow
 gr
ou
p. 

 Inf
orm

ati
on
 on

 th
e a

bo
ve
 in
dic
ato

rs 
is 
pu
bli
cly
 av

ail
ab
le 

on
 th
e c

ou
nc
il’s
 w
eb
sit
e. 
Inf
orm

ati
on
 is
 al
so
 sh

are
d 

reg
ula

rly
 w
ith
 G
ree

ne
r H

arr
ow
 (m

inu
tes

 on
 w
eb
sit
e) 
an
d 

the
 Su

sta
ina

ble
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t a
nd
 En

vir
on
me

nt 
gro

up
 of
 

the
 H
arr
ow
 St
rat
eg
ic 
Pa
rtn
ers

hip
. 

 Th
e c

ou
nc
il h
as
 le
d o

n t
he
 fo
rm
ati
on
 of
 a 
clim

ate
 ch

an
ge
 

gro
up
 w
ith
in 
the

 W
es
t L
on
do
n A

llia
nc
e t
o c

on
sid
er 

co
mm

on
 pr
ob
lem

s a
nd
 a 
co
mm

on
 ap

pro
ac
h t
o t
he
 ne

w 
po
licy

 ar
ea
. A
t th

e i
nit
ial
 m
ee
tin
g o

n 7
 M
ay
 20

10
, 

pre
se
nta

tio
ns
 w
ere

 re
ce
ive
d f
rom

 Th
e A

ud
it 

Co
mm

iss
ion
, L
 B 
Su
tto
n (
 a 
Gr
ee
n F

lag
 bo

rou
gh
) a
nd
 

fro
m 
Ha
rro
w (
on
 th
e C

RC
 an

d F
IT)
. 

 90
% 
of 
da
ta 
fro
m 
ele
ctr
icit
y/g
as
 re
ad
ing

s i
s v
ery

 re
lia
ble

.  
Th
e C

ou
nc
il is

 in
sta

llin
g a

uto
ma

tic
 m
ete

r re
ad
ing

 de
vis
es
 

JE
(A
B)
/

SD
 

AB
/C
C 

13
/6/
11
 

 

74



 

Pa
ge

 21
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

an
d a

nn
ua
l p
ict
ure

s o
f m

ete
r re

ad
ing
 ar
e c

urr
en
tly
 ta
ke
n. 

 Th
e c

ou
nc
il’s
 C
lim
ate

 C
ha
ng
e S

tra
teg

y w
as
 es

tab
lish

ed
 

in 
Se
pte

mb
er 
20
09
 af
ter
 pu

blic
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
. A
 re
vis
ion

 
wa
s i
ss
ue
d i
n O

cto
be
r 2
01
0 f
or 
fur
the

r c
on
su
lta
tio
n a

nd
 

thi
s w

as
 ad

op
ted

 by
 th
e c

ou
nc
il in

 M
ay
 20

11
.Ev

ide
nc
ed
. 

 
1.3

9  
It i
s m

ak
ing
 pr
og
res

s 
in 
de
live

rin
g a

ga
ins
t 

its
 st
rat
eg
y, 
pla

ns
 

an
d t
arg

ets
. It
 is
 

red
uc
ing

 its
 

en
vir
on
me

nta
l 

im
pa
cts
 an

d 
co
ns
um

pti
on
 of
 

na
tur
al 
res

ou
rce

s 
fro
m 
its
 op

era
tio
ns
 in
 

lin
e w

ith
 th
e t
arg

ets
 it 

ha
s s
et 
its
elf
. T
his
 

pro
gre

ss
 is
 sp

rea
d 

ac
ros

s t
he
 

org
an
isa
tio
n. 
It h

as
 

ide
nti
fie
d t
he
 

sig
nif
ica
nt 

en
vir
on
me

nta
l ri
sk
s 

tha
t c
ou
ld 
im
pa
ct 
on
 

the
 de

live
ry 
of 
its
 

op
era

tio
ns
, fo

r 
ex
am

ple
 ho

w 
it i
s 

tak
ing
 st
ep
s t
o a

da
pt 

to 
clim

ate
 ch

an
ge
 

 
Th

e a
nn

ua
l 4

% 
red

uc
tio

n i
n c

arb
on

 em
iss

ion
s i

s 
me

asu
red

 by
 N

I 1
85

 an
d i

s e
ffe

cti
ve

 fro
m 

Ap
ril 

20
10

. 
We

 su
bm

itte
d b

ase
 fig

ure
s f

or 
20

08
/9 

in 
Jun

e 2
00

9. 
Fig

ure
s f

or 
20

09
/10

 w
ill 

be
 su

bm
itte

d a
lon

gs
ide

 fig
ure

s 
for

 20
10

/11
 in

 ac
co

rda
nc

e w
ith

 th
e r

ev
ise

d t
im

eta
ble

 
fro

m 
DE

CC
 . T

he
 m

eth
od

olo
gy

 ha
s b

ee
n r

ev
ise

d s
lig

htl
y 

so
 co

mp
ara

bil
ity

 w
ith

 20
09

/10
 w

ill 
be

 lim
ite

d. 
 We

 ar
e a

lso
 co

lla
tin

g i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 to

 re
po

rt 
ou

r b
ase

 ye
ar 

co
ns

um
pti

on
 un

de
r t

he
 CR

C s
ch

em
e. 

Th
ese

 ne
ed

 to
 be

 
rep

ort
ed

 by
 th

e e
nd

 of
 Ju

ly 
20

11
. 

 We
 ke

ep
 ce

ntr
ali

sed
 re

co
rds

 of
 en

erg
y c

on
su

mp
tio

n 
ac

ros
s t

he
 w

ho
le 

co
un

cil 
bu

t n
ee

d t
o u

se 
DE

CC
 

co
nv

ers
ion

 fa
cto

rs 
for

 ea
ch

 ye
ar 

to 
ca

lcu
lat

e t
he

 ca
rbo

n 
foo

tpr
int

. A
n a

nn
ua

l re
du

cti
on

 of
 4%

 is
 co

ns
ist

en
t w

ith
 

the
 ta

rge
ts 

set
 in

 th
e M

ay
or 

for
 Lo

nd
on

's C
lim

ate
 Ch

an
ge

 
Str

ate
gy

. O
ve

r t
he

 la
st 

ye
ar 

we
 ha

ve
 co

mp
let

ed
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

en
erg

y s
av

ing
 pr

oje
cts

 an
d t

his
 co

nti
nu

es 
thi

s 
ye

ar.
 W

e a
re 

als
o d

ev
elo

pin
g a

 Ca
rbo

n M
an

ag
em

en
t P

lan
 

as 
pa

rt 
of 

ou
r A

sse
t P

lan
, w

hic
h w

ill 
be

 lo
ok

ing
 at

 
red

uc
ing

 ou
r e

sta
te 

an
d i

mp
rov

ing
 th

e e
ne

rgy
 ef

fic
ien

cy 
of 

the
 re

ma
ini

ng
 st

oc
k. 

 Ca
bin

et 
rec

eiv
ed

 a 
rep

ort
 in

 D
ec

 20
10

 on
 th

e C
arb

on
 

Re
du

cti
on

 Co
mm

itm
en

t –
 En

erg
y E

ffic
ien

cy 
Sc

he
me

 
(C

RC
 sc

he
me

). 
Ac

hie
vin

g t
he

 ca
rbo

n r
ed

uc
tio

n t
arg

ets
 is

 
an

 es
sen

tia
l e

lem
en

t in
 ou

r r
esp

on
se 

to 
the

 CR
C. 

Th
e 

tar
ge

t h
as 

be
en

 al
loc

ate
d t

o C
orp

ora
te 

Dir
ec

tor
 

(En
vir

on
me

nt 
an

d C
om

mu
nit

y S
afe

ty)
 as

 pa
rt 

of 
his

 

JE
(A
B)
/

SD
 

AB
/C
C 

13
/6/
11
 

 

75



 

Pa
ge

 22
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

pe
rso

na
l p

erf
orm

an
ce

 ta
rge

ts,
 w

hic
h a

re 
mo

nit
ore

d b
y 

the
 Ch

ief
 Ex

ec
uti

ve
. 

  Th
e a

nn
ua

l 2
.5%

 re
du

cti
on

 in
 po

tab
le 

wa
ter

 
co

ns
um

pti
on

 is
 al

so
 ef

fec
tiv

e f
rom

 Ap
ril 

20
10

. I
t 

rec
og

nis
es 

tha
t p

ota
ble

 w
ate

r h
as 

a l
arg

e c
arb

on
 

foo
tpr

int
 an

d t
ha

t th
ere

 ar
e a

 nu
mb

er 
of 

me
asu

res
 th

at 
ca

n b
e t

ak
en

 to
 re

du
ce

 its
 us

e. 
In 

Oc
tob

er 
20

09
, 

we
 ce

ntr
ali

sed
 ou

r r
ec

ord
 ke

ep
ing

 fo
r w

ate
r 

co
ns

um
pti

on
. T

his
 is

 a 
loc

al 
ind

ica
tor

. 
  Du

rin
g 2

01
0/1

1 t
he

 co
un

cil 
ob

tai
ne

d £
27

3k
 fu

nd
ing

 fr
om

 
SA

LIX
 to

 im
ple

me
nt 

en
erg

y s
av

ing
 m

ea
su

res
 in

 sc
ho

ols
 

an
d c

orp
ora

te 
bu

ild
ing

s. 
£6

3k
 w

as 
als

o s
pe

nt 
on

 
red

uc
ing

 en
erg

y c
on

su
mp

tio
n i

n t
he

 CC
TV

 ro
om

 
 

1.4
0  

Su
sta

ina
bil
ity
 im

pa
ct 

ap
pra

isa
ls 
are

 
un
de
rta
ke
n f
or 
all 

ma
jor
 pr
oje

cts
 an

d 
pro

gra
mm

es
. W

he
re 

as
se
ss
me

nts
 sh

ow
 

po
ten

tia
l n
eg
ati
ve
 

im
pa
cts
, th

e c
ou
nc
il 

ca
n d

em
on
str
ate

 ho
w 

it h
as
 re
sp
on
de
d, 
for
 

ex
am

ple
 by
 ch

an
gin

g 
its
 po

licy
, m

itig
ati
ng
 

ris
ks
 or
 ha

vin
g a

 pl
an
 

to 
ma

na
ge
 th
e e

ffe
cts
 

 
Co
ve
red

 by
: a
ll r
ep
ort
s t
o C

ab
ine

t re
qu
ire
 an

 
en
vir
on
me

nta
l im

pa
ct 
sta

tem
en
t to

 be
 pr
od
uc
ed
.  T

he
se
 

are
 re
vie
we
d b

y t
he
 D
ivis

ion
 D
ire
cto

r E
nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 

Se
rvi
ce
s o

r th
e H

ea
d o

f C
lim
ate

 C
ha
ng
e a

nd
 ar
e s

ign
ed
 

off
 if 
the

y s
up
po
rt t
he
 En

vir
on
me

nt 
Im
pa
ct 
Sta

tem
en
t.  

Wh
ere

 th
ey
 do

n’t
 su

gg
es
tio
ns
 ar
e a

dd
ed
.  

 Gu
ida

nc
e f
or 
rep

ort
 w
rite

rs 
ha
s b

ee
n a

me
nd
ed
 to
 re
fer
 

the
m 
to 
the

 N
ott
ing

ha
m 
De
cla
rat
ion

 w
eb
sit
e  

JE
(A
B)
/

SD
 

AB
/C
C 

13
/6/
11
 

 

1.4
1  

Th
e c

ou
nc
il c
on
sid
ers

 
the

 en
vir
on
me

nta
l 

im
pa
ct 
of 
its
 su

pp
lie
rs 

of 
go
od
s a

nd
 

se
rvi
ce
s w

ith
in 
its
 

co
mm

iss
ion
ing
 an

d 
pro

cu
rem

en
t 

 
Ha
rro
w 

Co
un
cil 

en
co
ura

ge
s 

su
sta

ina
bil
ity
 w

ith
in 

all
 

pro
cu
rem

en
t p
roc

ed
ure

s t
o 
en
su
re 

tha
t t
he
 g
oo
ds
 a
nd
 

se
rvi
ce
s t
he
 C
ou
nc
il p
rov

ide
s a

ch
iev
e b

es
t v
alu

e w
ith
ou
t 

ha
vin
g a

 ne
ga
tiv
e i
mp

ac
t o
n t
he
 fu
tur
e g

en
era

tio
ns
. T
he
 

Co
un
cil’
s 
Co
rpo

rat
e 
Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 

Str
ate

gy
 (E

vid
en
ce
d 

20
09
/10

) t
ies
 in
 di
rec

tly
 w
ith
 th
e G

ov
ern

me
nt’
s n

ati
on
al 

ac
tio
n p

lan
 “P
roc

uri
ng
 th
e F

utu
re”
. 

JE
(A
B)
/

SD
 

AB
/C
C 

13
/6/
11
 

 

76



 

Pa
ge

 23
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

de
cis
ion

s a
nd
 is
 

wo
rki
ng
 w
ith
 th
em

 to
 

ac
hie

ve
 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 

 Th
e k

ey
 pr
inc
ipl
es
 co

ns
ide
red

 ar
e r
ed
uc
e, 
reu

se
, re

cy
cle
 

an
d 
ret
hin

k 
– 
inc
lud

ing
 th

ink
ing
 a
bo
ut 

wh
ole

 lif
e 
co
sts
 

no
tin
g 
in 
pa
rtic

ula
r t
he
 c
os
t o

f d
isp
os
al.
 S
up
pli
ers

 a
re 

inf
lue

nc
ed
 to
 re

du
ce
 th
eir
 e
nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 im

pa
ct 
an
d 
to 

pro
vid
e 
go
od
s t
ha
t h
av
e 
be
en
 tr
ad
ed
 fa
irly
 a
nd
 sa

fel
y. 
 

Th
is 
ma

y i
nv
olv
e 
wo
rki
ng
 w
ith
 s
up
pli
ers

 to
 re

du
ce
 th

e 
en
vir
on
me

nta
l i
mp

ac
t o

f t
he
ir 
se
rvi
ce
s 
an
d 
pro

du
cts
, 

tog
eth

er 
wit
h o

the
rs 
in 
the

ir s
up
ply
 ch

ain
.  
Th
is 
ca
n b

e 
mu

tua
lly 

be
ne
fic
ial
 t
o 
bo
th 

pa
rtie

s. 
Ad
dit
ion

all
y, 

the
 

Co
un
cil 

us
es
 w
ho
le 
life
 co

st 
be
ne
fit 
an
aly
sis
 a
s p

art
 of
 

the
 aw

ard
 cr
ite
ria
 fo
r c
on
tra
cts
. 

 Th
e 
co
un
cil 

ha
s 
ap
po
int
ed
 e
xp
ert
ise
 in

 s
us
tai
na
ble

 
pro

cu
rem

en
t 

to 
he
lp 

it 
de
ve
lop

 
a 

su
sta

ina
ble

 
pro

cu
rem

en
t p
oli
cy
. 

 
1.4

2  
Th
e c

ou
nc
il is

 us
ing

 
its
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
s t
o 

he
lp 
it t
o r
ed
uc
e i
ts 

ow
n i
mp

ac
ts 
on
 th
e 

en
vir
on
me

nt 
an
d 

pre
pa
rin
g f
or 
clim

ate
 

ch
an
ge
, fo

r e
xa
mp

le 
us
ing
 sh

are
d 

bu
ild
ing
s 

 
Th
e B

ett
er 
To
ge
the

r p
rog

ram
me

 is
 lo
ok
ing
 at
 ho

w 
the

 
pu
bli
c s
ec
tor
 in
 H
arr
ow
 ca

n w
ork

 m
ore

 cl
os
ely
 to
ge
the

r 
to 
red

uc
e t
he
 to
tal
 nu

mb
er 
of 
bu
ild
ing

s b
ein

g u
se
d, 
an
d 

inc
rea

se
 th
e d

en
sit
y o
f s
taf
f p
er 
un
it a

rea
. E
vid
en
ce
: 

Ca
bin

et 
Re
po
rt 

 

JE
(A
B)
/

SD
 

AB
/C
C 

13
/6/
11
 

 

 

77



 

Pa
ge

 24
 of

 87
 

  Ob
jec

tiv
e 2

: Id
en

tify
 pr

inc
ipa

l ri
sk

s t
o a

ch
iev

em
en

t o
f o

bje
cti

ve
s 

St
ep

 1:
 – 

Th
e a

uth
or

ity
 ha

s r
ob

us
t s

ys
tem

s a
nd

 pr
oc

es
se

s i
n p

lac
e f

or
 th

e i
de

nti
fic

ati
on

 an
d m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f s

tra
teg

ic 
an

d o
pe

rat
ion

al 
ris

k 
 

 
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 by

: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

2.1
 

Th
ere

 is
 a 
wr
itte

n s
tra
teg

y 
an
d p

oli
cy
 in
 pl
ac
e f
or 

ma
na
gin
g r
isk
 wh

ich
: 

 Ha
s b

ee
n f
orm

all
y 

ap
pro

ve
d a

t p
oli
tic
al 

an
d r
isk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

bo
ard

 (o
r e
qu
iva
len

t) 
lev
el 

 Is 
rev

iew
ed
 on

 a 
reg

ula
r b
as
is 

 Ha
s b

ee
n 

co
mm

un
ica
ted

 to
 al
l 

rel
ev
an
t s
taf
f 

 Inc
lud

es
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

ris
ks
 

 

Ex
ist
en
ce
 of
 ap

pro
ve
d s

tra
teg

y a
nd
 po

licy
 

do
cu
me

nt 
 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f fo
rm
al 
ap
pro

va
l (e

.g.
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
bo
ard

/co
mm

itte
e m

inu
tes

) 
 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f fo
rm
al 
rev

iew
 (e
.g.
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
bo
ard

/co
mm

itte
e m

inu
tes

, 
do
cu
me

nt 
ve
rsi
on
 nu

mb
er 
an
d d

ate
) 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f c
om

mu
nic
ati
on
 st
rat
eg
y, 

po
ss
ibl
y c
ov
ere

d i
n s

tra
teg

y d
oc
um

en
t 

 Ex
am

ple
s o

f d
iss
em

ina
tio
n e

.g.
 in
du
cti
on
, 

bri
efi
ng
s, 
aw
are

ne
ss
 se

ss
ion
s, 
po
licy

 an
d 

str
ate

gy
 pu

bli
sh
ed
 on

 in
tra
ne
t, s

tra
teg

ic 
dia

gn
os
tic
 qu

es
tio
nn
air
e r
es
ult
s 

 

Ca
bin

et 
Ag
en
da
 fo
r 1
7 S

ep
tem

be
r 2
00
9 -
 

av
ail
ab
le 
at 

htt
p:/
/m
od
ern

go
v:8

08
0/P

ub
lish

ed
/C
00
00
02
49
/M
0

00
04
61
7/$

$$
Ag
en
da
.do

c.p
df 
 

 Ca
bin

et 
Re
po
rt a

nd
 M
inu

tes
 of
 M
ee
tin
g f
or 
17
 

Se
pte

mb
er 
20
09
 (A
ge
nd
a I
tem

 9 
Pa
ge
s 9

7 t
o 1

18
) - 
av
ail
ab
le 
on
 in
tra
ne
t a
t 

htt
p:/
/m
od
ern

go
v:8

08
0/P

ub
lish

ed
/C
00
00
02
49
/M
0

00
04
61
7/$

$A
Do
cP
ac
kP
ub
lic.
pd
f  

 Ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t s
tra
teg

y, 
po
licy

, g
uid

an
ce
 an

d 
tem

pla
tes

 av
ail
ab
le 
on
 th
e i
ntr
an
et 
at 
 

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
/in
fo/
20
01
93
/ris

k_
ma

na
ge
me

nt/
3

13
/ris

k_
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
 

  Ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t p
oli
cy
 id
en
tifi
es
 ris

k 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
rol
es
 an

d r
es
po
ns
ibi
litie

s o
f p
art
ne
rs 

- a
va
ila
ble

 on
 in
tra
ne
t o
n a

bo
ve
 lin
k.  

 Av
ail
ab
le 
on
 th
e H

ub
.    

DW
/N
B 

NB
 

10
.06

.11
 

 

2.2
 

Th
e a

uth
ori
ty 
ha
s 

im
ple
me

nte
d c

lea
r 

str
uc
tur
es
 an

d p
roc

es
se
s 

for
 ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t 

wh
ich
 ar
e s

uc
ce
ss
ful
ly 

im
ple
me

nte
d a

nd
: 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
bo
ard

 
an
d e

lec
ted

 m
em

be
rs 

se
e r
isk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
bo
ard

/co
mm

itte
e m

inu
tes

 
 Jo
b d

es
cri
pti
on
s o

f s
en
ior
 an

d o
pe
rat
ion

al 
ma

na
ge
rs 
an
d c

orp
ora

te 
ris
k m

an
ag
er 

ou
tlin
e t
he
ir r
isk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

res
po
ns
ibi
litie

s a
nd
 ar
e c

ov
ere

d i
n 

ap
pra

isa
ls 

 Int
ern

al 
au
dit
 re
po
rts
 an

d e
xte

rna
l a
ud
it 

Co
rpo

rat
e D

ire
cto

rs 
ha
ve
 1-
2-1

 m
ee
tin
gs
 w
ith
 th
e 

Ris
k M

an
ag
er 
to 
up
da
te 
the

 St
rat
eg
ic 
Ris

k 
Re
gis
ter
 an

d C
orp

ora
te 
Op

era
tio
na
l R
isk
 

Re
gis
ter
. E
ac
h r
isk
 on

 th
es
e r
eg
ist
ers

 ha
s b

ee
n 

all
oc
ate

d a
n a

pp
rop

ria
te 
Co
rpo

rat
e D

ire
cto

r a
s 

the
 R
isk
 O
wn
er.
 (S
ee
 St
rat
eg
ic 
Ris

k R
eg
ist
er,
 

Co
rpo

rat
e O

pe
rat
ion

al 
Ris

k R
eg
ist
er 
Fe
bru

ary
 

20
10
.)  

 

DW
/N
B 

NB
 

10
.06

.11
 

 

78



 

Pa
ge

 25
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 by

: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

as
 a 
pri
ori
ty 
an
d 

su
pp
ort
 it 
by
 pe

rso
na
l 

int
ere

st 
an
d i
np
ut 

 De
cis
ion

 m
ak
ing
 

co
ns
ide
rs 
ris
k 

 A s
en
ior
 m
an
ag
er 
ha
s 

be
en
 ap

po
int
ed
 to
 

“ch
am

pio
n” 
ris
k 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
 Ro
les
 an

d 
res

po
ns
ibi
litie

s f
or 
ris
k 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
ha
ve
 

be
en
 de

fin
ed
 

 Ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t 

sys
tem

s a
re 
su
bje

ct 
to 

ind
ep
en
de
nt 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
 Ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t is
 

co
ns
ide
red

 in
 th
e 

an
nu
al 
bu
sin
es
s 

pla
nn
ing

 pr
oc
es
s 

 

co
mm

en
ts 
on
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t s
yst
em

   
 CP

A o
r P
PA

F r
ev
iew

 co
mm

en
ts 
on
 ris

k 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
 An
nu
al 
bu
sin
es
s p

lan
s 

 Lin
k b

etw
ee
n i
nte

rna
l a
ud
it a

nd
 ris

k 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
fun

cti
on
s i
s c
lea

rly
 de

fin
ed
 in
 

ter
ms

 of
 re
fer
en
ce
 of
 in
ter
na
l a
ud
it  

 Re
sp
on
sib
ility

 fo
r ri
sk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

fun
cti
on
, in

clu
din

g p
art
ne
rsh

ip 
ris
k 

ma
na
ge
me

nt,
 is
 se

t a
t a
pp
rop

ria
te 
se
nio

r 
lev
el 
 

 Co
mm

itte
e r
ep
ort
s s
ett
ing

 ou
t o
pti
on
s f
or 

ch
an
ge
 in
clu
de
 an

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 ris
k 

as
se
ss
me

nt,
 in
clu
din

g t
he
 ‘n
o c

ha
ng
e’ 

op
tio
n 

 Th
e c

orp
ora

te 
bu
sin
es
s p

lan
 an

d f
ina
nc
ial
 

pla
n a

ss
es
s r
isk
s a

s a
pp
rop

ria
te 
an
d i
n 

pa
rtic

ula
r ta

ke
 ac

co
un
t o
f n
ew
 an

d 
em

erg
ing
 ris

ks
 fa
cin
g t
he
 au

tho
rity

 
 

Ris
k M

an
ag
er 
me

ets
 w
ith
 D
ire
cto

rat
e R

isk
 

Ch
am

pio
ns
 ea

ch
 qu

art
er 
to 
up
da
te 
the

 
Dir
ec
tor
ate

 ris
k r
eg
ist
ers

. R
isk
 O
wn
ers

 ha
ve
 be

en
 

ide
nti
fie
d f
or 
ea
ch
 ris

k i
n t
he
 D
ire
cto

rat
e r
isk
 

reg
ist
ers

 - D
ire
cto

rat
e R

isk
 R
eg
ist
ers

 Fe
b 2

01
0 

 Gu
ida

nc
e N

ote
s o

n t
he
 R
ole

 an
d P

ow
ers

 of
 

Po
rtfo

lio
 H
old

ers
 Au

g 2
00
9 

 Ris
k M

an
ag
em

en
t s
erv

ice
 m
an
ag
er 
job

 
de
sc
rip
tio
n. 

 
 Ca
bin

et 
rep

ort
 – 
bu
dg
et 
an
d m

ed
ium

 te
rm
 

fin
an
cia
l s
tra
teg

y –
 Fe

b 2
00
8. 

 Ca
bin

et/
Co
mm

itte
e r
ep
ort
 te
mp

lat
e/g

uid
e w

ith
 

co
mp

uls
ory

 ris
k o

pti
on
, a
nd
 lis
t o
f ri
sk
 in
for
ma

tio
n 

pro
vid
ed
 in
 ca

bin
et/
co
mm

itte
e r
ep
ort
s f
or 
Au
g 

20
09
 - M

arc
h 2

01
0. 

 Co
rpo

rat
e P

lan
 20

09
-12

  
 Dir
ec
tor
ate

 Se
rvi
ce
 Pl
an
s i
de
nti
fy 
ris
ks
 - 

Co
rpo

rat
e F

ina
nc
e S

erv
ice
 Pl
an
 20

09
/10

  
 Ro
les
 an

d r
es
po
ns
ibi
litie

s f
or 
all
 in
clu
de
d i
n r
isk
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
str
ate

gy
/po

licy
 (s
ee
 2.
1) 

 Ris
k M

an
ag
em

en
t M

an
ua
l (s

ee
 2.
1).
 

 GA
RM

 C
om

mi
tte
e t
erm

s o
f re

fer
en
ce
.  

 CS
B r
ole

 - C
SB

 gu
ida

nc
e N

ote
s A

ug
 20

09
. 

 CR
SG

 te
rm
s o

f re
fer
en
ce
. 

 IA 
Te
rm
s o

f R
efe

ren
ce
 ou

tlin
es
 lin
k b

etw
ee
n I
A  

& R
isk
 G
ov
ern

an
ce
 Su

mm
ary

 - i
de
nti
fyi
ng
 ris

k 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
res

po
ns
ibi
litie

s. 

79



 

Pa
ge

 26
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 by

: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

 Se
rvi
ce
 Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Pla

nn
ing

 G
uid

an
ce
 fo
r 

Co
rpo

rat
e D

ire
cto

rat
es
 fo
r th

e 2
00
9/1

0 f
ina

nc
ial
 

ye
ar 
gu
ida

nc
e. 

2.3
 

Th
e a

uth
ori
ty 
ha
s 

de
ve
lop

ed
 a 
co
rpo

rat
e 

ap
pro

ac
h t
o t
he
 

ide
nti
fic
ati
on
 an

d 
ev
alu

ati
on
 of
 ris

k w
hic
h i
s 

un
de
rst
oo
d b

y a
ll s
taf
f 

Sy
ste

ma
tic
 pr
oc
ed
ure

s f
or 
ris
k i
de
nti
fic
ati
on
 

an
d e

va
lua

tio
n h

av
e b

ee
n a

gre
ed
 an

d a
re 

co
ns
ist
en
tly
 ap

pli
ed
 ac

ros
s a

ll b
us
ine

ss
 

un
its
 an

d p
art
ne
rsh

ips
 

 Ex
am

ple
s o

f d
iss
em

ina
tio
n e

.g.
 in
du
cti
on
, 

bri
efi
ng
s, 
aw
are

ne
ss
 se

ss
ion
s, 
str
ate

gic
 

dia
gn
os
tic
 qu

es
tio
nn
air
e r
es
ult
s 

Ris
k M

an
ag
em

en
t S
tra
teg

y &
 Po

licy
 (s
ee
 2.
2) 

 Ris
k M

an
ag
em

en
t M

an
ua
l (s

ee
 2.
2) 

 Ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t tr
ain
ing

 (s
ee
 2.
6) 

 

DW
/N
B 

NB
 

10
.06

.11
 

 

2.4
 

Th
e a

uth
ori
ty 
ha
s w

ell
 

de
fin
ed
 pr
oc
ed
ure

s f
or 

rec
ord

ing
 an

d r
ep
ort
ing

 
ris
k 

Ev
ide

nc
ed
 by

 re
vie
w 
of 
ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t 

str
ate

gy
 an

d p
oli
cy
 

 Ke
y r
isk
 in
dic
ato

rs 
ha
ve
 be

en
 de

ter
mi
ne
d 

an
d t
he
re 
is 
ev
ide

nc
e o

f m
on
ito
rin
g a

ga
ins
t 

the
se
 ris

ks
 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f re
gu
lar
 an

d f
req

ue
nt 
rep

ort
ing

 
of 
ris
k t
o p

oli
tic
al 
an
d m

an
ag
em

en
t b
oa
rd 

lev
el 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f ri
sk
 ba

se
d a

ud
itin
g b

ein
g 

ca
rrie

d o
ut 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f ri
sk
s n

ot 
pro

pe
rly
 ad

dre
ss
ed
 

ide
nti
fie
d i
n i
nte

rna
l a
ud
it r
ep
ort
s e

tc 
be
ing

 
fed

 in
to 
the

 ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t p
roc

es
s 

 En
vir
on
me

nta
l s
ca
nn
ing

 re
po
rts
 ar
e f
ed
 

int
o t
he
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t p
roc

es
s s
o a

s t
o 

ide
nti
fy 
ne
w 
an
d e

me
rgi
ng
 ris

ks
 

La
st 
ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t re

vie
w c

on
du
cte

d 2
00
9. 
 

 No
 KR

Is 
us
ed
. U
se
 of
 KR

I c
on
sid
ere

d a
nd
 

de
cid
ed
 no

t to
 be

 us
ed
 by

 H
arr
ow
 C
ou
nc
il. 

 Ke
y r
isk
s a

re 
no
t tr
ac
ke
d t
hro

ug
h K

RI
s. 
Ex
ce
pti
on
 

rep
ort
ing

 of
 ‘re

d’ 
ris
ks
, in
 lin
e w

ith
 th
e a

gre
e r
isk
 

ap
pe
tite

 an
d d

ele
ga
ted

 ris
k a

pp
eti
te,
 ar
e r
ep
ort
ed
 

to 
Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Bo
ard

s a
nd
 C
SB

 in
 lin
e w

ith
 th
e 

Ris
k M

an
ag
em

en
t p
oli
cy
 an

d g
uid

an
ce
.  

 Ex
ce
pti
on
 ris

k r
ep
ort
ing

 to
 C
SB

 an
d 

Im
pro

ve
me

nts
 Bo

ard
s e

ac
h q

ua
rte
r.  

 Re
vis
ed
 ris

k r
eg
ist
er 
for
ma

t re
qu
ire
s t
his
 an

d l
as
t 

qu
art
er’
s r
isk
 sc
ore

 to
 be

 pr
ov
ide

d. 
 

 Ch
an
ge
s i
n r
isk
s a

nd
 qu

art
erl
y r
isk
 sc
ore

s f
or 
the

 
Str
ate

gic
 R
isk
 R
eg
ist
er 
(si
nc
e D

ec
 20

01
 - c

rea
tio
n 

da
te)
 an

d t
he
 C
orp

ora
te 
Op

era
tio
na
l R
isk
 

Re
gis
ter
 (N

ov
 20

08
 - c

rea
tio
n d

ate
) a
re 
tra
ck
ed
 in
 

an
 ex

ce
l w
ork

sh
ee
t b
y t
he
 R
isk
 M
an
ag
er.
 

 Th
e s

erv
ice
 pl
an
nin

g p
roc

es
s r
eq
uir
es
 

ide
nti
fic
ati
on
  o
f th

e c
on
tex

t w
ith
in 
wh
ich
 a 

Dir
ec
tor
ate

 w
ork

s, 
wh
ich
 in
 tu
rn 
sh
ou
ld 
fac

ilita
te 

ho
riz
on
 sc
an
nin

g. 
Dis

cu
ss
ion

s a
t q
ua
rte
rly
 C
SB

 

DW
/N
B 

NB
 

10
.06

.11
 

 

80



 

Pa
ge

 27
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 by

: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
ee
tin
g a

lso
 pr
ov
ide
 op

po
rtu
nit
y f
or 

ho
riz
on
 sc
an
nin

g. 
 Th
e R

isk
 M
an
ag
er 
me

ets
 w
ith
 th
e R

isk
 C
ha
mp

ion
 

an
d C

orp
ora

te 
Dir
ec
tor
s (
Ris

k O
wn
ers

) to
 up

da
te 

Dir
ec
tor
ate

 ris
k r
eg
ist
ers

. T
his
 pr
ov
ide

s 
op
po
rtu
nit
y f
or 
dis
cu
ss
ion
 of
 an

d t
he
 id
en
tifi
ca
tio
n 

of 
ne
w a

nd
 em

erg
ing
 is
su
es
 th
rou

gh
 th
e 

ch
all
en
ge
 an

d s
cru

tin
y f
un
cti
on
 pr
ov
ide

d b
y t
he
 

Ris
k M

an
ag
er 
in 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 th
is 
fun

cti
on
. 

  Ev
ide

nc
e o

f re
vie
w 
of 
ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t p
olic

y –
 

ca
bin

et 
rep

ort
. 

 Re
po
rtin

g t
o C

SB
 an

d I
mp

rov
em

en
t B
oa
rds

 (s
ee
 

2.2
) 

 Co
rpo

rat
e P

rop
ert
y  
an
d I
nfr
as
tru
ctu

re 
(K
ier
/En

ter
pri
se
Mo

uc
he
lle
) B
oa
rd 
rep

ort
s a

nd
 

mi
nu
tes

 
 Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t (s

ee
 2.
11
) 

 GA
RM

 R
ep
ort
 an

d M
inu
tes

 8 
Se
pte

mb
er 
20
09
 - 

RA
F u

pd
ate

 
 Ris

k b
as
ed
 au

dit
ing

 un
de
rta
ke
n –

 se
e I
A T

oR
 R
ef 

(2.
2) 
+ e

xa
mp

le 
au
dit
 re
po
rts
  

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f ri
sk
s n

ot 
pro

pe
rly
 ad

dre
ss
ed
 

ide
nti
fie
d i
n i
nte

rna
l a
ud
it r
ep
ort
s e

tc 
be
ing

 fe
d 

int
o t
he
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t p
roc

es
s. 

 
 

2.5
 

Th
e a

uth
ori
ty 
ha
s w

ell
-

es
tab

lish
ed
 an

d c
lea

r 
arr
an
ge
me

nts
 fo
r 

fin
an
cin
g r
isk
 

Ev
ide

nc
e t
ha
t th

e a
uth

ori
ty’
s p

oli
cy
 fo
r ri
sk
 

fin
an
cin
g i
s r
eg
ula

rly
 re
vie
we
d i
n t
he
 lig
ht 

of 
co
sts
 an

d a
lte
rna

tiv
e r
isk
 m
itig
ati
on
 

str
ate

gie
s 

 

Int
ern

al 
pro

ce
du
res

 de
tai
lin
g c

lai
m 
ha
nd
lin
g. 
E.g

. 
– l
iab

ility
 cl
aim

s p
roc

ed
ure

s, 
pro

pe
rty
 cl
aim

s 
pro

ce
du
res

, h
igh

wa
ys 
cla
im
s p

roc
ed
ure

s e
tc.
 

 Ind
ep
en
de
nt 
an
nu
al 
ac
tua

ria
l a
dv
ice
, in

 lin
e w

ith
 

DW
(K
V)
/S

D 
DW

/C
C 

13
/6/
11
 

 

81



 

Pa
ge

 28
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 by

: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

All
 le
ga
l re

qu
ire
me

nts
 fo
r in

su
ran

ce
 ar
e 

me
t 

 Ev
ide

nc
e t
ha
t s
elf
-in
su
ran

ce
 pr
ov
isio

ns
 ar
e 

su
bje

ct 
to 
an
nu
al 
ind

ep
en
de
nt 
ac
tua

ria
l 

va
lua
tio
n a

nd
 th
at 
co
ntr
ibu

tio
ns
 to
 th
e f
un
d 

are
 ad

jus
ted

 ac
co
rdi
ng
ly 

 Ins
ura

nc
e c

lai
ms

 be
ing

 m
an
ag
ed
 in
 

ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 ‘W

oo
lf’ 
pri
nc
ipl
es
 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f m
on
ito
rin
g t
he
 in
cid
en
ce
 of
 

su
cc
es
sfu

l a
nd
 un

su
cc
es
sfu

l c
lai
ms

 an
d o

f 
fee

din
g t
he
 re
su
lts
 ba

ck
 in
to 
the

 po
licy

 fo
r 

ris
k f
ina
nc
ing

 ac
co
rdi
ng
ly 

 

pro
fes

sio
na
l g
uid

eli
ne
s t
ha
t c
om

plie
s w

ith
 Bo

ard
 

for
 Ac

tua
ria
l S
tan

da
rds

.  
 Wo

olf
 pr
inc
ipl
es
 ad

he
red

 to
 – 
se
e a

bo
ve
 

pro
ce
du
re 
do
cu
me

nts
.  

 Po
licy

 do
cu
me

nta
tio
n, 
Ju
dic
ial 
rev

iew
 

do
cu
me

nta
tio
n. 
Su
cc
es
sfu

l L
AM

L a
pp
ea
l. 

 Ac
tua

ria
l E
va
lua
tio
ns
 co

mm
iss
ion
ed
 fo
r 2
00
9-1

0. 
Co
ntr
ibu

tio
ns
 ad

jus
ted

 in
 ac

co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 

ac
tua

ria
l a
dv
ice
. 

  Ne
w 
ve
rsi
on
 of
 cl
aim

s d
ata

ba
se
 in
tro
du
ce
d 

20
08
/09

 to
 im

pro
ve
 ris

k f
ina
nc
ing

 in
for
ma

tio
n. 

 LE
AN

 re
vie
w i
mp

rov
ed
 cl
aim

s p
roc

es
se
s t
o 

en
su
re 
ris
k f
ina
nc
ing
 is
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 an
d p

rud
en
t.  

2.6
 

Th
e a

uth
ori
ty 
ha
s 

de
ve
lop

ed
 a 
pro

gra
mm

e 
of 
ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t 

tra
ini
ng
 fo
r re

lev
an
t s
taf
f 

Tra
inin

g p
rog

ram
me

 fo
r ri
sk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t  

 Tra
inin

g n
ee
ds
 an

aly
sis
 (b
oth

 sp
ec
ial
ist
 

sta
ff d

ev
elo

pm
en
t a
nd
 ge

ne
ral
 aw

are
ne
ss
) 

 Re
gu
lar
 ne

ws
let
ter
 or
 ot
he
r m

ea
ns
 of
 

co
mm

un
ica
tin
g r
isk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t is
su
es
 to
 

sta
ff  

 Ind
uc
tio
n p

rog
ram

me
 in
clu
de
s r
isk
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
 

Lis
t o
f ri
sk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t tr
ain
ing

 av
ail
ab
le 

20
09
/10

.   
 

 Me
mb

ers
 In
du
cti
on
 Br
ief
ing

 an
d p

res
en
tat
ion

 
 Ma

na
ge
rs 
Ind

uc
tio
n p

res
en
tat
ion

 
 E-
lea

rni
ng
 - r
isk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t m

od
ule
 

 Sta
ff I
nd
uc
tio
n -
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t le
afl
et 

 Th
e M

od
ern

 C
ou
nc
illo
r - 
me

mb
er 
de
ve
lop
me

nt 
ch
art
er 
ac
tio
n p

lan
, d
ev
elo

pm
en
t p
rog

ram
me

, a
nd
 

bo
ok
let
. 

 CR
SG

 te
rm
s o

f re
fer
en
ce
 - r
es
po
ns
ibl
e f
or 

pro
vid
ing
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t a
wa
ren

es
s t
rai
nin

g f
or 

all
 re
lev
an
t C
ou
nc
il s
taf
f, l
oo
kin
g a

t e
xis
tin
g 

tra
ini
ng
 m
eth

od
s a

nd
 de

ve
lop

ing
 ne

w 
op
po
rtu
nit
ies
 fo
r tr
ain
ing

 (s
ee
 2.
2) 

DW
/N
B 

NB
 

10
.06

.11
 

 

82



 

Pa
ge

 29
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 by

: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

 Int
ran

et 
sit
e –

 gu
ida

nc
e o

n a
ll r
isk
 pr
oc
es
se
s. 
On

 
HU

B a
s a

bo
ve
. 

2.7
 

Th
e c

orp
ora

te 
ris
k 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
bo
ard

  (o
r 

eq
uiv
ale

nt)
 ad

ds
 va

lue
 to
 

the
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t 

pro
ce
ss
 by
:  

Ad
vis
ing

 an
d s

up
po
rtin

g 
co
rpo

rat
e m

an
ag
em

en
t 

tea
m 
on
 ris

k s
tra
teg

ies
  

 Ide
nti
fyi
ng
 ar
ea
s o

f 
ov
erl
ap
pin

g r
isk
 

 Dr
ivin

g n
ew
 ris

k 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
init
iat
ive
s 

 Co
mm

un
ica
tin
g r
isk
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d s

ha
rin
g 

go
od
 pr
ac
tic
e 

 Pr
ov
idi
ng
 an

d r
ev
iew

ing
 

ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t tr
ain

ing
 

 Re
gu
lar
ly 
rev

iew
ing
  

the
 ris

k r
eg
ist
er(
s) 

 Co
ord

ina
tin
g t
he
 re
su
lts
 

for
 ris
k r
ep
ort
ing

 

Co
rpo

rat
e r
isk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t b
oa
rd 
or 

eq
uiv
ale

nt 
ter
ms

 of
 re
fer
en
ce
  

 Mi
nu
tes

 of
 co

rpo
rat
e r
isk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

bo
ard

  
 Re
po
rts
 to
 co

rpo
rat
e m

an
ag
em

en
t te

am
 

GA
RM

 te
rm
s o
f re

fer
en
ce
 - r
isk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

res
po
ns
ibi
litie

s (
se
e 2

.2)
 

 GA
RM

 te
rm
s o
f re

fer
en
ce
 (s
ee
 2.
2.)
 

 CS
B r
ole

 - C
SB

 gu
ida

nc
e N

ote
s A

ug
 20

09
 (s
ee
 

2.2
). 

 CR
SG

 te
rm
s o

f re
fer
en
ce
 - a

im
s a

nd
 ob

jec
tiv
es
 

(se
e 2

.2)
. 

 CS
B r
ep
ort
s (
se
e 2

.1)
 

 Me
mb

er 
De
ve
lop

me
nt 
Pa
ne
l te

rm
s o

f re
fer
en
ce
. 

 CS
B r
ev
iew

s S
tra
teg

ic 
Ris

k R
eg
ist
er 
qu
art
erl
y 

(2.
2) 

 CR
SG

 ag
en
da
 an

d m
inu
tes

 of
 m
ee
tin
g F

eb
 20

10
 

- u
se
d t
o i
nfo

rm
 D
ire
cto

rat
e r
isk
 ch

am
pio
ns
 of
 

be
st 
pra

cti
ce
, a
nd
 sh

are
 in
for
ma

tio
n a

nd
 le
ss
on
s 

lea
rnt
. 

 Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Bo
ard

s r
ev
iew

 D
ire
cto

rat
e r
isk
 

reg
ist
ers

 qu
art
erl
y. 
(2.
2) 

 Ne
w r
isk
 in
itia
tiv
es
 - C

RS
G 
mi
nu
tes

 Fe
b 2

01
0 

 Ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t C
IP 
Re
po
rtin

g a
ga
ins
t 2
00
9/1

0 
tar
ge
ts 
- J
an
ua
ry 
20
10
 up

da
te 

 Ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t tr
ain
ing

 (s
ee
 2.
6) 

 Co
mm

un
ica
tin
g r
isk
 (s
ee
 2.
1 a

nd
 2.
6) 

 Ris
k r
ep
ort
ing
 to
 C
SB

 an
d I
mp

rov
em

en
t B
oa
rds

 

DW
/N
B 

NB
 

10
.06

.11
 

 

83



 

Pa
ge

 30
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 by

: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

(se
e 2

.2)
 

 
2.8

 
A c

orp
ora

te 
ris
k o

ffic
er 

ha
s b

ee
n a

pp
oin

ted
 w
ith
 

the
 ne

ce
ss
ary

 sk
ills
 to
 

an
aly
se
 is
su
es
 an

d o
ffe
r 

op
tio
ns
 an

d a
dv
ice
 an

d: 
 Su

pp
ort
 de

cis
ion

 m
ak
ing
 

an
d p

oli
cy
 fo
rm
ula
tio
n 

 Pr
ov
ide

s s
up
po
rt i
n t
he
 

ris
k i
de
nti
fic
ati
on
 an

d 
an
aly
sis
 pr
oc
es
s 

 Pr
ov
ide

s s
up
po
rt i
n 

pri
ori
tis
ing

 ris
k m

itig
ati
on
 

ac
tio
n 

 Pr
ov
ide

s a
dv
ice
 an

d 
su
pp
ort
 in
 de

ter
mi
nin

g 
ris
k t
rea

tm
en
ts 

 Ins
pir
es
 co

nfi
de
nc
e i
n 

ma
na
ge
rs 

 

Jo
b d

es
cri
pti
on
 of
 co

rpo
rat
e r
isk
 of
fic
er 

 Ke
y t
as
k m

atr
ix 
of 
co
rpo

rat
e r
isk
 of
fic
er 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f th
e c

orp
ora

te 
ris
k o

ffic
er 

rep
ort
ing

 to
 co

rpo
rat
e m

an
ag
em

en
t te

am
 

on
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t is
su
es
 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f tr
ain

ing
 on

 cu
rre
nt 
ris
k 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
top

ics
 / m

em
be
rsh

ip 
of 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 or
ga
nis
ati
on
s (
e.g

. A
LA
RM

) 
 Us
e o

f c
on
su
lta
nc
y a
s a

pp
rop

ria
te 

Ris
k M

an
ag
er 
job

 de
sc
rip
tio
n (
se
e 2

.2)
  

 Au
dit
 an

d R
isk
 G
rou

p S
erv

ice
 pl
an
 re
fer
s t
o 

pro
jec
ts/
tas

ks
 th
e R

MO
 an

d r
isk
 te
am

 ar
e w

ork
ing
 

tow
ard

s. 
 

 CS
B r
ep
ort
s (
se
e 2

.2)
 

 Ris
k M

an
ag
er'
s q

ua
rte
rly
 m
ee
tin
gs
 w
ith
 C
orp

ora
te 

Dir
ec
tor
s a

nd
 R
isk
 C
ha
mp

ion
s t
o p

rov
ide

 sc
rut
iny
 

an
d c

ha
lle
ng
e i
n t
he
 up

da
te 
of 
the

 st
rat
eg
ic,
 

co
rpo

rat
e o

pe
rat
ion

al 
an
d d

ire
cto

rat
e r
isk
 

reg
ist
ers

 (s
ee
 2.
2.)
 

 Me
mb

ers
hip
 of
 AL

AR
M 
– M

em
be
rsh

ip 
nu
mb

er 
82
29
 

 Ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
s (
se
e 2

.11
) 

 Ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t tr
ain
ing

 (s
ee
 2.
6) 

DW
/N
B 

NB
 

10
.06

.11
 

 

2.9
 

Ma
na
ge
rs 
are

 
ac
co
un
tab

le 
for
 m
an
ag
ing

 
the

ir r
isk
s 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f m
an
ag
er 
inv
olv
em

en
t in
 ris

k 
ide

nti
fic
ati
on
 an

d a
na
lys
is 
pro

ce
ss
 

 Ris
k o

wn
ers

 de
tai
led

 in
 co

rpo
rat
e 

/de
pa
rtm

en
tal
 ris

k r
eg
ist
er(
s) 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f (a
t le

as
t) a

nn
ua
l re

vie
w o

f ri
sk
 

at 
se
rvi
ce
/op

era
tio
na
l le
ve
ls 
an
d o

f 
pa
rtn
ers

hip
 ris

ks
 

 An
aly
sis
 of
 co

mp
let
ed
 co

ntr
ol 
an
d r
isk
 se

lf-
as
se
ss
me

nt 
qu
es
tio
nn
air
es
 

 

Ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t ro

les
 an

d r
es
po
ns
ibi
litie

s f
or 
all
 

ma
na
ge
rs 
are

 in
clu
de
d i
n t
he
 R
isk
 M
an
ag
em

en
t 

Po
licy

. S
ee
 2.
1. 

 Se
nio

r m
an
ag
em

en
t re

vie
w 
the

ir s
tra
teg

ic 
an
d 

co
rpo

rat
e o

pe
rat
ion

al 
ris
ks
 on

 a 
qu
art
erl
y b
as
is 

(se
e 2

.2)
 

 Th
e s

tra
teg

ic,
 co

rpo
rat
e o

pe
rat
ion

al 
an
d 

dir
ec
tor
ate

 ris
k r
eg
ist
er(
s) 
inc
lud

e r
isk
 ow

ne
r a
nd
 

co
ntr
ol 
ow
ne
rs 
(se

e 2
.2)
 

 Ris
k f
or 
ma

jor
 co
mm

erc
ial 
pa
rtn
ers

hip
s a

re 

DW
NB

 
NB

 
10
.06

.11
 

 

84



 

Pa
ge

 31
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 by

: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

reg
ula

rly
 re
vie
we
d (
se
e 2

.11
) 

 Se
rvi
ce
 Pl
an
s (
at 
the

 D
ire
cto

rat
e l
ev
el)
 in
clu
de
 

ris
k a

ss
es
sm

en
ts,
 ho

we
ve
r th

ere
 is
 no

 m
an
da
tor
y 

req
uir
em

en
t to

 fo
r s
erv

ice
 / d

eli
ve
ry 
pla

ns
 be

low
 

the
 di
rec

tor
ate

 le
ve
l - 
co
py
 of
 Se

rvi
ce
 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pla

n G
uid

e. 
 Qu

art
erl
y e
xc
ep
tio
n r
ep
ort
ing

 of
 st
rat
eg
ic 
an
d 

co
rpo

rat
e o

pe
rat
ion

al 
ris
ks
 to
 C
SB

 Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

an
d o

f D
ire
cto

rat
e r
isk
s t
o t
he
 re
lev
an
t 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Bo
ard

s -
 co

pie
s o

f C
SB

 re
po
rt f
or 

me
eti
ng
 17

 Fe
bru

ary
 20

10
 an

d c
op
y o
f ri
sk
 

reg
ist
ers

 pr
ov
ide

d t
o I
mp

rov
em

en
t B
oa
rd 

me
eti
ng
s h

eld
 1-
5 F

eb
rua

ry 
20
10
 (s
ee
 2.
2).
 

 All
 C
ab
ine

t re
po
rts
 re
qu
ire
 au

tho
rs 
to 
ide

nti
fy 

as
so
cia
ted

 ris
ks
, m

ak
ing
 th
em

 ac
co
un
tab

le 
- li
st 

of 
ris
k i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 pr
ov
ide

d i
n r
ep
ort
s (
se
e 2

.2)
 

 Ma
na
ge
rs 
Ch
ec
klis

t - 
ide
nti
fyi
ng
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t 

res
po
ns
ibi
litie

s (
se
e 2

.2)
. 

 Us
e o

f C
RS

A q
ue
sti
on
na
ire
s c
on
sid
ere

d b
y 

CR
SG

 O
ct 
20
10
 an

d d
ee
me

d u
nn
ec
es
sa
ry 
to 

im
pro

ve
 ac

co
un
tab

ility
. 

2.1
0 

Ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t is
 

em
be
dd
ed
 th
rou

gh
ou
t th

e 
org

an
isa
tio
n  

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f a
 ge

ne
ral
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t 

cu
ltu
re 
at 
all
 le
ve
ls 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f m
an
ag
ers

 in
vo
lve
me

nt 
in 
ris
k 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
as
pe
cts
 of
 bu

sin
es
s p

lan
nin

g 
 Re
su
lts
 of
 st
rat
eg
ic 
dia

gn
os
tic
 su

rve
y t
o 

as
ce
rta
in 
the

 ex
ten

t to
 w
hic
h r
isk
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
is 
un
de
rst
oo
d b

y e
ac
h 

ca
teg

ory
 of
 of
fic
er 
(se

nio
r m

an
ag
em

en
t, 

op
era

tio
na
l m

an
ag
ers

 et
c) 
an
d m

em
be
rs 

Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t (s

ee
 2.
11
) 

 Ma
na
ge
r in

vo
lve
me

nt 
(se

e 2
.9)
 

 Ris
k r
eg
ist
ers

 as
 pa

rt o
f s
erv

ice
 pl
an
nin

g a
nd
 

Dir
ec
tor
ate

 Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pla

ns
 (s
ee
 2.
2) 

 Se
rvi
ce
 pl
an
nin

g g
uid

an
ce
 (s
ee
 2.
9) 

 All
 C
ab
ine

t re
po
rts
 re
qu
ire
 au

tho
rs 
to 
 

ide
nti
fy 
as
so
cia
ted

 ris
ks
 - l
ist
 of
 ris
k i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 

pro
vid
ed
 in
 re
po
rts
 (s
ee
 2.
2).
 

 

DW
/N
B 

NB
 

10
.06

.11
 

 

85



 

Pa
ge

 32
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 by

: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

Co
rpo

rat
e R

isk
 St
ee
rin
g G

rou
p a

ss
ist
s w

ith
 

em
be
dd
ing

 pr
oc
es
s a

s i
t c
on
sis
ts 
on
 

rep
res

en
tat
ive
s f
rom

 ac
ros

s t
he
 C
ou
nc
il (
se
e 2

.7)
. 

 Re
gu
lar
 ris

k r
ep
ort
ing

 to
 Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Bo
ard

s a
nd
 

CS
B P

erf
orm

an
ce
 (s
ee
 2.
2) 

 Qu
art
erl
y m

ee
tin
g o

f R
isk
 M
an
ag
er 
an
d C

orp
ora

te 
Dir
ec
tor
s a

nd
 R
isk
 C
ha
mp

ion
s u

tilis
ed
 to
 in
cre

as
e 

Dir
ec
tor
 an

d C
ha
mp

ion
's l
ev
el 
of 
aw
are

ne
ss
 an

d 
un
de
rst
an
din

g o
f ri
sk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t (s

ee
 2.
2) 

 CR
SG

 m
ee
tin
gs
 - s

tan
din

g a
ge
nd
a i
tem

 'S
ha
rin
g 

inf
orm

ati
on
 an

d l
es
so
ns
 le
arn

t (s
ee
 2.
7).
 

 
2.1

1 
Ris

ks
 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

wo
rki
ng
 ar
e f
ull
y 

co
ns
ide
red

  
 
 

 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f ri
sk
 as

se
ss
me

nts
 be

ing
 

un
de
rta
ke
n b

efo
re 
the

 co
mm

en
ce
me

nt 
of 

ma
jor
 pr
oje

cts
, p
ref
era

bly
 in
 th
e r
ep
ort
 on

 
wh
ich
 th
e d

ec
isio

n t
o p

roc
ee
d i
s b

as
ed
 

 Ev
ide

nc
e t
ha
t ri
sk
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
are

 
reg

ula
rly
 re
vie
we
d d

uri
ng
 th
e p

roj
ec
t p
eri
od
 

 Ev
ide

nc
e t
ha
t p
ote

nti
al 
pa
rtn
ers

 ar
e 

req
uir
ed
 to
 pr
od
uc
e a

nd
 su

bm
it r
isk
 

as
se
ss
me

nts
 

 Ev
ide

nc
e t
ha
t p
art
ne
rsh

ip 
arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

are
 re
vie
we
d i
n t
erm

s o
f ri
sk
 be

for
e t
he
y 

are
 en

ter
ed
 in
to 
an
d, 
su
bs
eq
ue
ntl
y, 
tha

t th
e 

ris
ks
 ar
e r
ev
iew

ed
 

 Ev
ide

nc
e t
ha
t th

ere
 ar
e e

ffe
cti
ve
 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 in
 pl
ac
e f
or 
ris
k s
ha
rin
g (
e.g

. 
in 
the

 pa
rtn
eri
ng
 co

ntr
ac
t te

rm
s a

nd
 

co
nd
itio
ns
 or
 ag

ree
me

nt)
 

 Ev
ide

nc
e t
ha
t P
art
ne
rsh

ip 
ris
k r
eg
ist
ers

 ar
e 

in 
pla

ce
 

Mu
ltip
le 
do
cu
me

nta
tio
n c

on
ce
rni
ng
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t, s

uc
h a

s r
isk
 re
gis
ter
s, 
ag
en
da
s 

an
d m

inu
tes

 of
 m
ee
tin
gs
 of
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 
tea

ms
/bo

ard
s f
or 
co
rpo

rat
e c

on
tra
ct 
ma

na
ge
me

nt,
 

Ap
oll
o m

ob
ilis
ati
on
, C
ap
ita
 BT

P, 
HS

P, 
Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
& P

rop
ert
y (
Kie

r a
nd
 En

ter
pri
se
 

Mo
uc
he
l), 
inc
lud

ing
 th
e S

tra
teg

ic 
Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 

Bo
ard

. 
 Lo
ca
l A
rea

 Ag
ree

me
nt 
20
08
 an

d L
AA

 Le
afl
et.
 

 Ris
k r
eg
ist
ers

 fo
r H

SP
 M
an
ag
em

en
t G

rou
ps
 ar
e 

cu
rre
ntl
y b
ein

g d
ev
elo

pe
d, 
wit
h t
he
 ai
m 
to 
pro

vid
e 

a c
op
y o
f c
om

ple
ted

 ris
k r
eg
ist
ers

 to
 H
CE

 on
 24

 
Ma

y 2
01
0. 
Th
e j
oin

t s
tra
teg

ic 
pa
rtn
ers

hip
 ris

k 
reg

ist
ers

 w
ill t
he
n b

e d
ev
elo

pe
d w

ith
 th
e 

Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 Bo

ard
 an

d H
CE

 (b
y e
nd
 Au

gu
st 
20
10
) 

an
d b

e i
nfo

rm
ed
 by
 th
e H

SP
 M
an
ag
em

en
t G

rou
p 

ris
k r
eg
ist
ers

 
 HS

P M
an
ag
em

en
t G

rou
ps
 (x
5) 
ter
ms

 of
 

ref
ere

nc
es
, a
ge
nd
as
 an

d m
inu
tes

 of
 m
ee
tin
gs
, 

dra
ft r
isk
 re
gis
ter
s. 

 

DW
/N
B 

NB
 

10
.06

.11
 

 

86



 

Pa
ge

 33
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 by

: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

 Ev
ide

nc
e t
ha
t R
isk
 ow

ne
rs 
as
sig
ne
d i
n 

rel
ati
on
 to
 ke

y p
art
ne
rsh

ips
 

HS
P G

ov
ern

an
ce
 H
an
db
oo
k, 
Ind

uc
tio
n H

an
db
oo
k 

an
d P

rot
oc
ols
. 

 HS
P B

oa
rd 
an
d E

xe
cu
tiv
e M

em
be
rsh

ip 
Lis
t 

Au
gu
st 
20
08
 

 HC
E R

ep
ort
 Ju

ly 
20
09
 

 HS
P P

erf
orm

an
ce
 R
ep
ort
 Q
2 2

00
9 

 Pa
rtn
ers

 ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t ro

les
 an

d 
res

po
ns
ibi
litie

s a
re 
inc
lud

ed
 in
 th
e R

isk
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Po
licy

 (s
ee
 2.
1).
 

 'Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 R
isk
 M
an
ag
em

en
t fo

r th
e P

ub
lic 

Se
cto

r a
nd
 Pu

bli
c S

erv
ice
 O
rga

nis
ati
on
s -
 A 

Gu
ide

 an
d T

oo
lkit
 

 Ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t Im

plic
ati
on
s a

re 
req

uir
ed
 in
 al
l 

Ca
bin

et 
rep

ort
s (
se
e 2

.2)
. 

 Sta
nd
ard

 co
ntr
ac
ts 
co
mp

reh
en
siv
ely
 co

ve
r 

co
ntr
ac
tor
 an

d 3
rd 
pa
rty
 lia
bil
ity
 fo
r d
ea
th 
or 

pe
rso

na
l in
jur
y. 
Sta

nd
ard

 m
od
el 
se
rvi
ce
s 

co
ntr
ac
ts 
(us

ed
 fo
r c
on
tra
cts
 fo
r s
erv

ice
 pr
ov
isio

n 
an
d w

ork
s) 
an
d G

oo
ds
 co

ntr
ac
t. 

 Ma
jor
 co

ns
tru
cti
on
 an

d h
igh

wa
ys 
pa
rtn
eri
ng
 

co
ntr
ac
ts 
wit
h K

ier
, A
po
llo
 an

d E
nte

rpr
ise
 

Mo
uc
he
l c
om

pre
he
ns
ive
ly 
co
ve
r c
on
tra
cto

r a
nd
 

3rd
 pa

rty
 lia
bil
ity
, in

de
mn

ity
 an

d i
ns
ura

nc
e 

(av
ail
ab
le 
fro
m 
Pr
oc
ure

me
nt)
. S
tan

da
rd 

co
ns
ult
an
cy
, s
oc
ial
 ca

re 
an
d b

es
po
ke
 co

ntr
ac
ts 

co
ve
r 3
rd 
pa
rty
 lia
bil
ity
, in

de
mn

ity 
an
d i
ns
ura

nc
e. 

PQ
Qs
 an

d I
TT
s r
eq
uir
e a

dv
an
ce
 ev

ide
nc
e o

f 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 he
alt
h a

nd
 sa

fet
y a
nd
 qu

ali
ty 

as
su
ran

ce
 po

lici
es
, a
nd
 ad

eq
ua
te 
ins
ura

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 fro

m 
co
ntr
ac
tor
s b

efo
re 
we
 co

ntr
ac
t 

wit
h t
he
m.
 (E
ma

il f
rom

 St
ep
he
n D

orr
ian

 

87



 

Pa
ge

 34
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 by

: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

14
/4/
20
10
) 

 Se
e htt
p:/

/ha
rro

wh
ub

.ha
rro

w.
go

v.u
k/d

ow
nlo

ad
/70

/st
d_

ts_
an

d_
cs_

0-5
k  
for
 ot
he
r s
tan

da
rd 
ter
ms

 
an
d c

on
dit
ion

s a
nd
 PQ

Q/
ITT

 in
for
ma

tio
n. 

 

 
2.1

2 
Wh

ere
 em

plo
ye
d, 
ris
k 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
inf
orm

ati
on
 

sys
tem

s m
ee
t u
se
rs’
 

ne
ed
s 

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f ri
sk
 in
for
ma

tio
n b

ein
g u

pd
ate

d 
pro

mp
tly 

 Re
vie
w 
of 
ac
cu
rac

y a
nd
 us

efu
lne
ss
 of
 

ou
tpu

t fr
om

 in
for
ma

tio
n s

yst
em

s 
 Ev
ide

nc
e t
ha
t u
se
rs 
we
re/
are

 co
ns
ult
ed
 on

 
ini
tia
l im

ple
me

nta
tio
n a

nd
 fu
rth
er 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

 Int
erv

iew
s w

ith
 us

ers
 to
 as

se
ss
 su

ita
bil
ity
 of
 

the
 sy
ste

m 
for
 th
eir
 ne

ed
s 

 

N/
a –

 lo
ok
ing
 to
 po

ten
tia
lly 
rol
l o
ut 
a r
isk
 N
ot 

ap
pli
ca
ble

. H
arr
ow
 C
ou
nc
il d
oe
s n

ot 
us
e r
isk
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
so
ftw
are

.  
 Ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t re

po
rtin

g t
o C

orp
ora

te 
Dir
ec
tor
s (
CS

B)
 is
 cu

rre
ntl
y (
Su
mm

er 
20
11
) b
ein

g 
rev

iew
ed
 an

d w
ill b

e f
urt
he
r fi
ne
 tu
ne
d t
o m

ee
t th

e 
ne
ed
s o

f th
es
e s

pe
cif
ic 
us
ers

.  

DW
/N
B 

NB
 

10
.06

.11
 

 

88



 

Pa
ge

 35
 of

 87
 

 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 3

: Id
en

tify
 an

d e
va

lua
te 

ke
y c

on
tro

ls 
to 

ma
na

ge
 pr

inc
ipa

l ri
sk

s 
St

ep
 1:

 – 
Th

e a
uth

or
ity

 ha
s r

ob
us

t s
ys

tem
 of

 in
ter

na
l c

on
tro

l w
hic

h i
nc

lud
es

 sy
ste

ms
 an

d p
ro

ce
du

res
 to

 m
itig

ate
 pr

inc
ipa

l ri
sk

s 
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 

by
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

3.1
 

Th
ere

 ar
e w

ritt
en
 fin

an
cia
l 

reg
ula

tio
ns
 in
 pl
ac
e w

hic
h h

av
e 

be
en
 fo
rm
all
y a
pp
rov

ed
, re

gu
lar
ly 

rev
iew

ed
 an

d w
ide

ly 
co
mm

un
ica
ted

 to
 al
l re

lev
an
t 

sta
ff: Au
tho

rity
 ha

s a
do
pte

d C
IPF

A 
co
de
 on

 Tr
ea
su
ry 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
 

 Co
mp

lian
ce
 w
ith
 th
e 

Pr
ud
en
tia
l C
od
e 

Fin
an
cia
l re

gu
lat
ion

s a
nd
 

ins
tru
cti
on
s e

xis
t &
 ar
e 

rev
iew

ed
 & 
up
da
ted

 re
gu
lar
ly 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f fo
rm
al 
ap
pro

va
l 

 Ex
am

ple
s o

f d
iss
em

ina
tio
n 

e.g
. in

du
cti
on
, b
rie
fin
gs
, 

aw
are

ne
ss
 se

ss
ion
s, 

ac
ce
ss
ible

 in
 fin

an
ce
 m
an
ua
ls 

an
d/o

r o
n i
ntr
an
et 
sit
e 

 Re
po
rts
 to
 au

dit
 co

mm
itte
e o

r 
eq
uiv
ale

nt 
co
nfi
rm
ing
 

co
mp

lia
nc
e o

r id
en
tify
ing

 
ex
ten

t o
f n
on
-co

mp
lian

ce
 w
ith
 

reg
ula

tio
ns
 an

d i
ns
tru
cti
on
s 

 Re
po
rt a

pp
rov

ing
 an

nu
al 

tre
as
ury

 m
an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 

inv
es
tm
en
t s
tra
teg

y 
 Ou

ttu
rn 
rep

ort
 on

 tre
as
ury

 
mg

t. 
 Ex
ter
na
l a
ud
it a

ss
es
sm

en
t o
f 

co
mp

lia
nc
e w

ith
 Pr
ud
en
tia
l 

Co
de

 
 Re
su
lts
 of
 U
se
 of
 R
es
ou
rce

s 
(or
 PU

RE
) a
ss
es
sm

en
t o
f 

int
ern

al 
co
ntr
ol 
KL
OE

s 

Fin
an
cia
l re

gu
lat
ion

s c
urr
en
tly
 in
 pr
oc
es
s o

f b
ein

g 
up
da
ted

.  T
he
y w

ill b
e p

as
se
d t
o C

ab
ine

t in
 O
cto

be
r 

20
11
 an

d t
o C

ou
nc
il in

 N
ov
em

be
r 2
01
1 f
or 
ap
pro

va
l. 

   Co
ve
red

 in
 st
aff
 an

d M
an
ag
em

en
t In

du
cti
on
 

Pr
og
ram

me
s. 

     IA 
rep

ort
s o

n s
yst
em

s h
igh
lig
ht 
co
mp

lian
ce
/no

n-
co
mp

lia
nc
e w

he
re 
rel
ev
an
t a
nd
 ar
e s

en
t to

 G
AR

M.
 

    TM
 & 
Inv

es
tm
en
t S
tra
teg

y i
n p

lac
e &

 ap
pro

ve
d b

y 
Ca
bin

et 
10
/02

/11
.  E

vid
en
ce
d. 
 

  Ou
ttu
rn 
Re
po
rt p

rod
uc
ed
 on

 TM
 w
hic
h w

en
t to

 C
ab
ine

t 
22
/06

/11
.  E

vid
en
ce
d 

 As
 pa

rt o
f th

e I
nte

rim
 Au

dit
, E
xte

rna
l A
ud
it e
xa
mi
ne
d t
he
 

TM
 sy
ste

m 
no
tes

.  E
vid
en
ce
. 

  N/
A 

JA
/JH

 
  

JH
 9/
8/1

1 
 

89



 

Pa
ge

 36
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 

by
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

3.2
 

Th
ere

 ar
e w

ritt
en
 co

ntr
ac
t 

sta
nd
ing

 or
de
rs 
in 
pla

ce
 w
hic
h 

ha
ve
 be

en
 fo
rm
all
y a
pp
rov

ed
, 

reg
ula

rly
 re
vie
we
d a

nd
 w
ide

ly 
co
mm

un
ica
ted

 to
 al
l re

lev
an
t s
taf
f 

Sta
nd
ing

 or
de
rs 
ex
ist
, a
re 

rev
iew

ed
 an

d u
pd
ate

d 
reg

ula
rly
 to
 co

ve
r n
ew
 

pro
ce
du
res

 su
ch
 as

 pa
rtn
eri
ng
 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 an

d o
n-l
ine

 
ten

de
rin
g 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f fo
rm
al 
ap
pro

va
l 

  Ex
am

ple
s o

f c
om

mu
nic
ati
on
 

an
d d

iss
em

ina
tio
n e

.g.
 

ind
uc
tio
n, 
bri
efi
ng
s, 
aw
are

ne
ss
 

se
ss
ion
s, 
ac
ce
ss
ibl
e i
n f
ina

nc
e 

ma
nu
als
 an

d/o
r o
n i
ntr
an
et 
sit
e  

 

Co
ntr
ac
t P
roc

ed
ure

 R
ule

s c
urr
en
tly
 in
 pr
oc
es
s o

f b
ein

g 
up
da
ted

.  T
he
y w

ill b
e p

as
se
d t
o C

ab
ine

t in
 O
cto

be
r 2
01
1 

an
d t
o C

ou
nc
il in

 N
ov
em

be
r 2
01
1 f
or 
ap
pro

va
l. 

 Th
es
e w

ill c
ov
er 
pa
rtn
eri
ng
 an

d o
n-l
ine

 te
nd
eri
ng
. 

Ev
ide

nc
ed
. 

    All
 H
arr
ow
 m
idd
le 
an
d s

en
ior
 m
an
ag
ers

 ha
ve
 ha

d t
rai
nin

g 
on
 Fi
na
nc
ial
 R
eg
ula

tio
ns
, in

clu
din

g C
on
tra
ct 
Pr
oc
ed
ure

s, 
thr
ou
gh
 a 
‘Ha

rro
w 
Ru
les
’ p
rog

ram
me

.  S
ub
su
me

d i
nto

 a 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
De
ve
lop
me

nt 
Pr
og
ram

me
 fro

m 
Se
pte

mb
er 

20
08
.  C

PR
 on

 in
tra
ne
t (s

om
e i
ss
ue
s w

ith
 ve

rsi
on
s).
  

Inc
lud

ed
 in
 in
du
cti
on
 pr
oc
es
s. 

JA
(R
H)
/JH

 
  

JH
 9/
8/1

1 
           

3.3
 

Th
ere

 is
 a 
wh
ist
le 
blo

win
g p

oli
cy
 

in 
pla

ce
 w
hic
h h

as
 be

en
 fo
rm
all
y 

ap
pro

ve
d, 
reg

ula
rly
 re
vie
we
d a

nd
 

wid
ely
 co

mm
un
ica
ted

 to
 al
l 

rel
ev
an
t s
taf
f,  p

art
ne
rs,
 M
em

be
rs 

an
d t
he
 pu

bli
c. 

  

Wh
istl
e b

low
ing

 po
licy

 ex
ist
s 

an
d h

as
 be

en
 re
vie
we
d a

nd
 

up
da
ted

 re
gu
lar
ly 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f fo
rm
al 
ap
pro

va
l 

 Ex
am

ple
s o

f c
om

mu
nic
ati
on
 

an
d d

iss
em

ina
tio
n e

.g.
 

ind
uc
tio
n, 
bri
efi
ng
s, 
aw
are

ne
ss
 

se
ss
ion
s, 
ac
ce
ss
ibl
e o

n 
we
bs
ite
 an

d i
ntr
an
et 
sit
e  

  Ev
ide

nc
e o

f e
ffe
cti
ve
ne
ss
 of
 

po
licy

 (e
.g.
 re
po
rts
 on

 
inc
ide

nc
e o

f u
sa
ge
, e
vid
en
ce
 

on
 an

nu
al 
de
cla
rat
ion

s o
n 

fra
ud
 to
 Au

dit
 C
om

mi
ss
ion
) 

Wh
istl
eb
low

ing
 po

licy
 ex

ist
s a

nd
 w
as
 re
vie
we
d a

nd
 

up
da
ted

 20
07
 an

d a
ga
in 
Ju
ly 
20
11
. 

  Fo
rm
all
y a
pp
rov

ed
 by

 St
an
da
rds

 C
om

mi
tte
e 2

6/0
6/0

7. 
Ac
ce
ss
ible

 on
 in
tra
ne
t : 
 20

11
 re
vie
w 
no
ted

 on
 cu

rre
nt 

ve
rsi
on
.  

 htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
/do

wn
loa

ds
/fil
e/2

08
6/w

his
tle
blo

win
g  

 Th
e W

his
tle
blo

win
g P

oli
cy
 is
 co

ve
red

 in
 th
e S

taf
f 

Ha
nd
bo
ok
 an

d r
efe

ren
ce
d i
n t
he
 In
du
cti
on
 ch

ec
klis

t a
nd
 

the
 M
an
ag
er’
s I
nd
uc
tio
n p

rog
ram

me
.  T

he
 po

licy
 w
as
 re
-

lau
nc
he
d o

n 3
0/0

9/0
8 a

nd
 di
ss
em

ina
ted

 vi
a t
he
 in
tra
ne
t 

an
d s

taf
f u
pd
ate

. 
 Mo

nit
ori
ng
 O
ffic
e m

ain
tai
ns
 a 
reg

ist
er 
of 
inc
ide

nc
e a

nd
 

rep
ort
s a

nn
ua
lly 
to 
the

 G
AR

M 
Co
mm

itte
e (
No
ve
mb

er 
20
10
). 

htt
p:/
/m
od
ern

go
v:8

08
0/d

oc
um

en
ts/
g6
02
84
/Pu

bli
c%

20
rep

o
rts
%2

0p
ac
k,%

20
Mo

nd
ay
%2

02
9-N

ov
-

20
10
%2

01
9.3

0,%
20
Go

ve
rna

nc
e,%

20
Au
dit
%2

0a
nd
%2

0R
i

sk
%2

0M
an
ag
em

en
t%
20
Co
mm

itte
e.p

df?
T=
10
  

HP
&J
T/S

D 
CC

 
13
/6/
11
 

        

90



 

Pa
ge

 37
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 

by
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

3.4
 

Th
ere

 is
 a 
co
un
ter
 fra

ud
 an

d 
co
rru
pti
on
 po

licy
 in
 pl
ac
e w

hic
h 

ha
s b

ee
n f
orm

all
y a
pp
rov

ed
, 

reg
ula

rly
 re
vie
we
d a

nd
 w
ide

ly 
co
mm

un
ica
ted

 to
 al
l re

lev
an
t s
taf
f 

Co
un
ter
 fra

ud
 an

d c
orr
up
tio
n 

po
licy

 ex
ist
s a

nd
 ha

s b
ee
n 

rev
iew

ed
 an

d u
pd
ate

d 
reg

ula
rly
 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f fo
rm
al 
ap
pro

va
l 

 Ex
am

ple
s o

f d
iss
em

ina
tio
n 

(br
ief
ing
s, 
ind

uc
tio
n, 

aw
are

ne
ss
 se

ss
ion
s, 

ac
ce
ss
ible

 on
 w
eb
sit
e a

nd
 

int
ran

et 
sit
e  

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f e
ffe
cti
ve
ne
ss
 of
 

po
licy

 (e
.g.
 re
po
rts
 on

 
ide

nti
fie
d f
rau

ds
; a
nn
ua
l A
F7
0 

ret
urn

s t
o A

ud
it C

om
mi
ss
ion
, 

rep
ort
s o

n r
es
ult
s o

f N
ati
on
al 

Fra
ud
 In
itia
tiv
es
) 

    Re
vie
w 
of 
reg

ist
er 
of 
gif
ts 
an
d 

ho
sp
ita
lity
 

Co
rpo

rat
e C

ou
nte

r F
rau

d P
olic

y u
pd
ate

d 2
01
0  

Up
da
ted

 ve
rsi
on
 ap

pro
ve
d b

y C
ab
ine
t N
ov
em

be
r 2
01
0. 

Ev
ide

nc
ed
 

 Ac
ce
ss
ible

 on
 in
ter
ne
t s
ite
 bu

t o
nly
 vi
a s

ea
rch

 fa
cili
ty 
on
 

int
ran

et 
(C
AF
T h

av
e n

o s
pe
cif
ic 
pa
ge
s).
  

 No
 aw

are
ne
ss
 se

ss
ion
s e

tc.
 In
tra
ne
t e
nh
an
ce
me

nt 
inc
lud

ed
 in
 20

10
/11

 Fr
au
d p

lan
. S
lot
 in
 th
e c

orp
ora

te 
ind

uc
tio
n t
o m

ak
e s

taf
f a
wa
re.
 E-
lea

rni
ng
 to
ol 
be
ing

 
de
ve
lop

ed
. 

 IA 
rep

ort
 on

 fra
ud
s t
o G

AR
M 
in 
mi
d-y

ea
r/y
ea
r e
nd
 re
po
rts
 

(as
 be

for
e).
   

CA
FT
 po

sts
 de

tai
ls 
of 
su
cc
es
sfu

l p
ros

ec
uti
on
s o

n H
arr
ow
 

Int
ran

et 
sit
e..
 

   NF
I fe

d i
nto

 AC
 se

cu
re 
we
b-s

ite
. C
AF
T f
alls

 w
ith
in 
Au
dit
 & 

Ris
k a

nd
 re
po
rts
 to
 G
AR

M 
an
d l
ea
d m

em
be
r id

en
tifi
ed
 – 

rep
ort
s t
o G

AR
M 
ea
ch
 m
ee
tin
g c

ov
ers

 pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 + 
NF

I 
wh
ere

 re
lev
an
t. 

 No
 re
vie
w 
of 
gif
ts 
& h

os
pit
ali
ty 
un
de
rta
ke
n f
rom

 a 
fra
ud
 

pe
rsp

ec
tiv
e. 
Pla

nn
ed
 fo
r 0
8/0

9 &
 09

/10
 bu

t n
o r
es
ou
rce

s. 
 

No
t c
on
sid
ere

d b
y t
he
 C
AF
T S

erv
ice
 M
an
ag
er 
as
 hi
gh
 ris

k 
the

ref
ore

 no
 re
so
urc

es
 to
 be

 al
loc
ate

d.  
  

DW
(JP

)/S
D 

CC
 

13
/6/
11
 

GA
Ps
 c/
f 

fro
m 

20
08
/09

 
  GA

P 
20
10
/11

 
 GA

P 
20
10
/11

 
  CC

G 
09
/08

/11
 

ga
ps
 

ag
ree

d 
        

3.5
 

Sta
nd
ard

s o
f c
on
du
ct 
an
d 

pe
rso

na
l b
eh
av
iou

r e
xp
ec
ted

 of
 

me
mb

ers
 an

d s
taf
f, o

f w
ork

 
be
tw
ee
n m

em
be
rs 
an
d s

taf
f a
nd
 

be
tw
ee
n t
he
 au

tho
rity

, it
s p

art
ne
rs 

an
d t
he
 co

mm
un
ity 
are

 de
fin
ed
 

an
d c

om
mu

nic
ate

d t
hro

ug
h c

od
es
 

of 
co
nd
uc
t a
nd
 pr
oto

co
ls 
wh
ich
 

ha
ve
 be

en
 fo
rm
all
y a
pp
rov

ed
 an

d 
wid

ely
 co

mm
un
ica
ted

 to
 al
l 

rel
ev
an
t s
taf
f, m

em
be
rs 
of 
the

 
pu
bli
c, 
sta

ke
ho
lde

rs 
an
d 

Me
mb

ers
. 

Co
de
s o

f c
on
du
ct 
ha
ve
 be

en
 

ag
ree

d, 
inc
lud

ing
 na

tio
na
l 

sc
he
me

s  
 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f fo
rm
al 
ap
pro

va
l 

 Ex
am

ple
s o

f d
iss
em

ina
tio
n e

.g.
 

ind
uc
tio
n, 
bri
efi
ng
s, 
aw
are

ne
ss
 

se
ss
ion
s, 
ac
ce
ss
ibl
e o

n i
ntr
an
et 

sit
e  

 Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

sys
tem

 (C
ov
ere

d a
bo
ve
) 

Th
e S

taf
f e
mp

loy
ee
 C
od
e o

f C
on
du
ct 
is 
ac
ce
ss
ible

 to
 al
l 

sta
ff o

n t
he
 in
tra
ne
t a
nd
 is
 co

nta
ine

d i
n t
he
 Em

plo
ye
es
 

Ha
nd
bo
ok
.  T

his
 is
 gi
ve
n t
o a

ll n
ew
 em

plo
ye
es
  

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
/do

wn
loa

ds
/fil
e/6

07
/em

plo
ye
e_
ha
nd
bo
ok
 

 Th
e m

an
ag
er’
s h

an
db
oo
k i
s a

lso
 gi
ve
n t
o a

ll n
ew
 

ma
na
ge
rs 
an
d i
s f
ou
nd
 on

 th
e i
ntr
an
et 
at:
 

   htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
.ha

rro
w.
go
v.u
k/i
nfo

/20
01
29
/co

ntr
ac
ts_

pa
y

rol
l_a

nd
_p
en
sio
ns
/16

7/e
mp

loy
ee
_h
an
db
oo
k_
for
_m

an
ag
er

s  Sta
ff a

re 
bri
efe

d o
n t
he
 C
od
e o

f C
on
du
ct 
in 
the

ir i
nfo

rm
al 

JT
/LC

 
(st
aff
) 

 HP
/VS

 
(m
em

be
rs)
 

LA
C 

27
.6.
11
 

           

 

91



 

Pa
ge

 38
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 

by
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

 De
ve
lop

 an
d m

ain
tai
n s

ha
red

 
va
lue
s i
nc
lud

ing
 le
ad
ers

hip
 

va
lue
s b

oth
 fo
r th

e o
rga

nis
ati
on
 

an
d s

taf
f re

fle
cti
ng
 pu

bli
c 

ex
pe
cta

tio
ns
 an

d c
om

mu
nic
ate

 
the

se
 w
ith
 m
em

be
rs,
 st
aff
, th

e 
co
mm

un
ity 
an
d p

art
ne
rs 
. 

 Us
e t
he
 or
ga
nis
ati
on
s s
ha
red

 
va
lue
s t
o a

ct 
as
 a 
gu
ide

 fo
r 

de
cis
ion

 m
ak
ing
 an

d a
s a

 ba
sis
 

for
 de

ve
lop

ing
 po

sit
ive
 an

d 
tru
sti
ng
 re
lat
ion

sh
ips
 w
ith
in 
the

 
au
tho

rity
 an

d m
ak
e c

lea
r to

 th
e 

pu
bli
c t
ha
t th

is 
is 
the

 ca
se
. 

 pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 ap

pra
isa
l (c

ov
ere

d 
ab
ov
e) 

 co
mp

lai
nts

 pr
oc
ed
ure

s c
ov
ere

d 
els
ew
he
re)
 

 an
tifr
au
d a

nd
 co

rru
pti
on
    

po
licy

 (c
ov
ere

d a
bo
ve
)  

 

ind
uc
tio
n s

es
sio
ns
 w
ith
 th
eir
 lin
e m

an
ag
er;
 ch

ec
klis

t 
inc
lud

ed
 in
 ev

ide
nc
e f
ile
 

 Th
ere

 ar
e v
ari
ou
s r
efe

ren
ce
s i
n t
he
 co

un
cil’
s C

on
sti
tut
ion
 

to 
co
nd
uc
t fo

r M
em

be
rs.
  

 Th
e M

em
be
r C

od
e o

f C
on
du
ct 
is 
av
ail
ab
le 
on
 th
e i
ntr
an
et 

an
d i
nte

rne
t. A

dd
itio
na
lly 
the

 C
ou
nc
il h
av
e e

sta
bli
sh
ed
 

ne
w 
Sta

nd
ard

s C
om

mi
tte
e w

eb
pa
ge
s w

hic
h p

rov
ide

s 
gre

ate
r d
eta

il t
o t
he
 pu

bli
c o

n M
em

be
r c
on
du
ct 
ge
ne
ral
ly 

(Li
nk
: h
ttp
://w

ww
.ha

rro
w.g

ov
.uk

/in
fo/
35
8/c

ou
nc
illo
rs-

inf
orm

ati
on
_a
nd
_a
dv
ice
/21

06
/st
an
da
rds

_c
om

mi
tte
e).
 

 Ne
w a

nd
 ex

ist
ing

 M
em

be
rs 
ele
cte

d i
n M

ay
 20

10
 w
ere

 
req

uir
ed
 to
 si
gn
 a 
for
ma

l d
ec
lar
ati
on
 of
 ac

ce
pta

nc
e o

f 
off
ice
, w
hic
h i
nc
lud

ed
 a 
co
mm

itm
en
t to

 ad
he
re 
to 
the

 
Co
de
 of
 C
on
du
ct.
 M
em

be
rs 
we
re 
pro

vid
ed
 w
ith
 an

 
ind

uc
tio
n p

ac
k a

nd
 tra

ini
ng
 se

ss
ion
 on

 th
e C

od
e o

f 
Co
nd
uc
t o
n 1

0 M
ay
 20

10
. F
urt
he
r tr
ain

ing
 on

 th
e C

od
e 

wa
s a

lso
 co

nd
uc
ted

 on
 17

 M
ay
 20

10
. A
 tra

ini
ng
 se

ss
ion
 

on
 So

cia
l M

ed
ia 
an
d t
he
 C
od
e o

f C
on
du
ct 
is 
sc
he
du
led

 fo
r 

30
 Ju

ne
 20

11
. 

  

                   (10
 Ju

ne
 

20
11
 VS

) 

3.5
a 

Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 ag

ain
st 
co
de
s o

f 
co
nd
uc
t a
re 
mo

nit
ore

d a
nd
 

bre
ac
he
s a

re 
de
alt
 w
ith
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

ly.
 

No
 FA

N 
su
gg
es
tio
ns
 as

 ad
de
d 

by
 H
arr
ow
 – 
do
 w
e h

av
e 

su
gg
es
ted

 ev
ide

nc
e?
 

    (M
em

be
rs)
 – 
Mi
nu
tes

 of
 

As
se
ss
me

nt,
 R
ev
iew

 an
d 

He
ari
ng
 Su

b-C
om

mi
tte
es
. 

Fo
r e
mp

loy
ee
s, 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 ag

ain
st 
the

 Em
plo

ye
e C

od
e 

of 
Co
nd
uc
t is
 co

ns
ide

red
 un

de
r th

e C
on
du
ct 
pro

ce
du
re 

(re
pla
ce
d t
he
 D
isc
ipl
ina
ry 
Pr
oc
ed
ure

 in
 Ap

ril 
20
09
).  

Mo
nit
ori
ng
 of
 th
es
e f
rom

 an
 eq

ua
litie

s p
ers

pe
cti
ve
 is
 

rep
ort
ed
 to
 th
e E

mp
loy
ee
 C
on
su
lta
tiv
e F

oru
m 
on
 an

 
an
nu
al 
ba
sis
 (th

e l
as
t in

 Ja
nu
ary

 20
11
) 

 Fo
r m

em
be
rs,
 co
mp

lain
ts 
ab
ou
t b
rea

ch
es
 of
 co

de
 of
 

co
nd
uc
t a
re 
rep

ort
ed
 to
 st
an
da
rds

 co
mm

itte
e. 
 U
nd
er 
the

 
Lo
ca
lism

 Bi
ll, 
the

 C
ou
nc
il w

ill n
o l
on
ge
r b
e r
eq
uir
ed
 to
 

ha
ve
 a 
sta

nd
ard

s c
om

mi
tte
e. 
 A 
wo
rki
ng
 gr
ou
p h

as
 be

en
 

se
t u
p t
o d

ec
ide

: 1
) if
 we

 ne
ed
 a 
sta

nd
ard

s c
om

mi
tte
e; 
2) 

co
de
 of
 co

nd
uc
t; a

nd
 3)
 w
ha
t to

 do
 ab

ou
t b
rea

ch
es
 of
 th
e 

co
de
 if 
it i
s d

ec
ide

d t
o r
eta

in 
on
e. 
 U
nd
er 
the

 Lo
ca
lism

 Bi
ll 

we
 st
ill h

av
e t
o u

ph
old

 hi
gh
 st
an
da
rds

 bu
t th

e B
ill d

oe
s n

ot 

JT
/LC

 
(st
aff
) 

 HP
/VS

 
(m
em

be
rs)
 

LC
 

27
.6.
11
 

         JF
-10

 
Ju
ne
 

 

92



 

Pa
ge

 39
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 

by
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

pro
vid
e f
or 
a m

ec
ha
nis
m 
for
 br
ea
ch
es
 ex

ce
pt 
in 
the

 ve
ry 

se
rio
us
 ca

se
s w

he
re 
it w

ill b
e a

 cr
im
ina
l o
ffe
nc
e n

ot 
to 

de
cla
re 
an
 in
ter
es
t. 

  
3.6

 
A r
eg
ist
er 
of 
int
ere

sts
 is
 

ma
int
ain
ed
, re

gu
lar
ly 
up
da
ted

 
an
d r
ev
iew

ed
 

Ins
pe
cti
on
 of
 re
gis
ter
 of
 

int
ere

sts
 (m

em
be
rs 
an
d s

taf
f) 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f re
gu
lar
 up

da
tin
g 

an
d r
ev
iew

 by
 se

nio
r o
ffic
er(
s) 

  

Re
gis
ter
s o

f in
ter
es
ts 
for
 bo

th 
sta

ff a
nd
 m
em

be
rs 
are

 
ma

int
ain
ed
.  M

em
be
rs’
 re
gis
ter
 of
 in
ter
es
t is
 av

ail
ab
le 
for
 

pu
bli
c i
ns
pe
cti
on
 an

d m
ain
tai
ne
d b

y D
ire
cto

r o
f L
eg
al 
& 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e S

erv
ice
s. 
Me

mb
ers

’ re
gis
ter
 of
 in
ter
es
t is
 

av
ail
ab
le 
on
 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 w
eb
sit
e. 
   M

em
be
rs 
are

 
reg

ula
rly
 re
mi
nd
ed
 to
 re
vie
w t
he
ir r
eg
ist
ers

 e.
g.,
 ev

ery
 6 

mo
nth

s i
n a

dd
itio
n a

ny
 ch

an
ge
s s
ho
uld

 be
 no

tifi
ed
 w
ith
in 

28
 da

ys 
of 
a c

ha
ng
e. 
  S
taf
f re

gis
ter
s a

re 
ma

int
ain

ed
 by

 
the

 in
div
idu

al 
Co
rpo

rat
e D

ire
cto

rs.
  T
he
se
 ar
e n

ot 
op
en
 to
 

pu
bli
c i
ns
pe
cti
on
 bu

t c
an
 be

 in
sp
ec
ted

 by
 Se

nio
r O

ffic
ers

. 

HP
/JF

 
JF
-10

 
Ju
ne
 

 

3.6
a 

Th
e r
eg
ist
er 
of 
int
ere

sts
 fo
r 

me
mb

ers
 is
 pu

bli
cly
 av

ail
ab
le 
an
d 

ac
ce
ss
ible

 to
 pr
om

ote
 

tra
ns
pa
ren

cy
, in

teg
rity

 an
d 

ac
ce
ss
ibil
ity
.  

Pu
bli
sh
ed
 on

 th
e H

arr
ow
 W
eb
 

sit
e 

Pu
bli
sh
ed
 on

 th
e H

arr
ow
 W
eb
 si
te  
 

HP
/JF

 
 

 

3.6
b 

A r
eg
ist
er 
of 
po
litic

all
y r
es
tric

ted
 

po
sts
 is
 m
ain
tai
ne
d a

nd
 pu

blic
ly 

av
ail
ab
le 
an
d a

cc
es
sib
le.
 

Pu
bli
sh
ed
 on

 th
e H

arr
ow
 W
eb
 

sit
e. 
 

Pu
bli
sh
ed
 on

 th
e H

arr
ow
 W
eb
 si
te  

HP
/JF

 
 

 

3.7
 

Wh
ere

 a 
sc
he
me

 of
 de

leg
ati
on
 

ha
s b

ee
n d

raw
n u

p, 
it h

as
 be

en
 

for
ma

lly 
ap
pro

ve
d a

nd
 

co
mm

un
ica
ted

 to
 al
l re

lev
an
t s
taf
f 

Sc
he
me

 of
 de

leg
ati
on
 

inc
orp

ora
tes

 ad
eq
ua
te 
co
ntr
ols
 

an
d s

an
cti
on
s  

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f fo
rm
al 
ap
pro

va
l 

 Ex
am

ple
s o

f c
om

mu
nic
ati
on
 

an
d d

iss
em

ina
tio
n e

.g.
 

ind
uc
tio
n, 
bri
efi
ng
s, 
aw
are

ne
ss
 

se
ss
ion
s, 
ac
ce
ss
ibl
e o

n 
int
ran

et 
sit
e  

 Re
gu
lar
 re
po
rts
 on

 th
e 

op
era

tio
n o

f th
e s

ch
em

e (
e.g

. 
co
mp

lia
nc
e, 
bu
dg
et 

mo
nit
ori
ng
, y
ea
r-e
nd
 ba

lan
ce
s) 

Fin
an
cia
l D
ele

ga
tio
ns
 ar
e b

ein
g u

pd
ate

d a
s p

art
 of
 th
e 

up
da
te 
of 
Fin

an
cia
l R
eg
ula

tio
ns
 an

d C
on
tra
ct 
Pr
oc
ed
ure

 
Ru
les
.  F

oll
ow
ing

 C
ab
ine

t a
pp
rov

al 
in 
Oc
tob

er 
the

se
 w
ill 

be
 up

da
ted

 on
 th
e s

yst
em

 as
 th
ere

 w
ill b

e c
ha
ng
es
 to
 th
e 

cu
rre
nt 
de
leg

ati
on
s. 
 + 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
as
su
ran

ce
. 

 Fin
an
cia
l D
ele

ga
tio
ns
 in
 pl
ac
e v
ia 
SA

P b
ut 
oth

er 
de
leg

ati
on
s p

atc
hy
 ac

ros
s C

ou
nc
il (
CI
PF
A r
ef 
to 
fin
an
cia
l 

de
leg

ati
on
s w

hic
h a

re 
in 
pla

ce
)  -
 co

nfi
rm
ed
 by
 20

10
/11

 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
As
su
ran

ce
 Ex

erc
ise
 

  SA
P s

yst
em

 en
su
res

 fin
an
cia
l lim

its
 no

t e
xc
ee
de
d. 
 

Ind
ivid

ua
l d
ire
cto

rat
es
 sh

ou
ld 
mo

nit
or 
co
mp

lia
nc
e. 
 

Bu
dg
et 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 re
po
rts
 to
 C
SB

 an
d C

ab
ine
t. 

JA
/JH

 
  

JH
 9/
8/1

1 
GA

P 
20
08
/09

 
c/f
 

20
09
/10

 
ho
we
ve
r 

CG
G 

16
/07

/10
 

ag
ree

d 
no
t to

 
ca
rry
 

for
wa
rd 

on
 Ac

tio
n 

Pla
n a

s 
inh

an
d. 

 AC
TIO

N:
 

93



 

Pa
ge

 40
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 

by
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d HR

 
dra

ftin
g 

tem
pla
te 

for
 no

n-
fin
cia
l 

de
leg

ati
o

ns
 to
 be

 
rev

iew
ed
 

by
 IA
 

 No
t 

pro
gre

ss
ed
 + 
MA

 
ex
erc

ise
 

su
gg
es
ts 

GA
P 

 GA
P 

ag
ree

d 
JT
 

12
/08

/11
 

3.8
 

A c
orp

ora
te 
pro

cu
rem

en
t p
olic

y 
ha
s b

ee
n d

raw
n u

p, 
for
ma

lly 
ap
pro

ve
d a

nd
 co

mm
un
ica
ted

 to
 

all
 re
lev
an
t s
taf
f 

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
po
licy

 ex
ist
s a

nd
 

ha
s b

ee
n r
ev
iew

ed
 an

d 
up
da
ted

 re
gu
lar
ly 
to 
tak

e 
ac
co
un
t o
f n
ew
 in
itia
tiv
es
 e.
g. 

dri
ve
 to
wa
rds

 w
ide

r c
on
so
rtia

 
arr
an
ge
me

nts
, s
ha
red

 se
rvi
ce
s 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f fo
rm
al 
ap
pro

va
l 

Ex
am

ple
s o

f d
iss
em

ina
tio
n e

.g.
 

ind
uc
tio
n, 
bri
efi
ng
s, 
aw
are

ne
ss
 

se
ss
ion
s, 
ac
ce
ss
ibl
e o

n 
int
ran

et 
sit
e  

Ev
ide

nc
e o

f e
ffe
cti
ve
ne
ss
 of
 

po
licy

 (e
.g.
 be

nc
hm

ark
ing
 

res
ult
s, 
be
st 
va
lue

 re
vie
w,
 

int
ern

al/
 ex

ter
na
l a
ud
it r
ev
iew

) 

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
Str
ate

gy
 up

da
ted

 20
09
.  T

his
 ov

era
rch

ing
 

str
ate

gy
 ru
ns
 fro

m 
20
09
-20

12
.   

A S
us
tai
na
ble

 Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
Po
licy

 is
 du

e t
o g

o t
o C

ab
ine

t 
in 
Oc
tob

er 
20
11
.  S

ep
ara

te 
str
ate

gie
s a

re 
pu
t to

ge
the

r fo
r 

ind
ivid

ua
l p
roc

ure
me

nts
 in
 ac

co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 th
e 

ov
era

rch
ing

 Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
Str
ate

gy
. 

 Ca
bin

et 
No
v 2
00
9 s

ee
 3.
2  

 Int
ran

et,
 br
ief
ing
s. 

 We
 ar
e p

art
 of
 th
e C

IPF
A b

en
ch
ma

rki
ng
 cl
ub
 fo
r c
orp

ora
te 

se
rvi
ce
s w

hic
h i
nc
lud

es
 Fi
na
nc
e, 
IT,
 H
R,
 pr
oc
ure

me
nt,
 

pro
pe
rty
.  B

en
ch
ma

rki
ng
 is
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
ev
ery

 ot
he
r y
ea
r 

an
d i
s d

ue
 to
 be

 ca
rrie

d o
ut 
in 
Se
pte

mb
er 
20
11
.   

  

JA
(R
H)
/JH

 
  

RH
/JH

/ST
 

9/8
/11

 
 

3.9
 

Bu
sin
es
s/s
erv

ice
 co

nti
nu
ity
 pl
an
s 

Cu
rre
nt 
bu
sin
es
s/s
erv

ice
 

BC
 pl
an
s h

av
e b

ee
n c

om
ple
ted

 fo
r th

e c
ou
nc
il’s
 

DW
(K
G)
/S

 
 

94



 

Pa
ge

 41
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 

by
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

 
ha
ve
 be

en
 dr
aw
n u

p f
or 
all
 cr
itic
al 

se
rvi
ce
 ar
ea
s a

nd
 th
e p

lan
s: 
 

Ar
e s

ub
jec
t to

 re
gu
lar
 te
sti
ng
 

 Ar
e s

ub
jec
t to

 re
gu
lar
 re
vie
w 

co
nti
nu
ity
 pl
an
s e

xis
t c
ov
eri
ng
 

all
 cr
itic
al 
se
rvi
ce
 ar
ea
s a

nd
 

are
 re
ad
ily 
ac
ce
ss
ible

 
 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f re
gu
lar
 te
sti
ng
 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f re
gu
lar
 re
vie
w 
in 

the
 lig
ht 
of 
the

 re
su
lts
 of
 te
sti
ng
 

an
d f
or 
ch
an
ge
s i
n s

tru
ctu

res
, 

pro
ce
du
res

, in
for
ma

tio
n 

sys
tem

s, 
res

po
ns
ibil
itie
s e

tc 
 

de
pa
rtm

en
ts 
an
d h

av
e b

ee
n r
ev
iew

ed
 by

 th
eir
 D
ire
cto

rs 
in 

Ju
ne
 20

10
.  C

orp
ora

te 
Dir
ec
tor
s a

nd
 D
ivis

ion
al 
Dir
ec
tor
s 

ke
ep
 co

pie
s o

f th
eir
 in
div
idu

al 
BC

 pl
an
s +

 Em
erg

en
cy
 

Pla
nn
ing

 Se
cti
on
 re
tai
n c

op
ies
 + 
Co
rpo

rat
e B

C 
pla

n. 
 

 All
 di
rec

tor
ate

 pl
an
s t
es
ted

 N
ov
em

be
r 2
01
0 &

 ag
ain

 in
 Fe

b 
20
11
 w
ith
 th
e C

orp
ora

te 
BC

 Pl
an
..  

 

D 
CC

 13
/6/
11
 

3.1
0 

Th
e c

orp
ora

te/
de
pa
rtm

en
tal
 ris

k 
reg

ist
er(
s) 
inc
lud

es
 ex

pe
cte

d k
ey
 

co
ntr
ols
 to
 m
an
ag
e p

rin
cip
al 
ris
ks
 

Ris
k r
eg
ist
er 
se
ts 
ou
t p
rin
cip
al 

ris
ks
 an

d s
ets

 ou
t a
pp
rop

ria
te 

ke
y c
on
tro
ls 
to 
ma

na
ge
 th
em

. 
 Ke
y c
on
tro
ls 
are

 m
on
ito
red

, 
rev

iew
ed
 an

d u
pd
ate

d 
reg

ula
rly
 

 Us
e o

f ri
sk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

wo
rks

ho
ps
 to
 un

de
rpi
n t
he
 

pro
ce
ss
 an

d r
ev
iew

 of
 re
gis
ter
 

an
d k

ey
 co

ntr
ols
 

 Ris
k o

wn
ers

 ar
e a

ss
ign

ed
 to
 

ma
na
ge
 pr
inc
ipa

l ri
sk
s 

 

Th
e R

isk
 M
an
ag
er 
me

ets
 w
ith
 th
e C

orp
ora

te 
Dir
ec
tor
s 

(R
isk
 O
wn
ers

 of
 st
rat
eg
ic 
an
d c

orp
ora

te 
op
era

tio
na
l ri
sk
s) 

ea
ch
 qu

art
er 
to 
up
da
te 
the

 St
rat
eg
ic 
Ris

k R
eg
ist
er 
an
d 

Co
rpo

rat
e O

pe
rat
ion

al 
Ris

k R
eg
ist
er 
(se

e 2
.2)
. 

 Th
e R

isk
 M
an
ag
er 
me

ets
 w
ith
 th
e D

ire
cto

rat
e R

isk
 

Ch
am

pio
ns
 on

 a 
qu
art
erl
y b
as
is 
to 
up
da
te 
the

 D
ire
cto

rat
e 

lev
el 
ris
k r
eg
ist
ers

 (s
ee
 2.
2) 

 Th
es
e r
isk
 re
gis
ter
s i
nc
lud

e i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 on

 th
e c

on
tro
ls 
(in
 

pla
ce
, u
nd
erw

ay
 an

d p
lan

ne
d) 
an
d i
de
nti
fy 
the

 R
isk
 

Ow
ne
rs 
for
 ea

ch
 ris

k (
se
e 2

.2)
. 

 Qu
art
erl
y r
ep
ort
ing

 of
 ris

ks
 to
 C
SB

 Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 Bo

ard
 

an
d I
mp

rov
em

en
t B
oa
rds

 (s
ee
 2.
2)  

DW
/N
B 

NB
 

10
.06

.11
 

 

3.1
1 

Ke
y r
isk
 in
dic
ato

rs 
ha
ve
 be

en
 

dra
wn
 up

 to
 tra

ck
 th
e m

ov
em

en
t 

of 
ke
y r
isk
s a

nd
 ar
e r
eg
ula
rly
 

mo
nit
ore

d a
nd
 re
vie
we
d. 

Ap
pro

pri
ate

 ke
y r
isk
 in
dic
ato

rs 
are

 do
cu
me

nte
d 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f re
gu
lar
 m
on
ito
rin
g 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f c
ha
ng
es
 in
 ris

k 
ind

ica
tor
s (
an
d r
ea
so
ns
 fo
r 

ch
an
ge
) e
ma

na
tin
g f
rom

 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 in
for
ma

tio
n 

so
urc

es
 (e
.g.
 w
he
re 
int
ern

al 
au
dit
 fin

din
gs
 ar
e u

se
d t
o 

KR
I's 
are

 no
t u
se
d b

y H
arr
ow
 C
ou
nc
il. 

 Th
e m

ov
em

en
t o
f th

e r
isk
 sc
ore

 of
 st
rat
eg
ic 
ris
ks
 an

d 
co
rpo

rat
e o

pe
rat
ion

al 
ris
ks
 sin

ce
 D
ec
em

be
r 2
00
3 h

as
 

be
en
 tra

ck
ed
 in
 an

 ex
ce
l s
pre

ad
sh
ee
t (S

R 
an
d C

OR
 

Mo
ve
me

nt.
xls
) a
nd
 up

da
ted

 ea
ch
 qu

art
er 
aft
er 
CS

B 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 Bo

ard
 m
ee
tin
gs
.  

DW
/N
B 

NB
 

10
.06

.11
 

 

95



 

Pa
ge

 42
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 

by
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

ch
an
ge
 th
e p

erc
eiv
ed
 le
ve
l o
f 

ris
k) 
 

3.1
2 

Th
e a

uth
ori
ty’
s i
nte

rna
l c
on
tro
l 

fra
me

wo
rk 
is 
su
bje

ct 
to 
reg

ula
r 

ind
ep
en
de
nt 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
Int
ern

al 
au
dit
 pl
an
s a

nd
 re
po
rts
 

 An
nu
al 
rep

ort
/op

ini
on
 of
 H
ea
d 

of 
Int
ern

al 
Au
dit
 

 Ex
ter
na
l a
ud
it r
ep
ort
s 

 Us
e o

f R
es
ou
rce

s/P
UR

E 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
rep

ort
s 

IA 
pro

du
ce
 An

nu
al 
Pla

ns
 (E
vid
en
ce
: 2
01
0/1

1 P
lan
) A
ll 

rep
ort
s g

o t
o G

AR
M 
Co
mm

itte
e (
as
 be

for
e) 

An
nu
al 
rep

ort
/op

ini
on
 on

 co
ntr
ol 
en
vir
on
me

nt 
inc
lud

ed
 in
 

Ye
ar-
en
d r
ep
ort
 (E
vid
en
ce
: 2
01
0/1

1 Y
ea
r-e
nd
 re
po
rt).
 

 Ex
ter
na
l A
ud
it a

nn
ua
l R
ep
ort
  

 No
 lo
ng
er 
ap
pli
ca
ble

 – 
pre

vio
us
ly 
3/4

 on
 In
ter
na
l C
on
tro
l 

DW
/SD

 
 CC

 
13
/6/
11
 

 

3.1
3 

A c
orp

ora
te 
he
alt
h a

nd
 sa

fet
y 

po
licy

 ha
s b

ee
n d

raw
n u

p, 
for
ma

lly 
ap
pro

ve
d, 
is 
su
bje

ct 
to 

reg
ula

r re
vie
w 
an
d h

as
 be

en
 

co
mm

un
ica
ted

 to
 al
l re

lev
an
t s
taf
f 

He
alt
h &

 sa
fet
y p
oli
cy
 ex

ist
s 

an
d h

as
 be

en
 re
vie
we
d a

nd
 

up
da
ted

 re
gu
lar
ly 

 Po
licy

 co
ve
rs 
pa
rtn
ers

hip
s 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f fo
rm
al 
ap
pro

va
l 

 Ex
am

ple
s o

f d
iss
em

ina
tio
n e

.g.
 

ind
uc
tio
n, 
bri
efi
ng
s, 
aw
are

ne
ss
 

se
ss
ion
s, 
inc
lus
ion

 of
 po

licy
 on

 
we
bs
ite
 an

d i
ntr
an
et 
sit
e 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f e
ffe
cti
ve
ne
ss
 of
 

po
licy

 e.
g. 
nu
mb

er 
of 
ca
se
s 

inv
es
tig
ate

d b
y H

ea
lth
 & 

Sa
fet
y E

xe
cu
tiv
e –

 an
d t
he
 

nu
mb

er 
of 
ca
se
s p

rov
en
 

 Re
vie
w 
of 
nu
mb

er 
of 
rep

ort
ed
 

inc
ide

nc
es
 an

d ‘
ne
ar 
mi
ss
es
’ 

H&
S p

oli
cy
 ex

ist
s 2

00
9 a

nd
 ha

s r
ec
en
tly
 be

en
 re
vie
we
d 

an
d i
s c
urr
en
tly
 un

de
r c
on
su
lta
tio
n (
Ju
ly 
20
11
) 

 htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
/do

wn
loa

ds
/do

wn
loa

d/1
49
1/d

raf
t_h

ea
lth
_

an
d_
sa
fet
y_
po
licy

    
 Po
licy

 do
es
 co

ve
r p
art
ne
rsh

ips
 

  An
nu
al 
He
alt
h a

nd
 Sa

fet
y r
ep
ort
 to
 H
&S

 Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 

Bo
ard

, E
mp

loy
ee
s C

on
su
lta
tiv
e F

oru
m 
an
d C

ab
ine

t J
uly
 

20
10
 + 
GA

RM
 Ju

ne
 20

10
. 

    Pa
rt o

f a
nn
ua
l H
ea
lth
 an

d s
afe

ty 
rep

ort
  

 

DW
/SD

 
CC

 
13
/6/
11
 

 Up
da
ted

 
SD

 
11
/08

/11
 

 

3.1
4 

A c
orp

ora
te 
co
mp

lain
ts 

po
licy

/pr
oc
ed
ure

 ha
s b

ee
n d

raw
n 

up
, th

at 
is 
eff
ec
tive

, tr
an
sp
are

nt 
an
d a

cc
es
sib
le,
 in
clu
de
s a

n 
ex
pla

na
tio
n o

f h
ow
 to
 m
ak
e a

 
co
mp

lai
nt 
ag
ain

st 
a M

em
be
r, 

for
ma

lly 
ap
pro

ve
d, 
co
mm

un
ica
ted

 

Co
mp

lain
ts 
po
licy

/pr
oc
ed
ure

 
ex
ist
s a

nd
 ha

s b
ee
n r
ev
iew

ed
 

an
d u

pd
ate

d r
eg
ula

rly
 

 Pr
oc
ed
ure

 is
 co

mp
lia
nt 
wit
h a

ll 
rel
ev
an
t s
tat
uto

ry 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

Co
mp

lain
ts 
pro

ce
du
re 
on
 H
arr
ow
 W
eb
 si
te:
 

htt
p:/
/w
ww

.ha
rro
w.g

ov
.uk

/in
fo/
35
3/c

om
pla
int
s-

pro
ce
du
re/
17
94
/co

mp
lai
nin

g_
ab
ou
t_t
he
_c
ou
nc
il 

 Cu
sto

me
rs 
ab
le 
to 
us
e w

eb
 fo
rm
 to
 su

bm
it c
om

pla
int
s  

 Co
mp

lain
ts 
Pr
oc
ed
ure

 – 
Sta

ff G
uid
an
ce
: 

TW
(C
C)
/L

M 
LM

 
14
/06

/11
 

 

96



 

Pa
ge

 43
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 

by
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

to 
all
 re
lev
an
t s
taf
f, t
he
 pu

bli
c a

nd
 

oth
er 
sta

ke
ho
lde
rs,
 is
 re
gu
lar
ly 

rev
iew

ed
 an

d t
he
 C
ou
nc
il c
an
 

de
mo

ns
tra
te 
tha

t c
om

pla
int
s h

av
e 

be
en
 de

alt
 w
ith
 sp

ee
dil
y a
nd
 

rob
us
tly
. 

  

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f fo
rm
al 
ap
pro

va
l 

 Ex
am

ple
s o

f d
iss
em

ina
tio
n 

e.g
. in

du
cti
on
, b
rie
fin
gs
, 

aw
are

ne
ss
 se

ss
ion
s, 
inc
lus
ion
 

of 
po
licy

 on
 w
eb
sit
e a

nd
 

int
ran

et 
sit
e 

 Le
afl
ets

/po
ste

rs 
hig

hli
gh
tin
g 

co
mp

lai
nts

 pr
oc
ed
ure

 
 Co
mp

lain
ts 
file
s 

 Co
mm

itte
e r
ep
ort
s 

su
mm

ari
sin
g c

om
pla
int
s d

ea
lt 

wit
h a

na
lys
ed
 by

 ou
tco

me
 

 Me
mb

ers
 C
od
e o

f   
 

Co
nd
uc
t 

 
 

htt
p:/

/ha
rro

wh
ub

/in
fo/

20
01

97
/co

mp
lai

nts
_a

nd
_fe

ed
ba

ck 
   Po
licy

/pr
oc
ed
ure

 si
gn
ed
 of
f b
y C

ou
nc
il in

 Se
pte

mb
er 
20
08
 

 Po
licy

 aw
are

ne
ss
 pa

rt o
f s
taf
f in

du
cti
on
 si
nc
e M

arc
h 2

00
9 

 Ap
pro

xim
ate

ly 
25
0 s

taf
f h
av
e a

tte
nd
ed
 tra

ini
ng
 in
 

ha
nd
lin
g/i
nv
es
tig
ati
ng
 co

mp
lai
nts

 si
nc
e A

pri
l 2
00
9 a

nd
 

ap
pro

x 1
00
 in
 10

/11
. 

   Br
ief
ing

 se
ss
ion
 al
so
 he

ld 
for
 M
em

be
rs 
Ju
ne
 20

09
. N
ex
t 

on
e d

ue
 fo
r O

cto
be
r 2
01
1. 

 Le
afl
et 
pro

du
ce
d M

ay
 20

09
 – 
als
o o

n I
ntr
an
et 
an
d 

dis
trib

ute
d a

cc
ord

ing
ly -
 pr
ov
ide

d a
s e

vid
en
ce
 

 Co
mp

lain
ts 
Ac
tio
n p

lan
 at
tac

he
d a

s e
vid
en
ce
 

 A 
Co
rpo

rat
e 

Co
mp

lain
ts 

Po
licy

 w
as
 s

ign
ed
 o

ff 
in 

Se
pte

mb
er 
20
08
. 

 Se
pa
rat
e p

roc
ed
ure

s w
hic
h h

av
e b

ee
n a

pp
rov

ed
 by

 th
e 

Sta
nd
ard

s C
om

mi
tte
e a

re 
in 
pla

ce
 fo
r d
ea
lin
g w

ith
 

co
mp

lai
nts

 ag
ain
st 
Co
un
cill
ors

. P
roc

ed
ure

 at
 

htt
ps
://w

ww
.ha

rro
w.g

ov
.uk

/sit
e/s

cri
pts

/do
cu
me

nts
_in

fo.
ph

p?
do
cu
me

ntI
D=
13
89
 

  
3.1

4a
 
Th
e C

ou
nc
il c
an
 de

mo
ns
tra
te 
tha

t 
co
mp

lai
nts

 ha
ve
 be

en
 de

alt
 w
ith
 

sp
ee
dil
y a
nd
 ro
bu
stl
y. 

Su
gg
es
ted

 ev
ide

nc
e?
 

LG
O 
de
cid
ed
 on

 66
 co

mp
lai
nts

 ag
ain

st 
the

 co
un
cil 
du
rin
g 

the
 ye

ar 
20
10
/20

11
. In

 25
 th
ere

 w
as
 no

 ev
ide

nc
e o

f 
ma

lad
mi
nis
tra
tio
n, 
an
d 1

5 c
om

pla
int
s w

ere
 ou

tsi
de
 

jur
isd
ict
ion

. In
 a 
fur
the

r 1
3 c

om
pla
int
s t
he
 LG

O 
ex
erc

ise
d 

dis
cre

tio
n n

ot 
to 
inv
es
tig
ate

 fu
rth
er.
 Ty

pic
all
y t
he
se
 ar
e 

ca
se
s w

he
re 
ev
en
 th
ou
gh
 th
ere

 m
ay
 ha

ve
 be

en
 so

me
 fa
ult
 

by
 th
e c

ou
nc
il t
he
re 
is 
no
 si
gn
ific
an
t in

jus
tic
e t
o t
he
 

co
mp

lai
na
nt.
 W
e r
ec
eiv
ed
 of
 13

 Lo
ca
l S
ett
lem

en
ts 
in 

co
mp

ara
tiv
e t
o 1

2 f
or 
the

 pe
rio
d 2

00
9/2

01
0. 
  

TW
(C
C)
/L

M 
LM

 
14
/06

/11
 

 

97



 

Pa
ge

 44
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 

by
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

 Se
e I
mp

rov
em

en
t B
oa
rd 
rep

ort
  Q

4 –
 sh

ow
s p

erc
en
tag

e o
f 

co
mp

lai
nts

 an
sw
ere

d o
n t
im
e f
or 
a q

ua
rte
r. 

 Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 re
po
rts
 no

w 
up
 an

d r
un
nin

g o
n C

RM
 w
he
re 

we
 ca

n a
cti
ve
ly 
mo

nit
or 
ou
r c
om

pla
int
 re
sp
on
se
 ta
rge

ts.
 

  
3.3

3 
 

Th
e c

ou
nc
il m

an
ag
es
 da

ta 
on
 

sys
tem

s w
ith
 co

ntr
oll
ed
 an

d 
se
cu
re 
ac
ce
ss
.  

 
All
 C
ou
nc
il I
T s

yst
em

s i
nc
lud
ing

 ne
tw
ork

 ar
e g

ov
ern

ed
 by

 
us
er 
ID
 an

d p
as
sw
ord

s (
as
 ou

tlin
ed
 in
 th
e A

cc
ep
tab

le 
Us
e 

Po
licy

) 
DW

/TM
 

CC
 

13
/6/
11
 

 

3.3
4 

 
Th
ere

 ar
e u

p-t
o-d

ate
 da

ta 
se
cu
rity
 

po
lici
es
 an

d g
uid

an
ce
 in
 pl
ac
e 

co
ve
rin
g: 
 

 • 
ke
y b
us
ine

ss
 ar
ea
s  

  

 
All
 In
for
ma

tio
n M

an
ag
em

en
t P
oli
cie
s a

nd
 D
ata

 Q
ua
lity
 

Po
licy

 ar
e u

p t
o d

ate
. 

 Fo
llo
win

g p
oli
cie
s n

ow
 in
 pl
ac
e a

nd
 ap

pro
ve
d (
Ju
ne
 20

09
) 

by
 th
e I
nfo

rm
ati
on
 G
ov
ern

an
ce
 Bo

ard
 (IG

B)
:  

Ac
ce
pta

ble
 U
se
 Po

licy
, D
ata

 H
an
dli
ng
 Pr
oc
ed
ure

 by
 

Se
ns
itiv
ity
, D
PA

 Po
licy

, G
CS

x A
UP

 an
d P

ers
on
al 

Co
mm

itm
en
t P
olic

y, 
Inf
orm

ati
on
 Se

cu
rity

 Po
licy

, In
cid
en
t 

Re
po
rtin

g a
nd
 M
an
ag
em

en
t P
roc

ed
ure

, In
for
ma

tio
n 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Po
licy

, R
em

ote
 Eq

uip
me

nt 
Po
licy

.  
Als

o I
nfo

rm
ati
on
 C
ha
rte
r p
rod

uc
ed
 to
 in
for
m 

Cit
ize
ns
/re
sid
en
ts 
of 
ou
r d
ata

 se
cu
rity

 pr
oto

co
ls.
 

 Th
ere

 is
 no

 co
ns
ist
en
t a
pp
roa

ch
 fo
r v
ali
da
tin
g i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 

fro
m 
thi
rd 
pa
rtie

s a
s i
t is
 th
e r
es
po
ns
ibi
lity
 of
 th
e c

on
tra
ct 

‘ow
ne
r’. 

DW
/TM

  
TM

 
10
/06

/11
 

            

         CC
G 

Ga
p 

ac
ce
pte

d 
09
/08

/11
 

   GA
P 

20
10
/11

 
(c/
f 

20
09
/10

) 
3.3

5 
 

Po
lici
es
 an

d p
roc

ed
ure

s m
ee
t th

e 
req

uir
em

en
ts 
of 
na
tio
na
l 

sta
nd
ard

s, 
rul
es
, d
efi
nit
ion

s a
nd
 

gu
ida

nc
e, 
for
 ex

am
ple
 th
e 

Fre
ed
om

 of
 In
for
ma

tio
n A

ct 
an
d 

Da
ta 
Pr
ote

cti
on
 Ac

t. T
he
 co

un
cil 

 
 Se
e 3

.34
 al
so
: 

All
 in
for
ma

tio
n m

an
ag
em

en
t p
oli
cie
s h

av
e b

ee
n d

raw
n u

p 
wit
hin

 th
e r
eq
uir
em

en
ts 
of 
cu
rre
nt 
leg

isla
tio
n a

nd
 gu

ida
nc
e 

fro
m 
LG

A, 
Ce
ntr
al 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t a
nd
 th
e I
nfo

rm
ati
on
 

Co
mm

iss
ion
er.
 

DW
/TM

  
TM

 
10
/06

/11
 

 Up
da
te 

SD
 

11
/08

/11
 

 

98



 

Pa
ge

 45
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 

by
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

pe
rio
dic
all
y r
ev
iew

s a
nd
 up

da
tes

 
the

se
 as

 ne
ce
ss
ary

. T
he
 co

un
cil 

ca
n d

em
on
str
ate

 it 
ap
pli
es
 

po
lici
es
 an

d p
roc

ed
ure

s 
co
ns
ist
en
tly
 an

d t
he
re 
are

 
me

ch
an
ism

s i
n p

lac
e t
o c

he
ck
 

thi
s, 
ba
se
d o

n r
isk
.  

Th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 In
for
ma

tio
n M

an
ag
er 
ha
s t
he
 re
sp
on
sib
ility

 
to 
pe
rio
dic
all
y r
ev
iew

 in
for
ma

tio
n M

an
ag
em

en
t p
oli
cie
s  
 

an
nu
all
y  
(la
tes

t re
vie
w 
 M
ay
/Ju

ne
 20

11
) o
r w

he
n r
eq
uir
ed
 

if c
ha
ng
e i
n l
eg
isla

tio
n o

r d
ire
cti
ve
. 

htt
p:/

/ha
rro

wh
ub

/do
wn

loa
ds

/do
wn

loa
d/3

03
/in

for
ma

tio
n_

ma
na

ge
me

nt_
po

lici
es

_a
nd

_p
roc

ed
ure

s 
We

 ha
ve
 pr
od
uc
ed
 a 
pro

gra
mm

e o
f w
alk
ab
ou
ts 
to 
mo

nit
or 

sta
ff a

nd
 th
eir
 ad

he
ren

ce
 to
 th
es
e p

oli
cie
s (
thi
s h

as
 

ce
as
ed
 an

d w
as
 on

ly m
on
ito
rin
g c

ltr,
 al
t d
ele

te 
of 

wo
rks

tat
ion
s n

ot 
AL
L p

oli
cie
s).
 Th

es
e a

re 
joi
ntl
y 

co
nd
uc
ted

 by
 th
e S

erv
ice
 M
an
ag
er 
for
 In
for
ma

tio
n 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt,
 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 SI
RO

 (D
ivis

ion
al 
Dir
ec
tor
 fo
r 

Fra
ud
, A
ud
it &

 R
isk
) a
nd
 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce
 an

d D
ata

 
Se
rvi
ce
. W

e a
re 
tar
ge
tin
g m

ain
 ar
ea
s o

f ri
sk
 th
at 
ha
ve
 

hig
h p

rob
ab
ility

 of
 co

nfi
de
nti
al 
da
ta.
 

  
3.3

6 
 

Se
nio

r m
an
ag
em

en
t re

ce
ive
 th
e 

res
ult
s o

f th
es
e r
ev
iew

s a
nd
 ta
ke
 

co
rre
cti
ve
 ac

tio
n w

he
re 

ne
ce
ss
ary

. T
he
 co

un
cil 
co
mp

lies
 

wit
h d

ata
 pr
ote

cti
on
 le
gis
lat
ion
, 

an
d o

the
r re

lev
an
t re

qu
ire
me

nts
, 

wit
ho
ut 
cre

ati
ng
 un

ne
ce
ss
ary

 
ba
rrie

rs 
to 
sh
ari
ng
 da

ta 
leg

itim
ate

ly 
wit
h p

art
ne
rs.
  

 
An
y r
isk
s t
o t
he
 C
ou
nc
il b
y w

ay
 of
 po

ten
tia
l d
ata

 se
cu
rity

 
bre

ac
he
s f
ou
nd
 on

 th
e w

alk
ab
ou
ts 
are

 im
me

dia
tel
y 

co
nv
ey
ed
 to
 th
e s

erv
ice
 m
an
ag
er 
of 
tha

t p
art
icu
lar
 ar
ea
 

an
d r
ep
ort
ed
 to
 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 In
for
ma

tio
n G

ov
ern

an
ce
 

Bo
ard

 (IG
B)
. S
ee
 ab

ov
e 3

.35
 

 Da
ta 
pro

tec
tio
n p

rot
oc
ols
 ar
e i
n p

lac
e w

ith
in 
the

 C
ou
nc
il. 

Ne
w D

ata
 Pr
ote

cti
on
 Po

licy
 in
 pl
ac
e (
Ju
ne
 20

09
) a
nd
 D
ata

 
Pr
ote

cti
on
 C
ha
mp

ion
s a

re 
no
w 
ins
tal
led

 fo
r e
ac
h 

de
pa
rtm

en
t. T

he
 Se

rvi
ce
 M
an
ag
er 
for
 In
for
ma

tio
n 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
no
w 
ha
s t
he
 re
sp
on
sib
ility

 fo
r c
o-o

rdi
na
tin
g 

the
 “v
irtu

al”
 te
am

 of
 D
PA

 ch
am

pio
ns
. 

  

DW
/TM

 
CC

 
13
/6/
11
 

 

3.3
7 

 
Th
e c

ou
nc
il m

an
ag
es
 in
for
ma

tio
n 

ris
k e

ffe
cti
ve
ly.
 Ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 

me
et 
the

 re
qu
ire
me

nts
 ex

pe
cte

d 
in 
go
ve
rnm

en
t in
clu
din

g h
av
ing

 a 
ca
pa
ble

 Se
nio

r In
for
ma

tio
n R

isk
 

 
Inf
orm

ati
on
 As

se
t R
eg
ist
er 
(IA
R)
 an

d I
nfo

rm
ati
on
 R
isk
 

Re
gis
ter
 (IR

R)
 im

ple
me

nte
d a

s a
 re
su
lt o
f th

e r
isk
 

red
uc
tio
n e

xe
rci
se
 un

de
rta
ke
n i
n M

ay
/Ju

ne
 20

09
. 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 R
isk
 Po

licy
 in
 pl
ac
e (
No
v 2

00
9) 
an
d 

DW
/TM

 
TM

 
10
/06

/11
 

   

     

99



 

Pa
ge

 46
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 

by
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

Ow
ne
r (S

IR
O)
. T
he
 co

un
cil 

co
mp

lies
 w
ith
 th
e r
eq
uir
em

en
ts 

se
t o
ut 
in 
an
y r
ele

va
nt 
co
de
s o

f 
co
nn
ec
tio
n f
or 
se
rvi
ce
s i
t h
as
 in
 

pla
ce
, fo

r e
xa
mp

le 
the

 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t S
ec
ure

 In
tra
ne
t / 

Go
ve
rnm

en
t C
on
ne
ct 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 R
isk
 gu

ide
lin
es
 im

ple
me

nte
d w

ith
 cl
ea
r 

gu
ide

lin
es
 on

 w
ho
 is
 re
sp
on
sib
le 
for
 in
for
ma

tio
n r
isk
s. 
 

SIR
O 
ap
po
int
ed
 Ju

ne
 20

09
. 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il h
as
 co

mp
lied

 w
ith
 th
e G

ov
ern

me
nts

 C
od
e o

f 
Co
nn
ec
tio
n a

nd
 w
as
 fo
rm
all
y c
ert
ifie
d o

n 1
st
 Se

pt 
09
 an

d 
up
da
ted

 29
/07

/11
.  H

ow
ev
er 
CA

FT
 m
ov
ed
 01

/08
/11

 to
 

op
en
 pl
an
 of
fic
e t
ha
t d
oe
s n

ot,
 in
 th
e o

pin
ion

 of
 th
e C

AF
T 

Se
rvi
ce
 M
an
ag
er 
an
d t
he
 In
for
ma

tio
n M

an
ag
em

en
t 

Se
rvi
ce
 M
an
ag
er 
co
mp

ly 
wit
h t
he
 re
lev
an
t c
od
e o

f 
co
nn
ec
tio
n. 
 

        SD
 

08
/08

/11
 

        GA
P 

20
10
/11

 
 CG

G 
ag
ree

d 
ga
p 

09
/08

/11
 

– M
B t
o 

be
 jo
int
 

ac
tio
n 

ow
ne
r 

3.3
8 

 
Th
e c

ou
nc
il in

co
rpo

rat
es
 go

od
 

pra
cti
ce
 st
an
da
rds

 an
d s

pe
cif
ied
 

pu
bli
c s
ec
tor
 po

lici
es
 on

 da
ta 
an
d 

inf
orm

ati
on
 se

cu
rity

 in
to 
its
 ow

n 
po
lici
es
 an

d p
roc

ed
ure

s. 
Fo
r 

ex
am

ple
, IS

O2
70
01
 an

d r
ele

va
nt 

Co
de
s o

f C
on
ne
cti
on
 fo
r th

e N
HS

 
Ne
tw
ork

 (N
3) 
an
d G

ov
ern

me
nt 

Se
cu
re 
Int
ran

et 
an
d G

ov
ern

me
nt 

Co
nn
ec
t. 

 
In 
ord

er 
to 
im
pro

ve
 on

 da
ta 
se
cu
rity
, th

e C
ou
nc
il h
as
 

co
mm

iss
ion
ed
 a 
ga
p a

na
lys
is 
ex
erc

ise
 (D

ec
 09

) to
 he

lp 
ide

nti
fy 
ga
ps
 in
 da

ta 
se
cu
rity
 pr
ac
tic
es
 to
 en

ab
le 
us
 to
 

im
be
d a

n I
SM

S t
o I
SO

27
00
1 s

tan
da
rds

.  
 Ca
pit
a 
an
d 
the

 C
ou
nc
il 
are

 n
ow
 w

ork
ing
 to

ge
the

r 
to 

im
ple
me

nt 
so
me

 o
f t
he
 g
ap
s 
to 
im
be
d 
an
 IS

MS
 to

 IS
O 

sta
nd
ard

. T
M 
to 
pro

vid
e c

op
y o
f a
cti
on
 pl
an
. 

 Ex
ist
ing

 
po
lici
es
 
co
mp

ly 
wit
h 

Go
ve
rnm

en
t 
co
nn
ec
t 

req
uir
em

en
ts.
  

 

DW
/TM

 
TM

 
10
/06

/11
 

     GA
P 

20
10
/11

 
 CG

G 
ag
ree

d 
ga
p 

09
/01

/11
 

– n
o 

ac
tio
n 

req
uir
ed
 

3.3
9 

 
Th
e c

ou
nc
il c
an
 de

mo
ns
tra
te 
it i
s 

red
uc
ing

 th
e n

um
be
r, s

ev
eri
ty,
 or
 

bo
th,
 of
 se

cu
rity
 in
cid
en
ts 
as
 we

ll 
as
 fe
ed
ing

 le
ss
on
s f
rom

 in
cid
en
ts 

 
A s

ec
uri
ty 
inc
ide

nt 
log

 is
 no

w 
in 
pla

ce
 an

d i
s m

on
ito
red

 by
 

the
 Se

rvi
ce
 M
an
ag
er 
for
 In
for
ma

tio
n M

an
ag
er 
(S
MI
M)
 an

d 
IT 
Cli
en
t s
ide
 St
rat
eg
ic 
Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
Te
am

 Le
ad
er.
 

(S
ITL

). P
oli
cie
s a

nd
 pr
oc
ed
ure

s h
av
e a

lso
 be

en
 im

pro
ve
d 

thr
ou
gh
 im

pro
ve
me

nt 
rev

iew
s c
on
du
cte

d b
y S

MI
M 
& S

ITL
 

DW
/TM

 
TM

 
10
/06

/11
 

 

100



 

Pa
ge

 47
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f a

ss
ur

an
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 

by
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

int
o i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 se

cu
rity

 po
lici
es
 

an
d p

rac
tic
e. 
 

i.e
. In

cid
en
t re

po
rtin

g a
nd
 m
an
ag
em

en
t p
roc

ed
ure

. 
  Co
mp

ute
r B
as
ed
 Tr
ain
ing

 ha
s b

ee
n i
ntr
od
uc
ed
 fo
r p
ilo
t 

sta
ff (
GC

SX
) in

 Au
gu
st 
20
09
 an

d i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 se

cu
rity

 e-
lea
rni
ng
 w
as
 ro
lle
d o

ut 
to 
all
 us

ers
 in
 20

09
/10

.  
 An
 aw

are
ne
ss
 ca

mp
aig
n (
em

ails
, p
os
ter
s, 
co
as
ter
s, 
IM
 

da
y, 
etc

) w
as
 la
un
ch
ed
 at
 in
 Ju

ly 
20
09
 to
 pr
om

ote
 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 M
an
ag
em

en
t &
 Se

cu
rity

. T
he
 ca

mp
aig
n i
s a

 
rol
lin
g p

rog
ram

me
 th
rou

gh
ou
t th

e y
ea
r a
nd
 fo
cu
se
s o

n a
ll 

as
pe
cts
 of
 IT
 in
for
ma

tio
n s

ec
uri
ty 
wit
hin

 th
e w

ork
 

en
vir
on
me

nt.
  

  
 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 4

: O
bta

in 
as

su
ran

ce
 on

 th
e e

ffe
cti

ve
ne

ss
 of

 ke
y c

on
tro

ls 
St

ep
 1–

 A
pp

ro
pr

iat
e a

ss
ur

an
ce

 st
ate

me
nts

 ar
e r

ec
eiv

ed
 fr

om
 de

sig
na

ted
 in

ter
na

l a
nd

 ex
ter

na
l a

ss
ur

an
ce

 pr
ov

ide
rs:

 
• 

Th
e a

uth
ori
ty 
ha
s i
de
nti
fie
d a

pp
rop

ria
te 
so
urc

es
 of
 as

su
ran

ce
 

• 
Ap
pro

pri
ate

 ex
ter
na
l a
ss
ura

nc
es
 ar
e i
de
nti
fie
d a

nd
 ob

tai
ne
d 

 
 

Ex
am

ple
s o

f 
as

su
ran

ce
: 

FA
N 

Su
gg

es
ted

 Ev
ide

nc
ed

 by
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

 4.1
 

Th
e a

uth
ori
ty 
ha
s 

de
ter
mi
ne
d 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 
int
ern

al 
an
d 

ex
ter
na
l s
ou
rce

s o
f 

as
su
ran

ce
 

Mi
nu
tes

 of
 co

mm
itte
e a

t w
hic
h r
ep
ort
 

on
 as

su
ran

ce
s w

as
 co

ns
ide

red
 

 So
urc

es
 of
 as

su
ran

ce
 ar
e a

pp
rop

ria
te 

to 
the

 au
tho

rity
 

GA
RM

 co
mm

itte
e r
ec
eiv
ed
 re
gu
lar
 go

ve
rna

nc
e u

pd
ate

s 
thr
ou
gh
ou
t 2
01
0/1

1 –
 se

e 1
.16

 
 Se
e G

ov
ern

an
ce
 up

da
te 
rep

ort
 (E
vid
en
ce
 08

/09
 1.
10
) &
 

IA 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e F

ram
ew
ork

 (E
vid
en
ce
 08

/09
 re
po
rt 1

.11
) 

ide
nti
fie
s s
ou
rce

s o
f a
ss
ura

nc
e  

  

CG
G/
SD

 
13
/6/
11
 C
C 

 

 4.2
 

Ap
pro

pri
ate

 ke
y 

co
ntr
ols
 on

 w
hic
h 

as
su
ran

ce
 is
 to
 

Br
ief
ing

 no
tes

, g
uid

an
ce
, in

str
uc
tio
ns
 

etc
 gi
ve
n t
o a

pp
rop

ria
te 
ma

na
ge
rs 

reg
ard

ing
 w
ha
t is
 ex

pe
cte

d o
f th

em
 

Co
re 
Fin

an
cia
l S
yst
em

s K
ey
 C
on
tro
l re

po
rts
  

Co
re 
Fin

an
cia
l S
yst
em

s S
yst
em

 N
ote

s  
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
As
su
ran

ce
 gu

ida
nc
e s

ee
 4.
3 

CG
G/
SD

 
10
/6/
11
 C
C 

 

101



 

Pa
ge

 48
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 by

: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

be
 gi
ve
n h

av
e 

be
en
 id
en
tifi
ed
 

an
d a

gre
ed
  

  
4.3

 
De
pa
rtm

en
tal
 

as
su
ran

ce
s a

re 
pro

vid
ed
 

De
pa
rtm

en
tal
 he

ad
s s
ign

 of
f o
n 

ad
eq
ua
cy
 of
 co

ntr
ols
 (i.
e. 
pro

vid
e 

an
nu
al 
go
ve
rna

nc
e a

ss
ura

nc
e 

sta
tem

en
ts)
 

 Su
pp
ort
ing

 do
cu
me

nta
tio
n p

rov
ide

d b
y 

de
pa
rtm

en
tal
 he

ad
s r
e r
ev
iew

 an
d 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 th
at 
ke
y 

co
ntr
ols
 ha

ve
 be

en
 in
 op

era
tio
n f
or 
the

 
pe
rio
d a

nd
 w
ill c

on
tin
ue
 to
 op

era
te 
un
til 

ac
co
un
ts 
sig
ne
d o

ff. 
(S
tru
ctu

red
 pr
oc
es
s a

nd
 st
an
da
rd 

do
cu
me

nta
tio
n t
o e

ns
ure

 co
ns
ist
en
cy
 

of 
co
ve
rag

e a
nd
 co

mm
on
 

un
de
rst
an
din

g o
f le

ve
l o
f a
ss
ura

nc
e 

giv
en
) 

 Co
mp

let
ed
 C
on
tro
l &
 R
isk
 Se

lf-
As
se
ss
me

nt 
 qu

es
tio
nn
air
es
 

 An
nu
al 
go
ve
rna

nc
e a

ss
ura

nc
e 

sta
tem

en
ts 
ev
alu

ate
d b

y o
ffic
er 
tea

m 
or 

co
mm

itte
e c

ha
rge

d w
ith
 th
e 

res
po
ns
ibi
lity
 of
 pr
ep
ari
ng
 th
e A

GS
.  

Ev
alu

ati
on
 to
 in
clu
de
 ‘re

ali
ty 
ch
ec
kin
g’ 

of 
sa
mp

le 
of 
as
su
ran

ce
 st
ate

me
nts

 
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
As
su
ran

ce
 pr
oc
es
s w

ell
 de

ve
lop

ed
 an

d i
n 

pla
ce
 fo
r la

st 
6 y

ea
rs.
  

  Su
pp
ort
ing

 do
cu
me

nts
 pr
ov
ide

d t
o I
nte

rna
l A
ud
it. 
  

 Gu
ida

nc
e p

rov
ide

d o
n e

vid
en
ce
 re
qu
ire
d a

nd
 ho

w t
o 

co
mp

let
e a

ss
ura

nc
e s

elf
-as

se
ss
me

nt.
 

 Se
lf-a

ss
es
sm

en
ts 
co
mp

let
ed
 by

 al
l 3

rd
 tie

r m
an
ag
ers

 an
d 

co
mb

ine
d t
o p

rod
uc
e D

ire
cto

rat
e a

nd
 C
orp

ora
te 

Sta
tem

en
ts.
 

 As
su
ran

ce
 st
ate

me
nts

 re
vie
we
d b

y C
orp

ora
te 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e G

rou
p a

nd
 G
AR

M 
Co
mm

itte
e. 

 Re
ali
ty 
ch
ec
kin
g u

nd
ert
ak
en
 by

 In
ter
na
l A
ud
it a

nd
 

rep
ort
ed
 to
 C
GG

 + 
CS

B +
 G
AR

M 
 

 Re
po
rt p

rod
uc
ed
 on

 M
an
ag
em

en
t A
ss
ura

nc
e E

xe
rci
se
 

pro
vid
ed
 to
 C
GG

 + 
CS

B +
 G
AR

M.
 

   

CG
G/
SD

 
13
/6/
11
 C
C 

 

4.4
 

Ex
ter
na
l 

as
su
ran

ce
 

rep
ort
s a

re 
co
lla
ted

 ce
ntr
all
y  

 
Re
po
rts
 ar
e 

rev
iew

ed
 by

 
rel
ev
an
t s
en
ior
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 

So
urc

es
 of
 ex

ter
na
l a
ss
ura

nc
e r
ele

va
nt 

to 
au
tho

rity
 ar
e i
de
nti
fie
d a

nd
 ag

ree
d, 

inc
lud

ing
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
s 

 Ex
ter
na
l a
ss
ura

nc
e r
ep
ort
s w

ill v
ary

 
ac
co
rdi
ng
 to
 ty
pe
 of
 au

tho
rity

 an
d c

ou
ld 

inc
lud

e c
om

me
nt 
an
d i
np
ut 
fro
m 
the

 
fol
low

ing
 (th

e l
ist
 is
 no

t e
xh
au
sti
ve
): 

 

So
urc

e o
f e
xte

rna
l a
ss
ura

nc
e a

re 
the

 Au
dit
 C
om

mi
ss
ion
  

 Ex
ter
na
l a
ud
ito
rs 
rep

ort
s –

 an
 Ex

ter
na
l A
ud
it r
ep
ort
 is
 

att
ac
he
d a

s e
vid
en
ce
. S
ee
 1.
22
.  

 Ex
ter
na
l a
ud
it r
ep
ort
s b

y C
QC

, O
fst
ed
, a
va
ila
ble

 fro
m 

the
ir  
we
bs
ite
s 

  

TW
/LD

 
LD
 

6/7
/11

 
 

 

102



 

Pa
ge

 49
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 by

: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

tea
m 
an
d 

rep
ort
ed
 to
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 
co
mm

itte
e 

 Ac
tio
n p

lan
s a

re 
pre

pa
red

 an
d 

ap
pro

ve
d a

s 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 
 Fo
llo
w u

p r
ep
ort
s 

on
 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on

s a
re 
req

ue
ste

d 
an
d r
ev
iew

ed
 by

 
rel
ev
an
t s
en
ior
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
tea

m 
an
d 

pro
gre

ss
 is
 

reg
ula

rly
 re
po
rte
d 

to 
rel
ev
an
t 

co
mm

itte
e 

Au
dit

 C
om

mi
ss

ion
  

 Ex
ter
na
l A
ud
ito
r (e

ith
er 
fro
m 
dir
ec
t a
ud
it 

wo
rk 
or 
fro
m 
wo
rk 
joi
ntl
y c
om

mi
ss
ion
ed
 

 So
cia
l S
erv

ice
s I
ns
pe
cto

rat
e 

 Us
e o

f R
es
ou
rce

s a
ss
es
sm

en
t  

 PU
RE

 as
se
ss
me

nt 
(po

lice
 se

rvi
ce
) 

 Be
st 
Va
lue

 R
ev
iew

s 
 HM

IC
 

 Po
lice

 St
an
da
rds

 U
nit
 

 Ho
me

 O
ffic
e c

om
mi
ss
ion
ed
 re
po
rts
 

 Se
nio

r m
an
ag
em

en
t te

am
 m
inu
tes

 
 Fo
llo
w u

p r
ep
ort
s t
o a

pp
rop

ria
te 

co
mm

itte
e 

Ex
am

ple
 re
po
rts
 an

d a
cti
on
 no

tes
 th
at 
rel
ate

 to
 th
e C

SB
 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
orn

ing
 ca

n b
e p

rov
ide

d a
s e

vid
en
ce
 on

 
req

ue
st 

  Ha
rro
w C

hie
f E
xe
cu
tiv
e’s
 co

ns
ide

rs 
ac
tio
ns
 ag

ain
st 
Au
dit
 

Co
mm

iss
ion
 fin

din
gs
 th
rou

gh
 its
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
orn

ing
s. 

4.5
 

Int
ern

al 
Au
dit
 

Ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 

Re
po
rts
 of
 H
ea
d o

f In
ter
na
l A
ud
it t
o 

au
dit
 co

mm
itte
e o

r e
qu
iva
len

t 
thr
ou
gh
ou
t th

e y
ea
r 

 An
nu
al 
rep

ort
 of
 H
ea
d o

f In
ter
na
l A
ud
it, 

inc
lud

ing
 op

ini
on
 on

 in
ter
na
l c
on
tro
l a
nd
 

ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t fr
am

ew
ork

 

Mi
d-y

ea
r a
nd
 Ye

ar-
en
d r
ep
ort
s p

rov
ide

d b
y t
he
 Se

rvi
ce
 

Ma
na
ge
r, I
nte

rna
l A
ud
it t
o t
he
 G
AR

M 
co
mm

itte
e. 
 

 Ye
ar-
en
d r
ep
ort
 in
clu
de
s a

n A
ud
it O

pin
ion

 on
 th
e O

ve
ral
l 

Co
ntr
ol 
En
vir
on
me

nt.
  

 

DW
/SD

 
10
/6/
11
 C
C 

 

4.6
 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e 

Ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 

An
nu
al 
co
rpo

rat
e g

ov
ern

an
ce
 

as
su
ran

ce
 st
ate

me
nt 

 Int
ern

al 
or 
ex
ter
na
l a
ud
it r
ev
iew

 of
 

co
rpo

rat
e g

ov
ern

an
ce
 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 

 Mo
nit
ori
ng
 re
po
rts
 to
 co

mm
itte

e o
n 

de
live

ry 
of 
ac
tio
n p

lan
s i
n r
es
po
ns
e t
o 

rev
iew

s o
f c
orp

ora
te 
go
ve
rna

nc
e 

AG
S r
ep
ort
  

 IA 
rep

ort
 on

 C
orp

ora
te 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e F

ram
ew
ork

 (S
ee
 

1.1
1) 

  Mi
d-y

ea
r a
nd
 ye

ar-
en
d A

GS
 ac

tio
n p

lan
 up

da
tes

 to
 

CG
G/
CS

B/G
AR

M 
 

CG
G/
SD

 
10
/6/
11
 C
C 

 

103



 

Pa
ge

 50
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 by

: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

4.7
 

Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

An
nu
al 
an
d i
n-y

ea
r re

po
rts
 on

 de
live

ry 
of 
ke
y p
erf
orm

an
ce
 in
dic
ato

rs 
by
 

int
ern

al 
an
d/o

r e
xte

rna
l re

vie
w a

ge
nc
ies
 
Int
ern

al 
au
dit
ors

 re
po
rts
 – 
an
 ex

am
ple
 is
 at
tac

he
d 1

.22
 – 

 Ex
ter
na
l a
ud
ito
rs 
rep

ort
s –

 a 
rep

ort
 is
 at
tac

he
d 1

.22
 

TW
/LD

 
LD
 

6/7
/11

 
 

 

   
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 by

: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

5.1
 

Re
sp
on
sib
iliti
es
 

for
 th
e e

va
lua

tio
n 

of 
as
su
ran

ce
s 

are
 cl
ea
rly
 

de
fin
ed
 

thr
ou
gh
ou
t th

e 
org

an
isa
tio
n. 

Mi
nu
tes

 of
 co

mm
itte
e m

ee
tin
gs
 

 Tra
inin

g p
lan

s 
 Jo
b d

es
cri
pti
on
s 

 Co
mm

itte
e t
erm

s o
f re

fer
en
ce
 

Re
sp
on
sib
iliti
es
 fo
r th

e e
va
lua

tio
n o

f a
ss
ura

nc
es
 su

ch
 

as
 M
an
ag
em

en
t A
ss
ura

nc
e a

nd
 an

nu
al 
rev

iew
 of
 

go
ve
rna

nc
e a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 
are

 cl
ea
rly
 de

fin
ed
 in
 G
AR

M 
an
d C

GW
G/
CG

G 
ter
ms

 of
 re
fer
en
ce
.  (
as
 be

for
e) 

GA
RM

, Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Bo
ard

s a
nd
 C
SB

 re
ce
ive
 an

nu
al 

MA
 re
po
rt +

 m
id 
an
d y

ea
r-e
nd
 IA
 re
po
rts
,  G

AR
M 
als
o 

rec
eiv
e i
nd
ivid

ua
l IA

 re
po
rts
 as

 w
ell
 as

 re
lev
an
t 

ma
na
ge
rs.
  M

an
ag
ers

 re
sp
on
se
 to
 IA
 re
po
rts
 co

ve
red

 in
 

Fin
an
cia
l R
eg
ula

tio
ns
.   

 Wo
rkf
orc

e s
tra
teg

ies
 an

d a
ss
oc
iat
ed
 L&

D 
pla

ns
. 

 As
su
ran

ce
s f
rom

 EA
 + 
Ins

pe
cti
on
s c
ov
ere

d u
nd
er 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
res

po
ns
ibi
litie

s c
ov
ere

d i
n F

in 
Re
gs
 – 

ac
tio
n p

lan
s a

gre
ed
 by

 re
lev
an
t m

an
ag
ers

 in
 re
sp
on
se
 

to 
all
 in
sp
ec
tio
n a

nd
 EA

 re
po
rts
. 

 

CG
G/
SD

 
10
/6/
11
 C
C 

 

5.2
 

Me
ch
an
ism

 
es
tab

lish
ed
 fo
r 

co
llec

tin
g 

go
ve
rna

nc
e 

as
su
ran

ce
s 

Te
rm
s o

f re
fer
en
ce
 an

d k
ey
 

res
po
ns
ibi
litie

s 
 Re
co
rd 
of 
as
su
ran

ce
s r
eq
uir
ed
 an

d 
rec

eiv
ed
 is
 he

ld 
an
d i
s c
om

ple
te 

Ov
era

ll r
es
po
ns
ibi
lity
 al
loc
ate

d t
o C

GG
 su

pp
ort
ed
 by

 
CG

WG
 – 
Te
rm
s o

f R
efe

ren
ce
 in
 pl
ac
e f
or 
bo
th 
– 

CG
WG

 up
da
ted

 + 
CG

G 
up
da
ted

 18
/08

/09
.  

 AG
S A

ss
ura

nc
e &

 Ev
ide

nc
e t
ab
le 
ou
tlin
es
 as

su
ran

ce
s 

CG
G/
SD

 
CC

 13
/6/
11
 

    

 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 5

: E
va

lua
te 

as
su

ran
ce

s a
nd

 id
en

tify
 ga

ps
 in

 co
ntr

ol/
 as

su
ran

ce
s 

St
ep

 1:
 Th

e a
uth

or
ity

 ha
s m

ad
e a

de
qu

ate
 ar

ran
ge

me
nts

 to
 id

en
tify

, re
ce

ive
 an

d e
va
lua

te 
rep

or
ts 

fro
m 

the
 de

fin
ed

 in
ter

na
l a
nd

 ex
ter

na
l a

ss
ur
an

ce
 pr

ov
ide

rs 
to 

ide
nti

fy 
are

as
 of

 w
ea

kn
es
s i
n c

on
tro

ls 

104



 

Pa
ge

 51
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 by

: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

Ov
era

ll 
res

po
ns
ibi
lity
 

all
oc
ate

d t
o 

go
ve
rna

nc
e 

se
nio
r o
ffic
er 

gro
up
 

 
Re
qu
ire
d 

as
su
ran

ce
s a

re 
ag
ree

d a
nd
 

rec
ord

ed
 

 
Ce
ntr
al 
rec

ord
 of
 

all
 as

su
ran

ce
s 

(ei
the

r e
vid
en
ce
 

file
, o
r s
ho
win

g 
cle
ar 
lin
k t
o 

wh
ere

 ev
ide

nc
e 

is 
he
ld)
 

 
Cle

ar 
gu
ida

nc
e 

as
 to
 ev

alu
ati
on
 

pro
ce
du
re 

inc
lud

ing
 

as
su
ran

ce
 ov

er 
ris
ks
, 

ind
ep
en
de
nc
e 

an
d o

bje
cti
vit
y o
f 

as
su
ran

ce
s 

 
De
fin
ed
 

ev
alu

ati
on
 

me
ch
an
ism

 
 

Tim
eta

ble
 fo
r 

co
mp

let
ion

 by
 

sta
tut
ory

 
de
ad
lin
e  

 

 Ap
pro

ve
d w

ritt
en
 gu

ida
nc
e r
e 

ev
alu

ati
on
 pr
oc
ed
ure

 
 Sc
ori
ng
 m
atr
ix/m

eth
od
olo

gy
 (N

ot 
all
 

as
su
ran

ce
s a

re 
su
ita
ble

 fo
r g
rad

ing
; 

ma
ny
 w
ill b

e s
ub
jec
tiv
e a

ny
wa
y. 
 Ke

y 
po
int
s a

re 
tha

t th
ere

 is
 a 
co
ns
ist
en
t 

an
d r
eli
ab
le 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
pro

ce
ss
 an

d 
tha

t th
e c

on
clu
sio
ns
 dr
aw
n a

re 
in 
lin
e 

wit
h t
he
 ev

ide
nc
e p

rod
uc
ed
) 

 An
 ag

ree
d t
im
eta

ble
, a
llo
win

g f
or 
in-

ye
ar 
ev
ide

nc
e g

ath
eri
ng
 an

d 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
an
d f
or 
the

 pe
rio
d 

be
tw
ee
n t
he
 ye

ar-
en
d a

nd
 th
e d

ate
 of
 

the
 go

ve
rna

nc
e a

ss
ura

nc
e s

tat
em

en
t 

(tim
eta

ble
 dr
ive
n b

y t
ha
t fo

r th
e 

pro
du
cti
on
 of
 th
e a

nn
ua
l s
tat
em

en
t o
f 

ac
co
un
ts)
 

 Ga
p a

ss
es
sm

en
t re

su
lts
 an

d a
cti
on
s 

ari
sin
g t
he
re 
fro
m 

 Mi
nu
tes

 of
 m
ee
tin
gs
 

 An
nu
al 
rep

ort
 of
 H
ea
d o

f In
ter
na
l A
ud
it 

– i
nc
lud

ing
 op

ini
on
 on

 in
ter
na
l c
on
tro
l 

an
d r
isk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t fr
am

ew
ork

 
 Re
po
rts
 of
 ex

ter
na
l a
ud
ito
r a
nd
 ot
he
r 

ex
ter
na
l re

vie
w 
ag
en
cie
s 

req
uir
ed
 an

d r
ec
ord

s t
ho
se
 re
ce
ive
d, 
co
mp

let
ed
 by

 
CG

WG
. 

 Ev
alu

ati
on
 un

de
rta
ke
n b

y C
GW

G 
an
d r
ev
iew

ed
 by

 
CG

G 
– o

bje
cti
ve
 ga

p a
na
lys
is m

eth
od
olo

gy
 us

ed
 (s
ee
 

tab
le 
an
d C

GW
G 
mi
nu
tes

).  
Ev
alu

ati
on
 m
ec
ha
nis
m 

un
de
rst
oo
d b

y C
GW

G 
an
d r
ec
ord

ed
 in
 m
inu
tes

. 
    Ag
ree

d t
im
eta

ble
 fro

m 
co
llec

tio
n o

f e
vid
en
ce
 th
rou

gh
 to
 

dra
ftin

g o
f A
GS

 an
d i
nc
lus
ion

 in
 an

nu
al 
ac
co
un
ts 
for
 

ap
pro

va
l b
y G

AR
M 
co
mm

itte
e. 
  

 Ce
ntr
al 
rec

ord
 of
 as

su
ran

ce
s h

eld
 (‘v

’ d
riv
e) 
or 
lin
ks
 to
 

ev
ide

nc
e r
ec
ord

ed
 in
 ev

ide
nc
e t
ab
le.
 

   Ob
jec
tive

 ga
p a

na
lys
is 
me

tho
do
log

y u
se
d t
o f
orm

ula
te 

ac
tio
n p

lan
. 

 CG
WG

 m
inu
tes

 av
ail
ab
le.
 N
ote

s o
f a
cti
on
 po

int
s f
rom

 
CG

G 
me

eti
ng
s k
ep
t b
y S

M,
 IA
. 

 An
nu
al 
rep

ort
 of
 Se

rvi
ce
 M
an
ag
er,
 In
ter
na
l A
ud
it 

inc
lud

es
 op

ini
on
 on

 ov
era

ll c
on
tro
l e
nv
iro
nm

en
t. 

  Se
rvi
ce
 M
an
ag
er,
 In
ter
na
l A
ud
it’s
 re
po
rt t
o C

GG
 on

 
AG

S c
ov
eri
ng
 co

lle
cti
on
 of
 ev

ide
nc
e.  

            

105



 

Pa
ge

 52
 of

 87
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 by

: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

Ga
p a

ss
es
sm

en
t 

– p
erf
orm

ed
 an

d 
ch
all
en
ge
d 

 
 

106



 

Pa
ge

 53
 of

 87
 

 Ob
jec

tiv
e 6

: A
cti

on
 pl

an
 to

 ad
dr

es
s w

ea
kn

es
se

s a
nd

 en
su

re 
co

nti
nu

ou
s i

mp
ro

ve
me

nt 
of 

the
 sy

ste
m 

of 
co

rp
or

ate
 go

ve
rn

an
ce

 
St
ep

 1:
 – 

Th
ere

 is
 a 

ro
bu

st 
me

ch
an

ism
 to

 en
su

re 
th
at 

an
 ap

pr
op

ria
te 

ac
tio

n p
lan

 is
 ag

ree
d t

o a
dd

res
s i

de
nti

fie
d c

on
tro

l w
ea

kn
es

se
s a

nd
 is
 im

ple
me

nte
d a

nd
 

mo
nit

or
ed

 
 

 
 

 
Ex

am
ple

s o
f 

as
su

ran
ce

: 
FA

N 
Su

gg
es

ted
 Ev

ide
nc

ed
 by

: 
Ha

rro
w 

Ev
ide

nc
e: 

Ow
ne

r/ 
Sp

on
so

r 
Ev

ide
nc

e 
up

da
ted

 
(da

te 
& 

ini
tia

ls)
 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

6.1
 

An
 ac

tio
n p

lan
 is
 

dra
wn
 up

 an
d 

ap
pro

ve
d 

Pr
ior
itis
ed
 ac

tio
n p

lan
, s
ett
ing

 ou
t 

ac
tio
ns
, re

sp
on
sib
iliti
es
 an

d 
tim

es
ca
les
, a
pp
rov

ed
 at
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 
lev
el 

 Mi
nu
tes

 

AG
S 0

9/1
0 a

cti
on
 pl
an
 dr
aw
n u

p a
nd
 pr
es
en
ted

 to
 

GA
RM

 in
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20
10
. E
vid
en
ce
 ac

tio
n P

lan
 Ye

ar 
en
d p

os
itio
n r
ep
ort
ed
 to
 G
AR

M 
Ju
ne
 20

10
 an

d f
ed
 in
to 

20
10
/11

 re
vie
w.
  A
cti
on
 pl
an
 20

10
/11

 w
ill b

e i
nc
lud

ed
 

in 
rep

ort
 to
 G
AR

M 
Se
pt 
20
11
. 

CG
G/
SD

 
CC

 13
/6/
11
 

 

6.2
 

All
 ac

tio
ns
 ar
e 

‘SM
AR

T’:
 

Sp
ec
ific
 

Me
as
ura

ble
 

Ac
hie

va
ble

 
Re
ali
sti
c 

Tim
e-b

ou
nd
 

Ea
ch
 ac

tio
n o

n p
rio
riti
se
d a

cti
on
 pl
an
 

is 
co
mp

lian
t w
ith
 ‘S
MA

RT
’ te

st 
 

Ta
rge

ts 
on
  A
GS

 Ac
tio
n P

lan
 ar
e s

ma
rt. 
Ev
ide

nc
e 

Ac
tio
n P

lan
  

CG
G/
SD

 
CC

 13
/6/
11
 

 

6.3
 

Ac
tio
ns
 

co
mm

un
ica
ted

 
an
d 

res
po
ns
ibi
litie

s 
as
sig
ne
d 

Re
sp
on
sib
iliti
es
 fo
r e
ac
h a

cti
on
 ar
e 

de
fin
ed
 in
 ac

tio
n p

lan
 

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f d
ist
rib
uti
on
 of
  

ac
tio
n p

lan
 to
 th
os
e w

ho
 re
qu
ire
 it 

 

Re
sp
on
sib
iliti
es
 fo
r e
ac
h a

cti
on
 ar
e d

efi
ne
d i
n t
he
 

ac
tio
n p

lan
.  

 Ev
ide

nc
e o

f d
ist
rib
uti
on
 of
 ac

tio
n p

lan
 to
 th
os
e w

ho
 

req
uir
e i
t fo

r 0
9/1

0 r
eta

ine
d (
e-m

ails
).   
 

CG
G/
SD

 
CC

 13
/6/
11
 

 

6.4
 

Im
ple
me

nta
tio
n 

tim
es
ca
les
 

ag
ree

d 
Ta
rge

t d
ate

s i
nc
lud

ed
 in
 ac

tio
n p

lan
 

 
Ac
tio
n p

lan
 in
clu
de
s t
arg

et 
da
tes

. 
CG

G/
SD

 
CC

 13
/6/
11
 

 

6.5
 

On
go
ing

 re
vie
w 

of 
pro

gre
ss
 an

d 
of 
co
nti
nu
ing

 
ap
pro

pri
ate

ne
ss
 

of 
ac
tio
n 

Tim
eta

ble
d r
ev
iew

s 
Mi
nu
tes

 
Pr
og
res

s r
ep
ort
s 

Int
ern

al 
au
dit
 or
 ot
he
r re

vie
w 
of 

im
ple
me

nta
tio
n o

f a
gre

ed
 ac

tio
ns
 

 

Mi
nu
tes

 of
  G

AR
M 
de
mo

ns
tra
te 
mi
d-y

ea
r &
 ye

ar-
en
d 

rev
iew

 of
 09

/10
 ac

tio
n p

lan
 du

rin
g 1

0/1
1, 
pro

gre
ss
 

rep
ort
s p

rep
are

d a
nd
 ev

ide
nc
e o

bta
ine

d o
f 

im
ple
me

nta
tio
n. 

CG
G/
SD

 
CC

 13
/6/
11
 

 

 

107



 

Pa
ge

 54
 of

 87
 

 Ob
jec

tiv
e 7

: A
nn

ua
l G

ov
ern

an
ce

 St
ate

me
nt 

St
ep

 1:
 – 

An
 A
nn

ua
l G

ov
ern

an
ce
 St

ate
me

nt 
ha

s b
ee

n d
raf

ted
 in

 ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w
ith

 th
e s

tat
uto

ry 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

an
d t

im
eta

ble
 se

t o
ut 

in 
the

 A
cc
ou

nt
s a

nd
 A
ud

it 
Re

gu
lat

ion
s 2

00
3, 

as
 re

vis
ed

 by
 th

e A
cc
ou

nts
 an

d A
ud

it (
Am

en
dm

en
t) (

En
gla

nd
) R

eg
ula

tio
ns

 20
06

, a
nd

 is
 in

 ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w
ith

 C
IPF

A 
gu

ida
nc

e  
 

 
 

 
 

Ex
am

ple
s o

f 
as

su
ran

ce
: 

FA
N 

Su
gg

es
ted

 Ev
ide

nc
ed

 by
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

7.1
 

Re
sp
on
sib
ility

 fo
r 

the
 co

mp
ilat
ion

 
of 
the

 An
nu
al 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e 

Sta
tem

en
t h
as
 

be
en
 as

sig
ne
d 

Do
cu
me

nte
d k

ey
 re
sp
on
sib
iliti
es
  

 Mi
nu
tes

 
CG

G 
Ju
ly 
20
08
 m
inu
tes

 – 
as
sig
ne
d l
ea
d &

 pr
oc
es
s 

CG
G/
SD

 
CC

 13
/6/
11
 

 

7.2
 

Th
ere

 is
 an

 
An
nu
al 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e 

Sta
tem

en
t 

pro
du
cti
on
 

tim
eta

ble
 th
at 

me
ets

 th
e 

sta
tut
ory

 
de
ad
lin
e 

An
nu
al 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e S

tat
em

en
t 

tim
eta

ble
 is
 lin
ke
d t
o t
ha
t fo

r th
e 

pre
pa
rat
ion

 of
 st
atu

tor
y a
cc
ou
nts

 
Tim

eta
ble
 ag

ree
d f
or 
CG

WG
 + 
CG

G 
inp

ut 
to 

pro
du
cti
on
 of
 AG

S f
or 
pre

se
nta

tio
n a

s p
art
 of
 fin

al 
ac
co
un
ts 
to 
the

 G
AR

M 
in 
Se
pte

mb
er 
11
  

CG
G/
SD

 
CC

 13
/6/
11
 

 

7.3
 

Th
e A

nn
ua
l 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e 

Sta
tem

en
t is
 

rev
iew

ed
, 

ch
all
en
ge
d a

nd
 

ap
pro

ve
d b

y t
he
 

au
tho

rity
 - 

sig
na
tor
ies
  

de
fin
ed
 an

d a
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 in
 

ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 

sta
tut
ory

 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

(i.e
. M

os
t s
en
ior
 

off
ice
r a
nd
 m
os
t 

se
nio
r m

em
be
r 

Te
rm
s o

f re
fer
en
ce
 as

sig
ne
d t
o 

se
nio
r o
ffic
ers

 gr
ou
p 

 An
nu
al 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e S

tat
em

en
t is
 

co
mp

lia
nt 
wit
h  

CI
PF
A g

uid
an
ce
 

 Mi
nu
tes

 

GC
WG

 pr
od
uc
e e

vid
en
ce
 fo
r A
GS

 w
ith
 in
pu
t fr
om

 IA
, 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
As
su
ran

ce
 Ex

erc
ise
 et
c.,
 C
GG

 
rev

iew
/ch

all
en
ge
 ev

ide
nc
e a

nd
 dr
aft
 AG

S, 
co
mp

lia
nc
e 

wit
h C

IPF
A g

uid
an
ce
 ch

ec
ke
d b

y I
A. 
 AG

S s
ign

ed
 of
f 

by
 Le

ad
er 
an
d C

E a
nd
 pr
es
en
ted

 to
 G
AR

M 
for
 

rev
iew

/ch
all
en
ge
/ap

pro
va
l. 

Te
rm
s o

f re
fs 
as
 be

for
e.  

CG
G/
SD

 
CC

 13
/6/
11
 

 

108



 

Pa
ge

 55
 of

 87
 

of 
the

 
org

an
isa
tio
n) 

7.4
 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e 

as
su
ran

ce
 

sta
tem

en
t is
 

pre
pa
red

, 
inc
orp

ora
tin
g a

ll 
the

 re
qu
ire
d 

ele
me

nts
 of
 th
e 

sta
tem

en
t o
n 

int
ern

al 
co
ntr
ol 

Fo
rm
at 
of 
go
ve
rna

nc
e a

ss
ura

nc
e 

sta
tem

en
t c
lea
rly
 in
co
rpo

rat
es
 

req
uir
ed
 el
em

en
ts 
of 
the

 st
ate

me
nt 

on
 in
ter
na
l c
on
tro
l 

 Go
ve
rna

nc
e a

ss
ura

nc
e s

tat
em

en
t is
 

pre
pa
red

 by
 a 
se
nio

r o
ffic
er 
gro

up
 

un
de
r te

rm
s o
f re

fer
en
ce
 de

fin
ed
 by

 
the

 au
tho

rity
 

 Sta
tut
ory

 tim
eta

ble
 is
 fo
llo
we
d 

 

Se
e A

GS
 fo
rm
at 
co
ns
ist
en
t w
ith
 C
IPF

A r
eq
uir
em

en
ts.
 

    CG
G 
– s

ee
 te
rm
s o

f re
fer
en
ce
 as

 be
for
e 

    Pr
es
en
ted

 to
 G
AR

M 
co
mm

itte
e w

ith
 Ac

co
un
ts 
in 

Se
pte

mb
er 
ea
ch
 ye

ar 
co
mp

lyin
g w

ith
 st
atu

tor
y 

tim
eta

ble
  

CG
G/
SD

 
CC

 
13

/6/
11

 
 

  Ob
jec

tiv
e 8

: R
ep

or
t to

 ca
bin

et 
/ e

xe
cu

tiv
e c

om
mi

tte
e 

St
ep

 1:
 In

 su
pp

or
t o

f o
bje

cti
ve
 8 

– A
n a

nn
ua

l re
po

rt 
to 

the
 au

th
or
ity

 (o
r d

ele
ga

ted
 co

mm
itte

e) 
on

 th
e A

nn
ua

l G
ov

ern
an

ce
 St

ate
me

nt 
is 
pr
es
en

ted
, in

 
ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w
ith

 th
e C

IPF
A 
pr
o f

or
ma

 
  

Ex
am

ple
s o

f 
as

su
ran

ce
: 

FA
N 

Su
gg

es
ted

 Ev
ide

nc
ed

 by
: 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

8.1
 

Re
sp
on
sib
ility

 fo
r 

rep
ort
ing

 is
 

cle
arl
y d
efi
ne
d 

Ini
tia
l re

po
rt e

xp
lai
nin

g t
he
 

req
uir
em

en
t to

 pr
od
uc
e a

n a
nn
ua
l 

go
ve
rna

nc
e a

ss
ura

nc
e s

tat
em

en
t 

inc
orp

ora
tin
g t
he
 SI
C 
sh
ou
ld 

es
tab

lish
 th
e r
ep
ort
ing

 
arr
an
ge
me

nts
 / r
es
po
ns
ibi
litie

s o
f a
ll 

inv
olv
ed
 an

d s
et 
ou
t w
ho
 sh

ou
ld 

sig
n t
he
 an

nu
al 
go
ve
rna

nc
e 

as
su
ran

ce
 st
ate

me
nt 
 af
ter
 ap

pro
va
l 

by
 th
e a

uth
ori
ty 
or 
de
sig
na
ted

 
co
mm

itte
e 

 Re
po
rts
 id
en
tify
ing

 an
y c
ha
ng
es
 to
 

ini
tia
l a
rra
ng
em

en
ts 

Ini
tia
l re

po
rt p

rep
are

d b
y S

M,
 IA
 ex

pla
ini
ng
 

req
uir
em

en
ts 
inc
lud

ed
 in
 G
ov
ern

an
ce
 U
pd
ate

 re
po
rt 

rep
ort
ed
 to
 C
SB

 an
d G

AR
M 
Ma

rch
 08

  
 No
 ch

an
ge
s t
o i
nit
ial
 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 

CG
G/
SD

 
SD

 08
/08

/11
 

 

8.2
 

Th
e r
ep
ort
 is
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
of 
the

 cu
rre
nt 
po
sit
ion
 

Dr
aft
 AG

S p
rep

are
d f
or 
en
d o

f J
un
e 2

01
1 a

nd
 in
clu
de
d 

CG
G/
SD

 
SD

 08
/08

/11
 

 

109



 

Pa
ge

 56
 of

 87
 

like
ly 
to 
be
 

pu
bli
sh
ed
 in
 a 

tim
ely
 fa
sh
ion

 
wit
h t
he
 st
atu

tor
y 

ac
co
un
ts 

in 
rel
ati
on
 to
 th
e s

tat
uto

ry 
de
ad
lin
e 

 
in 
dra

ft a
cc
ou
nts

.  S
ec
on
d d

raf
t to

 be
 pr
ep
are

d i
n t
im
e 

for
 G
AR

M 
me

eti
ng
 on

 6t
h S

ep
tem

be
r 2
01
1 –

 on
 ta
rge

t  

 Ap
ply

ing
 th

e C
IPF

A/
SO

LA
CE

 C
or

e P
rin

cip
les

 (In
 su

pp
or

t o
f o

bje
cti

ve
 1)

 
St
ep

 1 
- F

oc
us

ing
 on

 th
e p

ur
po

se
 of

 th
e a

uth
or
ity

 an
d o

n o
utc

om
es
 fo

r t
he

 co
mm

un
ity

 an
d c

rea
tin

g a
nd

 im
ple

me
nti

ng
 a 

vis
ion

 fo
r t
he

 lo
ca
l a

rea
 

  
Th

e 
co

de
 s

ho
uld

 
ref

lec
t 

the
 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 
loc

al 
au

tho
rit

ies
 

to:
 

 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 th
at 

ma
y 

be
 us

ed
 to

 de
mo

ns
tra

te 
co

mp
lia

nc
e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

9.1
 

De
ve
lop

 an
d 

pro
mo

te 
the

 
au
tho

rity
’s 
pu
rpo

se
 

an
d v

isio
n 

 

Us
ed
 as

 a 
ba
sis
 fo
r: 

 co
rpo

rat
e a

nd
 se

rvi
ce
 pl
an
nin

g 
 sh
ap
ing

 th
e c

om
mu

nit
y s
tra
teg

y 
 loc

al 
are

a o
r p
erf
orm

an
ce
 

ag
ree

me
nts

 
 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 vi
sio
n w

as
 es

tab
lish

ed
 th
rou

gh
 ex

ten
siv
e 

pu
bli
c c
on
su
lta
tio
n, 
the

 “L
ets

 Ta
lk”
 ex

erc
ise
, w
hic
h f
ed
 in
to 

a p
oli
tic
al 
pro

ce
ss
 cu

lm
ina
tin
g i
n t
he
 Le

ad
ers

 R
ep
ort
 w
hic
h 

ac
co
mp

an
ied

 th
e Y

ea
r A
he
ad
 St
ate

me
nt.
  T
he
 vi
sio
n i
s 

rev
isit
ed
 ea

ch
 ye

ar 
to 
as
se
ss
 its
 co

nti
nu
ed
 re
lev
an
ce
.  T

he
 

vis
ion

 is
 us

ed
 to
 ch

ec
k t
ha
t th

e c
orp

ora
te 
pri
ori
tie
s s
erv

e t
o 

mo
ve
 th
e a

uth
ori
ty 
in 
the

 rig
ht 
dir
ec
tio
n a

nd
 to
 as

sis
t in

 
ref
res

hin
g t
he
 Su

sta
ina

ble
 C
om

mu
nit
y S

tra
teg

y. 
 Ev

ide
nc
e 

of 
1.5

 

TW
(M
H)
/L

D 
 LD

 
6/7

/11
 

 
 

9.2
 

Re
vie
w 
on
 a 

reg
ula

r b
as
is 
the

 
au
tho

rity
’s 
vis
ion

 
for
 th
e l
oc
al 
are

a 
an
d i
ts 
im
pa
ct 
on
 

the
 au

tho
rity

’s 
go
ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 

 

 
Th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 vi
sio
n i
s r
ec
on
sid
ere

d a
s p

art
 of
 th
e 

Co
rpo

rat
e P

lan
nin

g p
roc

es
s e

ac
h y
ea
r.  
Ev
ide

nc
e –

Co
rpo

rat
e P

lan
s 2

00
8/1

1; 
20
09
/12

; 2
01
0/1

3, 
20
11
/12

 – 
for
 

las
t s
ee
 1.
5. 

 

TW
(M
H)
/L

D 
 LD

 
6/7

/11
 

 
 

9.3
 

En
su
re 
tha

t 
pa
rtn
ers

hip
s a

re 
un
de
rpi
nn
ed
 by

 a 
co
mm

on
 vis

ion
 of
 

the
ir w

ork
 th
at 
is 

un
de
rst
oo
d a

nd
 

ag
ree

d b
y a
ll 

Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 pr
oto

co
l 

 Go
ve
rna

nc
e C

od
e 

Ha
rro
w 
Str
ate

gic
 P
art
ne
rsh

ip 
de
ve
lop

ed
 th

e 
Su
sta

ina
ble

 
Co
mm

un
ity 

Str
ate

gy
 2
00
9 
– 
20
20
 w
hic
h 
se
ts 
a 
vis
ion

 fo
r 

the
 B
oro

ug
h. 

 It
 h
as
 a
lso
 d
ev
ise
d 
an
d 
ad
op
ted

 th
e 
LA
A 

wh
ich
 fo
rm
s a

 th
ree

 ye
ar 
pla

n h
elp

ing
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 th
e l
on
ge
r 

ter
m 
vis
ion
.  E

vid
en
ce
 – 
Su
sta

ina
ble

 C
om

mu
nit
y P

lan
 20

09
 

– 2
02
0 ,
 (1
.5)
, L
AA

 20
08
 – 
20
11
 

 

TW
(M
H)
/L

D 
 LD

 
6/7

/11
 

 
 

110



 

Pa
ge

 57
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e 
co

de
 s

ho
uld

 
ref

lec
t 

the
 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 
loc

al 
au

tho
rit

ies
 

to:
 

 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 th
at 

ma
y 

be
 us

ed
 to

 de
mo

ns
tra

te 
co

mp
lia

nc
e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

pa
rtie

s 
 

9.4
 

De
cid
e h

ow
 th
e 

qu
ali
ty 
of 
se
rvi
ce
 

for
 us

ers
 is
 to
 be

 
me

as
ure

d a
nd
 

ma
ke
 su

re 
tha

t th
e 

inf
orm

ati
on
 

ne
ed
ed
 to
 re
vie
w 

se
rvi
ce
 qu

ali
ty 

eff
ec
tive

ly 
an
d 

reg
ula

rly
 is
 

av
ail
ab
le 

  

Th
is 
inf
orm

ati
on
 is
 re
fle
cte

d i
n t
he
 

au
tho

rity
’s:
 

 co
rpo

rat
e p

lan
 

  me
diu
m 
ter
m 
str
ate

gy
 

  res
ou
rci
ng
 pl
an
 in
 or
de
r to

 en
su
re 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 

All
 di
rec

tor
ate

s a
re 
req

uir
ed
 to
 re
po
rt t
o r
ele

va
nt 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
bo
ard

 on
 th
eir
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 in
 m
ee
tin
g t
he
 

co
un
cil’
s c
orp

ora
te 
cu
sto

me
r s
erv

ice
 st
an
da
rds

. S
yst
em

s 
are

 in
 pl
ac
e t
o m

on
ito
r e
ac
h c

ha
nn
el,
 w
hic
h c

om
bin
es
 

tec
hn
olo

gic
al 
an
d m

an
ua
l m

ec
ha
nis
ms

.  M
on
ito
rin
g i
s a

lso
 

su
pp
ort
ed
 by

 co
un
cil 
wid

e m
yst
ery

 sh
op
pin

g e
xe
rci
se
s. 

 Se
rvi
ce
 us

ers
 ar
e c

on
su
lte
d a

bo
ut 
the

ir v
iew

s o
n t
he
 

se
rvi
ce
 re
ce
ive
d i
n a

 va
rie
ty 
of 
wa
ys.
 An

 ex
am

ple
 is
 th
e 

Ad
ult
 C
om

mu
nit
y C

are
 U
se
r (A

CC
U)
 su

rve
y. 

  

TW
(C
C)
/L

D 
LD
 

6/7
/11

 
 

 

9.5
 

Pu
t in

 pl
ac
e 

eff
ec
tive

 
arr
an
ge
me

nts
 to
 

ide
nti
fy 
an
d d

ea
l 

wit
h f
ail
ure

 in
 

se
rvi
ce
 de

live
ry 

 

co
mp

lai
nts

 pr
oc
ed
ure

 
As
 a 
ke
y c
ha
nn
el 
int
o t
he
 C
ou
nc
il’s
 se

rvi
ce
s A

cc
es
s H

arr
ow
 

ma
na
ge
s a

nd
 re
cti
fie
s s
erv

ice
 fa
ilur
es
 an

d i
s m

ee
tin
g i
ts 

tar
ge
t o
f re

so
lvin

g 8
0%

 of
 en

qu
irie
s a

t fi
rst
 co

nta
ct.
 In
 

ad
dit
ion

 fo
r a
rea

s w
he
re 
a r
es
ide

nt 
ma

y w
ish
 to
 ta
ke
 a 
mo

re 
for
ma

l ro
ute

 th
e C

orp
ora

te 
Co
mp

lain
ts 
pro

ce
ss
 an

d s
ys
tem

 
ha
s b

ee
n i
n p

lac
e f
or 
24
 m
on
ths

 an
d i
s u

se
d t
o r
ec
ord

, 
mo

nit
or 
an
d r
ep
ort
 on

 co
mp

lai
nts

 re
ce
ive
d b

y t
he
 co

un
cil.
 

Co
rpo

rat
e C

om
pla
int
s O

ffic
er 
cu
rre
ntl
y u
nd
ert
ak
ing
 a 
Le
an
 

rev
iew

 of
 co

mp
lain

ts.
  T
his
 w
ill i
nv
olv
e o

ng
oin

g c
on
su
lta
tio
n 

wit
h c

us
tom

ers
 in
 th
e f
orm

 of
 co
mp

lain
t s
urv

ey
s w

ith
 a 
vie
w 

to 
co
nti
nu
ou
sly
 im

pro
vin
g o

n p
erf
orm

an
ce
 se

rvi
ce
 de

live
ry .
 

 Se
rvi
ce
 im

pro
ve
me

nts
/le
ss
on
s a

ris
ing

 fro
m 
co
mp

lain
ts 
are

 
rep

ort
ed
 in
  c
om

pla
int
 re
po
rt t
o I
mp

rov
em

en
t B
oa
rds

    
 

  

TW
(C
C)
/L

M 
LM

 14
/06

/11
 

 

9.6
 

De
cid
e h

ow
 va

lue
 

for
 m
on
ey
 is
 to
 be

 
Th
e r
es
ult
s a

re 
ref
lec
ted

 in
 

au
tho

rity
’s 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 pl
an
s a

nd
 
Va
lue

 fo
r m

on
ey
: 

Th
e a

uth
ori
ty 
str
ive
s t
o d

eli
ve
r g
oo
d v

alu
e f
or 
mo

ne
y t
o i
ts 

TW
/LD

 
 LD

 
6/7

/11
 

 

111



 

Pa
ge

 58
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e 
co

de
 s

ho
uld

 
ref

lec
t 

the
 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 
loc

al 
au

tho
rit

ies
 

to:
 

 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 th
at 

ma
y 

be
 us

ed
 to

 de
mo

ns
tra

te 
co

mp
lia

nc
e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

me
as
ure

d a
nd
 

ma
ke
 su

re 
tha

t th
e 

au
tho

rity
 or
 

pa
rtn
ers

hip
 ha

s 
the

 in
for
ma

tio
n 

ne
ed
ed
 to
 re
vie
w 

va
lue
 fo
r m

on
ey
 

an
d p

erf
orm

an
ce
 

eff
ec
tive

ly.
 

Me
as
ure

 th
e 

en
vir
on
me

nta
l 

im
pa
ct 
of 
po
lici
es
, 

pla
ns
 an

d 
de
cis
ion

s. 
   

in 
rev

iew
ing

 th
e w

ork
 of
 th
e 

au
tho

rity
 

  

res
ide
nts

 by
 im

pro
vin
g p

erf
orm

an
ce
 an

d m
inim

isin
g c

os
ts.
 

 A w
ide

 ra
ng
e o

f v
fm
 be

nc
hm

ark
ing
 in
for
ma

tio
n i
s u

se
d e

.g.
 

Au
dit
 C
om

mi
ss
ion
 vf
m 
pro

file
 

CI
PF
A v

fm
 be

nc
hm

ark
ing
 to
ol 
 

Lo
nd
on
 C
ou
nc
il L
AP

S t
oo
l 

CI
PF
A b

en
ch
ma

rki
ng
 cl
ub
s –

 Be
ne
fits
, C
oll
ec
tio
ns
, IC

T, 
HR

, F
ina

nc
e, 
Ch
ildr
en
 

Do
H 
Us
e o

f R
es
ou
rce

s A
na
lys
is 
for
 So

cia
l C
are

 
Ho
us
em

ark
 Be

nc
hm

ark
ing
 C
lub

. 
 Th
is 
en
ab
les
 ea

ch
 di
rec

tor
ate

 to
 un

de
rst
an
d w

he
re 
co
sts
 

are
 hi
gh
 an

d f
ee
ds
 in
to 
vfm

 im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pla

ns
. 

 Un
de
rst
an
din

g o
f v
fm
 st
ren

gth
s a

nd
 w
ea
kn
es
se
s h

as
 be

en
 

fun
da
me

nta
l in
 H
arr
ow
’s 
eff
icie

nc
y d
riv
e a

nd
 in
 th
e 

tra
ns
for
ma

tio
n p

rog
ram

me
 th
at 
is 
cu
rre
ntl
y u
nd
erw

ay
. 

 Ea
ch
 C
orp

ora
te 
Dir
ec
tor
ate

 ha
s a

 VF
M 
Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pla

n 
wh
ich
 fo
rm
s p

art
 of
 th
eir
 Se

rvi
ce
 Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Pla

n. 
 

 Ca
bin

et 
rep

ort
 te
mp

lat
e h

as
 be

en
 up

da
ted

 to
 in
clu
de
 a 

qu
es
tio
n o

n E
nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 Im

pa
ct.
    
 

 

 

  Ap
ply

ing
 th

e C
IPF

A/
SO

LA
CE

 C
or

e P
rin

cip
les

 
St
ep

 2 
– M

em
be

rs 
an

d o
ffi
ce
rs 

wo
rki

ng
 to

ge
the

r t
o a

ch
iev

e a
 co

mm
on

 pu
rp
os

e w
ith

 cl
ea
rly

 de
fin

ed
 fu

nc
tio

ns
 an

d r
ole

s 
  

Th
e l

oc
al 

co
de

 sh
ou

ld 
ref

lec
t 

the
 re

qu
ire

me
nts

 fo
r lo

ca
l 

au
tho

rit
ies

 to
: 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 th
at 

ma
yb

e u
se

d t
o d

em
on

str
ate

 
co

mp
lia

nc
e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

10
.1 

   S
et 
ou
t a
 cl
ea
r s
tat
em

en
t o
f 

the
 re
sp
ec
tiv
e r
ole

s a
nd
 

co
ns
titu
tio
n 

rec
ord

 of
 de

cis
ion

s  
All
oc
ati
on
 o
f R

es
po
ns
ibi
litie

s 
of 

the
 e
xe
cu
tiv
e 
the

 
ind

ivid
ua
l m

em
be
rs 

are
 s
et 

ou
t i
n 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s
 
HP

/JF
 

JF
 – 
10
 Ju

ne
 

 

112



 

Pa
ge

 59
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 sh

ou
ld 

ref
lec

t 
the

 re
qu

ire
me

nts
 fo

r lo
ca

l 
au

tho
rit

ies
 to

: 
So

ur
ce

 do
cu

me
nts

/go
od

 
pr

ac
tic

e/o
the

r m
ea

ns
 th

at 
ma

yb
e u

se
d t

o d
em

on
str

ate
 

co
mp

lia
nc

e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

res
po
ns
ibi
litie

s o
f th

e e
xe
cu
tiv
e 

an
d o

f th
e e

xe
cu
tiv
e’s
 

me
mb

ers
 in
div
idu

all
y a
nd
 th
e 

au
tho

rity
’s 
ap
pro

ac
h t
ow
ard

s 
pu
ttin

g t
his
 in
to 
pra

cti
ce
 an

d 
co
mm

un
ica
tin
g t
his
 to
 

me
mb

ers
 of
 th
e p

ub
lic,
 al
l s
taf
f, 

sta
ke
ho
lde
rs 
an
d M

em
be
rs.
  

 

su
pp
ort
ing

 m
ate

ria
ls 

Co
ns
titu

tio
n. 
 M
em

be
rs 
mu

st 
co
mp

ly 
wit
h t
he
 co

de
 

of 
co
nd
uc
t (s

ee
 no

te 
at 
3.5

a) 
wh
ich
 is
 al
so
 se

t o
ut 
in 

the
 C
ou
nc
il’s
 C
on
sti
tut
ion

.  
Mi
nu
tes

 of
 al
l d
ec
isio

ns
 

ma
de
 b
y 
the

 e
xe
cu
tiv
e 
an
d 
ind

ivid
ua
l e

xe
cu
tiv
e 

me
mb

ers
 ar
e a

va
ila
ble

 on
 th
e i
ntr
an
et 
an
d i
nte

rne
t 

an
d r
ec
ord

s a
re 
ma

int
ain

ed
 by

 Le
ga
l &
 G
ov
ern

an
ce
 

Se
rvi
ce
s. 

 Ex
am

ple
 of
 M
inu

tes
 : 

Ca
bin

et 
(E
xe
cu
tiv
e) 

htt
p:/
/m
od
ern

go
v:8

08
0/i
eL
ist
Do
cu
me

nts
.as

px
?C
Id=

2
88
&M

Id=
60
27
3&
Ve
r=4

 
 Ind

ivid
ua
l E
xe
cu
tiv
e M

em
be
r (P

ort
fol
io 
Ho
lde

r) 
htt
p:/
/m
od
ern

go
v:8

08
0/m

gD
ele

ga
ted

De
cis
ion

s.a
sp
x?

XX
R=
0&
DR

=0
1%

2f0
1%

2f2
00
9-

30
%2

f07
%2

f20
09
&A

CT
=F
ind

&K
=0
&V

=0
&D

M=
0&
D

S=
2&
ME

TA
=m

gd
ele

ga
ted

de
cis
ion
s&
Ne
xt=

tru
e 

 htt
p:/
/m
od
ern

go
v:8

08
0/i
eL
ist
Do
cu
me

nts
.as

px
?C
Id=

6
84
&M

Id=
60
08
9&
Ve
r=4

 
  

 

10
.2 

  S
et 
ou
t a
 cl
ea
r s
tat
em

en
t o
f th

e 
res

pe
cti
ve
 ro
les
 an

d 
res

po
ns
ibi
litie

s o
f o
the

r 
au
tho

rity
 m
em

be
rs,
 m
em

be
rs 

ge
ne
ral
ly 
an
d o

f s
en
ior
 of
fic
ers

 
an
d c

om
mu

nic
ate

 th
is 
to 

me
mb

ers
 of
 th
e p

ub
lic,
 al
l s
taf
f, 

sta
ke
ho
lde
rs 
an
d M

em
be
rs .
 

 

co
ns
titu
tio
n 

co
nd
itio
ns
 of
 em

plo
ym
en
t 

Th
e r
ole
 of
 ot
he
r m

em
be
rs 
of 
the

 au
tho

rity
 is
 se

t o
ut 

in 
Ar
tic
le 
2 o

f th
e C

on
sti
tut
ion

.  T
he
 C
on
sti
tut
ion

 al
so
 

inc
lud

es
 
the

 
Co
de
 
of 

Co
nd
uc
t, 

Pr
oto

co
l 
on
 

Co
un
cill
or/
Of
fic
er 
Re
lat
ion

s a
nd
 th
e E

mp
loy
ee
 C
od
e 

of 
Co
nd
uc
t. 

 Ro
les
 o
f t
he
 C
orp

ora
te 

Str
ate

gy
 B
oa
rd 

are
 o
n 
the

 
co
un
cil’
s 

we
bs
ite
: 

htt
p:/
/w
ww

.ha
rro
w.g

ov
.uk

/in
fo/
20
01
52
/co

un
cil_

de
pa
rt

me
nts

/21
72
/ha

rro
w_
co
un
cil_

org
an
isa
tio
n_
an
d_
ma

na
ge
rs 

 Br
ief
 d
es
cri
pti
on
 o
f t
he
 ro

les
 o
f e

lec
ted

 M
em

be
rs 

an
d 

po
rtfo

lio
 h

old
er 

res
po
ns
ibi
litie

s 
are

 o
n 

the
 

co
un
cil’
s 

we
bs
ite
 

at 
the

 
fol
low

ing
 

lin
k: 

htt
p:/
/w
ww

.ha
rro
w.g

ov
.uk

/in
fo/
20
01
44
/co

un
cill
ors

-
inf
orm

ati
on
_a
nd
_a
dv
ice
 

HP
&J
T/L

C 
LC
 29

.6.
11
 

 

113



 

Pa
ge

 60
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 sh

ou
ld 

ref
lec

t 
the

 re
qu

ire
me

nts
 fo

r lo
ca

l 
au

tho
rit

ies
 to

: 
So

ur
ce

 do
cu

me
nts

/go
od

 
pr

ac
tic

e/o
the

r m
ea

ns
 th

at 
ma

yb
e u

se
d t

o d
em

on
str

ate
 

co
mp

lia
nc

e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

  
10
.3 

 D
ete

rm
ine
 a 
sc
he
me

 of
 

de
leg

ati
on
 an

d r
es
erv

e p
ow
ers

 
wit
hin

 th
e c

on
sti
tut
ion

, 
inc
lud

ing
 a 
for
ma

l s
ch
ed
ule

 of
 

tho
se
 m
att
ers

 sp
ec
ific
all
y 

res
erv

ed
 fo
r c
oll
ec
tiv
e d

ec
isio

n 
of 
the

 au
tho

rity
 ta
kin
g a

cc
ou
nt 

of 
rel
ev
an
t le

gis
lat
ion

 an
d 

en
su
re 
tha

t it
 is
 m
on
ito
red

 an
d 

up
da
ted

 w
he
n r
eq
uir
ed
 an

d 
co
mm

un
ica
te 
thi
s t
o m

em
be
rs 

of 
the

 pu
bli
c, 
all
 st
aff
, 

sta
ke
ho
lde
rs 
an
d M

em
be
rs.
 

 

sc
he
me

 of
 de

leg
ati
on
 

sta
tut
ory

 pr
ov
isio

ns
 

      
 

Re
lev
an
t i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 c
on
tai
ne
d 
in 
the

 C
on
sti
tut
ion

.  
De
leg

ati
on
s 
are

 re
vie
we
d 
an
d 
ap
pro

ve
d 
an
nu
all
y. 
 

Ma
tte
rs 
sp
ec
ific
all
y r
es
erv

ed
 fo
r c
ou
nc
il a

nd
 ca

bin
et 

are
 r
ev
iew

ed
 a

nd
 u

pd
ate

d 
in 

ac
co
rda

nc
e 

wit
h 

leg
isla

tio
n w

he
n i
ss
ue
d. 
 S
ee
 M
inu

tes
 of
 C
ou
nc
il 1

2 
Ma

y 2
01
1. 
   

 Th
e 

rem
ain
de
r 
of 

the
 c

on
sti
tut
ion

 i
s 

reg
ula

rly
 

rev
iew

ed
 an

d u
pd
ate

s r
ec
om

me
nd
ed
 to
 C
ou
nc
il f
or 

ap
pro

va
l.  

Re
po
rts
 a
nd
 m

inu
tes

 o
f t
he
 C
RW

G 
are

 
av
ail
ab
le.
  

 

HP
/JF

 
JF
 – 
10
 Ju

ne
 

 

10
.4 

Ma
ke
 a 
ch
ief
 ex

ec
uti
ve
 or
 

eq
uiv
ale

nt 
res

po
ns
ibl
e a

nd
 

ac
co
un
tab

le 
to 
the

 au
tho

rity
 fo
r 

all
 as

pe
cts
 of
 op

era
tio
na
l 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 

job
 de

sc
rip
tio
ns
/sp

ec
ific
ati
on
 

Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

sys
tem

 
   

MB
: C
E i
s t
he
 H
ea
d o

f P
aid

 Se
rvi
ce
 

  
JT
&T
W/
L

C 
LC
 27

.6.
11
 

 

10
.5 

 D
ev
elo

p p
rot
oc
ols
 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t th

e l
ea
de
r a
nd
 ch

ief
 

ex
ec
uti
ve
 (o
r e
qu
iva
len

t) 
ne
go
tia
te 
the

ir r
es
pe
cti
ve
 ro
les
 

ea
rly
 in
 th
e r
ela

tio
ns
hip

 an
d t
ha
t 

a s
ha
red

 un
de
rst
an
din

g o
f ro

les
 

an
d o

bje
cti
ve
s i
s m

ain
tai
ne
d 

ne
w c

hie
f e
xe
cu
tiv
e a

nd
 

lea
de
r p
air
ing

 co
ns
ide
r h
ow
 

be
st 
to 
es
tab

lish
 an

d m
ain
tai
n 

eff
ec
tive

 co
mm

un
ica
tio
n 

  

No
 pr
oto

co
ls 
cu
rre
ntl
y i
n p

lac
e -
 A
 m
ee
tin
g i
s b

ein
g 

arr
an
ge
d 
wit
h 
the

 C
hie

f E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
to 

dis
cu
ss
 it
 –
 

Mo
nit
ori
ng
 of
fic
er 
ch
as
ing
. 

HP
/JF

 
JF
 – 
10
 Ju

ne
 

GA
P 

20
09
/10

 
c/f
 

20
10
/11

 
CG

G 
ag
ree

d 
ga
p 

09
/08

/11
 – 

Mo
nit
ori
ng
 

off
ice
r to

 
pro

vid
e 

ve
rba

l 
up
da
te 
for
 

GA
RM

  
06
/09

/11
 

10
.6 

Ma
ke
 a 
se
nio

r o
ffic
er 
(us

ua
lly 

Se
cti
on
 15

1 r
es
po
ns
ibi
litie

s 
Ro
le 
of 
S1
51
 of
fic
er 
is 
allo

ca
ted

 to
 in
ter
im
 D
ire
cto

r o
f 

JA
&J
T/J

LC
 27

.6.
11
 

 

114



 

Pa
ge

 61
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 sh

ou
ld 

ref
lec

t 
the

 re
qu

ire
me

nts
 fo

r lo
ca

l 
au

tho
rit

ies
 to

: 
So

ur
ce

 do
cu

me
nts

/go
od

 
pr

ac
tic

e/o
the

r m
ea

ns
 th

at 
ma

yb
e u

se
d t

o d
em

on
str

ate
 

co
mp

lia
nc

e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

the
 se

cti
on
 15

1 o
ffic
er)
 

res
po
ns
ibl
e t
o t
he
 au

tho
rity

 fo
r 

en
su
rin
g t
ha
t a
pp
rop

ria
te 
ad
vic
e 

is 
giv
en
 on

 al
l fi
na
nc
ial
 m
att
ers

, 
for
 ke

ep
ing
 pr
op
er 
fin
an
cia
l 

rec
ord

s a
nd
 ac

co
un
ts,
 an

d f
or 

ma
int
ain

ing
 an

 ef
fec

tive
 sy
ste

m 
of 
int
ern

al 
fin
an
cia
l c
on
tro
l. 

 

S1
12
/11

4 L
oc
al 
Go

v’t
 

Fin
an
ce
 Ac

t 1
98
8 

Sta
tut
ory

 pr
ov
isio

n 
Sta

tut
ory

 re
po
rts
 

bu
dg
et 
do
cu
me

nta
tio
n 

job
 de

sc
rip
tio
n/s

pe
cif
ica
tio
n 

   

Fin
an
ce
 a
nd
 su

pp
ort
ed
 b
y c

on
sti
tut
ion

 an
d s

ch
em

e 
of 
de
leg

ati
on
. 

 Se
e f
ina

nc
ial
 re
gu
lat
ion
s 

H 

10
.7 

 M
ak
e a

 se
nio

r o
ffic
er 
(ot
he
r 

tha
n t
he
 R
es
po
ns
ibl
e F

ina
nc
ial 

Of
fic
er)
 e.
g. 
the

 M
on
ito
rin
g 

Of
fic
er,
  re

sp
on
sib
le 
to 
the

 
au
tho

rity
 fo
r e
ns
uri
ng
 th
at 

ag
ree

d p
roc

ed
ure

s a
nd
 

pro
toc

ols
 ar
e f
oll
ow
ed
 an

d t
ha
t 

all
 ap

pli
ca
ble

 st
atu

tes
, 

reg
ula

tio
ns
 ar
e c

om
pli
ed
 w
ith
 

an
d p

ub
lici
se
 th
e r
ole

 of
 th
is 

off
ice
r to

 m
em

be
rs 
of 
the

 pu
bli
c, 

all
 st
aff
, s
tak

eh
old
ers

 an
d 

Me
mb

ers
.  

 Re
co
gn
ise
 th
e l
im
its
 of
 la
wf
ul 

ac
tio
n a

nd
 ob

se
rve

 bo
th 
the

 
sp
ec
ific
 re
qu
ire
me

nts
 of
 

leg
isla

tio
n a

nd
 th
e g

en
era

l 
res

po
ns
ibi
litie

s p
lac
ed
 on

 lo
ca
l 

au
tho

riti
es
 by

 pu
bli
c l
aw
 an

d i
n 

pa
rtic

ula
r to

 in
teg

rat
e t
he
 ke

y 
pri
nc
ipl
es
 of
 go

od
 ad

mi
nis
tra
tiv
e 

law
 – 
rat
ion

ali
ty,
 le
ga
lity
 an

d 
na
tur
al 
jus
tic
e i
nto

 th
eir
 

pro
ce
du
res

 an
d d

ec
isio

n m
ak
ing
 

pro
ce
ss
es
. 

 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 of
fic
er 
pro

vis
ion

s 
Sta

tut
ory

 pr
ov
isio

n 
job

 de
sc
rip
tio
n/s

pe
cif
ica
tio
n 

co
ns
titu
tio
n 

  

Sta
tut
ory

 M
on
ito
rin
g 
Of
fic
er 

pro
vis
ion
s c

on
tai
ne
d 
in 

Pa
rt 

3 
of 

the
 C

on
sti
tut
ion

. 
Sta

tut
ory

 M
on
ito
rin
g 

Of
fic
er 
fun

cti
on
s t
o r
ep
ort
 on

 lik
ely
 co

ntr
av
en
tio
n o

f 
an
y e

na
ctm

en
t o
r r
ule
 o
f la

w. 
 C
hie
f a
nd
 S
tat
uto

ry 
Of
fic
ers

 
are

 
req

uir
ed
 
to 

co
mp

ly 
wit
h 

co
un
cil 

pro
ce
du
ral
 ru
les
 (a
s e

vid
en
ce
d i
n t
he
 C
on
sti
tut
ion

).  
 

 Ro
le 

pro
file
 f
or 

the
 m

on
ito
rin
g 
off
ice
r 
is 

in 
the

 
co
ns
titu
tio
n a

t: 
htt
p:/
/w
ww

.ha
rro
w.g

ov
.uk

/do
wn
loa

ds
/fil
e/7

99
3/p

art
_3

a1
-te
rm
s_
of_

ref
ere

nc
e_
sc
he
du
le 

  De
cis
ion

 m
ak
ing
 re
po
rts
 ar
e c

lea
red

 by
 or
 on

 be
ha
lf 

of 
the

 M
on
ito
rin
g O

ffic
er.
 

    

HP
&J
T/J

F 
JF
 – 
10
 Ju

ne
 

 

10
.8 

 D
ev
elo

p p
rot
oc
ols
 to
 en

su
re 

eff
ec
tive

 co
mm

un
ica
tio
n a

nd
 

cle
ar 
un
de
rst
an
din

g b
etw

ee
n 

Me
mb

er/
off
ice
r p
rot
oc
ol 

  
Co
de
 of
 C
on
du
ct 
an
d t
he
 Pr
oto

co
l o
n C

ou
nc
illo
r-

Of
fic
er 
Re
lat
ion
s s
et 
ou
t in

 Pa
rt 5

 of
 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 

Co
ns
titu

tio
n. 

HP
/JF

 
JF
 – 
10
 Ju

ne
 

 

115



 

Pa
ge

 62
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 sh

ou
ld 

ref
lec

t 
the

 re
qu

ire
me

nts
 fo

r lo
ca

l 
au

tho
rit

ies
 to

: 
So

ur
ce

 do
cu

me
nts

/go
od

 
pr

ac
tic

e/o
the

r m
ea

ns
 th

at 
ma

yb
e u

se
d t

o d
em

on
str

ate
 

co
mp

lia
nc

e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

me
mb

ers
 an

d o
ffic
ers

 in
 th
eir
 

res
pe
cti
ve
 ro
les
 

 Le
ad
ers

hip
 G
rou

p (
inf
orm

al 
me

eti
ng
 of
 ca

bin
et 
an
d 

CS
B)
 

Re
lat
ion

sh
ip 
be
tw
ee
n P

ort
fol
io 
Ho
lde

r a
nd
 ch

ief
 

off
ice
r 

 
10
.9 

 Se
t o
ut 
the

 te
rm
s a

nd
 

co
nd
itio
ns
 fo
r re

mu
ne
rat
ion

 of
 

me
mb

ers
 an

d o
ffic
ers

 an
d a

n 
eff
ec
tive

 st
ruc

tur
e f
or 
ma

na
gin

g 
the

 pr
oc
es
s i
nc
lud

ing
 an

 
eff
ec
tive

 re
mu

ne
rat
ion

 pa
ne
l (i
f 

ap
pli
ca
ble

) 

Pa
y a
nd
 co

nd
itio
ns
 po

lici
es
 

an
d p

rac
tic
es
 

Th
e c

ou
nc
il s
ala

ry 
sc
ale
s a

re 
se
t n
ati
on
all
y –
 lo
ca
l 

ap
pli
ca
tio
n i
s b

y a
 Si
ng
le 
Sta

tus
 ag

ree
me

nt 
 fo
r jo

bs
 

be
low

 C
hie

f O
ffic
er 
sta

tus
.  F

or 
Ch
ief
 O
ffic
ers

, lo
ca
l 

ap
pli
ca
tio
n o

f g
rad

es
 is
 de

ter
mi
ne
d b

y t
he
 D
ivis

ion
al 

Dir
ec
tor
 of
 H
RD

 in
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
  

Th
e s

ing
le 
sta

tus
 ag

ree
me

nt 
is 
fou

nd
 on

 th
e i
ntr
an
et 

at:
 ht
tp:
//h
arr
ow
hu
b/d

ow
nlo

ad
s/f
ile/
55
4/s

ing
le_

sta
tus

 
  Jo
b e

va
lua

tio
n i
s c
arr
ied

 ou
t b
y H

RD
, U
NI
SO

N 
an
d 

GM
B f
or 
job

s o
n g

rad
es
 H
1 t
o H

11
; jo

b e
va
lua

tio
n i
s 

ca
rrie

d o
ut 
by
 a 
Pa
ne
l o
f H
R 
Ad
vis
ers

 an
d 

ind
ep
en
de
ntl
y v
ali
da
ted

 by
 th
e O

rga
nis
ati
on
al 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
Ma

na
ge
r fo

r g
rad

es
 ab

ov
e H

11
.  

De
tai
ls 
of 
the

 jo
b e

va
lua

tio
n p

roc
ed
ure

s a
re 
av
ail
ab
le 

on
 th
e i
ntr
an
et:
 

htt
p:/

/ha
rro

wh
ub
/in

fo/
20

01
38

/re
wa

rds
_a
nd
_p

ay
me

nts
/31

2
/gl

pc
_jo

b_
ev
alu

ati
on

 
 Al
low

an
ces

 fo
r M

em
be
rs 
are

 pu
bli

she
d o

n t
he
 Co

un
cil
’s 

int
ran

et 
at:
 

htt
p:/

/w
ww

.ha
rro

w.
go
v.u

k/d
ow

nlo
ad
s/f
ile
/81

92
/m

em
be
rs

_a
llo

wa
nc
es_

lea
fle

t_2
01

0-1
1 

  

JT
/LC

 
LC
 27

.6.
11
 

  
 

116



 

Pa
ge

 63
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 sh

ou
ld 

ref
lec

t 
the

 re
qu

ire
me

nts
 fo

r lo
ca

l 
au

tho
rit

ies
 to

: 
So

ur
ce

 do
cu

me
nts

/go
od

 
pr

ac
tic

e/o
the

r m
ea

ns
 th

at 
ma

yb
e u

se
d t

o d
em

on
str

ate
 

co
mp

lia
nc

e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

10
.10

 
 W
he
n w

ork
ing
 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

en
su
re 
tha

t m
em

be
rs 
are

 cl
ea
r 

ab
ou
t th

eir
 ro
les
 an

d 
res

po
ns
ibi
litie

s b
oth

 in
div
idu

all
y 

an
d c

oll
ec
tiv
ely
 in
 re
lat
ion

 to
 th
e 

pa
rtn
ers

hip
 an

d t
o t
he
 au

tho
rity
 

 

Pr
oto

co
ls 
for
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

wo
rki
ng
. F
or 
ea
ch
 

pa
rtn
ers

hip
 th
ere

 is
: 

 
 

cla
rity

 of
 ea

ch
 pa

rtn
er’
s r
ole

 
wit
hin

 th
e p

art
ne
rsh

ip 
 

 
de
fin
itio
n o

f ro
les
 of
 

pa
rtn
ers

hip
 bo

ard
 m
em

be
rs 

 
 

lin
e m

an
ag
em

en
t 

res
po
ns
ibi
litie

s f
or 
sta

ff w
ho
 

su
pp
ort
 th
e p

art
ne
rsh

ip 
 

 
a s

tat
em

en
t o
f fu

nd
ing

 
so
urc

es
 fo
r jo

int
 pr
oje

cts
 an

d 
cle
ar 
ac
co
un
tab

ility
 fo
r p
rop

er 
fin
an
cia
l a
dm

inis
tra
tio
n 

 a p
rot
oc
ol 
for
 di
sp
ute

 
res

olu
tio
n w

ith
in 
the

 
pa
rtn
ers

hip
 

 (N
B f
rom

 sp
ec
ial 
rep

ort
 ‘ 

Lo
ca
l P
art
ne
rsh

ips
 an

d 
Cit
ize
n R

ed
res

s b
y L
GO

 ) 
  (S
ee
 al
so
 ap

pe
nd
ix 
B1
 & 
B2
 

of 
thi
s r
ou
gh
 gu

ide
 – 

Pa
rtn
ers

hip
s s
ug
ge
ste

d 
ap
pro

ac
h a

nd
 

de
ter
mi
na
tio
n) 

Th
ere

 ar
e c

lea
r ‘g

ov
ern

an
ce
’ a
rra
ng
em

en
ts 
in 
pla

ce
 

for
 si
gn
ific
an
t p
art
ne
rsh

ips
.  F

or 
ex
am

ple
, th

e 
Co
ns
titu

tio
n f
or 
the

 H
arr
ow
 St
rat
eg
ic 
Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 

(up
da
ted

 in
 Ju

ly 
20
11
) a
nd
 re
lev
an
t C
ap
ita
 (B
us
ine
ss
 

Tra
ns
for
ma

tio
n P

art
ne
rsh

ip)
 co

ntr
ac
t s
ch
ed
ule

s a
re 

att
ac
he
d..
 Th

e r
ole

s a
nd
 st
ruc

tur
e o

f th
e P

art
ne
rsh

ip 
bo
die

s h
av
e b

ee
n r
ev
ise
d t
o r
ec
og
nis
e t
he
 ab

oli
tio
n 

of 
LA
As
 an

d t
o f
oc
us
 m
ore

 on
 ou

tco
me

s. 
 Se

e r
ep
ort
 

to 
Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 Bo

ard
 Ju

ly 
20
11
 

 Als
o s

ee
 re
po
rt t
o H

arr
ow
 C
hie
f E
xe
cu
tiv
e’s
 re
 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pla

nn
ing

, a
lso
 25

 Se
pte

mb
er 
20
09
. 

  Als
o t
he
 Pr
op
ert
y &

 In
fra
str
uc
tur
e g

ov
ern

an
ce
 

str
uc
tur
es
, te

rm
s o
f re

fer
en
ce
 an

d d
isp
ute

s 
pro

ce
ss
es
 ar
e i
nc
lud

ed
 re
fer
en
ce
 th
e K

ier
s a

nd
 

En
ter
pri
se
 M
ou
ch
el 
str
ate

gic
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
s 

  

TW
(M
H)
/

LD
 

LD
 

6/7
/11

 
        

 

10
.11

 
Wh

en
 wo

rki
ng
 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
: 

 
- e
ns
ure

 th
at 
the

re 
is 
cla
rity

 
ab
ou
t th

e l
eg
al 
sta

tus
 of
 th
e 

pa
rtn
ers

hip
 

- e
ns
ure

 th
at 

rep
res

en
tat
ive
s o

r 
org

an
isa
tio
ns
 bo

th 
un
de
rst
an
d a

nd
 m
ak
e c

lea
r 

        

Th
e c

on
sti
tut
ion
 of
 H
arr
ow
 St
rat
eg
ic 
Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 

ma
ke
s c
lea
r th

e l
im
its
 on

 co
lle
cti
ve
 de

cis
ion

 m
ak
ing
 

an
d t
he
 w
he
n t
he
re 
is 
a n

ee
d f
or 
pa
rtn
er 

org
an
isa
tio
na
l e
nd
ors

em
en
t.  
 

  

TW
 

(M
H)
/LD

 
LD
 

6/7
/11

 
 

 

117



 

Pa
ge

 64
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 sh

ou
ld 

ref
lec

t 
the

 re
qu

ire
me

nts
 fo

r lo
ca

l 
au

tho
rit

ies
 to

: 
So

ur
ce

 do
cu

me
nts

/go
od

 
pr

ac
tic

e/o
the

r m
ea

ns
 th

at 
ma

yb
e u

se
d t

o d
em

on
str

ate
 

co
mp

lia
nc

e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

to 
all
 ot
he
r p
art
ne
rs 
the

 
ex
ten

t o
f th

eir
 au

tho
rity

 to
 

bin
d t
he
ir o

rga
nis
ati
on
 to
 

pa
rtn
er 
de
cis
ion

s. 
 Ap

ply
ing

 th
e C

IPF
A/

SO
LA

CE
 C

or
e P

rin
cip

les
 

St
ep

 3 
– P

ro
mo

tin
g v

alu
es

 fo
r t
he

 au
tho

rit
y a

nd
 de

mo
ns

tra
tin

g t
he

 va
lue

s o
f g

oo
d g

ov
ern

an
ce

 th
ro
ug

h u
ph

old
ing

 hi
gh

 st
an

da
rd
s o

f c
on

du
ct 

an
d 

be
ha

vio
ur
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Th
e l

oc
al 

co
de

 
sh

ou
ld 

ref
lec

t 
the

 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

for
 lo

ca
l 

au
tho

rit
ies

 to
: 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 th
at 

ma
y 

be
 us

ed
 to

 de
mo

ns
tra

te 
co

mp
lia

nc
e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

11
.1 

En
su
re 
tha

t th
e 

au
tho

rity
’s 

lea
de
rsh

ip 
se
ts 

a t
on
e f
or 
the

 
org

an
isa
tio
n b

y 
cre

ati
ng
 a 

clim
ate

 of
 

leg
itim

ac
y, 

op
en
ne
ss
, 

su
pp
ort
, re

sp
ec
t 

an
d 

ac
co
un
tab

ility
. 

Pr
om

oti
ng
 va

lue
s f
or 
the

 au
tho

rity
 

an
d d

em
on
str
ati
ng
 th
e v

alu
es
 of
 

go
od
 go

ve
rna

nc
e t
hro

ug
h 

up
ho
ldi
ng
 hi
gh
 st
an
da
rds

 of
 

co
nd
uc
t a
nd
 be

ha
vio
ur 

 

Co
de
 of
 co

nd
uc
t a
nd
 st
an
da
rds

 co
mm

itte
e 

 Ne
w 
Co
un
cil 
va
lue

s a
gre

ed
 by

 C
ab
ine

t in
 S
ep
tem

be
r 2
00
8 

– 
de
ve
lop

ed
 th

rou
gh
 w

ork
sh
op
s 
wit
h 
me

mb
ers

, s
en
ior
 

ma
na
ge
rs,
 m
an
ag
ers

 an
d s

taf
f a
s w

ell 
as
 w
ith
 th
e u

nio
ns
 

an
d s

elf
-or
ga
nis
ed
 gr
ou
ps
. T
he
y a

re 
on
 th
e i
ntr
an
et 
at 
the

 
fol
low

ing
 lin
k: 

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
.ha

rro
w.
go
v.u
k/i
nfo

/20
01
39
/w
ork

for
ce
_p
lan

nin
g_
an
d_
org

an
isa
tio
na
l_d

ev
elo

pm
en
t/2
60
/cr
ea
te_

the
_c
ou

nc
ils_

va
lue
s 

  Cr
ea
te 
va
lue

s a
re 
we
ll k
no
wn
 to
 st
aff
 an

d p
rom

ote
d b

y t
he
 

co
un
cil’
s l
ea
de
rsh

ip.
 

  

JT
/LC

 
LC
 27

/6/
11
 

 

11
.2 

Pu
t in

 pl
ac
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 to
 

en
su
re 
tha

t 
me

mb
ers

 an
d 

em
plo

ye
es
 of
 

the
 au

tho
rity

 ar
e 

    

Th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 C
on
sti
tut
ion

 re
fer
s, 
pa
rtic

ula
rly
 se

cti
on
 on

 
Me

mb
er 
an
d O

ffic
er 
Co
de
s o

f C
on
du
ct,
 Pl
an
nin

g P
rot
oc
ol,
 

Co
ntr
ac
t a
nd
 Fi
na
nc
ial
 pr
oc
ed
ure

 ru
les
.   

 Re
gis
ter
 on

 in
ter
es
ts 
is 
ma

int
ain

ed
 fo
r M

em
be
rs 
wh
ich
 is
 

av
ail
ab
le 
on
 th
e i
ntr
an
et.
  A
 re
gis
ter
 of
 gi
fts
 an

d h
os
pit
ali
ty 

HP
/JF

 
JF
 – 
10
 Ju

ne
 

 

118



 

Pa
ge

 65
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 

sh
ou

ld 
ref

lec
t 

the
 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 lo
ca

l 
au

tho
rit

ies
 to

: 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 th
at 

ma
y 

be
 us

ed
 to

 de
mo

ns
tra

te 
co

mp
lia

nc
e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

no
t in

flu
en
ce
d 

by
 pr
eju

dic
e, 

bia
s o

r c
on
flic
ts 

of 
int
ere

st 
in 

de
ali
ng
 w
ith
 

dif
fer
en
t 

sta
ke
ho
lde
rs 

an
d p

ut 
in 
pla
ce
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 
pro

ce
ss
es
 to
 

en
su
re 
tha

t th
ey
 

co
nti
nu
e t
o 

op
era

te 
in 

pra
cti
ce

 

is 
als
o m

ain
tai
ne
d a

nd
 is
 av

ail
ab
le 
or 
ins
pe
cti
on
.   
Of
fic
ers

 
Re
gis
ter
 of
 In
ter
es
t w
hic
h i
nc
lud

es
 gi
fts
 an

d h
os
pit
ali
ty 
is 

ma
int
ain
ed
 by

 th
e C

orp
ora

te 
Dir
ec
tor
s a

nd
 is
 av

ail
ab
le 
for
 

ins
pe
cti
on
. 

 Un
de
r th

e L
oc
ali
sm

 Bi
ll, 
the

 C
ou
nc
il w

ill n
o l
on
ge
r n
ee
d a

 
sta

nd
ard

s c
om

mi
tte
e. 
 A 
wo
rki
ng
 gr
ou
p h

as
 be

en
 se

t u
p t
o 

de
cid
e: 
1) 
if w

e n
ee
d a

 st
an
da
rds

 co
mm

itte
e; 
2) 
co
de
 of
 

co
nd
uc
t; a

nd
 3)
 w
ha
t to

 do
 ab

ou
t b
rea

ch
es
 of
 th
e c

od
e i
f it
 

is 
de
cid
ed
 to
 re
tai
n o

ne
.  U

nd
er 
the

 Lo
ca
lism

 Bi
ll w

e s
till 

ha
ve
 to
 up

ho
ld 
hig

h s
tan

da
rds

 bu
t th

e B
ill d

oe
s n

ot 
pro

vid
e 

for
 a 
me

ch
an
ism

 fo
r b
rea

ch
es
 ex

ce
pt 
in 
the

 ve
ry 
se
rio
us
 

ca
se
s w

he
re 
it w

ill b
e a

 cr
im
ina
l o
ffe
nc
e n

ot 
to 
de
cla
re 
an
 

int
ere

st.
 

119



 

Pa
ge

 66
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 

sh
ou

ld 
ref

lec
t 

the
 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 lo
ca

l 
au

tho
rit

ies
 to

: 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 th
at 

ma
y 

be
 us

ed
 to

 de
mo

ns
tra

te 
co

mp
lia

nc
e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

11
.3 

Pu
t in

 pl
ac
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 to
 

en
su
re 
tha

t 
pro

ce
du
res

 an
d 

op
era

tio
ns
 ar
e 

de
sig
ne
d i
n 

co
nfo

rm
ity 
wit
h 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 
eth

ica
l 

sta
nd
ard

s, 
an
d  

mo
nit
or 
the

ir 
co
nti
nu
ing

 
eff
ec
tive

ne
ss
 in
 

pra
cti
ce

 

sta
nd
ing

 or
de
rs 

co
de
s o

f c
on
du
ct 

fin
an
cia
l re

gu
lat
ion

s 
     

Co
ntr
ac
t P

roc
ed
ure

 R
ule

s (
se
e 3

.2)
, F
ina
nc
ial 

Re
gu
lat
ion

s 
(se

e 3
.1)
, E
mp

loy
ee
 C
od
e o

f C
on
du
ct 
an
d M

em
be
rs 
Co
de
 

of 
Co
nd
uc
t a
ll in

 pl
ac
e, 

 Re
sp
on
sib
ility

 fo
r m

on
ito
rin
g t
he
se
 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 re
sts
 w
ith
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
(ex

ce
pt 
Me

mb
ers

 C
od
e).
 

 Co
nti
nu
ing

 e
ffe
cti
ve
ne
ss
 m

on
ito
red

 v
ia 

IPA
Ds
 li
nk
ed
 to

 
CR

EA
TE
 fra

me
wo
rk 
+ c

od
e o

f c
on
du
ct.
 

JA
/SD

 
CC

 13
/6/
11
 

 

120



 

Pa
ge

 67
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 

sh
ou

ld 
ref

lec
t 

the
 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 lo
ca

l 
au

tho
rit

ies
 to

: 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 th
at 

ma
y 

be
 us

ed
 to

 de
mo

ns
tra

te 
co

mp
lia

nc
e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

11
.4 

De
ve
lop

 an
d 

ma
int
ain
 an

 
eff
ec
tive

 
sta

nd
ard

s 
co
mm

itte
e w

ith
 

a s
uit
ab
le 
pro

file
 

an
d p

ub
lici
se
 its
 

rol
e a

nd
 

ob
jec
tiv
es
 an

d 
rel
ev
an
t 

ou
tco

me
s t
o 

me
mb

ers
 of
 th
e 

pu
bli
c, 
all
 st
aff
, 

sta
ke
ho
lde
rs 

an
d M

em
be
rs.
 

 

Co
de
s o

f c
on
du
ct 

Te
rm
s o

f R
efe

ren
ce
 

Mi
nu
tes

 of
 M
ee
tin
gs

 
Te
rm
s o

f R
efe

ren
ce
 fo
r th

e S
tan

da
rds

 C
om

mi
tte
e a

nd
 its
 

Su
b-C

om
mi
tte
es
 ar
e c

on
tai
ne
d i
n t
he
 C
on
sti
tut
ion
.  T

he
 

Sta
nd
ard

s C
om

mi
tte
e h

as
 4 
sc
he
du
led

 m
ee
tin
gs
 an

d 
sp
ec
ial
 m
ee
tin
gs
 w
ill b

e a
rra
ng
ed
 w
he
n n

ec
es
sa
ry.
  D
ate

s 
of 
me

eti
ng
 ca

n b
e f
ou
nd
 in
 th
e C

om
mi
tte
e C

ale
nd
ar 
an
d 

Co
rpo

rat
e C

ale
nd
ar 
av
ail
ab
le 
on
 th
e i
ntr
an
et.
   T

he
 Su

b-
Co
mm

itte
es
 m
ee
t a
s a

nd
 w
he
n n

ec
es
sa
ry.
 

 A S
tan

da
rds

 C
om

mi
tte
e h

as
 be

en
 de

ve
lop

ed
 ho

we
ve
r th

is 
do
es
 no

t c
urr
en
tly
 ha

ve
 a 
su
ita
ble

 pr
ofi
le 
an
d i
ts 
rol
e a

nd
 

ob
jec
tiv
es
 an

d r
ele

va
nt 
ou
tco

me
s a

re 
no
t p
ub
lici
se
d t
o t
he
 

pu
bli
c, 
sta

ff, 
sta

ke
ho
lde
rs 
an
d m

em
be
rs.
   

 Un
de
r th

e L
oc
ali
sm

 Bi
ll, 
the

 C
ou
nc
il w

ill n
o l
on
ge
r b
e 

req
uir
ed
 to
 ha

ve
 a 
sta

nd
ard

s c
om

mi
tte
e. 
 Th

e e
ffe
cti
ve
 da

te 
is 
like

ly 
to 
be
 ar
ou
nd
 Ap

ril 
20
12
.   
A w

ork
ing
 gr
ou
p h

as
 

be
en
 se

t u
p t
o d

ec
ide

: 1
) if
 w
e n

ee
d a

 st
an
da
rds

 co
mm

itte
e; 

2) 
co
de
 of
 co

nd
uc
t; a

nd
 3)
 w
ha
t to

 do
 ab

ou
t b
rea

ch
es
 of
 th
e 

co
de
 if 
it i
s d

ec
ide

d t
o r
eta

in 
on
e. 
 U
nd
er 
the

 Lo
ca
lism

 Bi
ll 

we
 st
ill h

av
e t
o u

ph
old

 hi
gh
 st
an
da
rds

 bu
t th

e B
ill d

oe
s n

ot 
pro

vid
e f
or 
a m

ec
ha
nis
m 
for
 br
ea
ch
es
 ex

ce
pt 
in 
the

 ve
ry 

se
rio
us
 ca

se
s w

he
re 
it w

ill b
e a

 cr
im
ina
l o
ffe
nc
e n

ot 
to 

de
cla
re 
an
 in
ter
es
t.  

HP
/JF

 
JF
 – 
10
 Ju

ne
 

         

11
.5 

 In
 pu

rsu
ing

 th
e 

vis
ion

 of
 a 

pa
rtn
ers

hip
, 

ag
ree

 a 
se
t o
f 

va
lue
s a

ga
ins
t 

wh
ich
 de

cis
ion

 
ma

kin
g a

nd
 

ac
tio
ns
 ca

n b
e 

jud
ge
d. 
Su
ch
 

va
lue
s m

us
t b
e 

de
mo

ns
tra
ted

 
by
 pa

rtn
ers

’ 
be
ha
vio
ur 
bo
th 

ind
ivid

ua
lly 
an
d 

ter
ms

 of
 re
fer
en
ce
 

reg
ula

r re
po
rtin

g t
o t
he
 

au
tho

rity
 

Att
ac
he
d 
do
cu
me

nt 
at 

10
.12

 o
n 
the

 H
arr
ow
 S

tra
teg

ic 
Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 re

fer
s 
at 

Ap
pe
nd
ix 
B 
to 

ad
op
tin
g 
the

 N
ola

n 
pri
nc
ipl
es
 

  

TW
(M
H)
/

LC
 

 
 

121



 

Pa
ge

 68
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 

sh
ou

ld 
ref

lec
t 

the
 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 lo
ca

l 
au

tho
rit

ies
 to

: 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 th
at 

ma
y 

be
 us

ed
 to

 de
mo

ns
tra

te 
co

mp
lia

nc
e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

co
llec

tiv
ely
. 

 Ap
ply

ing
 th

e C
IPF

A/
SO

LA
CE

 C
or

e P
rin

cip
les

 
St
ep

 4 
– T

ak
ing

 in
for

me
d a

nd
 tr
an

sp
are

nt 
de

cis
ion

s w
hic

h a
re 

su
bje

ct 
to 

eff
ec
tiv

e s
cru

tin
y a

nd
 m

an
ag

ing
 ris

k 
  

Th
e l

oc
al 

co
de

 
sh

ou
ld 

ref
lec

t 
the

 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

for
 lo

ca
l 

au
tho

rit
ies

 to
: 

So
ur

ce
 

do
cu

me
nts

/go
od

 
pr

ac
tic

e/o
the

r 
me

an
s 

tha
t 

ma
y 

be
 

us
ed

 
to 

de
mo

ns
tra

te 
co

mp
lia

nc
e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

12
.1 

 
De
ve
lop

 an
d 

ma
int
ain
 an

 
eff
ec
tive

 sc
rut
iny
 

fun
cti
on
 w
hic
h 

en
co
ura

ge
s 

co
ns
tru
cti
ve
 

ch
all
en
ge
 an

d 
en
ha
nc
es
 th
e 

org
an
isa
tio
n’s
  

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

ov
era

ll a
nd
 of
 

an
y o
rga

nis
ati
on
 

for
 wh

ich
 it 
is 

res
po
ns
ibl
e. 

 

 
Th
e s

cru
tin
y f
un
cti
on
 co

mp
ris
es
 an

 ov
erv

iew
 an

d s
cru

tin
y 

co
mm

itte
e, 
a p

erf
orm

an
ce
 an

d f
ina

nc
e s

ub
 co

mm
itte
e, 
a 

he
alt
h a

nd
 so

cia
l c
are

 su
b c

om
mi
tte
e a

nd
 le
ad
 sc
rut
iny
 

co
un
cill
ors

 fo
r a
du
lt h

ea
lth
 an

d s
oc
ial
 ca

re,
 ch

ild
ren

 an
d 

yo
un
g p

eo
ple

, s
afe

r a
nd
 st
ron

ge
r c
om

mu
nit
ies
, s
us
tai
na
ble

 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
an
d e

nte
rpr
ise
 an

d c
orp

ora
te 
eff
ec
tive

ne
ss
.   

 Th
e f
un
cti
on
 is
 dr
ive
n b

y t
he
 ne

ed
 to
 ho

ld 
the

 co
un
cil 
an
d 

ou
r p
art
ne
rs 
to 
ac
co
un
t fo

r th
eir
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 an

d t
he
 

es
tab

lish
me

nt 
of 
the

 pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 an

d f
ina
nc
e s

ub
 

co
mm

itte
e a

s t
he
 dr
ive
r o
f s
cru

tin
y is

 a 
ke
y c
om

po
ne
nt 
in 

en
su
rin
g t
ha
t th

e f
un
cti
on
 is
 fo
cu
se
d o

n t
he
 is
su
es
 of
 th
e 

gre
ate

st 
im
po
rta
nc
e t
o t
he
 co

un
cil.
  T
he
 le
ad
 m
em

be
rs 

en
su
re 
tha

t e
xp
ert
ise
 to
 ta
ck
le 
pa
rtic

ula
r a
rea

s o
f s
erv

ice
 

de
live

ry 
is 
ma

int
ain

ed
. 

 Th
e s

tru
ctu

re 
is 
su
bje

ct 
to 
reg

ula
r re

vie
w 
an
d i
s s
up
po
rte
d 

by
 m
ee
tin
g o

f th
e s

cru
tin
y le

ad
ers

hip
 gr
ou
p, 
co
mp

ris
ing
 th
e 

lea
ds
 an

d t
he
 ch

air
s a

nd
 vi
ce
 ch

air
s o

f th
e c

om
mi
tte
es
, 

wh
ich
 co

ns
ide
rs 
ag
en
da
 an

d r
ev
iew

 pr
og
ram

me
s, 
pro

vid
es
 

str
ate

gic
 di
rec

tio
n f
or 
the

 fu
nc
tio
n a

nd
 ov

era
ll c
o-o

rdi
na
tio
n 

be
tw
ee
n t
he
 le
ad
s a

nd
 co

mm
itte
es
 

  

TW
/LD

 
LD
 

6/7
/11

 
                

 

122



 

Pa
ge

 69
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 

sh
ou

ld 
ref

lec
t 

the
 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 lo
ca

l 
au

tho
rit

ies
 to

: 

So
ur

ce
 

do
cu

me
nts

/go
od

 
pr

ac
tic

e/o
the

r 
me

an
s 

tha
t 

ma
y 

be
 

us
ed

 
to 

de
mo

ns
tra

te 
co

mp
lia

nc
e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

12
.2 

 D
ev
elo

p a
nd
 

ma
int
ain
 op

en
 

an
d e

ffe
cti
ve
 

me
ch
an
ism

s f
or 

do
cu
me

nti
ng
 

ev
ide

nc
e f
or 

de
cis
ion

s a
nd
 

rec
ord

ing
 th
e 

cri
ter
ia,
 ra
tio
na
le 

an
d 

co
ns
ide
rat
ion

s o
n 

wh
ich
 de

cis
ion

s 
are

 ba
se
d t
ha
t is
 

cle
ar 
an
d 

tra
ns
pa
ren

t to
 

me
mb

ers
 of
 th
e 

pu
bli
c, 
all
 st
aff
, 

sta
ke
ho
lde
rs 
an
d 

Me
mb

ers
. 

 

 
Pr
oc
ed
ura

l R
ule

s c
on
tai
ne
d i
n t
he
 C
on
sti
tut
ion

 re
qu
ire
 th
e 

Ch
air
 of
 ea

ch
 m
ee
tin
g t
o s

ign
 th
e m

inu
tes

 of
 th
e p

rev
iou

s 
me

eti
ng
.  A

 D
em

oc
rat
ic 
Se
rvi
ce
s o

ffic
er 
wh
o a

tte
nd
s a

ll 
me

eti
ng
s o

f th
e c

ou
nc
il w

ill r
ec
ord

 th
e m

inu
tes

 of
 th
e 

me
eti
ng
.  A

rtic
le 
13
 of
 th
e C

on
sti
tut
ion

 se
ts 
ou
t th

e 
pri
nc
ipl
es
 of
 de

cis
ion

 m
ak
ing
 of
 al
l d
ec
isio

ns
 of
 th
e c

ou
nc
il. 
 

De
cis
ion

s (
mi
nu
tes

) a
re 
pu
blis

he
d o

n t
he
 in
tra
ne
t a
nd
 

int
ern

et.
  M

inu
tes

 ar
e r
eta

ine
d f
or 
6 y
ea
rs.
 

 Mi
nu
tes

 av
ail
ab
le 
on
 in
tra
ne
t/in

ter
ne
t a
nd
 pa

pe
r c
op
ies
 

av
ail
ab
le 
fro
m 
libr
ari
es
. 

 

HP
/JF

 
JF
-10

 Ju
ne
 

 

12
.3 

 Pu
t in

 pl
ac
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 to
 

sa
feg

ua
rd 

me
mb

ers
 an

d 
em

plo
ye
es
 

ag
ain

st 
co
nfl
ict
s 

of 
int
ere

st 
an
d 

pu
t in

 pl
ac
e 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 
pro

ce
ss
es
 to
 

en
su
re 
tha

t th
ey
 

co
nti
nu
e t
o 

op
era

te 
in 

pra
cti
ce
 

Sc
rut
iny
 is
 su

pp
ort
ed
 by

 ro
bu
st 

ev
ide

nc
e a

nd
 da

ta 
an
aly
sis
 

 
Th
e M

em
be
r a
nd
 O
ffic
er 
Co
de
 of
 C
on
du
ct 
wh
ich
 is
 in
 Pa

rt 5
 

of 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s
 co

ns
titu

tio
n r
efe

rs 
(pl
ea
se
 se

e n
ote

 3.
5a
)   

A r
eg
ist
er 
is 
als
o m

ain
tai
ne
d o

f in
ter
es
t re

gis
ter
ed
 by

 
me

mb
ers

 (w
hic
h i
s o

pe
n t
o p

ub
lic 
ins
pe
cti
on
) a
nd
 O
ffic
ers

 
wh
ich
 is
 av

ail
ab
le 
for
 in
sp
ec
tio
n b

y S
en
ior
 of
fic
ers

 
 Co
rpo

rat
e D

ire
cto

rs 
co
mm

un
ica
te 
to 
the

ir s
taf
f in

for
ma

tio
n 

on
 re
qu
ire
me

nts
 on

 th
em

 to
 de

cla
re 
an
y c
on
flic
ts 
of 
int
ere

st 
an
nu
all
y.  

HP
&J
T/J

F 
JF
 – 
10
 Ju

ne
 

 

123



 

Pa
ge

 70
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 

sh
ou

ld 
ref

lec
t 

the
 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 lo
ca

l 
au

tho
rit

ies
 to

: 

So
ur

ce
 

do
cu

me
nts

/go
od

 
pr

ac
tic

e/o
the

r 
me

an
s 

tha
t 

ma
y 

be
 

us
ed

 
to 

de
mo

ns
tra

te 
co

mp
lia

nc
e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

 
12
.4 

De
ve
lop

 an
d 

ma
int
ain
 an

 
eff
ec
tive

 au
dit
 

co
mm

itte
e (
 or
 

eq
uiv
ale

nt 
) 

wh
ich
 is
 

ind
ep
en
de
nt 
 or
 

ma
ke
 ot
he
r 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 
arr
an
ge
me

nts
 fo
r 

the
 di
sc
ha
rge

 of
 

the
 fu
nc
tio
ns
 of
 

su
ch
 a 
co
mm

itte
e 

 

de
cis
ion

 m
ak
ing
 pr
oto

co
ls 
rec

ord
 

of 
de
cis
ion
s a

nd
 su

pp
ort
ing

 
ma

ter
ials

 
 

GA
RM

 –
 e
xp
an
de
d 
ter
ms

 o
f 
ref
ere

nc
e 
(se

e 
2.2

) 
an
d 

me
mb

ers
hip
 (s

ee
 m

inu
tes

), 
tra
ini
ng
 a
nd
 d
ev
elo

pm
en
t f
or 

me
mb

ers
. 

 De
cis
ion

s 
rec

ord
ed
 i
n 

mi
nu
tes

 +
 s

up
po
rtin

g 
ma

ter
ial
 

pre
se
nte

d  
  

DW
/SD

 
  

CC
 13

/6/
11
 

 

12
.5 

En
su
re 
tha

t th
os
e 

ma
kin
g d

ec
isio

ns
 

wh
eth

er 
for
 th
e 

au
tho

rity
 or
 

pa
rtn
ers

hip
 ar
e 

pro
vid
ed
 w
ith
 

inf
orm

ati
on
 th
at 

is 
fit 
for
 th
e 

pu
rpo

se
 – 

rel
ev
an
t, t
im
ely
 

an
d g

ive
s c
lea

r 
ex
pla

na
tio
ns
 of
 

tec
hn
ica
l is
su
es
 

an
d t
he
ir 

im
plic

ati
on
s. 

 

ter
ms

 of
 re
fer
en
ce
 

me
mb

ers
hip
 

tra
ini
ng
 fo
r c
om

mi
tte
e  

me
mb

ers
 

  

Co
mm

itte
e 
rep

ort
 te

mp
lat
e 
an
d 
pro

ce
ss
 le

ad
ing

 u
p 
to 

co
mm

itte
es
 (D

MT
, C

SB
, c
lea
ran

ce
 w
ith
 le
ga
l, f
ina
nc
e a

nd
 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 et
c) 
inc
lud

ed
 in
 th
e a

tta
ch
ed
 lin
k: 

 htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
.ha

rro
w.
go
v.u
k/i
nfo

/20
02
09
/m
em

be
rs_

an
d_

co
mm

itte
es
/29

3/r
ep
ort
_w
riti
ng
_fo

r_c
ou
nc
il_
ca
bin

et_
oth

er_
c

om
mi
tte
es
pa
ne
ls_
an
d_
po
rtfo

lio_
ho
lde

rs/
4 

  Ke
y P

erf
orm

an
ce
 In
dic
ato

rs  
 

JT
&H

P&
DW

&M
H/

LC
 

JF
 – 
10
 Ju

ne
 

 

124



 

Pa
ge

 71
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 

sh
ou

ld 
ref

lec
t 

the
 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 lo
ca

l 
au

tho
rit

ies
 to

: 

So
ur

ce
 

do
cu

me
nts

/go
od

 
pr

ac
tic

e/o
the

r 
me

an
s 

tha
t 

ma
y 

be
 

us
ed

 
to 

de
mo

ns
tra

te 
co

mp
lia

nc
e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

12
.6 

En
su
re 
tha

t 
pro

fes
sio
na
l 

ad
vic
e o

n 
ma

tte
rs 
tha

t h
av
e 

leg
al 
or 
fin
an
cia
l 

im
plic

ati
on
s i
s 

av
ail
ab
le 
an
d 

rec
ord

ed
 w
ell
 in
 

ad
va
nc
e o

f 
de
cis
ion

 m
ak
ing
 

an
d u

se
d 

ap
pro

pri
ate

ly 

co
mp

lai
nts

 pr
oc
ed
ure

 
me

mb
ers

’ in
du
cti
on
 sc
he
me

 
tra
ini
ng
 fo
r c
om

mi
tte
e c

ha
irs

 
rec

ord
 of
 de

cis
ion

 m
ak
ing
 an

d 
su
pp
ort
ing

 m
ate

ria
ls 

    

All
 re

po
rts
 a
re 

cle
are

d 
by
 o
r o

n 
be
ha
lf 
of 

the
 M
on
ito
rin
g 

Of
fic
er 

an
d 
the

 C
hie

f F
ina

nc
e 
Of
fic
er.
  
So
me

 tr
ain

ing
 is
 

do
ne
 
wit
h 

me
mb

ers
 
an
d 

off
ice
rs 

fro
m 

the
 
Le
ga
l 

De
pa
rtm

en
t. 
La
wy
ers

 a
re 

en
ga
ge
d 
in 

the
 p
rep

ara
tio
n 
of 

rep
ort
s o

n p
lan

nin
g m

att
ers

 an
d a

tte
nd
 th
e i
nit
ial
 br
ief
ing
s 

wit
h 
me

mb
ers

 to
 e
ns
ure

 a
ny
 c
on
ce
rns

 a
re 

ad
dre

ss
ed
 

be
for
e C

om
mi
tte
e m

ee
tin
gs
. 

   

HP
&J
A&

JT
/JF

 
JF
 – 
10
 Ju

ne
 

 

12
.7 

 En
su
re 
tha

t ri
sk
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
is 

em
be
dd
ed
 in
to 

the
 cu

ltu
re 
of 
the

 
org

an
isa
tio
n ,
 

wit
h m

em
be
rs 

an
d m

an
ag
ers

 at
 

all
 le
ve
ls 

rec
og
nis
ing
 th
at 

ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t 

is 
pa
rt o

f th
eir
 jo
b 

 

ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t p
rot
oc
ol 

fin
an
cia
l s
tan

da
rds

 an
d r
eg
ula
tio
ns
 

 
Em

be
dd
ed
ne
ss
 of
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t (s

ee
 2.
10
) 

 Ha
rro
w’s

 Fi
na
nc
ial
 re
gu
lat
ion

s –
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t s
ec
tio
n 

(se
e 2

.5 
an
d 3

.1)
 

 Ris
k M

an
ag
em

en
t S
tra
teg

y o
utl
ine

s r
isk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t ro

les
 

an
d r
es
po
ns
ibi
litie

s f
or 
all
 M
em

be
rs,
 m
an
ag
ers

 an
d o

ffic
ers

, 
inc
lud

ing
 pa

rtn
ers

 (s
ee
 2.
1) 

 Ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t tr
ain
ing

 (s
ee
 2.
6) 

 

DW
/N
B 

NB
 10

.06
.11

 
 

  Ap
ply

ing
 th

e C
IPF

A/
SO

LA
CE

 C
or

e P
rin

cip
les

 
St
ep

 5 
- D

ev
elo

pin
g t

he
 ca

pa
cit

y a
nd

 ca
pa

bil
ity

 of
 m

em
be

rs 
an

d o
ffic

ers
 to

 be
 ef

fec
tiv

e 
 

125



 

Pa
ge

 72
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 sh

ou
ld 

ref
lec

t th
e r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 lo
ca

l a
uth

or
itie

s t
o: 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 
tha

t m
ay

 be
 us

ed
 to

 
de

mo
ns

tra
te 

co
mp

lia
nc

e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

13
.1 

Pr
ov
ide

 in
du
cti
on
 

pro
gra

mm
es
 ta
ilor
ed
 to
 

ind
ivid

ua
l n
ee
ds
 an

d 
op
po
rtu
nit
ies
 fo
r 

me
mb

ers
 an

d o
ffic
ers

 to
 

up
da
te 
the

ir k
no
wle

dg
e 

on
 a 
reg

ula
r b
as
is 

 

tra
ini
ng
 an

d d
ev
elo

pm
en
t 

pla
n 

ind
uc
tio
n p

rog
ram

me
 

up
da
te 
co
urs

es
/in
for
ma

tio
n 

 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 

on
 

ind
uc
tio
n 

se
ss
ion
s 

an
d 

Me
mb

er 
De
ve
lop

me
nt 
Pr
og
ram

me
 is
 re
fer
en
ce
d a

t 1
.18

. 
 Se
e 1

3.3
 fo
r o
the

r d
ev
elo

pm
en
t 

  

JT
/LC

 
LC
 29

.6.
11
 

 

13
.2 

En
su
re 
tha

t th
e s

tat
uto

ry 
off
ice
rs 
ha
ve
 th
e s

kill
s, 

res
ou
rce

s a
nd
 su

pp
ort
 

ne
ce
ss
ary

 to
 pe

rfo
rm
 

eff
ec
tive

ly 
in 
the

ir r
ole

s 
an
d t
ha
t th

es
e r
ole

s a
re 

pro
pe
rly
 un

de
rst
oo
d 

thr
ou
gh
ou
t th

e 
org

an
isa
tio
n  

 

Jo
b d

es
cri
pti
on
 

/pe
rso

na
l s
pe
cif
ica
tio
ns
 

me
mb

ers
hip
 of
 to
p 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
tea

m 
 

Pr
oto

co
l to

 su
pp
ort
 S1

51
 an

d m
on
ito
rin
g o

ffic
er 
rol
es
 

 All
 4 
sta

tut
ory

 of
fic
ers

 re
po
rt d

ire
ctl
y t
o t
he
 C
E  

 Ex
pe
rie
nc
ed
 pe

op
le 
in 
po
st 

 Ro
les
 w
ell
 un

de
rst
oo
d b

y m
em

be
rs 

JT
/LC

 
LC
 29

.6.
11
 

 

13
.3 

As
se
ss
 th
e s

kill
s r
eq
uir
ed
 

by
 m
em

be
rs 
an
d o

ffic
ers

 
an
d m

ak
e a

 co
mm

itm
en
t 

to 
de
ve
lop

 th
os
e s

kill
s t
o 

en
ab
le 
rol
es
 to
 be

 ca
rrie

d 
ou
t e
ffe
cti
ve
ly 
an
d r
ec
ord

 
an
d e

va
lua

te 
the

se
.  

 

Tra
inin

g d
ev
elo

pm
en
t p
lan

 
 

Me
mb

er 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
pro

gra
mm

e –
 se

e r
efe

ren
ce
d a

t 1
.18

 
Re
gu
lar
 re
po
rts
 ar
e p

rov
ide

d t
o t
he
 M
em

be
r D

ev
elo

pm
en
t 

Pa
ne
l e
va
lua

tin
g a

ny
 de

ve
lop
me

nt 
pro

vid
ed
 an

d i
nc
lud

ing
 

op
tio
ns
 fo
r fu

tur
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
t:  

htt
p:/
/m
od
ern

go
v:8

08
0/i
eL
ist
Do
cu
me

nts
.as

px
?C
Id=

28
6&
MI

d=
60
30
6&
Ve
r=4

 
 Le
ad
ers

hip
 p
rog

ram
me

 a
nd
 M

an
ag
em

en
t 
De
ve
lop

me
nt 

Pr
og
ram

me
 (r
efe

ren
ce
d 
at 

1.1
3 
an
d 
1.1

9) 
– 
the

se
 w

ill 
co
nti
nu
e t
o b

e d
es
ign

ed
 to
 re
fle
ct 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s
 va

lue
s a

nd
 

to 
me

et 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 e
thi
ca
l 
sta

nd
ard

s. 
 A

 C
orp

ora
te 

Le
ad
ers

hip
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t p
rog

ram
me

 co
mm

en
ce
d i
n 2

01
0 

an
d 
co
nc
lud

ed
 in
 M
ay
 2
01
1. 
 T
his
 w
as
 d
eli
ve
red

 b
y t
he
 

Of
fic
e f
or 
Pu
bli
c M

an
ag
em

en
t.  
Ev
alu

ati
on
 of
 th
es
e e

ve
nts

 
ha
ve
 be

en
 m
ad
e. 

 Dir
ec
tor
ate

 
Le
arn

ing
 
an
d 

De
ve
lop
me

nt 
Pla

ns
 
are

 
es
tab

lish
ed
 t
hro

ug
h 

W
ork

for
ce
 S

tra
teg

y 
Gr
ou
ps
 a

nd
 

en
su
re 

the
 ‘g

old
en
 th

rea
d’ 

be
tw
ee
n 
Co
un
cil 

vis
ion

 a
nd
 

ob
jec
tiv
es
, 
thr
ou
gh
 t
o 
Se
rvi
ce
 P

lan
nin

g 
an
d 
ind

ivid
ua
l 

JT
/LC

 
LC
 29

.6.
11
 

 

126



 

Pa
ge

 73
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 sh

ou
ld 

ref
lec

t th
e r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 lo
ca

l a
uth

or
itie

s t
o: 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 
tha

t m
ay

 be
 us

ed
 to

 
de

mo
ns

tra
te 

co
mp

lia
nc

e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

ob
jec
tiv
es
 fo
r s
taf
f. 

 Th
e 
Co
rpo

rat
e 
tra
ini
ng
 p
rog

ram
me

 fo
r s

taf
f i
s 
pu
bli
sh
ed
 

an
nu
all
y 
– 
for
 2
01
0/1

1, 
no
 b
roc

hu
re 

wa
s 
pro

du
ce
d 
bu
t 

inf
orm

ati
on
 c
irc
ula
ted

 re
gu
lar
ly 

thr
ou
gh
 C

om
mu

nic
ati
on
s 

Ne
ws
let
ter
s t
o s

taf
f.  
 

 E-
lea

rni
ng
 a
va
ila
ble

 to
 a
ll 
thr
ou
gh
 in

tra
ne
t a

nd
 is
 b
ein

g 
ex
ten

de
d i
n 2

01
0/1

1 t
o c

ov
er 
a b

roa
de
r r
an
ge
 of
 su

bje
cts
, 

e.g
. ri
sk
:  

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
/in
fo/
20
02
10
/co

urs
es
_q
ua
lific

ati
on
s_
an
d_
e

ve
nts

/30
1/h

arr
ow
_e
-le
arn

ing
_z
on
e/1

 
 Co
urs

eb
oo
ke
r, a

 ne
w 
on
lin
e s

yst
em

 w
as
 la
un
ch
ed
 in
 A
pri
l 

20
10
 w
hic
h a

llo
ws
 st
aff
 to
 vi
ew
 al
l c
orp

ora
te 
co
urs

es
, a
nd
 

fro
m 
No
ve
mb

er 
20
10
, w

as
 av

ail
ab
le 
for
 on

-lin
e b

oo
kin
g b

y 
sta

ff. 
 Le
arn

ing
 
an
d 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

Str
ate

gy
 
an
d 

Pla
nn
ing

 
fra
me

wo
rk 

ag
ree

d 
Au
gu
st 

20
09
: 

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
.ha

rro
w.
go
v.u
k/i
nfo

/20
01
31
/le
arn

ing
_a
nd
_

de
ve
lop

me
nt/
36
1/l
ea
rni
ng
_a
nd
_d
ev
elo

pm
en
t_f
ram

ew
ork

_
an
d_
str
ate

gy
 

  
13
.4 

De
ve
lop

 sk
ills
 on

 a 
co
nti
nu
ing

 ba
sis
 to
 

im
pro

ve
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 

inc
lud

ing
 th
e a

bil
ity
 to
 

sc
rut
inis

e a
nd
 ch

all
en
ge
 

an
d t
o r
ec
og
nis
e w

he
n 

ou
tsi
de
 ex

pe
rt a

dv
ice
 is
 

ne
ed
ed
   

 

tra
ini
ng
 an

d d
ev
elo

pm
en
t 

pla
n r
efl
ec
t re

qu
ire
me

nts
 of
 

a m
od
ern

 co
un
cill
or 

inc
lud

ing
: 

the
 ab

ility
 to
 sc
rut
ini
se
 an

d 
ch
all
en
ge
 

the
 ab

ility
 to
 re
co
gn
ise
 

wh
en
 ou

tsi
de
 ad

vic
e i
s 

req
uir
ed
 

ad
vic
e o

n h
ow
 to
 ac

t a
s a

n 
am

ba
ss
ad
or 
for
 th
e 

co
mm

un
ity 

lea
de
rsh

ip 
an
d i
nfl
ue
nc
ing

 
sk
ills
 

Th
e M

em
be
r D

ev
elo

pm
en
t P
rog

ram
me

 co
nti
nu
ed
 th
rou

gh
 

20
10
.11

.  D
eta

ils 
of 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
are

 on
 th
e c

ou
nc
il’s
 

int
ran

et 
at:
 

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
.ha

rro
w.
go
v.u
k/i
nfo

/20
02
48
/m
em

be
r_d

ev
el

op
me

nt 
 Ch
an
ge
s w

ere
 m
ad
e i
n 2

01
0/1

1 t
o t
he
 de

sig
n a

nd
 de

live
ry 

of 
Me

mb
er 
De
ve
lop
me

nt 
– H

RD
 w
ill c

on
tin
ue
 to
 be

 
res

po
ns
ibl
e f
or 
the

 pr
ofe

ss
ion

al 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
the

 
Pr
og
ram

me
 an

d D
em

oc
rat
ic 
Se
rvi
ce
s t
o i
t’s
 de

live
ry.
 

 A r
ep
ort
 is
 be

ing
 pr
es
en
ted

 to
 th
e M

em
be
r D

ev
elo

pm
en
t 

Pa
ne
l, t
he
 fir
st 
un
de
r th

e n
ew
 ad

mi
nis
tra
tio
n, 
in 
Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10
 on

 th
e p

rog
ram

me
 fo
r 2
01
0/1

1 a
nd
 be

yo
nd
: 

JT
/LC

 
LC
 29

.6.
11
 

 

127



 

Pa
ge

 74
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 sh

ou
ld 

ref
lec

t th
e r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 lo
ca

l a
uth

or
itie

s t
o: 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 
tha

t m
ay

 be
 us

ed
 to

 
de

mo
ns

tra
te 

co
mp

lia
nc

e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

 
htt
p:/
/m
od
ern

go
v:8

08
0/i
eL
ist
Do
cu
me

nts
.as

px
?C
Id=

28
6&
MI

d=
60
30
3&
Ve
r=4

 
  E-
lea

rni
ng
 is
 av

ail
ab
le 
to 
all
 M
em

be
rs 
us
ing
 th
e L

ea
rni
ng
 

Po
ol 
se
rvi
ce
s a

t th
e f
oll
ow
ing

 lin
k: 
  

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
/in
fo/
20
02
48
/m
em

be
r_d

ev
elo

pm
en
t/5
82
/e_

e-l
ea
rni
ng
 

  
13
.6 

 
Th
ere

 ar
e r
ed
uc
ed
 or
 

ma
na
ge
d s

kill
 an

d 
ca
pa
cit
y g
ap
s, 
wit
h 

eff
ec
tive

 ap
pro

ac
he
s t
o 

rec
rui
tm
en
t, f
or 
ex
am

ple
 

e-r
ec
rui
tm
en
t o
r ta

rge
ted

 
rec

rui
tm
en
t a
im
ed
 at
 

un
de
r-r
ep
res

en
ted

 
gro

up
s, 
an
d t
he
 co

un
cil 

pro
ac
tiv
ely
 m
ark

ets
 its
elf
 

as
 an

 em
plo

ye
r o
f c
ho
ice
. 

Th
e c

ou
nc
il f
ull
y u
tilis

es
 

an
d p

rom
ote

s i
ts 
tal
en
t 

thr
ou
gh
 a 
tal
en
t 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
ap
pro

ac
h 

an
d u

nd
ert
ak
es
 ef
fec

tive
 

su
cc
es
sio
n p

lan
nin

g. 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
arr
an
ge
me

nts
 re
fle
ct 

pri
ori
tie
s a

nd
 ha

ve
 a 

str
on
g c

us
tom

er 
an
d 

co
mm

un
ity 
foc

us
 to
 

su
pp
ort
 ne

w 
pa
tte
rns

 of
 

se
rvi
ce
 de

live
ry.
 Th

e 
co
un
cil 
rec

og
nis
es
 an

d 
rew

ard
s h

igh
 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 of
 te
am

s 
an
d i
nd
ivid

ua
ls.
  

 D
ata

 an
d a

na
lys
is 

un
de
rpi
nn
ing

 w
ork

for
ce
 

str
ate

gie
s a

nd
 pl
an
s, 
for
 

ex
am

ple
, a
na
lys
is 
of 
the

 
fut
ure

 de
ma

nd
 fo
r 

se
rvi
ce
s, 
po
pu
lat
ion

 
ch
an
ge
, th

e w
ork

for
ce
 

pro
file
, s
kill
s p

rof
ile
, 

for
ec
as
t n
ee
ds
, a
nd
 ga

ps
.  

 • 
Ex
am

ple
s o

f 
be
nc
hm

ark
ing
 an

d 
bu
sin
es
s i
mp

rov
em

en
t 

ac
tiv
ity
 to
 im

pro
ve
 

wo
rkf
orc

e p
rod

uc
tiv
ity
.  

 • 
Ex
am

ple
s o

f 
org

an
isa
tio
na
l c
ha
ng
e, 

inc
lud

ing
 vi
ew
s o

f s
taf
f 

im
pa
cte

d b
y c
ha
ng
e. 
 

 • 
Pe
op
le 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
po
lici
es
, fo

r e
xa
mp

le,
 

div
ers

ity
 an

d e
qu
ali
ty 

em
plo

ym
en
t p
oli
cy
, 

mi
sc
on
du
ct,
 gr
iev
an
ce
, 

bu
llyi
ng
 an

d h
ara

ss
me

nt,
 

me
dia
tio
n, 
we
ll-b

ein
g, 

he
alt
h a

nd
 sa

fet
y, 
co
de
 of
 

co
nd
uc
t a
nd
 si
ck
ne
ss
 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il e
nte

red
 a 
pe
rio
d o

f s
ign

ific
an
tly
 re
du
ce
d 

rec
rui
tm
en
t a
cti
vit
y (
red

uc
tio
n i
n t
he
 nu

mb
er 
of 

ap
po
int
me

nts
 to
 D
ire
cto

rat
es
 by
 75

% 
be
tw
ee
n 2

00
8/0

9 a
nd
 

20
10
/11

) a
nd
 co

mm
en
ce
d a

 pe
rio
d o

f re
du
cin
g t
he
 si
ze
 of
 

the
 w
ork

for
ce
.  T

he
 m
ajo

rity
 of
 re
cru

itm
en
t a
dv
ert
isin

g i
s 

on
-lin

e. 
  

 In 
co
mp

let
ing

 th
e f
irs
t W

ork
for
ce
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
for
 th
e 

Co
mp

reh
en
siv
e A

rea
 As

se
ss
me

nt 
in 
Ma

rch
 20

10
, th

ere
 

we
re 
a r
an
ge
 of
 ex

am
ple
s w

he
re 
the

 co
un
cil 
ha
d 

de
mo

ns
tra
ted

 im
pro

ve
me

nts
 ag

ain
st 
the

 ra
ng
e o

f 
req

uir
em

en
ts 
he
re.
 Th

is 
is 
inc
lud

ed
 in
 th
e e

vid
en
ce
 ta
ble

.  
Alt
ho
ug
h t
he
 C
AA

 w
as
 ab

an
do
ne
d b

efo
re 
co
nc
lud

ing
 fo
r 

Ha
rro
w, 
inf
orm

all
y w

e h
ad
 be

en
 ad

vis
ed
 th
at 
the

 co
un
cil 

me
t le
ve
l 3
 ou

t o
f 4
 in
 its
 re
qu
ire
me

nts
. 

 Th
e B

ett
er 
De
al 
for
 R
es
ide

nts
 tra

ns
for
ma

tio
n p

rog
ram

me
 

reg
ula

rly
 pr
ov
ide

s u
pd
ate

s t
o s

taf
f o
n t
he
 pr
og
ram

me
 an

d 
e-m

ail 
up
da
tes

 ar
e r
eg
ula

rly
 pr
ov
ide

d.:
 

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
.ha

rro
w.
go
v.u
k/i
nfo

/20
02
22
/be

tte
r_d

ea
l_f
or

_re
sid
en
ts 

 Sta
ff v

iew
s a

re 
pe
rio
dic
all
y g
ath

ere
d t
hro

ug
h a

 st
aff
 su
rve

y. 
 

Th
e l
as
t fu

ll s
urv

ey
 w
as
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
in 
lat
e 2

00
9 a

nd
 an

 
int
eri
m 
in 
Ma

rch
 20

11
.  

Fo
r 2
00
9: 

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
.ha

rro
w.
go
v.u
k/i
nfo

/20
01
34
/em

plo
ye
e_
rel
at

ion
s/2

47
/st
aff
_s
urv

ey
s 

Fo
r 2
01
1: 

JT
/LC

 
LC
 29

.6.
11
 

 

128



 

Pa
ge

 75
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 sh

ou
ld 

ref
lec

t th
e r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 lo
ca

l a
uth

or
itie

s t
o: 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 
tha

t m
ay

 be
 us

ed
 to

 
de

mo
ns

tra
te 

co
mp

lia
nc

e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

ab
se
nc
e. 
 

•  
htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
.ha

rro
w.
go
v.u
k/i
nfo

/20
01
40
/w
ell
be
ing

_a
nd
_

be
ne
fits
/60

4/i
nte

rim
_s
taf
f_s

urv
ey
_2
01
1 

 Th
e C

ou
nc
il h
as
 a 
wid

e r
an
ge
 of
 em

plo
ym
en
t p
oli
cie
s: 

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
/in
fo/
20
01
28
/w
ork

ing
_fo

r_h
arr
ow
 

 
13
.7 

 
Th
e c

ou
nc
il in

ve
sts
 in
 th
e 

he
alt
h, 
sa
fet
y a
nd
 w
ell
-

be
ing

 of
 its
 w
ork

for
ce
 an

d 
the

re 
is 
ev
ide

nc
e o

f 
su
cc
es
sfu

l w
ell
-be

ing
 

ini
tia
tiv
es
 w
hic
h a

re 
op
tim

isin
g h

ea
lth
 

ou
tco

me
s a

nd
 

pro
du
cti
vit
y t
hro

ug
h 

im
pro

ve
d a

tte
nd
an
ce
 

rat
es
. T
he
 co

un
cil 

rev
iew

s s
taf
f c
os
ts 
in 
hig

h 
sp
en
din

g a
rea

s b
y 

be
nc
hm

ark
ing
 ag

ain
st 

oth
er 
org

an
isa
tio
ns
, o
r b
y 

us
ing
 bu

sin
es
s p

roc
es
s 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
ap
pro

ac
he
s 

to 
ide

nti
fy 
po
ten

tia
l a
rea

s 
for
 ef
fic
ien
cy
 sa

vin
gs
 an

d 
inc
rea

se
d p

rod
uc
tiv
ity
, 

wo
rki
ng
 w
ith
 lo
ca
l 

pa
rtn
ers

 as
 ap

pro
pri
ate

. 
Th
e c

ou
nc
il c
an
 

de
mo

ns
tra
te 
ho
w 
its
 

pro
du
cti
ve
 an

d s
kill
ed
 

wo
rkf
orc

e i
s b

en
efi
tin
g 

the
 co

mm
un
ity,
 fo
r 

ex
am

ple
 ho

w 
we
ll s
taf
f 

ide
nti
fy 
an
d i
mp

lem
en
t 

eff
icie

nc
ies
 an

d 
inn

ov
ati
on
s, 
ba
ck
ed
 by
 a 

str
on
g i
mp

rov
em

en
t 

cu
ltu
re.
  

 In
ve
sto

rs 
in 
Pe
op
le 

as
se
ss
me

nt.
  

 • 
Ev
ide

nc
e o

f a
ss
es
sm

en
t 

ag
ain

st 
the

 Eq
ua
lity
 

Fra
me

wo
rk 
for
 Lo

ca
l 

Go
ve
rnm

en
t.  

 • 
Se
lf-a

ss
es
sm

en
t o
f 

pro
gre

ss
 ag

ain
st 
the

 
Ch
ild
ren

’s W
ork

for
ce
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
Str
ate

gy
 

su
bm

itte
d t
o t
he
 C
hil
dre

n’s
 

Wo
rkf
orc

e D
ev
elo

pm
en
t 

Co
un
cil.
  

 • 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
ap
pro

ac
h. 
 

• K
ey
 in
dic
ato

rs 
ab
ou
t 

pe
op
le 
ma

na
ge
me

nt,
 fo
r 

ex
am

ple
 st
aff
 sa
tis
fac

tio
n, 

sta
ff t
urn

ov
er,
 si
ck
ne
ss
 

ab
se
nc
e, 
gri
ev
an
ce
s, 

em
plo

ym
en
t tr
ibu

na
ls,
 

ac
cid
en
ts,
 w
ork

for
ce
 

div
ers

ity
, s
taf
f fe

ed
ba
ck
 on

 
wo
rkf
orc

e d
ive
rsi
ty 
an
d 

ag
en
cy
 st
aff
 co

sts
. 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il h
as
 ha

d a
 W
ell-
be
ing

 Pl
an
 fo
r s
taf
f fo

r th
e l
as
t 

tw
o y

ea
rs.
  T
his
 is
 ac

ce
ss
ibl
e t
o a

ll s
taf
f v
ia 
the

 in
tra
ne
t a
t 

the
 fo
llo
win

g l
ink
.  T

he
 pl
an
 co

nti
nu
ed
 it’
s d

eli
ve
ry 
int
o 

20
10
/11

: 
htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
/in
fo/
20
01
40
/w
ell
be
ing

_a
nd
_b
en
efi
ts/
37
1/h

arr
ow
_c
ou
nc
il_
sta

ff_
we
llb
ein

g_
pla

n_
20
09
10
 

 A r
efr
es
he
d W

ell-
be
ing

 Pl
an
 is
 be

ing
 de

ve
lop

ed
 fo
r 2
01
1 

an
d b

ey
on
d. 

 Sta
ff B

en
efi
ts 
Fa
irs
 an

d H
ea
lth
 Fa

irs
, to

ge
the

r w
ith
 ot
he
r 

he
alt
h r
ela

ted
 pr
om

oti
on
al 
ev
en
ts 
are

 fe
atu

red
 th
rou

gh
ou
t 

the
 ye

ar.
  T
he
 st
aff
 be

ne
fits
 br
oc
hu
re 
is 
pro

du
ce
d a

nn
ua
lly.
 

 Th
e s

taf
f s
urv

ey
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
(fu
lly 
on
 a 
bi-
an
nu
al 
ba
sis
 an

d 
pa
rtia

lly,
 in
 th
e i
nte

rve
nin

g y
ea
rs)
 co

nti
nu
es
 to
 sh

ow
 st
aff
 

int
ere

st 
in 
sta

ff b
en
efi
ts 
an
d w

ell
be
ing

 in
itia
tiv
es
.  E

mp
loy
ee
 

en
ga
ge
me

nt 
lev
els
 ar
e r
isin

g i
nd
ica
tin
g g

rea
ter
 sa

tis
fac

tio
n 

wit
h t
he
 C
ou
nc
il a
s t
he
ir e

mp
loy
er 
an
d i
n p

eo
ple

 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
pra

cti
ce
s. 
 Th

e l
as
t fu

ll s
taf
f s
urv

ey
 w
as
 

ca
rrie

d o
ut 
in 
No
ve
mb

er 
20
09
 an

d i
s a

cc
es
sib
le 
on
 th
e 

int
ran

et 
at:
 

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
.ha

rro
w.
go
v.u
k/i
nfo

/20
01
34
/em

plo
ye
e_
rel
at

ion
s/2

47
/st
aff
_s
urv

ey
s 

 Th
e M

arc
h 2

01
1 i
nte

rim
 st
aff
 su

rve
y r
es
ult
s a

re 
on
 th
e 

int
ran

et 
at:
 

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
.ha

rro
w.
go
v.u
k/i
nfo

/20
01
40
/w
ell
be
ing

_a
nd
_

be
ne
fits
/60

4/i
nte

rim
_s
taf
f_s

urv
ey
_2
01
1 

  Ke
y in

dic
ato

rs 
ab
ou
t p
eo
ple

 m
an
ag
em

en
t a
re 
rep

ort
ed
 on

 a 
qu
art
erl
y b
as
is 
to 
Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Bo
ard

s. 

JT
/LC

 
LC
 29

.6.
11
 

 

129



 

Pa
ge

 76
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 sh

ou
ld 

ref
lec

t th
e r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 lo
ca

l a
uth

or
itie

s t
o: 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 
tha

t m
ay

 be
 us

ed
 to

 
de

mo
ns

tra
te 

co
mp

lia
nc

e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

  
13
.8 

 
Wo

rkf
orc

e p
lan

nin
g i
s 

int
eg
rat
ed
 w
ith
 

se
rvi
ce
 pl
an
nin

g a
nd
 

sh
ow
s h

ow
 th
e 

co
un
cil 
wil
l d
eli
ve
r it
s 

str
ate

gic
 ob

jec
tiv
es
. 

Th
e c

ou
nc
il b
as
es
 

wo
rkf
orc

e p
lan
s o

n 
fit-
for
-pu

rpo
se
 

inf
orm

ati
on
. P
lan
s s
et 

ou
t c
urr
en
t s
taf
fin
g, 

an
d i
de
nti
fy 
wh
at 
sta

ff 
are

 ne
ed
ed
 ov

er 
the

 
ne
xt 
thr
ee
 to
 fiv
e 

ye
ars

, a
nd
 ho

w t
he
y 

int
en
d t
o g

et 
the

m.
 

Th
e c

ou
nc
il c
an
 

de
mo

ns
tra
te 
tha

t it
 

mo
nit
ors

 an
d 

ma
na
ge
s a

ge
nc
y 

sta
ff c

os
ts.
  

 
Wo

rkf
orc

e c
on
sid
era

tio
ns
 w
ere

 in
clu
de
d i
n t
he
 C
orp

ora
te 

Dir
ec
tor
 Se

rvi
ce
 & 
Bu
dg
et 
Pla

nn
ing

 te
mp

lat
es
 fo
r 2
00
9/1

0. 
 

Ho
we
ve
r, t
he
se
 ha

ve
 be

en
 ex

pa
nd
ed
 fo
r 2
01
0/1

1 y
ea
r.  

 Fu
rth
er 
wo
rk 
on
 em

be
dd
ing

 w
ork

for
ce
 pl
an
nin

g w
ith
 an

 
em

ph
as
is 
on
 ch

an
ge
 m
an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 de

live
rin
g s

erv
ice
s 

wit
h l
es
s, 
 is
 in
clu
de
d i
n t
he
 Pe

op
le 
Mo

du
le 
of 
the

 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
De
ve
lop
me

nt 
Pr
og
ram

me
 wh

ich
 co

mm
en
ce
d 

in 
lat
e 2

01
0 a

nd
 w
ill c

on
clu
de
 in
 la
te 
20
11
: 

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
/in
fo/
20
02
47
/m
an
ag
em

en
t_l
ea
de
rsh

ip/
63
3/

md
pp
  

 Wo
rkf
orc

e S
tra
teg

ies
 an

d A
cti
on
 Pl
an
s w

ere
 de

ve
lop

ed
 by
 

ea
ch
 D
ire
cto

rat
e i
n 2

00
9/1

0 a
nd
 a 
Co
un
cil 
Str
ate

gy
 fo
r 

Pe
op
le 
ap
pro

ve
d b

y C
ab
ine

t in
 Fe

bru
ary

 20
10
.  T

he
 

str
ate

gy
 is
 in
 th
e e

vid
en
ce
 fil
e.:
  

 Of
fic
ers

 cl
os
ely
 m
on
ito
r (i
n P

roc
ure

me
nt 
an
d H

RD
) a
ge
nc
y 

wo
rke

r c
os
ts,
 an

d i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 on

 th
is 
is 
rep

ort
ed
 to
 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Bo
ard

s o
n a

 qu
art
erl
y b
as
is 

JT
/LC

 
LC
 29

.6.
11
 

 

13
.9 

 
Th
e c

ou
nc
il t
ak
es
 a 

co
rpo

rat
e a

pp
roa

ch
 to
 

wo
rkf
orc

e p
lan
nin

g. 
Th
is 

ref
lec
ts 
str
ate

gic
 pr
ior
itie
s 

an
d o

bje
cti
ve
s, 
an
d 

su
pp
ort
s t
he
 de

live
ry 
of 

se
rvi
ce
s. 
It a

lig
ns
 cl
os
ely
 

wit
h s

tra
teg

ic 
pla

nn
ing

 an
d 

is 
de
sig
ne
d t
o d

eli
ve
r 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 in
 

eff
icie

nc
y, 
pro

du
cti
vit
y a
nd
 

va
lue
 fo
r m

on
ey
 ag

ain
st 

loc
al 
pri
ori
tie
s. 
 

 
Se
e 1

3.8
 

JT
/LC

 
LC
 29

.6.
11
 

 

13
.10

 
 

Str
ate

gic
 w
ork

for
ce
 

pla
nn
ing

 ad
dre

ss
es
 

cu
rre
nt,
 an

d f
utu

re,
 

 
Se
e 1

3.8
 

 Th
e v
iew

s o
f s
taf
f a
re 
ca
ptu

red
 in
 th
e s

taf
f s
urv

ey
 – 
se
e 

JT
/LC

 
 

 

130



 

Pa
ge

 77
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 sh

ou
ld 

ref
lec

t th
e r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 lo
ca

l a
uth

or
itie

s t
o: 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 
tha

t m
ay

 be
 us

ed
 to

 
de

mo
ns

tra
te 

co
mp

lia
nc

e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

wo
rkf
orc

e n
ee
ds
 fo
r 

pe
op
le 
an
d s

kill
s, 
an
d i
s 

un
de
rpi
nn
ed
 by

 fit
-fo
r-

pu
rpo

se
 in
for
ma

tio
n o

n 
de
ma

nd
 fo
r s
erv

ice
s, 

wo
rkf
orc

e s
ize
 an

d 
pro

file
, a
nd
 sy
ste

ma
tic
 

co
llec

tio
n o

f th
e v

iew
s o

f 
sta

ff. 
 

13
.7.
 

 

13
.11

  
Jo
int
 w
ork

for
ce
 pl
an
nin

g 
is 
de
live

rin
g b

en
efi
ts,
 fo
r 

ex
am

ple
 re
du
ce
d c

os
ts,
 

mo
re 
int
eg
rat
ed
 se

rvi
ce
s, 

inc
rea

se
d c

ap
ac
ity
 an

d 
red

uc
ed
 un

pro
du
cti
ve
 

co
mp

eti
tio
n b

etw
ee
n 

pu
bli
c s
ec
tor
 bo

die
s i
n a

n 
are

a f
or 
sc
arc

e s
kill
s, 
for
 

ex
am

ple
 th
ere

 is
 jo
int
 

wo
rki
ng
 ac

ros
s l
oc
al 

pa
rtn
ers

 to
 im

pro
ve
 

sa
feg

ua
rdi
ng
 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 fo
r 

vu
lne
rab

le 
ch
ild
ren

 an
d 

yo
un
g p

eo
ple

. T
he
 

co
un
cil 
is 
tak

ing
 ac

tio
n t
o 

en
su
re 
it h

as
 a 
po
sit
ive
 

an
d a

pp
rop

ria
te 
bra

nd
 as

 
an
 em

plo
ye
r in

 th
e 

co
nte

xt 
of 
the

 lo
ca
l la
bo
ur 

ma
rke

t, f
or 
ex
am

ple
 to
 

att
rac

t u
nd
er-
rep

res
en
ted

 
gro

up
s. 

 
Th
ere

 is
 an

 in
teg

rat
ed
 C
hil
dre

n’s
 W
ork

for
ce
 St
rat
eg
y a

nd
 

joi
nt 
ind

uc
tio
n a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 
for
 th
os
e w

ork
ing
 w
ith
 ch

ild
ren

 
ac
ros

s l
oc
al 
pa
rtn
ers

. 
 No
 fu
rth
er 
pro

gre
ss
 w
as
 m
ad
e o

n t
his
 in
 20

10
/11

.  T
he
 

ch
all
en
ge
s a

re 
tha

t th
e p

ub
lic 
se
cto

r is
 m
ee
tin
g t
he
 

ch
all
en
ge
 pr
es
en
ted

 by
 co

st-
red

uc
tio
ns
 w
hic
h r
es
ult
s i
n 

org
an
isa
tio
ns
 fo
cu
ss
ing
 on

 th
e i
mm

ed
iat
e f
utu

re 
rat
he
r th

an
 

lon
ge
r te

rm
.   

JT
/LC

 
LC
 29

.6.
11
 

GA
P: 
Do
es
 

no
t e
xis
t to

 
an
y 

sig
nif
ica
nt 

ex
ten

t in
 

oth
er 

Dir
ec
tor
ate

s. 
 

Th
is 
ha
s 

be
en
 

ide
nti
fie
d i
n 

the
 St
rat
eg
y 

for
 Pe

op
le 

20
10
-12

 as
 

an
 ac

tio
n f
or 

20
11
. 

 CG
G 
ag
ree

d 
ga
p 0

9/0
8/1

1 
– n

o n
ee
d f
or 

fur
the

r a
cti
on
  

13
.12

 
 

Se
nio

r m
an
ag
em

en
t 

ma
na
ge
s a

nd
 su

pp
ort
s 

org
an
isa
tio
na
l c
ha
ng
e 

eff
ec
tive

ly 
wh
ile
 in
vo
lvin

g 
the

 w
ork

for
ce
 in
 th
e 

pro
ce
ss
. S
en
ior
 

 
Th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 Pr
oto

co
l fo

r M
an
ag
ing

 O
rga

nis
ati
on
al 

Ch
an
ge
 se

ts 
ou
t th

e p
roc

es
s i
n m

an
ag
ing

 or
ga
nis
ati
on
al 

ch
an
ge
 an

d i
s a

cc
es
sib
le 
on
 th
e i
ntr
an
et 
at 
the

 fo
llo
win

g 
link

.  I
n a

dd
itio
na
l O
rga

nis
ati
on
al 
Sta

nd
ard

s r
eg
ard

ing
 

Sp
an
s o

f C
on
tro
l a
nd
 fu
rth
er 
gu
ida

nc
e o

n m
an
ag
ing
 ch

an
ge
 

is 
inc
lud

ed
.: 

JT
/LC

 
LC
 29

.6.
11
 

 

131



 

Pa
ge

 78
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 sh

ou
ld 

ref
lec

t th
e r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 lo
ca

l a
uth

or
itie

s t
o: 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 
tha

t m
ay

 be
 us

ed
 to

 
de

mo
ns

tra
te 

co
mp

lia
nc

e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
sh
ow
s 

co
mm

itm
en
t to

 en
ga
gin

g 
sta

ff i
n t
he
 pr
oc
es
s o

f 
ch
an
ge
 an

d m
inim

isin
g 

the
 im

pa
ct 
of 
ch
an
ge
 by

 
be
ing

 se
ns
itiv
e t
o t
he
 

org
an
isa
tio
na
l c
ult
ure

. 
Th
e c

ou
nc
il p
lan

s 
co
mm

un
ica
tio
ns
 w
ith
 st
aff
 

an
d t
he
y a
re 
eff
ec
tive

 in
 

en
su
rin
g t
wo
-w
ay
 

dis
cu
ss
ion
s. 
Th
e c

ou
nc
il 

als
o m

on
ito
rs 
sta

ff 
sa
tis
fac

tio
n a

nd
 m
ora

le 
thr
ou
gh
 pr
oc
es
s o

f 
ch
an
ge
 an

d s
up
po
rts
 st
aff
 

thr
ou
gh
 m
ec
ha
nis
ms

 
su
ch
 as

 em
plo

ye
e 

as
sis
tan

ce
 pr
og
ram

me
s. 

Th
e c

ou
nc
il c
on
su
lts
 w
ith
 

sta
ff, 
tra
de
 un

ion
s a

nd
 

oth
er 
sta

ff r
ep
res

en
tat
ive
 

gro
up
s a

nd
 ac

tiv
ely
 

inv
olv
es
 th
em

 in
 

ma
na
gin
g c

ha
ng
e a

nd
 

rep
ort
s p

os
itiv
ely
 on

 th
eir
 

inv
olv
em

en
t. P

os
t-

im
ple
me

nta
tio
n r
ev
iew

s 
inc
lud

e m
on
ito
rin
g a

nd
 

ev
alu

ati
on
 of
 th
e i
mp

ac
t 

of 
ch
an
ge
 on

 st
aff
. 

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
/in
fo/
20
01
35
/m
an
ag
ing

_c
ha
ng
e/1

64
/m
an
a

gin
g_
ch
an
ge
_s
uit
e 

 Th
e B

ett
er 
De
al 
for
 R
es
ide

nts
 pr
og
ram

me
, w
ith
 se

nio
r 

ma
na
ge
r S
po
ns
ors

, h
as
 de

dic
ate

d H
RD

 an
d 

Co
mm

un
ica
tio
ns
 su

pp
ort
 to
 en

su
re 
tha

t e
mp

loy
ee
 

co
ns
ide
rat
ion

s a
nd
 st
ak
eh
old

er 
me

ss
ag
ing
 is
 m
ad
e. 
 A 

Ch
an
ge
 M
an
ag
em

en
t S
tra
teg

y h
as
 be

en
 ag

ree
d f
or 
the

 
Pr
og
ram

me
 in
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 U
nis
on
 an

d G
MB

 to
ge
the

r 
wit
h a

 se
t o
f E
ng
ag
em

en
t P
rin
cip
les
 to
 en

su
re 
tim

ely
 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
.  A

 Tr
ad
e U

nio
n f
oru

m 
for
 th
e p

rog
ram

me
 wa

s 
es
tab

lish
ed
 in
 20

09
/10

 an
d a

gre
ed
 no

tes
 of
 th
e m

ee
tin
gs
 

are
 ac

ce
ss
ibl
e v

ia 
the

 in
tra
ne
t u
nd
er 
ea
ch
 pr
oje

ct.
: 

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
.ha

rro
w.
go
v.u
k/i
nfo

/20
02
22
/be

tte
r_d

ea
l_f
or

_re
sid
en
ts 

  Co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 tra

de
 un

ion
s t
ak
es
 pl
ac
e m

on
thl
y a
t th

e 
Co
rpo

rat
e J

oin
t C
om

mi
tte
e o

n c
orp

ora
te 
iss
ue
s a

nd
 

Dir
ec
tor
ate

 Jo
int
 C
om

mi
tte
es
 m
ee
t re

gu
lar
ly 
to 
co
ns
ide

r 
Dir
ec
tor
ate

 sp
ec
ific
 is
su
es
. 

 Th
e C

ou
nc
il h
as
 an

 Em
plo

ye
e C

on
su
lta
tiv
e F

oru
m 
of 

Me
mb

ers
 an

d t
he
 Tr
ad
es
 U
nio

ns
 m
ee
ts 
qu
art
erl
y 

13
.13

 
 

Th
e c

ou
nc
il h
as
 a 

sys
tem

ati
c a

nd
 pl
an
ne
d 

ap
pro

ac
h t
o m

an
ag
ing

 
the

 w
ork

for
ce
 im

plic
ati
on
s 

of 
org

an
isa
tio
na
l c
ha
ng
e. 

Th
e c

ou
nc
il f
ull
y in

vo
lve
s 

sta
ff i
n t
he
 

im
ple
me

nta
tio
n o

f c
ha
ng
e 

 
Se
e 1

3.1
2 

 Re
vie
ws
 of
 th
e l
ea
rni
ng
 po

int
s f
rom

 m
ajo
r c
ha
ng
e 

pro
gra

mm
es
 ar
e m

ad
e a

t th
eir
 co

nc
lus
ion

 

JT
/LC

 
LC
 29

.6.
11
 

 

132



 

Pa
ge

 79
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 sh

ou
ld 

ref
lec

t th
e r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 lo
ca

l a
uth

or
itie

s t
o: 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 
tha

t m
ay

 be
 us

ed
 to

 
de

mo
ns

tra
te 

co
mp

lia
nc

e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

an
d e

mp
ow
ers

 th
em

 to
 

he
lp 
de
live

r it
. T
he
 

co
un
cil 
ma

int
ain

s, 
or 

im
pro

ve
s, 
sta

ff 
sa
tis
fac

tio
n a

nd
 m
ora

le 
thr
ou
gh
 th
e p

eri
od
s o

f 
ch
an
ge
 an

d t
rai
ns
 lin
e 

ma
na
ge
rs 
to 
de
al 
wit
h 

ch
an
ge
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

iss
ue
s a

nd
 de

ve
lop

 
sp
ec
ial
ist
 ch

an
ge
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
sk
ills
. T
he
 

co
un
cil 
us
es
 va

rio
us
 

me
tho

ds
 fo
r 

co
mm

un
ica
tio
n w

ith
 st
aff
 

on
 ch

an
ge
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

iss
ue
s, 
for
 ex

am
ple
 st
aff
 

bri
efi
ng
s, 
su
rge

rie
s a

nd
 

foc
us
 gr
ou
ps
, a
nd
 

ev
alu

ate
s t
he
 

eff
ec
tive

ne
ss
 of
 its
 

ap
pro

ac
h t
o t
he
se
. T
he
re 

is 
eff
ec
tive

 pa
rtn
ers

hip
 

wo
rki
ng
 be

tw
ee
n t
rad

e 
un
ion

s a
nd
 ot
he
r s
taf
f 

rep
res

en
tat
ive
 gr
ou
ps
, 

inc
lud

ing
 jo
int
 

co
mm

un
ica
tio
n 

str
ate

gie
s. 
Po
st-

im
ple
me

nta
tio
n r
ev
iew

s 
as
se
ss
 th
e b

en
efi
ts 
of 

ch
an
ge
 ag

ain
st 
cle
arl
y 

de
fin
ed
 su

cc
es
s c
rite

ria
 

an
d t
he
 co

un
cil 
lea

rns
 

fro
m 
the

 re
su
lts
 

13
.14

 
 

Th
e c

ou
nc
il h
as
 

es
tab

lish
ed
 an

d 
ma

int
ain
ed
 po

lici
es
 an

d 
pra

cti
ce
s, 
inc
lud

ing
 

 
Th
e C

ou
nc
il h
as
 w
ell
-es

tab
lish

ed
 em

plo
ym
en
t p
oli
cie
s a

nd
 

pro
ce
du
res

 w
hic
h a

re 
reg

ula
rly
 m
ain
tai
ne
d t
o e

ns
ure

 
co
mp

lia
nc
e w

ith
 le
gis
lat
ion

 w
hic
h a

re 
ac
ce
ss
ibl
e v

ia 
the

 
int
ran

et 
at:

 

JT
/LC

 
LC
 29

.6.
11
 

 

133



 

Pa
ge

 80
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 sh

ou
ld 

ref
lec

t th
e r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 lo
ca

l a
uth

or
itie

s t
o: 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 
tha

t m
ay

 be
 us

ed
 to

 
de

mo
ns

tra
te 

co
mp

lia
nc

e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

div
ers

ity
 pr
ac
tic
es
, to

 
su
pp
ort
 go

od
 pe

op
le 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d t
o 

en
su
re 
co
mp

lian
ce
 w
ith
 

eq
ua
litie

s l
eg
isla

tio
n a

nd
 

du
tie
s. 
Th
e c

ou
nc
il t
rai
ns
 

an
d s

up
po
rts
 m
an
ag
ers

 
to 
im
ple
me

nt 
the

 po
lici
es
 

an
d p

rac
tic
es
 

co
ns
ist
en
tly
. T
he
 co

un
cil 

ha
s a

do
pte

d t
he
 ne

w 
Eq
ua
lity
 Fr
am

ew
ork

 fo
r 

loc
al 
go
ve
rnm

en
t (f
rom

 
Ap
ril 
20
09
) a
nd
 is
 

pe
rfo
rm
ing
 at
 le
ve
l 1
 

(de
ve
lop

ing
). T

he
 co

un
cil 

is 
wo
rki
ng
 to
wa
rds

 
bu
ild
ing
 a 
wo
rkf
orc

e t
ha
t 

is 
mo

re 
rep

res
en
tat
ive
 of
 

the
 co

mm
un
ity 
it s
erv

es
. 

Th
e c

ou
nc
il h
as
 

co
mp

let
ed
 its
 Lo

ca
l P
ay
 

Re
vie
w 
an
d i
s o

n t
rac

k t
o 

im
ple
me

nt 
its
 ag

ree
d 

loc
al 
pa
y s
tru
ctu

re 

htt
p:/

/ha
rro

wh
ub

/in
fo/

20
01

28
/w

ork
ing

_fo
r_h

arr
ow

 
  A p

roc
es
s o

f c
on
ve
rtin

g t
he
se
 to
 to
olk
its
 fo
r m

an
ag
ers

 
co
nc
lud

ed
 in
 D
ec
em

be
r 2
00
9 w

ith
 th
e l
au
nc
h o

f th
e f
irs
t o
f 

the
se
, C
ap
ab
ility

 Pr
oc
ed
ure

, in
 Ja

nu
ary

 20
10
 an

d t
wo
 

oth
ers

 in
 Ap

ril 
20
10
.   
Fu
rth
er 
rol
l-o
ut 
of 
the

 to
olk
its
 ha

s 
be
en
 de

lay
ed
 du

e t
o c

ha
lle
ng
es
 in
 re
ac
hin

g a
gre

em
en
t w
ith
 

the
 un

ion
s o

n t
he
 ap

pro
ac
h. 

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
/in
fo/
20
01
34
/em

plo
ye
e_
rel
ati
on
s/7

7/a
-

z_
em

plo
ym
en
t_p

oli
cie
s_
an
d_
pro

ce
du
res

 
 Ma

na
ge
rs 
are

 in
for
me

d o
f a
ny
 ch

an
ge
 th
rou

gh
 e-
ma

il. 
 

Br
ief
ing

s t
o m

an
ag
ers

 on
 an

y s
ign

ific
an
t c
ha
ng
e t
o 

em
plo

ym
en
t p
oli
cy
 an

d p
roc

ed
ure

 is
 m
ad
e b

y H
RD

. 
 CS

B a
gre

ed
 in
 20

10
/11

 to
 w
ork

ing
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 Ex

ce
lle
nt 

sta
tus

 un
de
r th

e E
qu
ali
ty 
Fra

me
wo
rk 
by
 20

12
. 

 Th
e L

oc
al 
Pa
y R

ev
iew

 (s
ing

le 
sta

tus
) w

as
 co

mp
let
ed
 in
 

20
04
/05

.  T
he
 Si
ng
le 
Sta

tus
 Ag

ree
me

nt 
is 
ac
ce
ss
ibl
e v

ia 
the

 in
tra
ne
t a
t: 

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
/do

wn
loa

ds
/fil
e/5

54
/si
ng
le_

sta
tus

 
 

13
.16

 
 

Th
ere

 ar
e h

igh
 le
ve
ls 
of 

sta
ff s

ati
sfa

cti
on
, 

inc
lud

ing
 ac

ros
s d

iffe
ren

t 
gro

up
s i
n t
he
 w
ork

for
ce
, 

an
d g

oo
d r
ete

nti
on
 le
ve
ls,
 

pa
rtic

ula
rly
 in
 pr
ior
ity
 

are
as
 an

d w
he
re 
the

re 
are

 sk
ills
 sh

ort
ag
es
. T
he
 

co
un
cil 
is 
co
ns
ide

rin
g 

int
rod

uc
ing

 a 
tot
al 

rew
ard

s a
pp
roa

ch
 to
 

att
rac

t, r
eta

in 
an
d r
ew
ard

 
sta

ff. 
Th
is 
inc
lud
es
 

de
ve
lop

ing
 op

po
rtu
nit
ies
 

 
Sta

ff s
urv

ey
 de

tai
ls 
are

 in
clu
de
d a

t 1
3.6

.  T
he
 su

rve
y f
or 

lat
e 2

00
9 s

ho
we
d 8

6%
 im

pro
ve
me

nt 
in 
the

 pe
rce

pti
on
s o

f 
sta

ff t
o s

pe
cif
ic 
qu
es
tio
ns
, 3
0%

 of
 th
es
e s

ign
ific
an
tly
.  T

he
 

sta
ff s

urv
ey
 fo
r M

arc
h 2

01
1 m

ain
tai
ne
d t
ha
t p
os
itio
n d

es
pit
e 

the
 ex

ten
t o
f c
ha
ng
e c

urr
en
tly 
an
d e

xp
ec
ted

. 
 Tu
rno

ve
r h
as
 in
cre

as
ed
 fro

m 
9.6

% 
at 
31
/3/
10
 to
 11

.1%
 at
 

31
/3/
11
.  T

his
 is
 no

t h
igh

 an
d r
efl
ec
ts 
the

 Vo
lun

tar
y 

Se
ve
ran

ce
 Sc

he
me

 in
 pl
ac
e a

nd
 ot
he
r c
ha
ng
e i
nit
iat
ive
s 

wh
ich
 im

pa
ct 
on
 em

plo
ye
e n

um
be
rs.
  T
urn

ov
er 
an
d o

the
r 

wo
rkf
orc

e d
ata

 is
 re
po
rte
d t
o I
mp

rov
em

en
t B
oa
rds

 
qu
art
erl
y. 

 Co
ns
ide

rat
ion
 w
as
 gi
ve
n t
o i
ntr
od
uc
ing

 a 
To
tal
 R
ew
ard

 

JT
/LC

 
LC
 29

.6.
11
 

 

134



 

Pa
ge

 81
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 sh

ou
ld 

ref
lec

t th
e r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 lo
ca

l a
uth

or
itie

s t
o: 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 
tha

t m
ay

 be
 us

ed
 to

 
de

mo
ns

tra
te 

co
mp

lia
nc

e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

for
 fle

xib
le 
wo
rki
ng
 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 to
 su

pp
ort
 

sta
ff t
hro

ug
h k

ey
 lif
e 

ev
en
ts.
 

ap
pro

ac
h t
o r
ew
ard

s a
nd
 is
 an

 ac
tio
n i
n t
he
 C
ou
nc
il’s
 

Pe
op
le 
Str
ate

gy
 fo
r 2
01
0-1

2. 
 In
 pa

rt t
his
 ha

s b
ee
n 

ov
ert
ak
en
 by
 th
e M

od
ern

isin
g T

erm
s a

nd
 C
on
dit
ion
s o

f 
Em

plo
ym
en
t p
roj
ec
t w
hic
h c

om
me

nc
ed
 in
 M
arc

h 2
01
1, 

alt
ho
ug
h, 
as
 fa
r a
s p

os
sib
le,
 a 
To
tal
 R
ew
ard

s a
pp
roa

ch
 w
ill  

be
 co

ns
ide

red
.  T

his
 st
art
ed
 w
ith
 he

 in
tro
du
cti
on
 of
 th
e S

taf
f 

Be
ne
fits
 br
oc
hu
re 
the

 co
re,
 vo

lun
tar
y a
nd
 fle

xib
le 
be
ne
fits
 

av
ail
ab
le 
to 
the

m.
   

 Th
e S

taf
f B
en
efi
ts 
bro

ch
ure

 is
 in
clu
de
d i
n t
he
 Ev

ide
nc
e f
ile 

 Th
ere

 ar
e n

o s
ign

ific
an
t s
kill
s s
ho
rta
ge
s. 
 H
ow
ev
er,
 th
is 
ca
n 

ch
an
ge
 ra
pid

ly,
 e.
g. 
in 
ch
ild
ren

’s 
so
cia
l w
ork

, a
nd
 is
 

mo
nit
ore

d b
y D

ire
cto

rat
e W

ork
for
ce
 St
rat
eg
y G

rou
ps
. 

 Fle
xib
le 
wo
rki
ng
 op

tio
ns
 ar
e w

ell
 es

tab
lish

ed
 an

d 
ref
ere

nc
ed
 in
 th
e S

taf
f B
en
efi
ts 
bro

ch
ure

. 
13
.17

 
En
su
re 
tha

t e
ffe
cti
ve
 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 ar
e i
n 

pla
ce
 fo
r re

vie
win

g t
he
 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 of
 th
e 

au
tho

rity
  a
s a

 w
ho
le 
an
d 

of 
ind
ivid

ua
l m

em
be
rs 

an
d a

gre
ein

g a
n a

cti
on
 

pla
n w

hic
h m

igh
t fo

r 
ex
am

ple
 ai
m 
to 
ad
dre

ss
 

an
y t
rai
nin

g o
r 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
ne
ed
s 

 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

sys
tem

 
Ha
rro
w h

as
 a 
de
fin
ed
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

fra
me

wo
rk.
  T
he
 fra

me
wo
rk 
is 
av
ail
ab
le 
in 
the

 ev
ide

nc
e f
ile 

( As
 pa

rt o
f C
ab
ine

t D
ev
elo

pm
en
t tw

o s
es
sio
ns
 on

 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t w
ere

 he
ld 
in 
20
09
/10

. 
 A M

em
be
r D

ev
elo

pm
en
t P
rog

ram
me

 ha
s b

ee
n i
n o

pe
rat
ion

 
du
rin
g 2

00
7 (
rev

iew
 av

ail
ab
le 
at 

htt
p:/
/m
od
ern

go
v:8

08
0/i
eL
ist
Do
cu
me

nts
.as

px
?C
Id=

28
6&
MI

d=
37
94
&V

er=
4&
J=
3) 
an
d a

cti
vit
ies
 ha

ve
 be

en
 ta
kin
g p

lac
e 

in 
20
08
 w
hic
h i
nc
lud

ed
 a 
pil
ot 
Me

mb
er 
Co
ac
hin

g 
Pr
og
ram

me
 wi
th 
Ro
ffe
y P

ark
.  A

 re
fre
sh
ed
 Pr
og
ram

me
 is
 

be
ing

 co
ns
ide
red

 by
 th
e M

em
be
r D

ev
elo

pm
en
t P
an
el 
on
 2 

Ju
ly 
20
08
.  T

he
 re
po
rt a

nd
 pr
og
ram

me
 ar
e a

va
ila
ble

 at
: 

htt
p:/
/m
od
ern

go
v:8

08
0/P

ub
lish

ed
/C
00
00
02
86
/M
00
00
43
44
/

AI0
00
45
10
2/$

Re
po
rtfo

rM
em

be
rD
ev
elo

pm
en
tPa

ne
l2n

dJ
uly
0

8_
v1
.do

cA
.ps

.pd
f 

 

TW
&J
T/L

D 
LD
 

6/7
/11

 
     

 

13
.18

 
En
su
re 
tha

t e
ffe
cti
ve
 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 de

sig
ne
d 

to 
en
co
ura

ge
 in
div
idu

als
 

fro
m 
all 
se
cti
on
s o

f th
e 

str
ate

gic
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

fra
me

wo
rk 
sta
ke
ho
lde
rs 

for
um

s’ 
ter
ms

 of
 re
fer
en
ce
 

 ar
ea
 fo
rum

s’ 
 

Th
e S

erv
ice
 Pl
an
nin

g, 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 an

d B
ud
ge
tin
g 

Fra
me

wo
rk 
pro

vid
es
 fo
r th

e e
sta

bli
sh
me

nt 
of 
se
rvi
ce
 us

er 
gro

up
s t
o e

na
ble

 pa
rtic

ipa
tio
n. 
  

 

TW
(M
H)
/

LD
 

 LD
 

6/7
/11

 
 

 

135



 

Pa
ge

 82
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 sh

ou
ld 

ref
lec

t th
e r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 lo
ca

l a
uth

or
itie

s t
o: 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 
tha

t m
ay

 be
 us

ed
 to

 
de

mo
ns

tra
te 

co
mp

lia
nc

e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

co
mm

un
ity 
to 
en
ga
ge
 

wit
h, 
co
ntr
ibu

te 
to 
an
d 

pa
rtic

ipa
te 
in 
the

 w
ork

 of
 

the
 au

tho
rity

. 
 Es
tab

lish
 a 
cle
ar 
po
licy

 
on
 th
e t
yp
es
 of
 is
su
es
 

the
y w

ill m
ea
nin
gfu

lly 
co
ns
ult
 on

 or
 en

ga
ge
 w
ith
 

the
 pu

bli
c a

nd
 se

rvi
ce
 

us
ers

 in
clu
din

g a
 

fee
db
ac
k m

ec
ha
nis
m 
for
 

tho
se
 co

ns
ult
ee
s t
o 

de
mo

ns
tra
te 
wh
at 
ha
s 

ch
an
ge
d a

s a
 re
su
lt 

 Th
es
e a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 

sh
ou
ld 
rec

og
nis
e t
ha
t 

dif
fer
en
t s
ec
tio
ns
 of
 th
e 

co
mm

un
ity 
ha
ve
 di
ffe
ren

t 
pri
ori
tie
s a

nd
 es

tab
lish

 
ex
plic

it p
roc

es
se
s f
or 

de
ali
ng
 w
ith
 th
es
e 

co
mp

eti
ng
 de

ma
nd
s. 

 

rol
es
 an

d r
es
po
ns
ibi
litie

s 
res

ide
nts

 pa
ne
l s
tru
ctu

re 
co
mm

un
ica
tio
n s

tra
teg

y 
 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 R
es
ide

nts
’ P
an
el 
pro

vid
es
 fo
r m

ore
 

str
uc
tur
ed
 en

ga
ge
me

nt.
   

 Ha
rro
w S

tra
teg

ic 
Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 in
clu
de
d r
ep
res

en
tat
ive
s o

f 
sta

ke
ho
lde
r g
rou

ps
 on

 its
 th
em

ati
c m

an
ag
em

en
t g
rou

ps
 

tha
t w
ere

 ch
arg

ed
 w
ith
 de

live
rin
g t
he
 Lo

ca
l A
rea

 Ag
ree

me
nt 

an
d o

the
r p
art
ne
rsh

ip 
tar
ge
ts.
  H
arr
ow
 St
rat
eg
ic 
Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 

co
nti
nu
es
 to
 in
clu
de
 tw
o r
efe

ren
ce
 gr
ou
ps
 pr
ov
idi
ng
 th
e 

vie
ws
 an

d p
rio
riti
es
 of
, in

 on
e c

as
e, 
Ol
de
r P
eo
ple

 an
d i
n t
he
 

oth
er,
 th
e V

olu
nta

ry 
an
d C

om
mu

nit
y S

ec
tor
.  

 In 
ad
dit
ion

, a
 co

-or
din

ate
d a

pp
roa

ch
 to
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
 ha

s 
be
en
 ad

op
ted

 to
 en

su
re 
tha

t p
ub
lic 
op
ini
on
 is
 ta
ke
n i
nto

 
ac
co
un
t in

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f p
oli
cy
 an

d t
o i
nfo

rm
 

de
cis
ion

s. 
Fe
ed
ba
ck
 on

 th
e o

utc
om

es
 of
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
 an

d 
the

 de
cis
ion

s t
ak
en
 is
 al
so
 pr
ov
ide

d. 
Ev
ide

nc
e I
nte

rim
 

Pla
ce
 Su

rve
y, 
Re
sid
en
ts 
Pa
ne
l, C

on
su
lta
tio
n F

ind
er 
 

Ev
ide

nc
e –

 Se
rvi
ce
 Pl
an
nin

g, 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 an

d B
ud
ge
tin
g 

Fra
me

wo
rk 
(1.
6) 
CS

B R
ep
ort
 es

tab
lish

ing
 th
e R

es
ide

nts
’ 

Pa
ne
l, P

ort
fol
io 
Ho
lde

rs 
de
cis
ion
 se

e a
bo
ve
. M

em
be
rsh

ip 
of 

HS
P M

an
ag
em

en
t G

rou
ps
 an

d R
efe

ren
ce
 G
rou

ps
. –
 

av
ail
ab
le 
on
 th
e w

eb
sit
e a

t  
htt
p:/
/w
ww

.ha
rro
w.g

ov
.uk

/in
fo/
20
00
09
/pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
/99

6/s
tru

ctu
re_

an
d_
fun

cti
on
_o
f_t
he
_h
sp
 

 
13
.19

 
 

En
su
re 
tha

t c
are

er 
str
uc
tur
es
 ar
e i
n p

lac
e f
or 

me
mb

ers
 an

d o
ffic
ers

 to
 

en
co
ura

ge
 pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n 

an
d d

ev
elo

pm
en
t 

 

su
cc
es
sio
n p

lan
nin

g 
 

A m
em

be
r d
ev
elo

pm
en
t p
rog

ram
me

 is
 re
fer
en
ce
d a

t 1
.18

 
 Th
ere

 is
 n
o 
ca
ree

r-p
lan

nin
g 
pro

gra
mm

e 
in 
pla

ce
 a
t t
he
 

off
ice
r l
ev
el 
alt
ho
ug
h 
thi
s 
is 
ref
lec
ted

 in
 th

e 
Str
ate

gy
 fo

r 
Pe
op
le 
20
10
-12

 ac
tio
n p

lan
.  

JT
 

/LC
 

LC
 29

.6.
11
 

GA
P 

20
10
/11

 
 CG

G 
ag
ree

d 
ga
p 0

9/0
8/1

1 
– n

o n
ee
d f
or 

fur
the

r a
cti
on
 

 

136



 

Pa
ge

 83
 of

 87
 

 Ap
ply

ing
 th

e C
IPF

A/
SO

LA
CE

 C
or

e P
rin

cip
les

 
St
ep

 6 
– E

ng
ag

ing
 w
ith

 lo
ca
l p

eo
ple

 an
d o

the
r s

tak
eh

old
ers

 to
 en

su
re
 ro

bu
st 

pu
bli

c a
cc
ou

nta
bil

ity
 

  
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 

sh
ou

ld 
ref

lec
t 

the
 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
to:

 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 th
at 

ma
y 

be
 us

ed
 to

 de
mo

ns
tra

te 
co

mp
lia

nc
e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

14
.1 

Ma
ke
 cl
ea
r to

 
the

ms
elv
es
, a
ll 

sta
ff a

nd
 th
e 

co
mm

un
ity,
 to
 

wh
om

 th
ey
 ar
e 

ac
co
un
tab

le 
an
d 

for
 wh

at 
 

co
mm

un
ity 
str
ate

gy
 

   

Th
e C

ou
nc
il is

 ac
co
un
tab

le 
to 
the

 pu
bli
c t
hro

ug
h t
he
 

ele
cto

ral
 pr
oc
es
s, 
to 
Ha
rro
w 
Str
ate

gic
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 fo
r 

de
live

ry 
of 
the

 ta
rge

ts 
its
 ac

ce
pts

; to
 th
e a

ud
it c
om

mi
ss
ion
 

an
d s

pe
cif
ic 
ins
pe
cto

rat
es
 fo
r it
s p

erf
orm

an
ce
 an

d t
o a

 
nu
mb

er 
of 
oth

er 
off
icia

l b
od
ies
 ra
ng
ing

 fro
m 
the

 H
ea
lth
 

an
d S

afe
ty 
Ex
ec
uti
ve
 to
 R
eg
ist
rar
 G
en
era

l fo
r s
pe
cif
ic 

are
as
 of
 ac

tiv
ity
.  M

em
be
rs 
are

 m
ad
e a

wa
re 
of 
the

se
 

ac
co
un
tab

iliti
es
 w
he
n p

ert
ine

nt 
an
d s

taf
f a
re 
aw
are

 of
 

ac
co
un
tab

iliti
es
 th
at 
tou

ch
 on

 th
eir
 du

tie
s. 
 Th

e C
ou
nc
il 

de
vis
es
 a 
se
t o
f P
rio
rity

  A
cti
on
s f
or 
ea
ch
 ed

itio
n o

f th
e 

Co
rpo

rat
e P

lan
 th
at 
are

 un
de
rst
an
da
ble

 ex
am

ple
s o

f w
ha
t 

the
 co

rpo
rat
e p

rio
riti
es
 m
ea
n i
n p

rac
tic
e a

nd
 pu

bli
sh
 th
es
e 

an
d t
he
 ex

ten
t to

 w
hic
h t
he
y a
re 
ac
hie

ve
d e

ac
h y

ea
r to

 
illu
str
ate

 lo
ca
l a
nd
 pu

bli
c a

cc
ou
nta

bil
ity
  

An
 A-
Z o

f C
ou
nc
il S

erv
ice
s, 
a C

ou
nc
il T

ax
 bo

ok
 an

d 
Ha
rro
w P

eo
ple

 av
ail
ab
le 
to 
res

ide
nts

 + 
pu
bli
sh
ed
 se

t o
f 

ac
co
un
ts 
inc
lud

ing
 AG

S. 

TW
(M
H)
/L

D 
LD
 

6/7
/11

 
 

         

137



 

Pa
ge

 84
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 

sh
ou

ld 
ref

lec
t 

the
 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
to:

 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 th
at 

ma
y 

be
 us

ed
 to

 de
mo

ns
tra

te 
co

mp
lia

nc
e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

14
.2 

Co
ns
ide

r th
os
e 

ins
titu

tio
na
l 

sta
ke
ho
lde
rs 
to 

wh
om

 th
ey
 ar
e 

ac
co
un
tab

le 
an
d 

as
se
ss
 th
e 

eff
ec
tive

ne
ss
 of
 

the
 re
lat
ion
sh
ips
 

an
d a

ny
 ch

an
ge
s 

req
uir
ed
 

 

Ha
rro
w C

om
pa
ct?

 
    

Th
e C

ou
nc
il w

as
, a
s s
tat
ed
 in
 14

.1 
ab
ov
e, 
ac
co
un
tab

le 
to 

Ha
rro
w S

tra
teg

ic 
Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 fo
r th

e d
eli
ve
ry 
of 
ele

me
nts

 
of 
the

 Lo
ca
l A
rea

 Ag
ree

me
nt.
  P
erf
orm

an
ce
 re
po
rts
 w
ere

 
su
bm

itte
d r
eg
ula

rly
.  F

orm
al 
rel
ati
on
s h

av
e b

ee
n r
ev
iew

ed
 

an
d a

re 
co
nti
nu
ing

 to
 de

ve
lop

.  E
vid
en
ce
 G
ov
ern

an
ce
 

Ha
nd
bo
ok
 ad

op
ted

. R
en
ew
ed
 st
ruc

tur
e p

ap
er 
Ju
ly 
20
11
.  

Th
e H

arr
ow
 C
om

pa
ct 
wh
ich
 de

sc
rib
es
 an

d r
eg
ula

tes
 

rel
ati
on
s b

etw
ee
n t
he
 pu

bli
c a

nd
 vo

lun
tar
y a
nd
 co

mm
un
ity
 

se
cto

rs 
ha
s b

ee
n s

ub
sta

nti
all
y u
pd
ate

d t
og
eth

er 
4 o

f th
e 5

 
co
de
s w

hic
h i
t s
up
po
rts
. W

ork
 is
 un

de
rw
ay
 up

da
tin
g t
he
 

fift
h c

od
e a

nd
 a 
Co
mp

ac
t O

rga
nis
ati
on
 is
 be

ing
 

es
tab

lish
ed
 to
 ch

am
pio
n t
he
 C
om

pa
ct.
 C
om

pla
int
s m

ad
e 

tha
t th

e C
om

pa
ct 
is 
no
t fo

llo
we
d a

re 
ca
ref
ull
y in

ve
sti
ga
ted

 
an
d r
ep
ort
ed
 w
ith
, u
su
all
y, 
a s

ati
sfa

cto
ry 
res

olu
tio
n. 

Co
mp

ac
t u
pd
ate

d –
 co

pie
s o

f u
pd
ate

d c
od
es
 pr
ov
ide

d a
nd
 

ex
am

ple
s o

f C
om

pa
ct 
inv
es
tig
ati
on
s. 
Dr
aft
 of
 Fu

nd
ing

 an
d 

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
Co
de
. 

 

TW
(M
H)
/L

D 
LD
 

6/7
/11

 
 

 

14
.3 

Pr
od
uc
e a

n 
an
nu
al 
rep

ort
 on

 
sc
rut
iny
 fu
nc
tio
n 

ac
tiv
ity
 

 

an
nu
al 
rep

ort
 

   

Th
e 2

01
0/1

1 r
ep
ort
 is
 av

ail
ab
le 
on
lin
e a

t  
 htt
p:/
/w
ww

.ha
rro
w.g

ov
.uk

/do
wn
loa

ds
/fil
e/9

65
6/s

cru
tin
y_
an

nu
al_

rep
ort
_2
01
0-1

1  

AD
(LM

)/L
D 

LD
 

6/7
/11

 
 

 

14
.4 

En
su
re 
tha

t c
lea
r 

ch
an
ne
ls 
of 

co
mm

un
ica
tio
n 

are
 in
 pl
ac
e w

ith
 

all
 se

cti
on
s o

f th
e 

co
mm

un
ity 
an
d 

oth
er 

sta
ke
ho
lde
rs 

inc
lud

ing
 

mo
nit
ori
ng
 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 to
 

en
su
re 
tha

t th
ey
 

op
era

te 
eff
ec
tive

ly 
 

co
mm

un
ity 
str
ate

gy
 

pro
ce
ss
es
 fo
r d
ea
lin
g w

ith
 

co
mp

eti
ng
 de

ma
nd
s w

ith
in 
the

 
co
mm

un
ity 

    

Ha
rro
w S

tra
teg

ic 
Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 de

ve
lop

ed
 th
e S

us
tai
na
ble

 
Co
mm

un
ity 
Str
ate

gy
 an

d t
he
 Lo

ca
l A
rea

 Ag
ree

me
nt 

thr
ou
gh
 a 
pro

ce
ss
 th
at 
inv
olv
ed
 a 
su
mm

it f
or 
loc
al 
gro

up
s 

an
d i
nd
ivid

ua
ls 
to 
sc
op
e t
he
 do

cu
me

nts
 an

d i
nv
olv
em

en
t 

of 
sta

ke
ho
lde
rs 
thr
ou
gh
 th
em

ati
c m

an
ag
em

en
t g
rou

ps
 to
 

ref
ine
 th
e c

on
ten

t.  
Th
e S

us
tai
na
ble

 C
om

mu
nit
y S

tra
teg

y 
wa
s t
he
 su

bje
ct 
of 
pu
bli
c c
on
su
lta
tio
n. 
 Ev

ide
nc
e –

 Se
e 

ag
en
da
 an

d i
nv
ite
 lis
t fo

r s
um

mi
t m

ee
tin
gs
 an

d 
Co
ns
ult
ati
on
 Fe

ed
ba
ck
 do

cu
me

nt.
 

  

TW
(M
H)
/L

D 
LD
 

6/7
/11

 
 

 

138



 

Pa
ge

 85
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 

sh
ou

ld 
ref

lec
t 

the
 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
to:

 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 th
at 

ma
y 

be
 us

ed
 to

 de
mo

ns
tra

te 
co

mp
lia

nc
e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

14
.5 

Ho
ld 
me

eti
ng
s i
n 

pu
bli
c u

nle
ss
 

the
re 
are

 go
od
 

rea
so
ns
 fo
r 

co
nfi
de
nti
ali
ty 

an
d w

ide
ly 

pu
bli
cis
e t
he
 fa
ct 

to 
im
pro

ve
 

ac
ce
ss
ab
ility

. 
 

    

Ac
ce
ss
 to
 in
for
ma

tio
n r
ule

s –
 Pa

rt 4
g o

f th
e C

on
sti
tut
ion

 
 Me

eti
ng
s a

re 
he
ld 
in 
pu
bli
c a

nd
 th
e a

ge
nd
a a

nd
 m
inu
tes

 
are

 pu
bli
sh
ed
. 

 Ex
plo
rin
g t
he
 po

ss
ibi
lity
 of
 pu

ttin
g a

 st
ate

me
nt 
on
 

Ha
rro
w’s

 w
eb
sit
e t
o h

av
e m

ee
tin
gs
 in
 pu

bli
c. 

HP
/JF

 
JF
 – 
10
 

Ju
ne
 

 

139



 

Pa
ge

 86
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 

sh
ou

ld 
ref

lec
t 

the
 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
to:

 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 th
at 

ma
y 

be
 us

ed
 to

 de
mo

ns
tra

te 
co

mp
lia

nc
e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

14
.6 

En
su
re 
tha

t th
e 

au
tho

rity
 as

 a 
wh
ole

 is
 op

en
 

an
d a

cc
es
sib
le 
to 

the
 co

mm
un
ity,
 

se
rvi
ce
 us

ers
 an

d 
its
 st
aff
 an

d 
en
su
re 
tha

t it
 ha

s 
ma

de
 a 

co
mm

itm
en
t to

 
op
en
ne
ss
 an

d 
tra
ns
pa
ren

cy
 in
 

all
 its
 de

ali
ng
s, 

inc
lud

ing
 

pa
rtn
ers

hip
s 

su
bje

ct 
on
ly 
to 

the
 ne

ed
 to
 

pre
se
rve

 
co
nfi
de
nti
ali
ty 
in 

tho
se
 sp

ec
ific
 

cir
cu
ms

tan
ce
s 

wh
ere

 it 
is 
pro

pe
r 

an
d a

pp
rop

ria
te 

to 
do
 so

 an
d t
his
 

is 
do
ne
 in
 a 
wa
y 

tha
t th

e 
co
mm

un
ity 
ca
n 

ac
ce
ss
 an

d m
ak
e 

se
ns
e o

f. 
 

co
ns
titu
tio
n 

 
 

Ac
ce
ss
 to
 Se

rvi
ce
s I
ns
pe
cti
on
 

 Pe
titi
on
 un

de
r c
on
sti
tut
ion

 
 Co
ns
ult
ati
on
 & 
ca
ll in

 pr
oc
ed
ure

 
 Qu

es
tio
ns
 at
 m
ee
tin
gs
 

 Ca
bin

et 
Qu

es
tio
n T

im
e 

 Sc
rut
iny
 Fu

nc
tio
n 

 Cll
r C

om
pla
int
s P

roc
ed
ure

 
 Cll
r Q

ue
sti
on
 Ti
me

 
 Bu
dg
et 
Co
ns
ult
ati
on
 

 Ev
ide

nc
e: 
Co
ns
titu

tio
n a

s b
efo

re 
 Pu
bli
c a

bil
ity
 to
 co

mp
lain

 ab
ou
t c
ou
nc
illo
rs.
  (
Ar
tic
le 
3 o

f 
the

 C
on
sti
tut
ion

 se
ts 
ou
t w

ha
t c
itiz
en
s c

an
 ex

pe
ct 
fro
m 

the
 C
ou
nc
il)  

HP
/JF

 
JF
 –

 1
0 

Ju
ne
 

 

140



 

Pa
ge

 87
 of

 87
 

 
Th

e l
oc

al 
co

de
 

sh
ou

ld 
ref

lec
t 

the
 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
to:

 

So
ur

ce
 do

cu
me

nts
/go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e/o

the
r m

ea
ns

 th
at 

ma
y 

be
 us

ed
 to

 de
mo

ns
tra

te 
co

mp
lia

nc
e 

Ha
rro

w 
Ev

ide
nc

e: 
Ow

ne
r/ 

Sp
on

so
r 

Ev
ide

nc
e 

up
da

ted
 

(da
te 

& 
ini

tia
ls)

 

Ga
p 

Ide
nti

fie
d 

14
.7 

De
ve
lop

 an
d 

ma
int
ain
 a 
cle
ar 

po
licy

 on
 ho

w 
sta

ff a
nd
 th
eir
 

rep
res

en
tat
ive
s 

are
 co

ns
ult
ed
 

an
d i
nv
olv
ed
 in
 

de
cis
ion

 m
ak
ing
. 

co
ns
titu
tio
n 

Th
is 

is 
ref
lec
ted

 in
 t
he
 C

on
sti
tut
ion

. 
 T

he
 t
erm

s 
of 

ref
ere

nc
e 

for
 
the

 
Em

plo
ye
e 

Co
ns
ult
ati
ve
 
Fo
rum

, 
Co
rpo

rat
e 
an
d 
Dir
ec
tor
ate

 J
oin
t C

om
mi
tte
es
 a
re 

on
 th

e 
int
ran

et 
at 
the

 fo
llo
win

g l
ink
s:  

EC
F: 

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
/in
fo/
20
01
34
/em

plo
ye
e_
rel
ati
on
s/1

55
/ec

f_
ter
ms

_o
f_r
efe

ren
ce
 

 CJ
C 
: 

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
/in
fo/
20
01
34
/em

plo
ye
e_
rel
ati
on
s/1

52
/cj
c_

ter
ms

_o
f_r
efe

ren
ce
 

 DJ
C:
 

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
/in
fo/
20
01
34
/em

plo
ye
e_
rel
ati
on
s/1

53
/dj
c_

ter
ms

_o
f_r
efe

ren
ce
 

 Th
e 
Re
co
gn
itio
n 
Ag
ree

me
nts

 fo
r U

NI
SO

N 
an
d 
GM

B 
are

 
on
 th
e c

ou
nc
il’s
 in
tra
ne
t a
t th

e f
oll
ow
ing

 lin
k: 

htt
p:/
/ha

rro
wh
ub
/do

wn
loa

ds
/do

wn
loa

d/2
99
/re
co
gn
itio
n_
ag

ree
me

nts
 

 

JT
&H

P/L
C 

LC
 

29
.6.
11
 

 

 

141



142

This page is intentionally left blank



20
09

/10
 AG

S A
cti

on
 Pl

an
 – 

Up
da

te 
Ju

ly 
20

11
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

   A
pp

en
dix

 4 

07
/07

/10
 

AG
S 

Re
f 

Ar
ea
 of

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

Ga
p I

de
nti

fie
d 

Ag
ree

d A
cti

on
 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
Of

fic
er 

Tim
es
ca

le 
Up

da
ted

 Ju
ne

 
20
11
 

1.7
 

c/f
 

08
/0

9 

Ob
jec

tiv
es

 ar
e r

efl
ec

ted
 

in 
de

pa
rtm

en
tal

 pl
an

s a
nd

 
are

 cl
ea

rly
 m

atc
he

d w
ith

 
as

so
cia

ted
 bu

dg
ets

 

De
live

ry 
Pla

ns
 ar

e n
ot 

de
ve

lop
ed

 fo
r 

all
 ar

ea
s o

f th
e c

ou
nc

il’s
 se

rvi
ce

s, 
so

 
it i

s n
ot 

po
ss

ibl
e t

o d
ete

rm
ine

 
wh

eth
er 

the
se

 re
fle

ct 
co

rpo
rat

e 
ob

jec
tiv

es
 an

d m
atc

h a
pp

rov
ed

 
fun

din
g. 

 W
he

re 
De

live
ry 

Pla
ns

 ar
e d

ev
elo

pe
d 

(no
t a

ll a
rea

s) 
the

se
 to

o c
on

tai
n p

rio
r 

ye
ar 

PI 
ou

ttu
rn 

an
d a

 se
cti

on
 

rep
ort

ing
 pr

og
res

s w
ith

 pr
ior

 ye
ar 

pro
jec

ts.
 

 W
hil

st 
the

re 
is 

an
 in

ten
tio

n t
o 

ad
dre

ss
 th

is 
ga

p, 
a p

lan
 is

 no
t y

et 
in 

ev
ide

nc
e. 

 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 D

eli
ve

ry 
Pla

n 
rev

iew
 to

 id
en

tify
 ga

ps
 an

d 
ac

tio
n t

o b
e t

ak
en

 
ac

co
rdi

ng
ly.

 

All
 C

LG
 

me
mb

ers
/IW

/LD
 

Ma
rch

 20
11

 
No

t 
im

ple
me

nte
d 

 Th
is 

rev
iew

 w
as

 
no

t u
nd

ert
ak

en
 

as
 hi

gh
er 

ris
ks

 
we

re 
ad

dre
ss

ed
 

as
 pa

rt o
f th

e 
an

nu
al 

pla
n 

 GA
P 2

01
0/1

1 

2.5
 

c/f
 

08
/0

9 

Th
e a

uth
ori

ty 
ha

s w
ell

-
es

tab
lish

ed
 an

d c
lea

r 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

 fo
r 

fin
an

cin
g r

isk
. 

No
 sp

ec
ific

 po
licy

 in
 pl

ac
e f

or 
ris

k 
fin

an
cin

g t
he

ref
ore

 no
t re

gu
lar

ly 
rev

iew
ed

 in
 th

e l
igh

t o
f c

os
ts 

an
d 

alt
ern

ati
ve

 ris
k m

itig
ati

on
 st

rat
eg

ies
. 

 Mo
nit

ori
ng

 of
 in

cid
en

ce
 of

 
su

cc
es

sfu
l a

nd
 un

su
cc

es
sfu

l c
lai

ms
 

is 
no

t fe
d i

nto
 th

e p
oli

cy
 fo

r ri
sk

 
fin

an
cin

g (
or 

ris
k m

an
ag

em
en

t) 

Ne
w 

Ins
ura

nc
e M

an
ag

er 
to 

ex
plo

re 
wh

eth
er 

a s
pe

cif
ic 

ris
k f

ina
nc

ing
 po

licy
 is

 
req

uir
ed

. 
 To

 co
nti

nu
e t

o e
xp

lor
e 

if/h
ow

 in
cid

en
ce

 of
 

su
cc

es
sfu

l a
nd

 un
su

cc
es

sfu
l 

cla
im

s c
an

 be
 fe

d i
nto

 th
e 

po
lic

y f
or 

ris
k f

ina
nc

ing
 (if

 it 
is 

de
cid

ed
 on

e i
s n

ee
de

d) 
or 

int
o t

he
 ris

k m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sy
ste

m.
 

DW
/KV

 
   

DW
/KV

 
 

Ma
rch

 20
11

 
   Ma

rch
 20

11
 

 

Im
ple

me
nte

d 
 LE

AN
 re

vie
w 

im
pro

ve
d c

lai
ms

 
pro

ce
ss

es
 to

 
en

su
re 

ris
k 

fin
an

cin
g i

s 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 an

d 
pru

de
nt.

 

2.9
 

c/f
 

08
/0

9 

Ma
na

ge
rs 

are
 

ac
co

un
tab

le 
for

 m
an

ag
ing

 
the

ir r
isk

s. 
Co

ntr
ol 

an
d r

isk
 se

lf-a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

(C
RS

A)
 qu

es
tio

nn
air

es
 ar

e n
ot 

us
ed

. 
 

Us
e o

f S
elf

 As
se

ss
me

nts
 to

 
en

ha
nc

e a
cc

ou
nta

bil
ity

 to
 be

 
co

ns
ide

red
 by

 th
e n

ew
ly 

ref
orm

ed
 C

RS
G.

 

TJ
 

De
c 2

01
0 

Im
ple

me
nte

d 
 Pa

pe
r o

n C
RS

A 
pre

se
nte

d t
o O

ct 
20

10
 C

RS
G 

me
eti

ng
  a

nd
 

ag
ree

d t
ha

t 
CR

SA
 no

t 
req

uir
ed

 to
 

pro
vid

e a
dd

itio
na

l 
as

su
ran

ce
. 

3.4
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ov

era
ll p

art
ial

ly 

143



20
09

/10
 AG

S A
cti

on
 Pl

an
 – 

Up
da

te 
Ju

ly 
20

11
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

   A
pp

en
dix

 4 

07
/07

/10
 

AG
S 

Re
f 

Ar
ea
 of

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

Ga
p I

de
nti

fie
d 

Ag
ree

d A
cti

on
 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
Of

fic
er 

Tim
es
ca

le 
Up

da
ted

 Ju
ne

 
20
11
 

c/f
 

08
/0

9 
Th

ere
 is

 a 
co

un
ter

 fra
ud

 
an

d c
orr

up
tio

n p
oli

cy
 in

 
pla

ce
 w

hic
h h

as
 be

en
 

for
ma

lly 
ap

pro
ve

d, 
reg

ula
rly

 re
vie

we
d a

nd
 

wid
ely

 co
mm

un
ica

ted
 to

 
all

 re
lev

an
t s

taf
f. 

Po
lic

y a
cc

es
sib

le 
on

 in
ter

ne
t s

ite
 bu

t 
on

ly 
via

 se
arc

h f
ac

ility
 on

 in
tra

ne
t 

(C
AF

T h
av

e n
o s

pe
cif

ic 
pa

ge
s).

 
   No

 aw
are

ne
ss

 se
ss

ion
s e

tc.
 ar

e r
un

. 
        CA

FT
 do

 no
t c

urr
en

tly
 fo

rm
all

y 
rep

ort
 id

en
tifi

ed
 fra

ud
s o

r re
su

lts
 of

 
NF

I in
ter

na
lly.

 N
ew

 G
AR

M 
Le

ad
 

Me
mb

er 
for

 C
AF

T h
as

  b
ee

n 
es

tab
lish

ed
 to

 pr
og

res
s t

his
 an

d 
CA

FT
 no

w 
rep

ort
ing

 to
 H

ea
d o

f A
 & 

R 
 

 Re
gis

ter
 of

 gi
fts

 an
d h

os
pit

ali
ty 

is 
no

t 
rev

iew
ed

 fro
m 

a f
rau

d p
ers

pe
cti

ve
. 

Co
ns

ide
rat

ion
 to

 be
 gi

ve
n a

s 
pa

rt o
f th

e 2
00

9/1
0 f

rau
d 

pla
n t

o e
nh

an
cin

g i
ntr

an
et 

to 
en

ab
le 

po
licy

 to
 be

 m
ore

 
ac

ce
ss

ibl
e t

o s
taf

f. 
 Co

rpo
rat

e f
rau

d a
wa

ren
es

s 
e-l

ea
rni

ng
 to

ol 
giv

en
 go

 
ah

ea
d t

o p
urc

ha
se

, p
lan

ne
d 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n f

or 
3rd

 
qu

art
er 

an
d p

ha
se

d r
oll

 ou
t 

for
 4th

 qu
art

er 
20

09
/10

 
   To

 es
tab

lish
 w

ith
 G

AR
M 

co
mm

itte
e f

req
ue

nc
y a

nd
 

co
nte

nt 
of 

req
uir

ed
 re

po
rts

. 
     To

 in
clu

de
 in

 10
/11

 pl
an

 – 
co

ns
ide

red
 bu

t n
ot 

hig
h r

isk
 

en
ou

gh
 to

 m
ak

e p
lan

. 

JP
      JP
         

JP
/D

W
 

       JP
  

Ma
rch

 20
11

 
     Ma

rch
 20

11
 

        De
c 2

01
0 

       Ma
rch

 20
11

 
 

im
ple

me
nte

d 
No

t im
ple

me
nte

d 
    No

t im
ple

me
nte

d 
 Th

ere
 is

 a 
co

rpo
rat

e e
-

lea
rni

ng
 to

ol 
wh

ich
 w

ill b
e 

uti
lise

d  
  Re

po
rtin

g t
o 

GA
RM

 at
 ea

ch
  

me
eti

ng
 re

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 N
FI 

wil
l b

e p
art

 of
 th

is 
wh

ere
 re

lev
an

t 
  No

t Im
ple

me
nte

d 
– n

ot 
co

ns
ide

red
 

hig
h r

isk
 

 GA
P 2

01
0/1

1 
 

OG
F7

 
c/f

  
Ma

kin
g s

ure
 th

at 
an

 
eff

ec
tiv

e r
isk

 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

sy
ste

m 
is 

in 
op

era
tio

n 

Bu
sin

es
s C

on
tin

uit
y/I

T D
isa

ste
r 

rec
ov

ery
 

He
ad

 of
 IT

 w
ork

ing
 w

ith
 

Div
isio

na
l D

ire
cto

rs 
to 

es
tab

lish
 IT

 av
ail

ab
ilit

y 
req

uir
em

en
ts 

for
 di

sa
ste

r 
rec

ov
ery

. 

Ma
he

sh
 Pa

tel
 

  
Oc

t 2
01

0 
No

t 
im

ple
me

nte
d 

 No
t in

 pl
ac

e f
or 

20
10

/11
. W

ill b
e 

co
mp

let
e b

y A
pri

l 
20

12
. 

 GA
P 2

01
0/1

1 
 

OG
F8

 
c/f

 
Ma

kin
g s

ure
 th

at 
an

 
eff

ec
tiv

e r
isk

 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

sy
ste

m 
is 

in 
He

alt
h &

 Sa
fet

y  
Re

vie
w 

He
alt

h &
 Sa

fet
y 

fun
cti

on
 - C

on
su

lta
tio

n P
ac

k 
iss

ue
d 1

4/0
7/0

9. 
 

DW
/M

ark
 R

ior
do

n 
Au

gu
st 

20
10

 
Pa

rti
all

y 
Im

ple
me

nte
d 

 

144



20
09

/10
 AG

S A
cti

on
 Pl

an
 – 

Up
da

te 
Ju

ly 
20

11
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

   A
pp

en
dix

 4 

07
/07

/10
 

AG
S 

Re
f 

Ar
ea
 of

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

Ga
p I

de
nti

fie
d 

Ag
ree

d A
cti

on
 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
Of

fic
er 

Tim
es
ca

le 
Up

da
ted

 Ju
ne

 
20
11
 

op
era

tio
n 

Co
ns

ide
red

 by
 ca

bin
et 

15
/07

/10
.  C

AP
ITA

 w
ork

ing
 

on
 fu

ll b
us

ine
ss

 ca
se

 
pro

po
sa

l. 
 

Th
e C

ap
ita

 
rev

iew
 is

 
co

mp
let

e a
nd

 
dis

co
un

ted
. A

 
co

mp
reh

en
siv

e 
rev

iew
 of

 H
&S

 
ha

s b
ee

n c
arr

ied
 

ou
t a

nd
 a 

ne
w 

res
tru

ctu
re 

an
d 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pla

n i
s 

co
mm

en
cin

g. 
 GA

P 2
01

0/1
1 

 
1.4

5 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il is

 na
rro

win
g 

the
 ga

p b
etw

ee
n t

he
 

cu
rre

nt 
co

nd
itio

n o
f th

e 
as

se
t b

as
e a

nd
 an

 
ac

ce
pta

ble
 st

an
da

rd 
of 

ma
int

en
an

ce
, w

ith
 hi

gh
 

lev
els

 of
 ba

ck
log

 
ma

int
en

an
ce

 be
ing

 
red

uc
ed

. 

Lim
ite

d r
es

ou
rce

s a
va

ila
ble

 to
 m

ee
t 

ma
int

en
an

ce
 de

ma
nd

s. 
To

 pu
rsu

e w
ith

 ne
w 

Po
rtfo

lio
 

Ho
lde

r. 
Mi

ke
 Br

ow
n 

?D
ec

 20
10

 
No

t 
im

ple
me

nte
d  

 Th
ere

 ha
s b

ee
n 

no
 re

du
cti

on
 in

 
ba

ck
log

 
ma

int
en

an
ce

 du
e 

to 
mi

nim
al 

ca
pit

al 
inv

es
tm

en
t.  

Ho
we

ve
r, f

utu
re 

ac
ad

em
y 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 fo

r 
hig

h s
ch

oo
ls,

 w
ill 

im
pa

ct 
on

 cu
rre

nt 
de

ma
nd

s, 
red

uc
ing

 hi
gh

 
lev

els
 of

 
ma

int
en

an
ce

.  
 Th

ere
for

e n
o 

lon
ge

r a
 G
AP

  
1.4

6 
Sig

nif
ica

nt 
inv

es
tm

en
t 

de
cis

ion
s a

re 
ev

alu
ate

d 
us

ing
 op

tio
n a

pp
rai

sa
l 

an
d w

ho
le 

life
 ap

pra
isa

l 
tec

hn
iqu

es
. 

It i
s r

ec
og

nis
ed

 th
at 

the
re 

is 
no

t a
 

co
ns

ist
en

t a
pp

roa
ch

 to
 op

tio
n/w

ho
le 

life
 ap

pra
isa

l a
cro

ss
 th

e C
ou

nc
il. 

Th
is 

is 
ac

kn
ow

led
ge

d b
ut 

co
ns

ide
red

 re
as

on
ab

le,
 

the
ref

ore
 no

 ac
tio

n p
lan

ne
d. 

 
 

 

145



20
09

/10
 AG

S A
cti

on
 Pl

an
 – 

Up
da

te 
Ju

ly 
20

11
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

   A
pp

en
dix

 4 

07
/07

/10
 

AG
S 

Re
f 

Ar
ea
 of

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

Ga
p I

de
nti

fie
d 

Ag
ree

d A
cti

on
 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
Of

fic
er 

Tim
es
ca

le 
Up

da
ted

 Ju
ne

 
20
11
 

3.3
 

Th
ere

 is
 a 

W
his

tle
blo

win
g 

po
licy

 in
 pl

ac
e t

ha
t is

 
reg

ula
rly

 re
vie

we
d a

nd
 

ev
ide

nc
e o

f th
e 

eff
ec

tiv
en

es
s o

f th
e p

oli
cy

 
e.g

. re
po

rts
 on

 in
cid

en
ce

 
of 

us
ag

e. 

Po
lic

y n
ot 

rev
iew

ed
 si

nc
e 2

00
7  

+ n
o 

ev
ide

nc
e o

f e
ffe

cti
ve

ne
ss

 be
ing

 
me

as
ure

d. 
Po

lic
y t

o b
e u

pd
ate

d a
nd

 
co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 to
 be

 gi
ve

n t
o 

ho
w 

its
 ef

fec
tiv

en
es

s c
an

 be
 

me
as

ure
d. 

Jo
n T

urn
er 

 
 

Im
ple

me
nte

d 
 Po

lic
y h

as
 be

en
 

rev
iew

ed
 w

ith
 no

 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
ch

an
ge

s. 
 Al

l 
co

mp
lai

nts
 ar

e 
rep

ort
ed

 to
 an

d 
rec

ord
ed

 by
 th

e 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
 

Of
fic

er,
 w

ho
 is

 
ab

le 
to 

mo
nit

or 
eff

ec
tiv

en
es

s. 
– 

rep
ort

s t
o G

AR
M 

 
3.3

4 
Ar

ran
ge

me
nts

 fo
r 

va
lid

ati
ng

 in
for

ma
tio

n 
fro

m 
thi

rd 
pa

rtie
s. 

Th
is 

is 
the

 re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y o

f th
e 

co
ntr

ac
t o

wn
er 

(m
an

ag
er 

res
po

ns
ibl

e) 
an

d t
he

re 
is 

no
 

co
ns

ist
en

t a
pp

roa
ch

. 

Pa
pe

r to
 C

SB
 to

 be
 

pro
du

ce
d t

o a
dd

res
s g

ap
. 

Ale
x D

ew
sn

ap
 

 
No

t 
im

ple
me

nte
d 

 No
ve

mb
er/

De
ce

mb
er 

20
11

 ne
w 

tim
es

ca
le 

 GA
P 2

01
0/1

1 
 

3.4
2 

Th
e c

ou
nc

il e
ng

ag
es

 w
ith

 
its

 st
aff

 an
d g

ain
s t

he
ir 

co
mm

itm
en

t to
, a

nd
 

ow
ne

rsh
ip 

of,
 th

e 
co

un
cil’

s a
pp

roa
ch

 to
 

red
uc

ing
 its

 im
pa

ct 
on

 th
e 

en
vir

on
me

nt 

Alt
ho

ug
h a

 w
ell

 pu
bli

cis
ed

 En
erg

y 
Sa

vin
g C

am
pa

ign
 w

as
 ru

n i
n 

20
08

/09
 it 

is 
rec

og
nis

ed
 th

at 
a m

ore
 

pro
-ac

tiv
e e

ng
ag

em
en

t w
ith

 st
aff

 is
 

ne
ed

ed
. 

To
 de

vis
e a

 pr
o-a

cti
ve

 
en

ga
ge

me
nt 

pro
gra

mm
e o

n 
the

 co
un

cil’
s a

pp
roa

ch
 to

 
red

uc
ing

 its
 im

pa
ct 

on
 th

e 
en

vir
on

me
nt.

  

An
dre

w 
Ba

ke
r 

 
No

t 
im

ple
me

nte
d 

 Re
du

ce
d s

taf
fin

g 
lev

els
 an

d a
 

fre
ez

e o
n 

rec
rui

tm
en

t 
du

rin
g 2

01
0/1

1 
ha

ve
 m

ea
nt 

tha
t 

it h
as

 no
t b

ee
n 

po
ss

ibl
e t

o  
de

vis
e a

 
pro

gra
mm

e. 
W

e 
an

tic
ipa

te 
rec

rui
tin

g a
nd

 
ini

tia
tin

g a
 

pro
gra

mm
e i

n t
he

 
Au

tum
n 

146



20
09

/10
 AG

S A
cti

on
 Pl

an
 – 

Up
da

te 
Ju

ly 
20

11
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

   A
pp

en
dix

 4 

07
/07

/10
 

AG
S 

Re
f 

Ar
ea
 of

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

Ga
p I

de
nti

fie
d 

Ag
ree

d A
cti

on
 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
Of

fic
er 

Tim
es
ca

le 
Up

da
ted

 Ju
ne

 
20
11
 

 GA
P 2

01
0/1

1 
11

.4 
De

ve
lop

 an
d m

ain
tai

n a
n 

eff
ec

tiv
e s

tan
da

rds
 

co
mm

itte
e w

ith
 a 

su
ita

ble
 

pro
file

 an
d p

ub
lici

se
 its

 
rol

e a
nd

 ob
jec

tiv
es

 an
d 

rel
ev

an
t o

utc
om

es
 to

 
me

mb
ers

 of
 th

e p
ub

lic,
 al

l 
sta

ff, 
sta

ke
ho

lde
rs 

an
d 

Me
mb

ers
. 

 

A S
tan

da
rds

 C
om

mi
tte

e h
as

 be
en

 
de

ve
lop

ed
 ho

we
ve

r th
is 

do
es

 no
t 

cu
rre

ntl
y h

av
e a

 su
ita

ble
 pr

ofi
le 

an
d 

its
 ro

le 
an

d o
bje

cti
ve

s a
nd

 re
lev

an
t 

ou
tco

me
s a

re 
no

t p
ub

lici
se

d t
o t

he
 

pu
bli

c, 
sta

ff, 
sta

ke
ho

lde
rs 

an
d 

me
mb

ers
. 

Re
po

rt t
o b

e p
res

en
ted

 to
 

the
 St

an
da

rds
 C

om
mi

tte
e t

o 
ad

dre
ss

 th
is 

ga
p d

uri
ng

 
20

10
. 

 Ra
isin

g t
he

 pr
ofi

le 
of 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e w

ill i
nv

olv
e a

 
se

rie
s o

f a
cti

on
s. 

A r
ep

ort
 

wa
s p

res
en

ted
 to

 th
e l

as
t 

me
eti

ng
 in

 Ju
ne

 20
10

 w
he

re 
thi

s i
ss

ue
 w

as
 ra

ise
d. 

Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e i

n r
es

po
ns

e 
ad

op
ted

 a 
Mi

ss
ion

 
Sta

tem
en

t a
nd

 O
bje

cti
ve

 to
 

ad
dre

ss
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

are
as

 
inc

lud
ing

 ra
isin

g i
ts 

pro
file

. 

Hu
gh

 Pe
art

 
 

Im
ple

me
nte

d. 
 Un

de
r th

e 
Lo

ca
lism

 Bi
ll, 

the
 

Co
un

cil 
wil

l n
o 

lon
ge

r b
e 

req
uir

ed
 to

 ha
ve

 
a s

tan
da

rds
 

co
mm

itte
e. 

 Th
e 

eff
ec

tiv
e d

ate
 is

 
like

ly 
to 

be
 

aro
un

d A
pri

l 
20

12
.  A

 w
ork

ing
 

gro
up

 ha
s b

ee
n 

se
t u

p t
o d

ec
ide

: 
1) 

if w
e n

ee
d a

 
sta

nd
ard

s 
co

mm
itte

e; 
2) 

co
de

 of
 co

nd
uc

t; 
an

d 3
) w

ha
t to

 do
 

ab
ou

t b
rea

ch
es

 
of 

the
 co

de
 if 

it i
s 

de
cid

ed
 to

 re
tai

n 
on

e. 
 U

nd
er 

the
 

Lo
ca

lism
 Bi

ll w
e 

sti
ll h

av
e t

o 
up

ho
ld 

hig
h 

sta
nd

ard
s b

ut 
the

 
Bil

l d
oe

s n
ot 

pro
vid

e f
or 

a 
me

ch
an

ism
 fo

r 
bre

ac
he

s e
xc

ep
t 

in 
the

 ve
ry 

se
rio

us
 ca

se
s 

wh
ere

 it 
wil

l b
e a

 
cri

mi
na

l o
ffe

nc
e 

no
t to

 de
cla

re 
an

 
int

ere
st.

 
13

.11
 

Jo
int

 w
ork

for
ce

 pl
an

nin
g. 

Alt
ho

ug
h t

he
re 

is 
an

 in
teg

rat
ed

 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
W

ork
for

ce
 St

rat
eg

y a
nd

 
Th

is 
ha

s b
ee

n i
de

nti
fie

d i
n 

the
 St

rat
eg

y f
or 

Pe
op

le 
 

 
 

147



20
09

/10
 AG

S A
cti

on
 Pl

an
 – 

Up
da

te 
Ju

ly 
20

11
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

   A
pp

en
dix

 4 

07
/07

/10
 

AG
S 

Re
f 

Ar
ea
 of

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

Ga
p I

de
nti

fie
d 

Ag
ree

d A
cti

on
 

Re
sp

on
sib

le 
Of

fic
er 

Tim
es
ca

le 
Up

da
ted

 Ju
ne

 
20
11
 

joi
nt 

ind
uc

tio
n a

rra
ng

em
en

ts 
for

 
tho

se
 w

ork
ing

 w
ith

 ch
ild

ren
 ac

ros
s 

loc
al 

pa
rtn

ers
 th

is 
do

es
 no

t e
xis

t to
 

an
y s

ign
ific

an
t e

xte
nt 

in 
oth

er 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
s 

20
10

-20
12

 as
 an

 ac
tio

n f
or 

20
11

 th
ere

for
e n

o f
urt

he
r 

ac
tio

n i
s n

ee
de

d h
ere

. 

  KE
Y 

CL
G 

Co
rpo

rat
e L

ea
de

rs 
Gr

ou
p 

CG
G 

Co
rpo

rat
e G

ov
ern

an
ce

 G
rou

p 
CG

W
G 

Co
rpo

rat
e G

ov
ern

an
ce

 W
ork

ing
 G

rou
p 

MB
 

My
fan

wy
 B

arr
ett

 – 
Co

rpo
rat

e D
ire

cto
r F

ina
nc

e 
DW

 
Da

vid
 W

ard
 – 

Div
isio

na
l D

ire
cto

r A
ud

it &
 R

isk
  

TW
 

To
m 

W
hit

ing
 – 

As
sis

tan
t C

hie
f E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

HP
  

Hu
gh

 Pe
art

 – 
Dir

ec
tor

 of
 Le

ga
l &

 G
ov

ern
an

ce
 

JT
 

Jo
n T

urn
er 

– D
ivis

ion
al 

Dir
ec

tor
 H

R 
& D

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
CC

 
Ca

rol
 C

utl
er 

– D
ire

cto
r o

f B
us

ine
ss

 Tr
an

sfo
rm

ati
on

 an
d C

us
tom

er 
Se

rvi
ce

 
SD

 
Su

sa
n D

ixs
on

 – 
Se

rvi
ce

 M
an

ag
er,

 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it 

IW
  

Ing
rid

 W
alo

ff –
 Se

nio
r P

rof
es

sio
na

l  C
orp

ora
te 

Pla
nn

ing
 

GC
 

Ge
org

e C
urr

en
 – 

Int
eri

m 
He

ad
 of

 Le
ga

l P
rac

tic
e 

LC
 

Le
slie

 C
lar

ke
 –H

RD
 St

rat
eg

y M
an

ag
er 

TJ
 

Ta
ny

a J
ac

ob
s –

 In
ter

im
 R

isk
 M

an
ag

em
en

t M
an

ag
er 

KG
 

Ka
n G

rov
er 

– S
en

ior
 Pr

ofe
ss

ion
al,

 Bu
sin

es
s C

on
tin

uit
y &

 E
me

rge
nc

y P
lan

nin
g 

MG
 

Ma
rk 

Gi
lle

tt –
 D

ivis
ion

al 
Dir

ec
tor

 C
om

mi
ss

ion
ing

 an
d P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

JP
 

Ju
sti

n P
hil

lip
s –

 C
orp

ora
te 

An
ti-f

rau
d S

erv
ice

 M
an

ag
er 

VD
 

Va
rsh

a D
ad

lan
i –

 Se
rvi

ce
 M

an
ag

er 
Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

LD
 

Liz
 D

efr
ies

 – 
Se

rvi
ce

 m
an

ag
er 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 an

d D
ata

 Se
rvi

ce
s 

SK
 

Ste
ph

en
 K

ell
y –

 D
ivis

ion
al 

Dir
ec

tor
 Pl

an
nin

g 
OG

F 
Ol

d g
ov

ern
an

ce
 Fr

am
ew

ork
 

 

148



Appendix 5 
HARROW COUNCIL 

 
CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
1. Introduction 
 
Corporate Governance is the system and processes, culture and values by which local authorities are 
directed and controlled and through which they account to, engage with and, where appropriate lead 
their communities. Governance is about how local government bodies ensure that they are doing the 
right things, in the right way, for the right people in a timely, inclusive, open, honest and accountable 
manner. 
Harrow Council recognises the need for sound corporate governance arrangements and has put in 
place policies, systems and procedures designed to achieve this (the Governance Framework).  
This code is based on the guidance issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) in their 
publication ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government’ and outlines the Council’s approach 
to Corporate Governance and demonstrates our commitment to uphold the highest standards of 
integrity, openness and accountability. 
The Council’s vision is ‘Working together: Our Harrow, our community’.   The responsibility for 
achieving this vision rests with members, staff, and partners working together to the same high 
standards of conduct to enable the local community to have confidence in the way in which we work. 
 
2. Principles  
CIPFA and SOLACE have identified six core principles in delivering good governance. We fully 
embrace and support these principles of good corporate governance and will ensure that they 
underpin the delivery of our services to the public in the following ways: 
 
2.1 Focusing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for the community and 
creating and implementing a vision for the local area 
 
Harrow Council will: 
 

• Develop and promote the authority’s purpose and vision 
• Review on a regular basis the authority’s vision for the local area and its impact on the 

authority’s governance arrangements 
• Ensure that partnerships are underpinned by a common vision of their work that is understood 

and agreed by all parties 
• Publish an annual report on a timely basis to communicate the authority’s activities and 

achievements, its financial position and performance 
• Decide how the quality of service for users is to be measured and make sure that the 

information needed to review service quality effectively and regularly is available 
• Put in place effective arrangements to identify and deal with failure in service delivery 
• Decide how value for money is to be measured and make sure that the authority or 

partnership has the information needed to review value for money and performance 
effectively.  

• Measure the environmental impact of policies, plans and decisions. 
 

2.2 Members and Officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined 
functions and roles 
 

149



Appendix 5 
Harrow Council will: 
 

• Set out a clear statement of the respective roles and responsibilities of the executive and of 
the executive’s members individually and the authority’s approach towards putting this into 
practice 

• Set out a clear statement of the respective roles and responsibilities of other authority 
members, members generally and of senior officers 

• Determine a scheme of delegation and reserve powers within the constitution, including a 
formal schedule of those matters specifically reserved for collective decision of the authority, 
taking account of relevant legislation, and ensure that it is monitored and updated when 
required 

• Make the chief executive responsible and accountable to the authority for all aspects of 
operational management 

• Develop protocols to ensure that the leader and chief executive negotiate their respective roles 
early in the relationship and that a shared understanding of roles and objectives is maintained 

• Make the Section 151 Officer responsible to the authority for ensuring that appropriate advice 
is given on all financial matters, for keeping proper financial records and accounts, and for 
maintaining an effective system of internal financial control 

• Make the Monitoring Officer responsible to the authority for ensuring that agreed procedures 
are followed and that all applicable statutes, regulations are complied with 

• Develop protocols to ensure effective communication between members and officers in their 
respective roles 

• Set out the terms and conditions for remuneration of members and officers and an effective 
structure for managing the process. 

• Ensure that effective mechanisms exist to monitor service delivery and that these are clearly 
described within the Performance Management Framework 

• Ensure that the organisation’s vision, strategic plans, priorities and targets are developed 
through robust mechanisms, and in consultation with the local community and other key 
stakeholders, and that they are clearly articulated and disseminated 

• When working in partnership ensure that members are clear about their roles and 
responsibilities both individually and collectively in relation to the partnership and to the 
authority 

• When working in partnership: 
- ensure that there is clarity about the legal status of the partnership  

- ensure that representatives or organisations both understand and make clear to all  
  other partners the extent of their authority to bind their organisation to partner decisions 
- ensure that outcomes are managed through a performance management framework 

 
2.3 Promoting values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good governance 
through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour 
 
Harrow Council will: 
 

• Ensure that the authority’s leadership sets a tone for the organisation by creating a climate of 
openness, support and respect  

• Ensure that standards of conduct and personal behaviour expected of members and staff, of 
work between members and staff and between the authority, its partners and the community 
are defined and communicated through codes of conduct and protocols  

• Put in place arrangements to ensure that members and employees of the authority are not 
influenced by prejudice, bias or conflicts of interest in dealing with different stakeholders and 
put in place appropriate processes to ensure that they continue to operate in practice  

150



Appendix 5 
• Develop and maintain shared values including leadership values both for the organisation and 

staff reflecting public expectations and communicate these with members, staff, the 
community and partners  

• Put in place arrangements to ensure that procedures and operations are designed in 
conformity with appropriate ethical standards, and  monitor their continuing effectiveness in 
practice  

• Develop and maintain an effective standards committee. 
• Use the organisations’ shared values to act as a guide for decision making and as a basis for 

developing positive and trusting relationships within the authority  
• In pursuing the vision of a partnership, agree a set of values against which decision making 

and actions can be judged. Such values must be demonstrated by partners’ behaviour both 
individually and collectively. 

• Promote equality of opportunity as an employer, service provider, procurer of goods and 
services and as a community leader. Will tackle all forms of discrimination and achieve 
equality irrespective of ones age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

 
2.4 Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and 
managing risk 
 
Harrow Council will: 
 

• Develop and maintain an effective scrutiny function which encourages constructive challenge 
and enhances the organisation’s performance overall and of any organisation for which we are 
responsible, and partnerships in which we are involved 

• Develop and maintain open and effective mechanisms for documenting evidence for decisions 
and recording the criteria, rationale and considerations on which decisions are based 

• Put in place arrangements to safeguard members and employees against conflicts of interest 
and put in place appropriate processes to ensure that they continue to operate in practice 

• Develop and maintain an effective audit committee (GARM) which is independent of the 
executive 

• Put in place effective transparent and accessible arrangements for dealing with complaints 
• Ensure that those making decisions whether for the authority or partnership are provided with 

information that is fit for the purpose – relevant, timely and gives clear explanations of 
technical issues and their implications 

• Ensure that professional advice on matters that have legal or financial implications is available 
and recorded well in advance of decision making and used appropriately  

• Ensure that risk management is embedded into the culture of the organisation , with members 
and managers at all levels recognising that risk management is part of their job 

• Ensure that arrangements are in place for whistle blowing to which staff and all those 
contracting with the authority have access  

• Actively recognise the limits of lawful activity placed on us by, for example the ultra vires 
doctrine, but also strive to utilise powers to the full benefit of our communities 

• Recognise the limits of lawful action and observe both the specific requirements of legislation 
and the general responsibilities placed on local authorities by public law 

• Observe all specific legislative requirements placed upon us, as well as the requirements of 
general law, and in particular to integrate the key principles of good administrative law – 
rationality, legality and natural justice into our procedures and decision making processes 

151



Appendix 5 
 
 
2.5 Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be effective 
 
Harrow Council will: 
 

• Provide induction programmes tailored to individual needs and opportunities for members and 
officers to update their knowledge on a regular basis  

• Ensure that the statutory officers have the skills, resources and support necessary to perform 
effectively in their roles and that these roles are properly understood throughout the 
organisation  

• Assess the skills required by members and officers and make a commitment to develop those 
skills to enable roles to be carried out effectively 

• Develop skills on a continuing basis to improve performance including the ability to scrutinise 
and challenge and to recognise when outside expert advice is needed  

• Ensure that effective arrangements are in place for reviewing the performance of the authority  
as a whole and of individual members and agreeing an action plan which might for example 
aim to address any training or development needs 

• Ensure that effective arrangements designed to encourage individuals from all sections of the 
community to engage with, contribute to and participate in the work of the authority 

• Ensure that career structures are in place for members and officers to encourage participation 
and development 

  
2.6 Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability 
 
Harrow Council will: 
 

• Make clear to ourselves, all staff and the community, to whom we are accountable and for 
what 

• Consider those institutional stakeholders to whom they are accountable and assess the 
effectiveness of the relationships and any changes required 

• Produce an annual report on scrutiny function activity 
• Ensure that clear channels of communication are in place with all sections of the community 

and other stakeholders including monitoring arrangements to ensure that they operate 
effectively 

• Hold meetings in public unless there are good reasons for confidentiality 
• Ensure arrangements are in place to enable the authority to engage with all sections of the 

community effectively. These arrangements will recognise that different sections of the 
community have different priorities and establish explicit processes for dealing with these 
competing demands 

• Establish a clear policy on the types of issues we will meaningfully consult on or engage with 
the public and service users including a feedback mechanism for those consultees to 
demonstrate what has changed as a result  

• On an annual basis, publish a performance plan giving information on the authority’s vision, 
strategy, plans and financial statements as well as information about its outcomes, 
achievements and the satisfaction of service users in the previous period  

• Ensure that the authority as a whole is open and accessible to the community, service users 
and our staff and ensure that we have made a commitment to openness and transparency in 
all our dealings, including partnerships subject only to the need to preserve confidentiality in 
those specific circumstances where it is proper and appropriate to do so 

• Develop and maintain a clear policy on how staff and their representatives are consulted and 
involved in decision making 

152



Appendix 5 
 
3. Annual Review and Reporting 
 
Each year we (Harrow Council) will carry out a review of our Governance arrangements to ensure 
compliance with this Code, and the delivery of good governance within the local government 
framework and current good practice. The purpose of the review will be to provide assurance that 
governance arrangements are adequate and operating effectively and to identify action required to 
ensure effective governance in the future. 
 
The outcome of the review will take the form of an Annual Governance Statement prepared on behalf 
of the Leader at the Council and Chief Executive. It will be submitted to the Governance, Audit and 
Risk Management (GARM) Committee for consideration and review with the annual accounts to meet 
the statutory requirement of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011. This requires findings of the 
review of the system of internal control to be considered by a committee of the relevant body, or by 
members of the body meeting as a whole. 
 
We expect the principles set out in this code to be upheld by our members, staff and partners. We will 
ensure this happens through effective communication of the Code and a range of policies, systems 
and processes known collectively as the Governance Framework 
 
We will review this code each year in July/August after the preparation of the Annual Governance 
Statement.  
 
 
August 2011  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

153



154

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 
 

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT & 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 
 

6 September 2011 

Subject: 
 

Management Assurance Report 
2010/11 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Tom Whiting, Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Exempt: 
 

No 
 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix 1 - 2010/11 Management Assurance 
Report  
Appendix 2 - 2010/11 Chief Executive’s 
Corporate Assurance Statement  

 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report sets out the results of the 2010/2011 Management Assurance 
Exercise. 
 
Recommendations:  
 
The Committee is requested to: 
 
Undertake an independent review of the results of the 2010/2011 
Management Assurance Exercise and confirm its suitability for use as 
supporting evidence for the Annual Governance Statement (AGS). 
 
Reason:  (For recommendation) 
 
Regulation 4 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 require councils to 
produce an Annual Governance Statement.  GARM are required to undertake 
an independent review of evidence used to support the AGS. 
 

Agenda Item 13 
Pages 155 to 186 

155



 

 
Section 2 – Report 
 
Background  
 
2.1 Good governance is about doing the right things, in the right way and at 

the right time.  The Council have numerous policies and procedures in 
place to help staff achieve good governance.  The annual Management 
Assurance exercise is designed to enable senior management to self-
assess their governance arrangements i.e. how well staff have 
implemented the Council’s policies and procedures, during the financial 
year (April – March). 

 
2.2 The management assurance process was developed and introduced 

across the Council in 2005/2006 (the 2004/2005 exercise).  This is the 
seventh year of the exercise.   

 
Management Assurance Process 
 
2.3 The management assurance process involves obtaining self-assessed 

assurance statements supported by documentary evidence from every 
Director/Divisional Director across the Council.  The exercise is co-
ordinated and individual statements are ‘reality checked’ by Internal 
Audit.  The statements are then amalgamated to produce statements for 
each Directorate signed off by the relevant Corporate Director.  These 
are in turn amalgamated to produce a Corporate Assurance Statement 
signed off by the Chief Executive.  The Corporate Assurance Statement 
then feeds in to the Annual Governance Statement – Appendix 2. 

 
Assurance Level 
 
2.4 When management assurance was introduced the assurance level was 

set at a pragmatic/realistic 70%. The assurance level indicates the 
percentage of departments in which the organisation expects any given 
area of assurance to be working well in.  This level of assurance was 
maintained for the first three years that the exercise was run.  This was 
increased to a more challenging 75% in 2008/9 and was set for the 
majority of areas at 80% for the 2009/10 year. Contained within last 
year’s exercise there were a number of new ‘stretch’ areas of assurance 
that had an assurance level of 50%.  This was not a lowering of 
standards but recognition of the emerging nature of these areas and a 
realisation that time is needed for managers to embed new requirements.  
The assurance level for these areas has been raised to match all other 
areas in this year’s exercise i.e. 80%. 

 

156



 

Summary of Results 
 
2.5 Overall the 2010/11 management assurance exercise confirmed that 

77% of the areas of assurance covered by the process are working well 
across the Council i.e. above the assurance level set of 80% for each 
area and have been given a green assurance rating.  This is a 4% 
increase on areas given a green assurance rating in 2009/2010 and is a 
significant achievement given the level of change/transformation that 
took place during the year.  See Appendix 1 for the detailed report.  

 
Annual Governance Statement   
 
2.6 The management assurance exercise feeds into the Annual Governance 

Statement which is published with the Accounts in September each year.   
 
Financial Implications 
 
2.7 There are no financial implications. 
 
Risk Management Implications 
 

2.8 The work of internal audit supports the management of risks across the 
council. 

 
Corporate Priorities 
 
2.9 The work of Internal Audit contributes to all the corporate priorities by 

enhancing the robustness of the control environment and governance 
mechanisms that directly or indirectly support these priorities. 

. 
 
SECTION 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

   
 

Name: Julie Alderson √  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 19 August 2011 

   
 
 

   
 

Name: Hugh Peart √  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date: 16 August 2011 

   
 

 

157



 

 
Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Susan Dixson, Service Manager, Internal Audit,  
Tel: 0208 424 1420 
 
 
Background Papers:  None. 
 
 
If appropriate, does the report include the following 
considerations?  
 
 
1. Consultation  YES / NO 
2. Corporate Priorities YES / NO  
 

158



Appendix 1 
MANAGEMENT ASSURANCE 2010/11 

SD/SC/MA10/11 

 
Introduction/Planning 
 
1. The management assurance process was developed and introduced across the Council 

in 2005/2006 (the 2004/2005 exercise).  The areas of assurance are reviewed and 
updated annually by Internal Audit using the corporate strategic and operational risk 
registers to provide a clear link between the controls identified in the risk management 
process and the assurances being obtained. The exercise is also cross referenced to the 
Governance Framework via the Annual Governance Evidence table.  Additionally officers 
in key areas such as Risk, Performance, Health and Safety, Business Continuity and 
Information Management are consulted on the detail of specific assurance areas.  Finally 
the Corporate Governance Group (CGG) review the document, agree the areas of 
assurance and highlight areas for specific reality testing.  For the 2010/11 review the 
Corporate Governance Group removed a number of areas from the self assessment 
process where assurance could be obtained elsewhere.  This resulted in a 51% reduction 
in areas contained within the self-assessment process for 2010/11.  

 
Assurance Level 
  
2.   Each year an assurance level is set to indicate the percentage of divisions in which the 

organisation expects any given area of assurance to be working well in.  The assurance 
level for the first three years of the exercise was set at a pragmatic/realistic 70% and 
increased to a more challenging 75% in 2008/9.  This was increased again, for the 
majority of assurance areas, to 80% for last year’s exercise.  Contained within last year’s 
exercise there were also a number of new ‘stretch’ areas of assurance that required an 
assurance level of 50%.  This was not a lowering of standards but a recognition of the 
emerging nature of these areas and a realisation that time was needed for managers to 
embed new requirements.  The assurance level for these areas has been raised to match 
all other areas in this year’s exercise i.e. 80%. 

 
Reality Checking 
 
3.   In previous years ‘reality checking’ undertaken by Internal Audit has involved managers 

providing evidence to support all assurance areas.  However for the 2009/10 and 
2010/11 exercise, a ‘light touch’ approach was agreed by CGG and although managers 
are still expected to be able to evidence all areas of assurance, only specific pieces of 
evidence were requested to be sent to Internal Audit.  Nine areas were indicated on the 
self-assessment document for 2010/11 where evidence was required to be provided to 
Internal Audit for ‘reality checking’. 

159



Appendix 1 
MANAGEMENT ASSURANCE 2010/11 

SD/SC/MA10/11 

 
2010/11 Exercise 
 
4.  To raise the profile of the Management Assurance process the 2010/11 exercise was 

launched with an email from the Director of Legal & Governance Services which 
emphasised that the exercise is a requirement of Financial Regulations and is vital in 
demonstrating that the Council has good governance in place across the Council and in 
highlighting any governance gaps that need to be addressed (Appendix 1). 

 
5. Self-assessments were issued to all 3rd tier managers for completion for areas under 

their control (referred to as ‘departments’) on 27/05/11 for return by 22/06/11.  54% of 
these were returned by the deadline (as against 31% for 09/10) together with the 
supporting evidence.  A further 38% were received within 2 weeks of the deadline set 
with the remainder 8%, Children’s Services, being received very late by Internal Audit on 
22/07/11. In addition the submission from Children’s Services did not comply with the 
requirements of the exercise in that 1 combined assurance statement was provided 
rather than 6 from the individual 3rd tier managers and 1 from the Corporate Director.  
Although evidence was provided from all 6 areas within the Directorate 2 of the 3rd tier 
managers failed to sign off the statement weakening the level assurance that can be 
taken from the statement – 1 subsequently signed-off the statement after the Corporate 
sign-off.  It should be noted however that Children’s Services were undertaking a major 
re-structuring at the time that the Management Assurance exercise was required.   

 
6. Once received by Internal Audit the self-assessments were reality checked and, as 

agreed by the Corporate Governance Group, only specific pieces of evidence were 
checked for the 10/11 exercise to independent sources.  As a result of this process and 
queries raised with compilers of the assessments some changes were made to the 
assessments prior to being signed off by the relevant Director/Divisional Director/Head of 
Service. On the whole the results of the clarifications slightly lowered the assurance 
ratings of the self assessments.   

 
7. Once finalised these statements were amalgamated into a high-level assurance 

statement for each Directorate.  The Directorate Statement along with the supporting 
self-assessments were presented to the relevant Corporate Director for review and sign 
off.   

 
8. The agreed Directorate assurance statements were in turn amalgamated into a 

Corporate Assurance Statement which is weighted to reflect the number of staff in each 
‘department’. This shows the assurance level achieved for each area in the 2010/2011 
exercise and is traffic lighted to indicate changes in the level of assurance compared with 
the 2009/2010 statement and also traffic lighted to indicate whether areas of assurance 
fall above or below the 80% assurance levels set. Consequently each area of assurance 
is double traffic lighted (see Appendix 2 for detailed explanation).   

 
9. The draft Corporate Assurance Statement was presented to the Corporate Governance 

Group for review on 09/08/11.   
 
10. A meeting was held with the Chief Executive on 08/08/11 with the original intention of 

presenting the Corporate Assurance Statement for sign-off, however the sign off was 

160



Appendix 1 
MANAGEMENT ASSURANCE 2010/11 

SD/SC/MA10/11 

delayed as the Corporate Directors of Children’s Services, Adults & Housing and 
Community & Environment had not signed-off their Directorate Statements by the end of 
July, in accordance with the timeline set at the beginning of the exercise. Whilst the draft 
Corporate Assurance Statement was discussed in detail with the Chief Executive at this 
meeting in preparation for the sign-off this delay had a detrimental impact on the timely 
completion of the exercise and its incorporation into the Annual Governance Statement. 

 
11. The Directorate Assurance Statements signed off by the Corporate Directors were all 

finally received by Monday 15/08/11 and the Corporate Assurance Statement was  
signed-off by the Chief Executive on 17/08/11.  The Chief Executive will be raising the 
issues regarding timeliness of responses with the Corporate Strategy Board (CSB). 

 
 
2010/11 Overall Results Summary 
 
12. Overall the 10/11 management assurance exercise confirmed that 77% of the areas of 

assurance covered by the self-assessment process are working well across the Council 
i.e. above the assurance level set of 80% and have been given a green assurance rating 
(this includes the areas removed from this year’s exercise which were assessed by 
Internal Audit).  This is a 4% increase on areas given a green assurance rating in 
2009/2010 and is a significant achievement given the level of change/transformation that 
took place during the year.   

 
13. This year’s exercise highlighted significant improvements in the following areas: 
 

• 100% assurance was reported regarding risk assessment and management being 
embedded for major projects, financial planning, etc., which is a 33% increase on 
last year 

• 100% assurance was reported regarding all key projects being managed in 
accordance with corporate project management guidelines, a 25% increase on last 
year 

• A 41% increase in assurance to 94% was identified for Premises Managers being 
made aware of any relevant Asbestos Management Plan for the building in which 
they reside 

• A 36% increase in assurance to 97% regarding Service Managers operationally 
owning the information contained in their systems was reported   

• IA obtained evidence from HR of a 92% completion of IPADS which is a 48% 
increase over last year 

• IA further confirmed with HR 100% Directorate Workforce Strategies in place, which 
is a 28% increase over last year 

 
14. The management assurance statements (with the exception of Adults & Housing) all 

confirmed 100% assurance level regarding compliance with the requirements of the 
Council’s Financial Regulations and Contract Procedure Rules.  However, following 
recent work undertaken by Internal Audit and on information provided by Procurement 
and the Section 151 Officer, indications are that this may not be fully the case.  Work 
will continue throughout the year to further improve the level of compliance. 

 

161



Appendix 1 
MANAGEMENT ASSURANCE 2010/11 

SD/SC/MA10/11 

15. For the areas assessed by Internal Audit (i.e. the areas removed from the self-
assessment where assurance could be gained elsewhere) there were several areas 
where the actual percentage across directorates could not be confirmed although they 
could be confirmed as working well.  Similarly, for the areas of assurance covering 
Health & Safety issues, the assessment was based on information provided by Health 
& Safety and it was not possible to assess the percentage of compliance across 
directorates.    

  
16. Areas where low levels of assurance were highlighted were as follows: 
 

• An assurance level of 56% (amber) for service specific schemes of delegation being 
in place in addition to the corporate Scheme of Delegation (although this is a 9% 
increase on 2009/10) 

• A 78% assurance level (amber) for all staff assigned to manage premises, including 
the work of contractors being trained to manage safely which is a 14% lower 
assurance level than last year  

• A 66% assurance level (amber) for annual risk assessments being undertaken by 
Information Asset Owners for all ‘owned’ information assets in accordance with 
Information Governance guidance which is an increase of 33%  

• Only 41% of assurance (red) was gained for the budget spend on Learning & 
Development being known and the value obtained from the spend analysed which is 
a 1% decrease on last year  

• 66% (amber assurance rating) reported that learning logs are maintained for all staff 
which is an increase of 38% over last year 

• Internal Audit’s assessment on information provided by Health & Safety identified a 
gap regarding monitoring mechanisms for Health & Safety Plans.  This issue is 
being addressed in the 2 year H&S improvement plan and as part of the 
Management Assurance Action Plan an update on progress against the plan will be 
provided to Internal Audit in December 2011. 

• Internal Audit’s assessment on all new starters and managers attending the Health 
& Safety induction also highlighted a gap as reported by Health & Safety.  This issue 
is also being addressed in the 2 year H&S improvement plan. 

• Internal Audit’s assessment regarding Equality Impact Assessments highlighted a 
further gap in that there was no agreed programme in place for 2010/11.  The 
Council’s Single Equalities Scheme was agreed at Cabinet in December 2010. 

• A gap was identified by Internal Audit in that it is not a corporate requirement to 
report on whether IPADs have been signed by a ‘grandparent’ therefore this area of 
assurance could not be confirmed. 

 
 
2010/11 Detailed Results – Self Assessed Areas 
 
17. The management assurance exercise has confirmed that the following areas of 

assurance were working well across the Council i.e. achieving an 80% assurance level 
during 2010/2011 and have been given a green assurance rating: 

 
• Relevant organisational and service specific legislation is complied with and 

mechanisms are in place to review procedures in light of legislative change (100%) 

162



Appendix 1 
MANAGEMENT ASSURANCE 2010/11 

SD/SC/MA10/11 

 
• The division’s objectives are clearly communicated to staff and stakeholders (100%) 

 
• Adequate plans/procedures are in place for managing and collecting data for 

inspections, e.g. VFM Statement, Ofsted, CQC (100%) 
 

• The number and subject content of customer complaints and feedback received by 
the service is monitored and regularly reviewed by DMT and appropriate responsive 
action made and recorded (100%) 

 
• Risk assessment & management is embedded within the division for: 

• Major projects 
• Financial planning 
• Major Policies & Legislative Changes  
• Delivery Planning (100%) 

 
• Staff are complying with the requirements of the Council’s Financial Regulations and 

Contract Procedure Rules (100%) – (see para 13 above) 
 

• All key projects are managed in accordance with corporate project management 
guidelines (100%) 

 
• All workers (f/t, p/t, temporary, agency staff and consultants) have received a copy 

of the Code of Conduct (97%) 
 

• Service Managers operationally own the information contained in their systems, i.e. 
they understand what information is held, how it is used and transferred, and who 
has access to it and why (97%) 

 
• Divisional Directors/Heads of Service are aware of and support relevant officers in 

their roles as representatives on the Equality Task Group (ETG) (97%) 
 

• Relevant officers are aware of the following strategies/plans/frameworks and are 
implementing them: 
• Council’s Vision for 2010/11  
• Council’s Priorities for 2010/11  
• Council Transformation Programme  
• Community Strategy 
• Corporate Consultation Strategy  
• Major Incident Plan 
• Whistleblowing Policy 
• Counter Fraud & Corruption Policy 
• Strategy for People  (workforce strategy)  
• CREATE values 
• Health & Safety Polices 
• Code of Conduct 
• Employees Assistance Programme  (97%) 

163



Appendix 1 
MANAGEMENT ASSURANCE 2010/11 

SD/SC/MA10/11 

 
• All data complies with the data quality policy (94%) 

 
• Premises Managers have made staff aware of any relevant Asbestos Management 

Plan for the building in which they reside (94%) 
 

• Where contracts are due to expire in the coming 12 months there is a plan in place 
to: 
a)      review service arrangements/options e.g. potential partnerships; and 
b)      undertake a tender exercise where appropriate (94%) 

 
• Where services are jointly provided/funded/managed, robust 

partnership/governance arrangements are in place which clearly define the terms of 
the partnership, specifying whose rules and procedures are to be followed and are 
regularly reviewed (94%) 

 
• The division has a delivery plan that covers all relevant service areas and clearly 

reflects the Council’s strategic objectives and legal obligations.  These are 
consistent with professional standards and the resources available, and reflect the 
management of the major service and budget risks (91%) 

 
• All data collected is verified and is appropriate for a specific use (91%) 

 
• Information handling and data security comply with the Council’s suite of Information 

Management and Data Security Policies (91%) 
 

• Services are using benchmarking and other relevant data to ensure VFM is 
achieved (91%) 

 
• Workers are reminded regularly of the requirement to make declarations of 

interest/record gifts & hospitality in the Directorate’s register (84%) 
 
18. The Council was working towards/has identified gaps in the following areas of assurance 

during 2010/11, i.e. received an amber or red assurance rating with the 80% assurance 
level set.  Action plans are in place/are being developed to address weaknesses 
identified that will be monitored by the Improvement Boards. 

 
• All staff assigned to manage premises, including the work of contractors, have been 

trained to manage safely (78%).  The Corporate Governance Working Group have 
asked the Corporate Director, Adults & Housing to provide a verbal feedback to the 
GARM Committee on 06/09/11. 

 
• An annual risk assessment is undertaken by the Information Asset Owner 

(Divisional Directors) for all ‘owned’ information assets in accordance with 
Information Governance guidance and report to the SIRO (Senior Information Risk 
Owner), ensuring that information risks are identified, documented and addressed 
(66%) 

 

164



Appendix 1 
MANAGEMENT ASSURANCE 2010/11 

SD/SC/MA10/11 

• Budget spend on Learning & Development is known and the value obtained from 
the spend is analysed (66%) 

 
• In addition to the corporate Scheme of Delegation there is a written 

directorate/service specific scheme of delegation in place, e.g. to cover HR 
responsibilities (56%) 

 
• Learning Logs are maintained for all staff (41%) 

 
2010/11 Detailed Results – Internal Audit  Assessed Areas 
 
19. 23 areas were taken out of the 2010/11 exercise where assurance could be sought 

elsewhere.  5 areas were combined with other areas so no further assurance was 
required.  For the remaining 18 areas Internal Audit gained assurance and evidence from 
other sources to confirm whether the areas were working well or whether gaps were 
identified.  78% were working well, with the remaining 22% highlighting weaknesses in 
the areas of governance for 2010/11.  The following areas of assurance were confirmed 
as working well: 

 
• Staff are aware of the Whistleblowing and Dignity at Work policy 

 
• Governance arrangements are adequate for dealing with Freedom of Information 

(FOI) and Data Protection (DP) requests 
 

• Performance against the service improvement plans, delivery plans, Flagship 
Actions, major projects and improvement programmes is monitored through relevant 
performance measures (e.g. KPIs) and customer and stakeholder feedback, and 
appropriate action is taken to address any performance issues 

 
• A Business Continuity Plan and Emergency Contact List exists for the division that 

is reviewed on an annual basis 
 

• All frauds and Suspected Financial Irregularities identified have been referred to 
Internal Audit and the Corporate Anti-fraud Team 

 
• Recommendations made in Internal Audit, External Audit or Inspection Reports are 

implemented in a timely manner 
 

• 92% IPADs have been undertaken for employees in 2010/11 in accordance with laid 
down procedures 

 
• All budget managers prepare a SAP monthly forecast and undertake monthly 

budget monitoring to minimise the risk of the budget exceeding planned provision 
 

• The divisional budget is on target 
 

• A Directorate Workforce Strategy is in place 
 

165



Appendix 1 
MANAGEMENT ASSURANCE 2010/11 

SD/SC/MA10/11 

• Relevant Officers understand the process and adhere to timescales for the 
preparation and clearance of reports to CSB and Committee 

 
• Resources, costs and risks, staffing/workforce issues, environment, performance, 

consultation, equalities impact, legal issues and community safety issues are taken 
into account when officers make decisions or recommend decisions to CSB or 
Committee 

 
• Appropriate planning and co-ordination for formal or informal consultation is carried 

out and the results of the consultation are explicitly referenced and taken into 
account when officers make decisions or recommend decisions to CSB or 
Committee 

 
20.     Gaps were identified in the following areas: 
 

• A Health & Safety Plan is in place which covers significant hazards and is reviewed 
at appropriate regular intervals (at least once within the last 12 months) 

 
• All new starters and new managers have attended the Health & Safety for 

staff/Managers induction within 3 months of their start date 
 

• The policies, strategies, practices and procedures of the service have been mapped 
and prioritised for Equality Impact Assessments and the Equality Impact 
Assessments scheduled for the last year have been undertaken and acted upon 

 
• Completed IPADs have been signed off by a ‘grandparent’ 

 
21. Regarding the Health & Safety assurance areas, 2010/11 was a period of great change 

within the Health & Safety Service which culminated in a proposal to CSB in April 2011 to 
rebuild the Health & Safety Service to implement a two year improvement plan.  One of 
the areas for required improvement is the capturing of meaningful data that can be used 
to monitor performance and to therefore provide management assurance.  An example of 
this has been the purchase of the self audit tool, which will determine legislative 
compliance in each service.  Also assurance could not be gained by Internal Audit from 
comparing SAP Course Booker to new starters to confirm they had attended the relevant 
courses.  Course Booker was not in place for the whole of 2010/11 and schools, etc., do 
not use Course Booker.  The H&S team confirmed that it would be time consuming and 
difficult to gather and compare numbers of trainees against numbers of new starters and 
data would have to be manually collated for the first half of the year.  The Interim Health 
& Safety Lead also confirmed that as a service Health & Safety are not delivering the 
H&S Induction for staff and managers to all new starters.  This issue is being addressed 
in the two year H&S improvement plan and the H&S team are looking to procure an e-
learning package with which to deliver these courses and make them more accessible to 
staff.   

 
22. The Policy Officer - Equalities and Diversity confirmed that the Council did not have an 

agreed Equalities Impact Assessment programme in place for 2010/11.  The Council’s 
Single Equalities Scheme (SES) was agreed at Cabinet in December 2010 and this 

166



Appendix 1 
MANAGEMENT ASSURANCE 2010/11 

SD/SC/MA10/11 

includes a three year programme of Equality Impact Assessments.  This included 
mapping and prioritising all functions, policies and services and developing a three year 
programme which starts from January 2011 – March 2014.  

 
23. There is currently no corporate requirement to report on whether IPADs have been 

signed by a ‘grandparent’ and therefore this information could not be confirmed by 
Internal Audit. 

 
24. One area, i.e.: 
 

• The division explicitly monitors progress against planned savings, including NI 179, 
on a monthly basis and reports the position to the quarterly improvement board 

 
will need to be reviewed as NI 179 is no longer applicable and has been deleted.  
However, Internal Audit confirmed that the quarterly Finance Reports provided to the 
Improvement Boards include forecast outturn for the quarter (and commentary), key 
issues, value for money and efficiencies where appropriate. 

 
Action Plans/Follow-up 
 
25. During 2010/11 the Action Plans for 2009/10 were sent to the relevant Director/Divisional 

Director/Head of Service for follow-up.  108 actions were highlighted for implementation   
and 14 of the 15 action plans were completed and returned to IA.  It was confirmed that 
66 (61%) were reported (and evidenced in some cases) as having been implemented 
and 11 (10%) were outstanding with 31 (29%) ongoing (this includes the 13 actions from 
the action plan which was not completed due to a lack of response from Children’s 
Services).   

 
26. The results are as follows: 
 
Division No of 

actions 
Actions 

Implemented 
Actions Not 
Implemented 

Actions  
Ongoing 

     
Shared Services 6 6   
BTP & Customer Services 2 2   
Revenue Collections 7 6 1  
Environmental Services 5 3 2  
Finance & Procurement 4   4 
HR & Development 8 8   
Legal & Governance Services 3 2 1  
Adults 8 7 1  
Audit, Risk & Fraud 9 7 2  
Place Shaping 7 5 2  
Housing 16 12  4 
Children’s Services 13 Response 

not received 
 13 

Community & Cultural Services 4 4 0  
Partnership Development & 7 4 2 1 

167



Appendix 1 
MANAGEMENT ASSURANCE 2010/11 

SD/SC/MA10/11 

Performance 
IT 9   9 
Totals 108 66 11 31 
% Actions implemented  61% 10% 29% 
 
 
 
 
27. Action points were also agreed as part of the management assurance statements sign off 

for 2010/11 by the 3rd tier managers for all areas of assurance identified as working 
towards or where a gap was identified and these will be integrated into the Improvement 
Board process and monitored during 2011/12 by Internal Audit and the quarterly 
Improvement Boards.  A corporate action plan will also be produced as part of the Annual 
Governance Statement covering significant areas of risk identified by management 
assurance and other governance processes. 

 
 
Sandra Cartwright, Quality Control Auditor 
Susan Dixson, Service Manager, Internal Audit 
August 2011 

168



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
2 

ma
na

ge
me

nta
ss

ura
nc

e/s
tat

em
en

t/2
01

0/1
1 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

   
 

Ch
ief

 Ex
ec

uti
ve

’s 
Co

rp
or

ate
 A

ss
ur

an
ce

 St
ate

me
nt 

20
10

/11
 

 Di
rec

tor
ate

s: 
 A

du
lts

 &
 H

ou
sin

g, 
Ch

ief
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’s

 D
ep

t., 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce

s, 
Co

mm
un

ity
 &

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t, 
Co

rp
or
ate

 F
ina

nc
e, 

Le
ga

l &
 G

ov
ern

an
ce

 Se
rvi

ce
s, 

Pla
ce

 Sh
ap

ing
 

 Ch
ief

 Ex
ec

uti
ve

:  M
ich

ae
l L

oc
kw

oo
d 

 
   

 
AR

EA
 O

F A
SS

UR
AN

CE
 

Working well 
across the 
Council 

Working 
towards/gap 
identified 

 
DE

TA
ILS

 

Satisfactory 
action plan & 
responsible 
officer in 

place/being 
developed  

2009/10 results – 
working well 
across the 
Council 

2009/10 
 results – 
working 

towards/gap 
identified 

1. 
St
atu

tor
y O

bli
ga

tio
ns

 an
d O

rg
an

isa
tio

na
l O

bje
cti

ve
s 

1.1
 

Re
lev

an
t o

rga
nis

ati
on
al 
an
d s

erv
ice

 
sp
ec
ific

 le
gis

lat
ion

 is
 co

mp
lie
d w

ith
 

an
d m

ec
ha
nis

ms
 ar

e i
n p

lac
e t

o 
rev

iew
 pr

oc
ed
ure

s i
n l
igh

t o
f 

leg
isla

tiv
e c

ha
ng
e. 
 (A

GS
 1.
1) 

10
0%

 0
% 

Co
nfi
rm

ed
 

by
 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Dir
ec
tor

s 
As

su
ran

ce
 St

ate
me

nts
 

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 

1.2
 

Th
e d

ivis
ion

 ha
s a

 de
live

ry 
pla

n t
ha
t 

co
ve
rs 
all
 re

lev
an
t s
erv

ice
 ar

ea
s a

nd
 

cle
arl
y r
efl
ec
ts 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s

 st
rat

eg
ic 

ob
jec

tiv
es
 an

d l
eg
al 
ob
lig
ati
on
s. 
 

Th
es
e a

re 
co
ns
ist
en
t w

ith
 

pro
fes

sio
na
l s
tan

da
rds

 an
d t
he
 

res
ou
rce

s a
va
ila
ble

, a
nd
 re

fle
ct 
the

 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
of 
the

 m
ajo

r s
erv

ice
 

an
d b

ud
ge
t ri
sk
s. 
 (O

R1
 & 

AG
S 1

.8)
 

91
% 

9%
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

& 
En

vir
on
me

nt 
(1/

5 
de
pa
rtm

en
ts)
 

wo
rki
ng
 

tow
ard

s/g
ap
 

ide
nti
fie
d 

√ 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 

169



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
2 

ma
na

ge
me

nta
ss

ura
nc

e/s
tat

em
en

t/2
01

0/1
1 

   
 

AR
EA

 O
F A

SS
UR

AN
CE

 

Working well 
across the 
Council 

Working 
towards/gap 
identified 

 
DE

TA
ILS

 

Satisfactory 
action plan & 
responsible 
officer in 

place/being 
developed  

2009/10 results – 
working well 
across the 
Council 

2009/10 
 results – 
working 

towards/gap 
identified 

1.3
 

Th
e d

ivis
ion

’s 
ob
jec

tiv
es
 ar

e c
lea

rly
 

co
mm

un
ica

ted
 to
 st
aff
 an

d 
sta

ke
ho
lde

rs.
  (A

GS
 1.
9) 

 

10
0%

 0
% 

Co
nfi
rm

ed
 

by
 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Dir
ec
tor

s 
As

su
ran

ce
 St

ate
me

nts
 

 
97

% 
3%

 

1.4
 

Ad
eq
ua
te 
pla

ns
/pr

oc
ed
ure

s a
re 

in 
pla

ce
 fo
r m

an
ag
ing

 an
d c

oll
ec
tin
g 

da
ta 
for

 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
, e
.g.
 VF

M 
Sta

tem
en
t, O

fst
ed
, C

QC
 

10
0%

 0
% 

Co
nfi
rm

ed
 

by
 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Dir
ec
tor

s 
As

su
ran

ce
 St

ate
me

nts
 

 
10

0%
 

0%
 

2. 
Co

rp
or
ate

 G
ov

ern
an

ce
 A
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

 
2.1

 
All
 w
ork

ers
 (f/

t, p
/t, 

tem
po
rar

y, 
ag
en
cy
 st
aff
 an

d c
on
su
lta
nts

) h
av
e 

rec
eiv

ed
 a 

co
py
 of

 th
e C

od
e o

f 
Co

nd
uc
t.  

(A
GS

 3.
5 &

 11
.2)

 

97
% 

3%
 

Ch
ief
 

Ex
ec
uti
ve
s 

De
pt.
 

(1/
4 

de
pa
rtm

en
ts)
 

wo
rki
ng
 

tow
ard

s/g
ap
 

ide
nti
fie
d 

√ 
94

% 
6%

 

2.2
 

W
ork

ers
 ar

e r
em

ind
ed
 re

gu
lar
ly 
of 

the
 re

qu
ire
me

nt 
to 
ma

ke
 de

cla
rat

ion
s 

of 
int
ere

st/
rec

ord
 gi
fts
 & 

ho
sp
ita
lity

 in
 

the
 D
ire
cto

rat
e’s

 re
gis

ter
. 

84
% 

16
% 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Fin
an
ce
 (
1/2

 d
ep
art

me
nts

), 
Ch

ief
 

Ex
ec
uti
ve
’s 

De
pt.

 
(1/

4 
de
pa
rtm

en
ts,
 C
om

mu
nit
y &

 E
nv
iro
nm

en
t 

(1/
2 

de
pa
rtm

en
ts)
 w

ork
ing

 to
wa

rds
/ga

p 
ide

nti
fie
d 

√ 
10

0%
 

0%
 

2.3
 

In 
ad
dit
ion

 to
 th

e c
orp

ora
te 

Sc
he
me

 
of 

De
leg

ati
on
 th
ere

 is
 a 
wr
itte

n 
dir
ec
tor

ate
/se

rvi
ce
 sp

ec
ific

 sc
he
me

 
of 

de
leg

ati
on
 in
 pl
ac
e, 
e.g

. to
 co

ve
r 

HR
 re

sp
on
sib

iliti
es
. 

56
% 

44
% 

Ch
ief
 

Ex
ec
uti
ve
’s 

De
pt.

 
(1/

4 
de
pa
rtm

en
ts)
, 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

(5/
5 

de
pa
rtm

en
ts)
, 
Ad

ult
s 

& 
Ho

us
ing

 (
1/2

 
de
pa
rtm

en
ts)
, 

wo
rki
ng
 

tow
ard

s/g
ap
 

ide
nti
fie
d 

√ 
47

% 
53

% 

170



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
2 

ma
na

ge
me

nta
ss

ura
nc

e/s
tat

em
en

t/2
01

0/1
1 

 3. 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t A

rra
ng

em
en

ts 
 

3.1
 

Th
e n

um
be
r a

nd
 su

bje
ct 
co
nte

nt 
of 

cu
sto

me
r c
om

pla
int
s a

nd
 fe
ed
ba
ck
 

rec
eiv

ed
 by

 th
e s

erv
ice

 is
 m

on
ito
red

 
an
d r

eg
ula

rly
 re

vie
we

d b
y D

MT
 an

d 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 re
sp
on
siv

e a
cti
on
 m
ad
e 

an
d r

ec
ord

ed
.  (

SR
7 &

 AG
S 3

.14
, 

9.6
, 1
2.5

) 

10
0%

 0
% 

Co
nfi
rm

ed
 

by
 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Dir
ec
tor

s 
As

su
ran

ce
 St

ate
me

nts
 

 
97

% 
3%

 

3.2
 

All
 da

ta 
co
lle
cte

d i
s v

eri
fie
d a

nd
 is
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 fo
r a

 sp
ec
ific

 us
e. 

 (S
R5

) 
91

% 
9%

 
Co

rpo
rat

e 
Fin

an
ce
 (
1/2

 d
ep
art

me
nts

), 
Ad

ult
s 

& 
Ho

us
ing

 (
1/2

 d
ep
art

me
nts

) 
wo

rki
ng

 to
wa

rds
/ga

p i
de
nti
fie
d 

√ 
89

% 
11

% 

3.3
 

All
 da

ta 
co
mp

lie
s w

ith
 th
e d

ata
 

qu
ali
ty 
po
licy

.  (
SR

5) 
 htt

p:/
/ha

rro
wh

ub
/do

wn
loa

ds
/fil

 
e/8

78
/da

ta 
qu

ali
ty 

po
lic

y  
 

94
% 

6%
 

Ad
ult
s 

& 
Ho

us
ing

 (
1/2

 d
ep
art

me
nts

) 
wo

rki
ng

 w
ell
/ga

p i
de
nti
fie
d 

√ 
89

% 
11

% 

4. 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

of 
St
rat

eg
ic 

an
d O

pe
rat

ion
al 

Ri
sk

 
 

4.1
 

 
Ris

k a
ss
es
sm

en
t &

 m
an
ag
em

en
t is

 
em

be
dd
ed
 w
ith
in 
the

 di
vis

ion
 fo

r: 
• 

Ma
jor
 pr

oje
cts

 
• 

Fin
an
cia

l p
lan

nin
g 

• 
Ma

jor
 Po

lici
es
 & 

Le
gis

lat
ive

 
Ch

an
ge
s  

• 
De

live
ry 
Pla

nn
ing

  
 

10
0%

 0
% 

Co
nfi
rm

ed
 

by
 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Dir
ec
tor

s 
As

su
ran

ce
 St

ate
me

nts
 

 
67

% 
33

% 

4.2
 

All
 st
aff
 as

sig
ne
d t
o m

an
ag
e 

pre
mi
se
s, 
inc

lud
ing

 th
e w

ork
 of

 
co
ntr

ac
tor

s, 
ha
ve
 be

en
 tra

ine
d t
o  

ma
na
ge
 sa

fel
y. 

78
% 

22
% 

Ad
ult
s 

& 
Ho

us
ing

 (
2/2

 d
ep
art

me
nts

), 
wo

rki
ng

 to
wa

rds
/ga

p i
de
nti
fie
d 

√ 
92

% 
6%

 

171



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
2 

ma
na

ge
me

nta
ss

ura
nc

e/s
tat

em
en

t/2
01

0/1
1 

4.3
 

Pr
em

ise
s M

an
ag
ers

 in
 yo

ur 
div

isio
n 

ha
ve
 m

ad
e s

taf
f a

wa
re 

of 
an
y 

rel
ev
an
t A

sb
es
tos

 M
an
ag
em

en
t P

lan
 

for
 th

e b
uil
din

g i
n w

hic
h t

he
y r
es
ide

. 

94
% 

6%
 

Ad
ult
s 

& 
Ho

us
ing

 (
1/2

 d
ep
art

me
nts

) 
wo

rki
ng

 to
wa

rds
/ga

p i
de
nti
fie
d 

√ 
53

% 
47

% 

4.4
 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 ha

nd
lin
g a

nd
 da

ta 
se
cu
rity

 co
mp

ly 
wit

h t
he
 C
ou
nc
il’s

 
su
ite
 of
 In
for

ma
tio
n M

an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 

Da
ta 

Se
cu
rity

 Po
lici

es
. 

91
% 

9%
 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Fin
an
ce
 (
1/2

 d
ep
art

me
nts

), 
Ch

ief
 

Ex
ec
uti
ve
’s 

De
pt.

 
(1/

4 
de
pa
rtm

en
ts)
, 

wo
rki
ng
 

tow
ard

s/g
ap
 

ide
nti
fie
d 

√ 
92

% 
8%

 

4.5
 

Se
rvi
ce
 M
an
ag
ers

 op
era

tio
na
lly 

ow
n 

the
 in
for

ma
tio
n c

on
tai
ne
d i
n t
he
ir 

sy
ste

ms
, i.
e. 
the

y u
nd
ers

tan
d w

ha
t 

inf
orm

ati
on
 is
 he

ld,
 ho

w 
it i
s u

se
d 

an
d t
ran

sfe
rre

d, 
an
d w

ho
 ha

s a
cc
es
s 

to 
it a

nd
 w
hy
. 

97
% 

3%
 

Ch
ief
 

Ex
ec
uti
ve
’s 

De
pt.

 
(1/

4 
de
pa
rtm

en
ts)
 

wo
rki
ng
 

tow
ard

s/g
ap
 

ide
nti
fie
d 

√ 
61

% 
39

% 

4.6
 

An
 an

nu
al 
ris
k a

ss
es
sm

en
t is

 
un
de
rta

ke
n b

y y
ou
r In

for
ma

tio
n A

ss
et 

Ow
ne
r (D

ivis
ion

al 
Dir

ec
tor

s) 
for

 al
l 

‘ow
ne
d’ 
inf
orm

ati
on
 as

se
ts 
in 

ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 In
for

ma
tio
n 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e g

uid
an
ce
 an

d r
ep
ort

 to
 

the
 SI

RO
 (S

en
ior
 In
for

ma
tio
n R

isk
 

Ow
ne
r), 

en
su
rin
g t
ha
t in

for
ma

tio
n 

ris
ks
 ar

e i
de
nti
fie
d, 
do
cu
me

nte
d a

nd
 

ad
dre

ss
ed
. 

66
% 

34
% 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Fin
an
ce
 (
1/2

 d
ep
art

me
nts

), 
Co

mm
un
ity
 

& 
En

vir
on
me

nt 
(2/

2 
de
pa
rtm

en
ts)
, 

Le
ga
l 

& 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

Se
rvi
ce
s w

ork
ing

 to
wa

rds
/ga

p i
de
nti
fie
d 

√ 
33

% 
67

% 

172



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
2 

ma
na

ge
me

nta
ss

ura
nc

e/s
tat

em
en

t/2
01

0/1
1 

 5. 
Sy

ste
m 

of 
Int

ern
al 

Co
ntr

ol 
in 

Pla
ce

 to
 M

itig
ate

 Pr
inc

ipa
l R

isk
s  

 
5.1

 
Sta

ff a
re 

co
mp

lyin
g w

ith
 th
e 

req
uir
em

en
ts 
of 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s

 
Fin

an
cia

l R
eg
ula

tio
ns
 an

d C
on
tra

ct 
Pr
oc
ed
ure

 R
ule

s. 
 (A

GS
 3.

1) 

78
% 

22
% 

Ad
ult
s 

& 
Ho

us
ing

 (
2/2

 d
ep
art

me
nts

) 
wo

rki
ng

 to
wa

rds
/ga

p i
de
nti
fie
d. 

  
 Fo

llo
win

g 
rec

en
t w

ork
 u
nd
ert

ak
en
 b
y 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 a

nd
 o

n 
inf
orm

ati
on
 

pro
vid

ed
 b

y 
Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 

an
d 

the
 

Se
cti
on
 1

51
 O

ffic
er,

 in
dic

ati
on
s 

are
 

tha
t w

hil
st 

all
 s
elf
-as

se
ss
me

nts
 o
the

r 
tha

n A
du
lts
 & 

Ho
us
ing

 in
dic

ate
d 1

00
% 

co
mp

lia
nc
e 
tha

t t
his

 is
 n
ot 

the
 c
as
e. 
 

W
ork

 w
ill c

on
tin
ue
 th

rou
gh
ou
t th

e y
ea
r 

to 
im
pro

ve
 th

e l
ev
el 
of 
co
mp

lia
nc
e. 

 

 
10

0%
 

0%
 

5.2
 

W
he
re 

co
ntr

ac
ts 
are

 du
e t
o e

xp
ire
 in
 

the
 co

mi
ng
 12

 m
on
ths

 th
ere

 is
 a 
pla

n 
in 
pla

ce
 to

: 
a) 

rev
iew

 se
rvi
ce
 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
/op

tio
ns
 e.
g. 

po
ten

tia
l p
art

ne
rsh

ips
; a
nd
 

b) 
un
de
rta

ke
 a 
ten

de
r e

xe
rci
se
 

wh
ere

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 

94
% 

6%
 

Ch
ief
 

Ex
ec
uti
ve
’s 

De
pt.

 
(1/

4 
de
pa
rtm

en
ts)
, 

Le
ga
l 

& 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e 

Se
rvi
ce
s w

ork
ing

 to
wa

rds
/ga

p i
de
nti
fie
d 

√ 
94

% 
6%

 

5.3
 

 
Div

isio
na
l D

ire
cto

rs/
He

ad
s o

f S
erv

ice
 

are
 aw

are
 of

 an
d s

up
po
rt r

ele
va
nt 

off
ice

rs 
in 
the

ir r
ole

s a
s 

rep
res

en
tat

ive
s o

n t
he
 Eq

ua
lity

 Ta
sk
 

Gr
ou
p (

ET
G)
. 

97
% 

3%
 

Le
ga
l &

 G
ov
ern

an
ce
 S

erv
ice

s 
wo

rki
ng

 
tow

ard
s/g

ap
 id
en
tifi
ed
 

√ 
84

% 
16

% 

5.4
 

All
 ke

y p
roj
ec
ts 
are

 m
an
ag
ed
 in
 

ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 co

rpo
rat

e p
roj
ec
t 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
gu
ide

lin
es
.  (

SR
4) 

  
10

0%
 0

% 
Co

nfi
rm

ed
 

by
 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Dir
ec
tor

s 
As

su
ran

ce
 St

ate
me

nts
 

 
75

% 
25

% 

173



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
2 

ma
na

ge
me

nta
ss

ura
nc

e/s
tat

em
en

t/2
01

0/1
1 

5.5
 

W
he
re 

se
rvi
ce
s a

re 
joi
ntl
y 

pro
vid

ed
/fu
nd
ed
/m
an
ag
ed
, ro

bu
st 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

/go
ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 ar

e i
n p

lac
e w

hic
h 

cle
arl
y d

efi
ne
 th
e t
erm

s o
f th

e 
pa
rtn

ers
hip

, s
pe
cif
yin

g w
ho
se
 ru

les
 

an
d p

roc
ed
ure

s a
re 

to 
be
 fo
llo
we

d 
an
d a

re 
reg

ula
rly
 re

vie
we

d. 
 (S

R4
 & 

AG
S 1

0.1
2, 
11
.8)

 

94
% 

6%
 

Ad
ult
s 

& 
Ho

us
ing

 (
1/2

 d
ep
art

me
nts

) 
wo

rki
ng

 to
wa

rds
/ga

p i
de
nti
fie
d 

√ 
69

% 
31

% 

5.6
 

 
Bu

dg
et 

sp
en
d o

n L
ea
rni
ng
 & 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

is 
kn
ow

n a
nd
 th
e v

alu
e 

ob
tai
ne
d f

rom
 th
e s

pe
nd
 is
 an

aly
se
d. 

 41
% 

59
% 

Ad
ult
s 

& 
Ho

us
ing

 (
1/2

 d
ep
art

me
nts

), 
Co

mm
un
ity
 

& 
En

vir
on
me

nt 
(2/

2 
de
pa
rtm

en
ts)
, 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

(2/
5 

de
pa
rtm

en
ts)
 

wo
rki
ng
 

tow
ard

s/g
ap
 

ide
nti
fie
d 

√ 
42

% 
58

% 

5.7
 

 
Le
arn

ing
 Lo

gs
 ar

e m
ain

tai
ne
d f
or 

all
 

sta
ff. 

66
% 

34
% 

Ad
ult
s 

& 
Ho

us
ing

 (
1/2

 d
ep
art

me
nts

), 
Co

mm
un
ity
 

& 
En

vir
on
me

nt 
(2/

2 
de
pa
rtm

en
ts)
 

wo
rki
ng
 

tow
ard

s/g
ap
 

ide
nti
fie
d 

√ 
28

% 
72

% 

6. 
Bu

dg
et 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
& 
VF

M 

6.1
 

Se
rvi
ce
s a

re 
us
ing

 be
nc
hm

ark
ing

 
an
d o

the
r re

lev
an
t d
ata

 to
 en

su
re 

VF
M 
is 
ac
hie

ve
d. 

 (A
GS

 9.
7) 

91
% 

9%
 

Ad
ult
s 

& 
Ho

us
ing

 (
1/2

 d
ep
art

me
nts

), 
Le
ga
l &

 G
ov
ern

an
ce
 S

erv
ice

s 
wo

rki
ng

 
tow

ard
s/g

ap
 id
en
tifi
ed
 

√ 
92
% 

8%
 

174



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
2 

ma
na

ge
me

nta
ss

ura
nc

e/s
tat

em
en

t/2
01

0/1
1 

 7. 
Co

rp
or
ate

 St
rat

eg
ies

/Pl
an

s/F
ram

ew
or
ks

 
 

7.1
 

 
Re

lev
an
t o
ffic

ers
 ar

e a
wa

re 
of 

the
 

fol
low

ing
 st
rat

eg
ies

/pl
an
s/f
ram

ew
ork

s 
an
d a

re 
im
ple

me
nti
ng
 th
em

: 
• 

Co
un
cil’

s V
isio

n f
or 

20
10
/11

  
• 

Co
un
cil’

s P
rio
riti
es
 fo

r 2
01
0/1

1  
• 

Co
un
cil 

Tra
ns
for

ma
tio
n 

Pr
og
ram

me
  

• 
Co

mm
un
ity
 St

rat
eg
y 

• 
Co

rpo
rat

e C
on
su
lta
tio
n 

Str
ate

gy
  

• 
Ma

jor
 In

cid
en
t P

lan
 

• 
W
his

tle
blo

win
g P

oli
cy
 

• 
Co

un
ter

 Fr
au
d &

 C
orr

up
tio
n 

Po
licy

 
• 

Str
ate

gy
 fo

r P
eo
ple

  
(w
ork

for
ce
 st
rat

eg
y) 
 

• 
CR

EA
TE

 va
lue

s 
• 

He
alt
h &

 Sa
fet

y P
oli
ce
s 

• 
Co

de
 of
 C
on
du
ct 

• 
Em

plo
ye
es
 As

sis
tan

ce
 

Pr
og
ram

me
 

 

97
% 

3%
 

Le
ga
l &

 G
ov
ern

an
ce
 S

erv
ice

s 
wo

rki
ng

 
tow

ard
s/g

ap
 id
en
tifi
ed
 

√ 
Ne

w 
are

a 
of as

su
ran

ce
  

8. 
Ar

ea
s A

ss
es

se
d b

y I
nte

rn
al 

Au
dit

 
 

 
Co

rpo
rat

e G
ov
ern

an
ce
 Ar

ran
ge
me

nts
 

 
8.2

 
Sta

ff a
re 

aw
are

 of
 th
e W

his
tle
blo

win
g 

an
d D

ign
ity
 at

 W
ork

 po
licy

.  
10

0%
  

Co
nfi
rm

ed
 b
y 
IA 

- i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 o
n 
bo
th 

co
nta

ine
d o

n I
ntr

an
et.
 

 
 

96
% 

6%
 

175



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
2 

ma
na

ge
me

nta
ss

ura
nc

e/s
tat

em
en

t/2
01

0/1
1 

8.3
 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 
are

 
ad
eq
ua
te 
for

 de
ali
ng
 w
ith
 Fr

ee
do
m 
of 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 (F

OI
) a

nd
 D
ata

 
Pr
ote

cti
on
 (D

P)
 re

qu
es
ts.
  

10
0%

  
Co

nfi
rm

ed
 by

 IA
: 

FO
I g
uid

an
ce
 on

 In
tra

ne
t 

FO
I &

 D
P C

ha
mp

ion
s 

DP
 Po

licy
 on

 In
tra

ne
t 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 M
an
ag
em

en
t p
oli
cy
 on

 
Int

ran
et 

Ac
ce
pta

ble
 
us
e 

of 
Inf

orm
ati
on
 
an
d 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 sy

ste
ms

 po
licy

 on
 In

tra
ne
t 

 
10

0%
 

0%
 

 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 M
an
ag
em

en
t A

rra
ng
em

en
ts 

 
8.4

 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 ag

ain
st 
the

 se
rvi
ce
 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pla

ns
, d
eli
ve
ry 
pla

ns
, 

Fla
gs
hip

 Ac
tio
ns
, m

ajo
r p

roj
ec
ts 
an
d 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pro

gra
mm

es
 is
 

mo
nit
ore

d t
hro

ug
h r

ele
va
nt 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 m
ea
su
res

 (e
.g.
 KP

Is)
 

an
d c

us
tom

er 
an
d s

tak
eh
old

er 
fee

db
ac
k, 
an
d a

pp
rop

ria
te 
ac
tio
n i
s 

tak
en
 to

 ad
dre

ss
 an

y p
erf

orm
an
ce
 

iss
ue
s. 
(O
R1

, 3
 & 

AG
S 1

.15
) 

10
0%

  
Co

nfi
rm

ed
 by

 IA
: 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
bo
ard

 re
po
rts
/ac

tio
n n

ote
s 

Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 M
an
ag
em

en
t fr

am
ew

ork
 on

 
the

 In
tra

ne
t 

KP
Is 
inc

orp
ora

ted
 in
 th
e c

orp
ora

te 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
 Se

rvi
ce
 Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Pla

n 
Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Bo

ard
 an

d W
ork

for
ce
 

Str
ate

gy
 gr

ou
ps
 re

ce
ive

 re
po
rts
 on

 KP
Is.
 

Co
rpo

rat
e s

co
rec

ard
s 

HS
P r

ep
ort

 
NI
s p

ub
lish

ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f C
orp

ora
te 
Pla

n 
An

nu
al 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e R

ev
iew

 

 
10

0%
 

0%
 

176



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
2 

ma
na

ge
me

nta
ss

ura
nc

e/s
tat

em
en

t/2
01

0/1
1 

 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
of 
Str

ate
gic

 an
d O

pe
rat

ion
al 
Ris

k 
 

8.6
 

A H
ea
lth
 & 

Sa
fet

y P
lan

 is
 in
 pl
ac
e 

wh
ich

 co
ve
rs 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
ha
za
rds

 an
d 

is 
rev

iew
ed
 at

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 re
gu
lar
 

int
erv

als
 (a

t le
as
t o
nc
e w

ith
in 
the

 la
st 

12
 m
on
ths

).  
(A
GS

 3.
13
) 

 
√ *  

Th
e 

Int
eri
m 

He
alt
h 

& 
Sa

fet
y 

Le
ad
 

co
nfi
rm

ed
 t
o 

IA 
tha

t 
20
10
/11

 w
as
 a

 
pe
rio
d o

f g
rea

t c
ha
ng
e w

ith
in 

the
 H
ea
lth
 

& 
Sa

fet
y S

erv
ice

 w
hic

h 
cu
lm
ina

ted
 in

 a
 

pro
po
sa
l to

 C
SB

 in
 A
pri
l 2

01
1 t

o r
eb
uil
d 

the
 H
ea
lth
 & 

Sa
fet

y S
erv

ice
 to

 im
ple

me
nt 

a t
wo

 ye
ar 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pla

n. 
 

On
e 

of 
the

 
are

as
 

for
 

req
uir
ed
 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
is 

the
 

ca
ptu

rin
g 

of 
me

an
ing

ful
 d

ata
 th

at 
ca
n 

be
 u

se
d 

to 
mo

nit
or 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 a

nd
 t
o 

the
ref

ore
 

pro
vid

e 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
as
su
ran

ce
. 
 A

n 
ex
am

ple
 o
f t
his

 h
as
 b
ee
n 
the

 p
urc

ha
se
 

of 
the

 se
lf a

ud
it t
oo
l, w

hic
h w

ill d
ete

rm
ine

 
leg

isla
tiv
e 

co
mp

lia
nc
e 

in 
ea
ch
 s
erv

ice
.  

Th
is 

too
l 
is 

cu
rre

ntl
y 

un
de
r 

tria
l 
in 

Co
mm

un
ity
 &

 E
nv
iro
nm

en
t 
dir
ec
tor

ate
 

an
d w

ill 
be
 ro

lle
d o

ut 
ac
ros

s t
he
 co

un
cil 

in 
20
11
/12

.  A
 ta

rge
t h

as
 be

en
 se

t fo
r th

e 
int
rod

uc
tio
n 

of 
ag
ree

d 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 

me
ch
an
ism

s 
an
d 

mo
re 

me
an
ing

ful
 

rep
ort

ing
 w
ill b

e p
os
sib

le 
in 
20
12
/13

. 

√ 
89

% 
11

% 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
*  As

 th
is 

wa
s a

ss
es

se
d b

y I
A o

n i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 pr

ov
ide

d b
y H

&S
 it 

ha
s n

ot 
be

en
 po

ss
ibl

e t
o a

ss
es

s t
he

 pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 co

mp
lia

nc
e a

cro
ss

 di
rec

tor
ate

s 

177



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
2 

ma
na

ge
me

nta
ss

ura
nc

e/s
tat

em
en

t/2
01

0/1
1 

8.7
 

All
 ne

w 
sta

rte
rs 
an
d n

ew
 m

an
ag
ers

 
ha
ve
 at

ten
de
d t
he
 H
ea
lth
 & 

Sa
fet

y 
for

 st
aff
/M
an
ag
ers

 in
du
cti
on
 w
ith
in 
3 

mo
nth

s o
f th

eir
 st
art

 da
te.

  (A
GS

 
3.1

3)*  

 
√ *

 
As

su
ran

ce
 
no
t 

ga
ine

d 
by
 
IA 

fro
m 

co
mp

ari
ng
 S

AP
 C

ou
rse

 B
oo
ke
r t
o 
ne
w 

sta
rte

rs.
  C

ou
rse

 B
oo
ke
r n

ot 
in 

pla
ce
 fo

r 
wh

ole
 o
f 2

01
0/1

1 
an
d 
sc
ho
ols

, e
tc.
, d

o 
no
t u

se
 C
ou
rse

 B
oo
ke
r. 
 T
he
 H
&S

 te
am

 
co
nfi
rm

ed
 

tha
t 

it 
wo

uld
 

be
 

tim
e 

co
ns
um

ing
 a

nd
 d

iffi
cu
lt 

to 
ga
the

r 
an
d 

co
mp

are
 n

um
be
rs 

of 
tra

ine
es
 a

ga
ins

t 
nu
mb

ers
 of

 ne
w 
sta

rte
rs 

an
d d

ata
 w
ou
ld 

ha
ve
 to

 be
 m

an
ua
lly 

co
lla
ted

 fo
r t
he
 fir

st 
ha
lf 
of 

the
 y
ea
r. 
 T
he
 In

ter
im
 H

ea
lth
 &

 
Sa

fet
y 
Le
ad
 a

lso
 c

on
firm

ed
 th

at 
as
 a

 
se
rvi
ce
 

He
alt
h 

& 
Sa

fet
y 

are
 

no
t 

de
live

rin
g t

he
 H
&S

 In
du
cti
on
 fo

r s
taf
f a

nd
 

ma
na
ge
rs 

to 
all
 n

ew
 s

tar
ter

s. 
 T

he
se
 

co
urs

es
 a

re 
run

 in
 li
ne
 w

ith
 a

 y
ea
rly
 

tra
ini
ng
 pl
an
 bu

t a
tte
nd
an
ce
 is
 no

t to
 th

e 
req

uir
ed
 l
ev
el.
  

Th
is 

iss
ue
 i
s 

be
ing

 
ad
dre

ss
ed
 

in 
the

 
tw
o 

ye
ar 

H&
S 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pla

n a
nd
 th

e H
&S

 te
am

 ar
e 

loo
kin

g t
o p

roc
ure

 an
 e-

lea
rni
ng
 pa

ck
ag
e 

wit
h 
wh

ich
 to

 d
eli
ve
r t
he
se
 co

urs
es
 a
nd
 

ma
ke
 th
em

 m
ore

 ac
ce
ss
ibl
e t

o s
taf
f.  

 

√ 
83

% 
17

% 

8.9
 

Yo
ur 

div
isio

n h
as
 a 
Bu

sin
es
s 

Co
nti
nu
ity
 Pl

an
 an

d E
me

rge
nc
y 

Co
nta

ct 
Lis

t th
at 
is 
rev

iew
ed
 on

 an
 

an
nu
al 
ba
sis

.  (
OR

6 &
 AG

S 3
.9)

 

10
0%

  
Co

nfi
rm

ed
 t

o 
IA 

by
 t

he
 E

me
rge

nc
y 

Pla
nn
ing

 T
ea
m 

tha
t 
all
 t
he
 C

ou
nc
il’s

 
div

isio
ns
 h

av
e 

a 
Bu

sin
es
s 

Co
nti
nu
ity
 

Pla
n i
nc
lud

ing
 Em

erg
en
cy
 C
on
tac

t L
ist
 in
 

pla
ce
 th

at 
ha
s 

be
en
 r
ev
iew

ed
 o

n 
an
 

an
nu
al 

ba
sis

. 
 O

ne
 w

as
 o

uts
tan

din
g 

wit
hin

 C
om

mu
nit
y &

 En
vir
on
me

nt 
bu
t th

is 
ha
s 
no
w 

be
en
 re

vie
we

d 
an
d 
sig

ne
d 
on
 

8/7
/11

. 

 
10

0%
 

0%
 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
*  As

 th
is 

wa
s a

ss
es

se
d b

y I
A o

n i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 pr

ov
ide

d b
y H

&S
 it 

ha
s n

ot 
be

en
 po

ss
ibl

e t
o a

ss
es

s t
he

 pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 co

mp
lia

nc
e a

cro
ss

 di
rec

tor
ate

s 

178



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
2 

ma
na

ge
me

nta
ss

ura
nc

e/s
tat

em
en

t/2
01

0/1
1 

 
Sy

ste
m 

of 
Int
ern

al 
Co

ntr
ol 
in 
Pla

ce
 to
 M
itig

ate
 Pr

inc
ipa

l R
isk

s 
 

8.1
1 

All
 fra

ud
s a

nd
 Su

sp
ec
ted

 Fi
na
nc
ial
 

Irre
gu
lar
itie

s i
de
nti
fie
d h

av
e b

ee
n 

ref
err

ed
 to
 In
ter

na
l A

ud
it a

nd
 th
e 

Co
rpo

rat
e A

nti
-fra

ud
 Te

am
.  (

OR
2) 

√1  
 

Co
nfi
rm

ed
 in
 Fi
na
nc
ial
 R
eg
ula

tio
ns
. 

 Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 & 

CA
FT

 m
ain

tai
n a

 re
gis

ter
 

of 
all
 fra

ud
s. 
   

 
10

0%
 

0%
 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
1  W

hil
st 

it c
an

 be
 co

nfi
rm

ed
 th

at 
it i

s w
ork

ing
 w

ell
, th

e a
ctu

al 
pe

rce
nta

ge
 ac

ros
s d

ire
cto

rat
es

 co
uld

 no
t b

e c
on

firm
ed

. 

179



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
2 

ma
na

ge
me

nta
ss

ura
nc

e/s
tat

em
en

t/2
01

0/1
1 

8.1
2 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 m
ad
e i
n I
nte

rna
l 

Au
dit
, E

xte
rna

l A
ud
it o

r In
sp
ec
tio
n 

Re
po
rts
 ar

e i
mp

lem
en
ted

 in
 a 
tim

ely
 

ma
nn
er.

  (A
GS

 4.
1) 

97
% 

3%
 

As
 d

eta
ile
d 

in 
the

 IA
 y
ea
r e

nd
 re

po
rt 

20
10
/11

, f
oll
ow

-up
 o
f r

ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s 

sh
ow

ed
 th

at 
58
% 

of 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s 

sti
ll a

pp
lica

ble
 h
av
e 
be
en
 im

ple
me

nte
d; 

ho
we

ve
r a

 fu
rth

er 
39
% 

are
 in
 pr

og
res

s o
r 

we
re 

pla
nn
ed
 a

t t
he
 ti
me

 o
f f

oll
ow

-up
 

thu
s 
it 
is 

ex
pe
cte

d 
tha

t i
n 

du
e 

co
urs

e 
97
% 

wil
l 

be
 i

mp
lem

en
ted

. 
 I

t 
wa

s 
ide

nti
fie
d 
tha

t t
he
 m

ajo
rity

 o
f t
ho
se
 n
ot 

ye
t i
mp

lem
en
ted

 w
as
 d

ue
 to

 a
 s
low

er 
tha

n a
gre

ed
 im

ple
me

nta
tio
n. 

Ex
ter

na
l A

ud
it a

nd
 In

sp
ec
tio
n r

ep
ort

s a
re 

se
lf-r

eg
ula

tor
y. 

 
92

% 
8%

 

8.1
4 

Th
e p

oli
cie

s, 
str
ate

gie
s, 
pra

cti
ce
s 

an
d p

roc
ed
ure

s o
f th

e s
erv

ice
 ha

ve
 

be
en
 m
ap
pe
d a

nd
 pr

ior
itis

ed
 fo

r 
Eq

ua
lity

 Im
pa
ct 
As

se
ss
me

nts
 an

d 
the

 Eq
ua
lity

 Im
pa
ct 
As

se
ss
me

nts
 

sc
he
du
led

 fo
r th

e l
as
t y
ea
r h

av
e 

be
en
 un

de
rta

ke
n a

nd
 * ac

ted
 up

on
.   

 
√ *

 
Th

e 
Po

licy
 O

ffic
er 

- 
Eq

ua
litie

s 
an
d 

Div
ers

ity
 
co
nfi
rm

ed
 
to 

IA 
tha

t 
the

 
Co

un
cil’

s 
Sin

gle
 

Eq
ua
litie

s 
Sc

he
me

 
(S
ES

) 
wa

s 
ag
ree

d 
at 

Ca
bin

et 
in 

De
ce
mb

er 
las

t y
ea
r a

nd
 th

is 
inc

lud
es
 a
 

thr
ee
 ye

ar 
pro

gra
mm

e o
f E

qu
ali
ty 
Im

pa
ct 

As
se
ss
me

nts
.  

Th
is 

inc
lud

ed
 m

ap
pin

g 
an
d p

rio
riti
sin

g a
ll f
un
cti
on
s, 

po
lici

es
 an

d 
se
rvi
ce
s 

an
d 

de
ve
lop

ing
 a

 th
ree

 y
ea
r 

pro
gra

mm
e 

wh
ich

 s
tar

ts 
fro

m 
Ja
nu
ary

 
20
11
 – 

Ma
rch

 20
14
.  T

he
 Po

licy
 O
ffic

er 
– 

Eq
ua
litie

s a
nd
 D
ive

rsi
ty 
wil

l b
e p

rod
uc
ing

 
an
nu
al 
pro

gre
ss
 re

po
rts
 fo

r C
SB

 an
d t

he
 

Ov
erv

iew
 an

d S
cru

tin
y o

n t
he
 th

ree
 ye

ar 
ac
tio
n 
pla

n 
ea
ch
 ye

ar 
wit

h 
the

 fir
st 

on
e 

du
e 

at 
the

 e
nd
 o

f M
arc

h 
20
12
.  

Th
e 

Co
un
cil 

did
 

no
t 

ha
ve
 

an
 

ag
ree

d 
Eq

ua
litie

s 
Im
pa
ct 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
pro

gra
mm

e 
in 

pla
ce
 a

s 
su
ch
 th

ere
for

e 
for

 20
10
/11

.   

√ 
31

% 
69

% 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
*  As

 th
is 

wa
s a

ss
es

se
d b

y I
A o

n i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 pr

ov
ide

d b
y t

he
 Po

licy
 O

ffic
er 

- E
qu

ali
tie

s a
nd

 D
ive

rsi
ty,

 it 
ha

s n
ot 

be
en

 po
ss

ibl
e t

o a
ss

es
s t

he
 pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 co
mp

lia
nc

e 
ac

ros
s d

ire
cto

rat
es

 

180



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
2 

ma
na

ge
me

nta
ss

ura
nc

e/s
tat

em
en

t/2
01

0/1
1 

8.1
5 

IPA
Ds

 ha
ve
 be

en
 un

de
rta

ke
n f
or 

 
em

plo
ye
es
 in
 20

09
/10

 in
 ac

co
rda

nc
e 

wit
h l
aid

 do
wn

 pr
oc
ed
ure

s. 
 (S

R8
 & 

17
) 

 

92
% 

8%
 

IA 
ob
tai
ne
d e

vid
en
ce
 fr
om

 H
R 
tha

t 9
2%

 
IPA

Ds
 

ha
ve
 

be
en
 

un
de
rta

ke
n 

for
 

em
plo

ye
es
 in
 20

09
/10

. 
 

44
% 

56
% 

8.1
6 

Co
mp

let
ed
 IP

AD
s h

av
e b

ee
n s

ign
ed
 

off
 by

 a 
‘gr
an
dp
are

nt’
.*  

 
√ *

 
HR

 c
on
firm

ed
 t
o 

IA 
tha

t 
it 

is 
no
t 
a 

co
rpo

rat
e 

req
uir
em

en
t 

to 
rep

ort
 
on
 

wh
eth

er 
IPA

Ds
 h
av
e 
be
en
 s
ign

ed
 b
y 
a 

‘gr
an
dp
are

nt’
.  

Th
ere

for
e 
thi
s c

an
no
t b

e 
ve
rifi
ed
.  

√ 
47

% 
53

% 

 
Bu

dg
et 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
& V

FM
 

 
8.1

7 
All
 bu

dg
et 
ma

na
ge
rs 
pre

pa
re 

a S
AP

 
mo

nth
ly 
for

ec
as
t a
nd
 un

de
rta

ke
 

mo
nth

ly 
bu
dg
et 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 to

 
mi
nim

ise
 th
e r

isk
 of

 th
e b

ud
ge
t 

ex
ce
ed
ing

 pl
an
ne
d p

rov
isio

n. 
(S
R2

) 
 

√1  
 

Th
e 

Div
isio

na
l 

Dir
ec
tor

, 
Fin

an
ce
 
& 

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 

co
nfi
rm

ed
 th

at 
the

 F
ina

nc
e 

Bu
sin

es
s 
Pa

rtn
ers

 a
cti
ve
ly 

mo
nit
or 

an
d 

su
pp
ort

 di
rec

tor
ate

s/d
ivis

ion
s. 

 
83

% 
17

% 

8.1
8 

Th
e d

ivis
ion

 ex
pli
cit
ly 
mo

nit
ors

 
pro

gre
ss
 ag

ain
st 
pla

nn
ed
 sa

vin
gs
, 

inc
lud

ing
 N
I 1

79
, o
n a

 m
on
thl
y b

as
is 

an
d r

ep
ort

s t
he
 po

sit
ion

 to
 th
e 

qu
art

erl
y i
mp

rov
em

en
t b
oa
rd.

    
 

10
0%

  
It 

wa
s 

co
nfi
rm

ed
 

by
 

the
 

Se
nio

r 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 O

ffic
er 

tha
t 
NI
 1

79
 h

as
 

be
en
 d

ele
ted

 fo
r s

om
e 

tim
e. 

 In
ter

na
l 

Au
dit
 

co
nfi
rm

ed
 

by
 

rev
iew

ing
 

the
 

qu
art

erl
y I
mp

rov
em

en
t B

oa
rd 

pa
pe
rs 
tha

t 
the

 F
ina

nc
e 

Re
po
rts
 i
nc
lud

e 
for

ec
as
t 

ou
ttu
rn 

for
 

the
 

qu
art

er 
(an

d 
co
mm

en
tar

y),
 
ke
y 

iss
ue
s, 

va
lue

 
for

 
mo

ne
y 

an
d 

eff
icie

nc
ies

 
wh

ere
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

.  

 
10

0%
 

0%
 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
 1  W

hil
st 

it c
an

 be
 co

nfi
rm

ed
 th

at 
it i

s w
ork

ing
 w

ell
, th

e a
ctu

al 
pe

rce
nta

ge
 ac

ros
s d

ire
cto

rat
es

 co
uld

 no
t b

e c
on

firm
ed

. 
 

181



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
2 

ma
na

ge
me

nta
ss

ura
nc

e/s
tat

em
en

t/2
01

0/1
1 

8.1
9 

Th
e d

ivis
ion

al 
bu
dg
et 

is 
on
 ta
rge

t.  
(S
R2

) 
  

√1  
 

Th
e 

Div
isio

na
l 

Dir
ec
tor

, 
Fin

an
ce
 
& 

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 

co
nfi
rm

ed
 th

at 
for

 2
01
0/1

1 
all
 b

ud
ge
ts 

we
re 

on
 ta

rge
t/u

nd
ers

pe
nt.
  

Th
is 
is 
co
nfi
rm

ed
 in

 th
e 2

01
0/1

1 o
utt
urn

 
rep

ort
.  

An
y 

po
ten

tia
l o

ve
rsp

en
ds
 a

re 
hig

hli
gh
ted

 d
uri
ng
 th

e 
ye
ar 

an
d 

eff
ort

s 
ma

de
 to
 ba

lan
ce
 th
es
e d

uri
ng
 th

e y
ea
r. 

 
75

% 
25

% 

 
Co

rpo
rat

e S
tra

teg
ies

/Pl
an
s/F

ram
ew

ork
s 

 
8.2

0 
A D

ire
cto

rat
e W

ork
for

ce
 St

rat
eg
y i
s 

in 
pla

ce
. (S

R8
) 

 
10

0%
  

HR
 co

nfi
rm

ed
 a
nd
 p
rov

ide
d 
ev
ide

nc
e 
to 

IA 
tha

t D
ire
cto

rat
e W

ork
for

ce
 S
tra

teg
ies

 
we

re 
in 

pla
ce
 fo

r a
ll d

ire
cto

rat
es
 fo

r t
his

 
pe
rio
d. 

 
72

% 
8%

 

 
De

cis
ion

 M
ak
ing

 
 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
1  W

hil
st 

it c
an

 be
 co

nfi
rm

ed
 th

at 
it i

s w
ork

ing
 w

ell
, th

e a
ctu

al 
pe

rce
nta

ge
 ac

ros
s d

ire
cto

rat
es

 co
uld

 no
t b

e c
on

firm
ed

. 
 

182



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
2 

ma
na

ge
me

nta
ss

ura
nc

e/s
tat

em
en

t/2
01

0/1
1 

8.2
1 

Re
lev

an
t O

ffic
ers

 un
de
rst
an
d t
he
 

pro
ce
ss
 an

d a
dh
ere

 to
 tim

es
ca
les

 fo
r 

the
 pr

ep
ara

tio
n a

nd
 cl
ea
ran

ce
 of
 

rep
ort

s t
o C

SB
 an

d C
om

mi
tte
e. 
 

(O
R5

) 

10
0%

  
As

su
ran

ce
 
pro

vid
ed
 
to 

IA 
by
 
the

 
Co

rpo
rat

e A
ffa
irs
 M

an
ag
er 

tha
t th

e C
SB

 
pro

ce
ss
 i
s 

ve
ry 

we
ll 

un
de
rst
oo
d 

an
d 

ge
ne
ral
ly 
tim

es
ca
les

 ar
e a

dh
ere

d t
o. 
  

As
su
ran

ce
 
pro

vid
ed
 
to 

IA 
by
 
the

 
De

mo
cra

tic
 

an
d 

Ele
cto

ral
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Ma
na
ge
r 

tha
t 

cle
ar 

ad
vic

e 
is 

giv
en
 

reg
ard

ing
 d
ea
dli
ne
s 
for

 th
e 
su
bm

iss
ion

 
of 

rep
ort

s t
o a

ny
 co

mm
itte

e/p
an
els

 fa
llin

g 
wit

hin
 
the

 
rem

it 
of 

De
mo

cra
tic
 
& 

Ele
cto

ral
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

an
d 

all
 

rep
ort

 
pro

for
ma

s a
re 

av
ail
ab
le 

on
 th

e 
Int

ran
et.
  

It 
wa

s 
als

o 
rep

ort
ed
 th

at 
De

mo
cra

tic
 &

 
Ele

cto
ral
 S
erv

ice
s e

xp
eri
en
ce
 pe

ak
s a

nd
 

tro
ug
hs
 w
ith
 re

ga
rd 

to 
tim

ely
 su

bm
iss

ion
 

by
 

oth
er 

off
ice

rs 
of 

rep
ort

s 
for

 
co
mm

itte
es
.  
In 

ter
ms

 of
 la

te 
su
bm

iss
ion

 
the

re 
is 
a b

uil
t in

 re
qu
ire
me

nt 
tha

t w
he
re 

a 
rep

ort
 d

oe
s 

no
t 
co
nfo

rm
 w

ith
 t
he
 

de
ad
lin
es
 it
 m

us
t e

xp
lai
n 
wh

y 
it 
is 

lat
e 

an
d 

ide
nti
fy 

a 
rea

so
n 

for
 
its
 
lat
e 

co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 ra
the

r t
ha
n 
be
ing

 d
ela

ye
d 

to 
the

 ne
xt 
co
mm

itte
e m

ee
tin
g. 
  

 
10

0%
 

0%
 

8.2
2 

Re
so
urc

es
, c
os
ts 
an
d r

isk
s, 

sta
ffin

g/w
ork

for
ce
 is
su
es
, 

en
vir
on
me

nt,
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
, 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
, e
qu
ali
tie
s i
mp

ac
t, l
eg
al 

iss
ue
s a

nd
 co

mm
un
ity
 sa

fet
y i
ss
ue
s 

are
 ta

ke
n i
nto

 ac
co
un
t w

he
n o

ffic
ers

 
ma

ke
 de

cis
ion

s o
r re

co
mm

en
d 

de
cis

ion
s t
o C

SB
 or

 C
om

mi
tte
e. 

 
(O
R5

) 

10
0%

  
Int

ern
al 
Au

dit
 re

vie
w 
of 

a s
am

ple
 nu

mb
er 

of 
Co

mm
itte

e/C
ab
ine

t 
rep

ort
s 

for
 

20
10
/11

 
co
nfi
rm

ed
 
tha

t 
all
 
rel
ev
an
t 

iss
ue
s 

we
re 

tak
en
 in

to 
ac
co
un
t w

he
n 

off
ice

rs 
ma

ke
 d

ec
isio

ns
 o

r r
ec
om

me
nd
 

de
cis

ion
s 

to 
CS

B 
or 

Co
mm

itte
e. 
 

Fin
an
cia

l, 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
, E

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
, 

Ris
k 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt,
 E

qu
ali
tie
s 

Im
pa
ct 

we
re 

inc
lud

ed
 in
 al
l re

po
rts
 an

d t
he
 ot

he
r 

are
as
, 

e.g
. 

sta
ffin

g/w
ork

for
ce
 i

ss
ue
s, 

etc
., w

ere
 in
clu

de
d w

he
re 

rel
ev
an
t. 

 
10

0%
 

0%
 

183



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
2 

ma
na

ge
me

nta
ss

ura
nc

e/s
tat

em
en

t/2
01

0/1
1 

8.2
3 

 
Ap

pro
pri
ate

 pl
an
nin

g a
nd
 co

-
ord

ina
tio
n f
or 

for
ma

l o
r in

for
ma

l 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 is
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
an
d t
he
 

res
ult
s o

f th
e c

on
su
lta
tio
n a

re 
ex
pli
cit
ly 
ref

ere
nc
ed
 an

d t
ak
en
 in
to 

ac
co
un
t w

he
n o

ffic
ers

 m
ak
e 

de
cis

ion
s o

r re
co
mm

en
d d

ec
isio

ns
 to
 

CS
B o

r C
om

mi
tte
e. 
 (O

R5
) 

10
0%

  
Int

ern
al 
Au

dit
 re

vie
w 
of 

a s
am

ple
 nu

mb
er 

of 
Co

mm
itte

e/C
ab
ine

t 
rep

ort
s 

for
 

20
10
/11

 c
on
firm

ed
 th

at 
the

 r
es
ult
s 

of 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
s 

are
 e

xp
lici

tly
 r

efe
ren

ce
d 

an
d 

tak
en
 in

to 
ac
co
un
t w

he
n 

off
ice

rs 
ma

ke
 de

cis
ion

s o
r r
ec
om

me
nd
 de

cis
ion

s 
to 

CS
B o

r C
om

mi
tte
e. 

 
10

0%
 

0%
 

 

184



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
2 

ma
na

ge
me

nta
ss

ura
nc

e/s
tat

em
en

t/2
01

0/1
1 

 

185



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
2 

ma
na

ge
me

nta
ss

ura
nc

e/s
tat

em
en

t/2
01

0/1
1 

 

186



 

REPORT FOR: 
 

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT 
AND RISK 
MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE  

Date of Meeting: 
 

6 September 2011 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT - Risk, 
Audit & Fraud Division Activity 
Update  
 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Tom Whiting, Assistant Chief Executive 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Enclosures: 
 

None 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary  
 
 
This report outlines the current work streams of the Risk, Audit and Fraud 
group of services.  
 
Recommendations:  
 
The Committee is requested to note the progress across the division. 
 
 

Agenda Item 14 
Pages 187 to 198 

187



 

 
Section 2 – Report 
 
Background 
 
2.1 This report sets out the progress made and future work planned in 

respect of the Risk, Audit and Fraud group of services, which the 
GARM Committee is responsible for monitoring as part of its terms of 
reference. 

 
2.2 The focus of this monitoring is quarter 1 in 2011/12, April to June 2011. 
 
2.3 This report does not set out the activity of the Internal Audit, Insurance 

or Emergency Planning, since these services have provided reports 
separately on this Committee’s agenda. 

 
Corporate Anti Fraud Team 
 
2.4 During the 1st quarter of 2011/12 the Corporate Anti-Fraud Team 

achieved the following output:-  
 
2.41 Benefit fraud 
 

Referrals received = 88  
Closed investigations (cases investigated by Investigation Officers, 
does not include anything risk assessed out) = 29  
Cautions issued = 0 
Administrative penalties = 6 
Administrative penalties value = £6,747.36 (fines) 
Summons issued = 1 
Successful prosecutions = 3  
Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 orders (POCA) = £190,856.54 (joint case 
with Brent, total loss being £168,136.60) 
Overpayments = £130,038.05 (in relation to the above cautions, 
administrative penalties & prosecution cases) 
DWP overpayments related to joint cases = £64,717.01  

 
2.42 Corporate fraud 
 

Referrals received = 28  
Closed investigations = 24 
Cautions = 1 
Successful prosecutions = 0 
Application for services refused/withdrawn = 5 
Employee dismissals/conduct activity = 0 

 
Successful prosecution case studies 
 
2.43     Ms Sasha Keogh - Carlyon Avenue, South Harrow, HA2  

188



 

 
Ms Keogh claimed benefit on the basis of being a single parent of three 
children on Income Support.  In 2008 an allegation was made that Keogh was 
living together with her partner, Derek Currell who was a self employed roofer 
and that they also had a son together.   
 
Investigations revealed that Keogh had declared Currell as the alleged 
landlord of the property when the claim commenced in 2003, but gave his 
address in another part of Harrow, where his parents resided.  Currell had 
owned the property since 1996.  In 2004 they had a child together and the 
birth certificate showed that Currell was the father and that he resided at the 
same address as Keogh so the suspicion was that they were in a relationship 
from the outset of the claim. 
 
Evidence obtained by investigators showed that they were financially linked in 
April and May 2004 and that they held a joint Nationwide bank account 
throughout the claim.  Keogh also held other accounts that were not declared 
on her application form and credits into this account showed that she had also 
been working for a period of a year undeclared to the authorities.   
 
Half way through the claim, Keogh advised that her landlord had changed to 
Diann Kedge of Roy Road, Northwood and provided a tenancy agreement to 
support this.  Enquiries made with Ms Kedge revealed that the agreement 
was fake and that she had never had any involvement with the address, 
although she confirmed that she was the mother of Currell and that she was 
aware that her son had been in a relationship with Keogh for sometime. 
 
Keogh was invited to attend an interview and after receiving legal advice 
decided not to go ahead.  Her claims for Housing Benefit, Council Tax Benefit 
and Income Support were reassessed which resulted in overpayments of 
£47680.64, £6941.72 and £16,169.76 respectively.  She was summonsed to 
attend court to answer 9 charges affecting her benefits and on 20th April 2001 
pleaded guilty to 8 charges. 
 
On 18th May 2001 she was sentenced to 12 months in prison suspended for 2 
years, 300 hours unpaid work, a 6 month curfew for the hours 6pm – 6 am 
and a 2 year supervision order.  She was also ordered to attend an education, 
employment and training course.  No compensation order was made as she 
did not have the means to repay the debt within 2 years. 
   
2.44 Ms Andrea Thomas – Pinner Grove, Pinner, HA5 
 
Ms Thomas claimed benefit from 2003 on the basis of being a single parent of 
two children on Income Support.  In late 2008 a data matching allegation was 
received stating that Thomas had £62,000 in capital held in two undeclared 
bank accounts.  She had only ever declared one Barclays account on her 
application to both the authority and the DWP.   
 
Thomas was interviewed by investigators who confirmed that she had 
received a payment of £62,000 in June 2005 following the death of her 
mother.  She admitted that she consciously decided to withhold this 

189



 

information because she realised that her benefit claim with both the authority 
and the DWP would have ceased. 
 
Her claims for Housing Benefit, Council Tax Benefit and Income Support were 
reassessed which resulted in overpayments of £45,262.71, £3,769.61 and 
£15,730.93 respectively.   
 
She was summoned to attend court to answer 4 charges of fraud and pleaded 
guilty on 20th May 2011.  She was sentenced on 21st June 2011 to 6 month’s 
imprisonment suspended for 2 years and she was also issued with a 4 month 
curfew between the hours 9pm – 7am.  No compensation order was made as 
she did not have the means to repay the debt within 2 years.            
 
 
2.45 Miss Theresa Quinlan – Lowther Road, Stanmore, HA7 
 
Miss Quinlan claimed Council Tax Benefit as a single person on Job Seekers 
Allowance (JSA) from 1998.  She declared one post office bank account.  A 
referral was received in late 2008 from another local authority alleging that a 
John Quinlan was registered at the same address as Quinlan.  They provided 
a benefit claim form that they had received with supporting bank statements 
that were registered at the Lowther Road address. 
 
Following investigations, officers were able identify that in addition to a John 
Quinlan being registered at the address, financial links placed a James 
Reynolds also at the address.  Officers interviewed Quinlan and who 
confirmed that John Quinlan was her father who stayed with her from time to 
time and that James Reynolds was her ex-partner and that he paid the 
mortgage on Lowther Road for her, but did not live with her. 
 
A few weeks after the 1st interview, Quinlan called officers and stated that 
James Reynolds had moved back into the address.  Officers interviewed 
Quinlan once again to query this statement and she admitted that James 
Reynolds had in fact moved in with her some 2 years previous.  When 
Quinlan could not provide an address history for Reynolds, upon further 
questioning, she admitted that he had been living with her for the last 6 years. 
 
Her claim for Council Tax Benefit was reassessed which resulted in her being 
overpaid £4,192.09.  She was also overpaid Job Seekers Allowance 
amounting to £32,816.32.  She was summonsed to attend court and pleaded 
guilty to all charges.  She was sentenced on 20th June 2011 to 126 weeks 
imprisonment suspended for 12 months plus 80 hours community work and 
£600 costs.  No compensation order was made as she did not have the 
means to repay the debt in 2 years.  
      
Housing tenancy fraud/misuse case studies 
  
2.46 The CAFT appointed a Housing Fraud Investigator at the end of 

January 2011 to assist Housing Management in dealing with subletting 
and tenancy misuse.  A number of positive results for the authority 
have been achieved with 4 tenancies being surrendered by tenants 

190



 

whose cases had been investigated.  A further tenancy has been 
surrendered and the keys are expected at the end of August 2011. 

 
2.47 The following cases demonstrate that with targeted resources, council 

assets can be redistributed to those that most need Council support.  It 
also represents a saving for the council in that it reduces temporary 
accommodation costs by moving families into secure tenancies.  The 
Audit Commission in their ‘Protecting The Public Purse’ report 
published in October 2010 calculated that average temporary 
accommodation costs in the UK were £18,000 per year and as this 
figure was a national one, Harrow could possibly be much higher than 
this.  The 4 tenancies returned to Council possession and now re-let to 
people that were in temporary accommodation represents a real 
saving of £54,000 for the Council.     

 
 
2.48 Mr S – Pinner, HA5 
 

Case referred by Housing Management as they were having difficulty 
in gaining access to the property to undertake the gas safety check.  
Mr S had been a tenant since 2001.  The suspicion was that the 
property was not occupied by the tenant as their principle home.  The 
Investigation Officer was able to establish that the tenant was not liable 
for any utility bills at the address and had no credit activity or TV 
license.   
 
He was traced to an address in Hadley Wood in Barnet and the 
London Borough of Enfield Council confirmed that he was the 
registered person for Council Tax since 2008.  He was also registered 
for gas and electricity payments since 2008 at the address, although 
the property was owned by a company based in the Isle of Man.   
 
Further financial enquiries undertaken revealed that the tenant had 
purchased a property in Milton Keynes in 2005 for £430,000 and that 
the Council had him registered for Council Tax since 2004. 
 
A Notice to Quit was served on Mr S for non occupation and after 
attending a meeting with housing and fraud officers he surrendered the 
tenancy.  All rent arrears were cleared and he handed the keys back 
into the authority in April 2011. 
 

2.49 Mr S – Wealdstone, HA3 
Issue identified as a result of the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) linking 
the tenant to a live Council Tax Benefit claim in Coventry City Council.  
Mrs S had been a tenant since 2003.  Investigations confirmed that the 
tenant purchased the Coventry property in 2008 and from 
documentation he had supplied the Coventry Council tax dept he had 
stated he had left the Harrow.   
 
A visit was undertaken on the tenancy address and the tenant’s 
daughter, son in law and child were found to be occupying.  School 

191



 

admissions in Harrow confirmed that the tenants two other children 
had left Harrow schools in 2008 and had transferred to Coventry. 
 
The tenant was interviewed where he stated he was living at both 
properties and when informed that we would be issuing a Notice to 
Quit, he signed a form and surrendered the tenancy.  He handed keys 
back in June 2011. 

 
2.50 Mrs C – Kenton, HA3 
 

Issue referred by Housing Management with concerns that the tenant 
was not occupying the property as neighbours had reported not seeing 
her there.  The tenant was also attempting to assign the tenancy to a 
lodger.  An unannounced visit to the address was conducted where the 
lodger was found in occupation.   
 
The tenant was interviewed and whilst she claimed to still be resident 
she could provide no financial and medical documentation proving she 
resided.  A Notice to Quit was prepared but the tenant surrendered the 
tenancy and handed keys back in May 2011. 

 
2.51 Mrs L, Harrow, HA2 
 

Issue identified by Housing Management with concerns that the tenant 
was often away in Wales.  Mrs L had been a tenant since June 2010 
after a mutual exchange took place from an address in Lambeth.   
 
Following a detailed investigation, no trace could be found of any credit 
history for her at the tenancy address and examination of the 
application form she completed to mutually exchange raised 
suspicions that documentation had been altered to assist the move go 
through.   
 
Evidence was also found that signatures on various documentation 
purporting to be from the tenant did not match up.  She was traced to 
an address in North Wales where she was particularly credit active and 
where she had been on the voter’s role since 2009. 
 
A visit was conducted and the tenant’s daughter in law was found to be 
in occupation and claimed that the tenant had gone away for a few 
weeks to look after her sick mother.   The tenant was interviewed and 
claimed to be living at the tenancy address as her principal home.  She 
could not provide answers as to why she was registered to vote 
elsewhere nor why all her financial business was also registered away 
from the Harrow address.  A report was passed to housing 
management to issue notice. 
 
She agreed to sign a tenancy surrender form and eventually handed 
the keys back in to the Council in June 2011.                                   

  

192



 

2.52 Harrow Council has been allocated funding of £100,000 in 2011/12 and 
£100,000 in 2012/13 as part of the Preventing Homelessness area 
based grant to go towards housing fraud initiatives.   

 
2.53 The grant however is not ring fenced and whilst an extra £100,000 has 

been awarded to tackle housing tenancy fraud, a decision on the 
allocation of this funding has still to be made.   

 
2.54 Harrow welcomes this additional funding to tackle this area of fraud and 

the CAFT strongly supports the continuation of the dedicated 
Investigation Officer post past the initial 12 month contract which will end 
in January 2012. 

 
Blue badge fraud and misuse - Operation Foxglove 
 
2.55 Officers from the CAFT, Greenhill Safer Neighbourhood Team and 

Parking enforcement executed Operation Foxglove on 25th May 2011 to 
crackdown on disabled blue badge misuse.  The operation was 
successful and out of 43 persons audited, 13 were found to be misusing 
the badge.  All were issued with a Penalty charge Notice and will be 
interviewed in the coming weeks and a decision made on what further 
action is to be taken against them.        

 
                      

Information Management  
 
2.6 Poor data security control is a serious, widespread, high-impact 

financial and reputational risk to the Council. The information 
Commissioners Office (ICO) now has powers to impose substantial 
fines on organisations that ‘deliberately’ or ‘recklessly’ commit serious 
breaches of the DPA. The maximum fine the ICO can impose has 
now been set at £500,000.  

 
2.61 On 24 November 2010, the Information Commissioner issued his first 

monetary penalty (£100,000) to Hertfordshire County Council. To date 
another 3 Councils have been fined (Ealing £80,000, Hounslow 
£70,000 and Surrey CC £120,000). These high profile and highly 
publicised incidents have prompted management and audit 
committees in many local authorities to increase their focus on the 
risk of data loss and theft and to ensure that the risk is adequately 
managed. 

 
2.62 Risks include the possibility of IT systems being compromised, data 

being lost, damaged, unavailable or unlawfully disclosed to 
unauthorised persons and of course the adverse national publicity this 
could cause.  

 
2.63 The Council has acknowledged that information management is an 

area of importance and as such has created an Information 
Management Team (IMT) to be responsible for the overall 
management of data security to ensure that the information needs of 

193



 

the Council are met, and complies with legislative requirements. IMT 
manage and develop security policies to implement an Information 
security strategy across the Council and co-ordinate ‘virtual’ teams of 
FOI/DPA/EDRMS champions to be consistent with their approach. 

 
2.64 The Service Manager, Information Management also has 

responsibility for data protection including: 
 
• The provision of data protection awareness for staff within the 

Council (aided by the council’s Legal department); 
• The provision of information security training (aided by e-learning 

tool); 
• The development of best practice guidelines; 
• Carrying out compliance checks to ensure adherence throughout 

the Council with the Act; 
• Provision of professional support, updates and advice to officers on 

data protection and related matters; 
• Notification to the Information Commissioner. 

 
2.65 IMT is assisting Capita in implementing an ongoing programme of 

work using the Council’s workflow platform, Civica. The principles 
underpinning this project are to modernise and standardise processes 
to help the council deliver more efficient services to customers and to 
build an IT platform which can be extended to other services areas for 
transformation and information sharing.   

2.66 EDRMS (Electronic Documents and Records Management System) is 
the technology being utilised to achieve this project. The Document & 
Records Management Systems Officer (within IMT) provides 
corporate first line application support for Civica W2 Document 
Management & Workflow system and the EDRMS.   

 

2.67 The Document & Records Management Systems Officer also acts as 
systems consultant / project manager to Council staff in areas where 
the system is being rolled out to new areas, as well as responsibility 
for the coordination and implementation of new system releases & 
patches, ensuring all work is coordinated with relevant existing user 
departments and by the set deadlines to minimise disruption to users. 

 
2.68 Information Architecture requires a hands-on functional specialist to 

manage the file structure in the EDRMS and develop it as new 
services are incorporated. This role (Information Architect) within IMT 
has taken the lead on Document and Records Management across 
the Council by providing professional expertise and experience in the 
areas of Information Architecture, Retention and Destruction Policy, 
and wider related areas of Information governance.   

 
Progress in quarter 1 was specifically around the following: 

 

194



 

• Working with our Capita partners to ensure that the suite of corporate data 
security policies and the associated protocols are imbedded in Capita’s 
data security plan as part of the new ITO contract.   
 

• Finalising implementation of the new DPA / FOI tracking IT system 
across Council; 

 
Work Stream for the remainder of 2011/12: 

 
• Assist all Directorates to undertake their yearly review of their Information 

Asset Register and Information Risk Action Plan, which in turn will enable 
IMT to formulate a revised corporate information asset register and ensure 
Information Risk Action Plans are in place; 

 
• Data gathering exercise to enable implementation of information 

classification across the Council. The Council must also be able to share 
information (including personal data) confidently knowing it is reliable, 
accessible, and protected against agreed standards irrespective of format 
or transmission method.  

 
• Develop a council record and document retention schedule in order to 

protect council records from erroneous destruction; 
 
• Roll out on-line and classroom based training to ensure a consistent and 

secure approach to Information Security across the Council; 
 
• Protocols for information security with 3rd parties. Data protection and 

privacy issues to be imbedded in contracts, IT support and strategic 
partner agreements. 

 
• Data Security Leavers Protocol i.e. Return of USB fobs, RSA tokens etc. 

This is to ensure that Council Information Assets are protected at all times. 
 
• Information Architecture – Subject to approval, work with Capita to develop 

and implement a Corporate Information Architecture to be used for the 
Mobile and Flex corporate project. 

 
• To enable Civica to function as intended, a Civica development program 

will be put in place and will include providing support to the business 
support project, migration work due to ITO contract and possible Civica 
version updates. 

 
 
Health & Safety 
 
2.7 Background 
 
Following the annual report issued to the GARM Committee on the 28th June 
2011, this summary provides an update on progress made since April 2011. 
 

195



 

2.71 External Assurance 
 
Following on from the three Improvement Notices issued in June 2010 the 
Health and Safety Executive have been kept updated on progress made in 
the management of asbestos in both schools and corporate properties. The 
scheduled revisit by the HSE Inspector to review health and safety auditing 
arrangements has not taken place so far. 
 
2.72 Improvement Plan 
 
Following CSB’s endorsement of the two year improvement plan in April 2011 
the implementation of the plan is underway and progress is reviewed at the 
quarterly Corporate Health and Safety group meetings.  
 
2.73 Policy & Guidance  
 
The review of the health & safety policies and procedures continues. The 
following documents are currently being consulted upon for approval at the 
next Corporate Health & Safety Group: 
 
Health and Safety Policy 
Consultation & Communication 
Educational visits 
Legionella Policy & Code of Practice 
First Aid 
 
2.74 Health & Safety Groups 
 
The health and safety groups continue to meet every quarter or every school 
term. In order to ensure effective communication consultation is currently 
taking place on synchronising meeting dates to ensure effective escalation of 
health and safety risks.  
 
2.75 Inspection & Audit 
 
The procurement process for purchasing an e-audit tool has been completed 
and the process for delivering the audit tool has now commenced. The audit 
questionnaire has been populated with the relevant questions to determine 
compliance with health and safety legislation and a trial is nearly complete in 
the Community and Environment Directorate. A communications plan is now 
in place to deliver the audit tool across the council, which includes 
presentations at Divisional Management Team meetings and at the 
Managers’ Forum.    
 
2.76 Training 
 
A review of the delivery of health and safety training has commenced and the 
service is internally reviewing e-providers. The service has continued to 
provide in house training in line with the training matrix and is focussing on 
delivering premises management training to managers with responsibility for 
corporate and adults & housing stock. 

196



 

 
2.77 Educational Visits 
 
The service has continued to review the assessments for school trips, 
assessing over eighty trips since April 2011.  
 
The government has issued new guidance for educational visits, reducing the 
guidance note from 150 pages to 8 in order to simplify the process. As a 
consequence the Health & Safety will need to revise its documentation to 
reflect the government guidance. 
 
2.78 Occupational Health 
 
Santia continue to be the Occupational Health provider for the council. The 
planned developments for the introduction of online pre-employment 
assessment and online referrals are still ongoing and schools continue to be 
the highest user of the service in relation to work health assessments and 
sickness absence management.  
 
2.79 Health Promotion 
 
A men’s health day was organised at the depot in June 2011 to promote 
healthy eating and awareness of topics such as prostate cancer. A further 
health day is currently being organised for October 2011. 
 
2.80 Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) 
 
First Assist continue to provide the EAP service to the council. Usage of the 
service has significantly increased in the first quarter of the year in 
comparison to the previous quarter although it still remains relatively low with 
only 51 calls for telephone counselling during this quarter. 
 
2.81 Accidents 
 
The number of accidents has continued to increase when compared to the 
quarter 1 in 2010/11. As stated in the annual report this is expected with the 
introduction and promotion of new systems for accident reporting. However 
we still expect this trend to continue as we have been made aware in a 
number of health & safety meetings of the non reporting of incidents.      
Positive promotion of the new systems will therefore continue.  
 
There were ten HSE reportable employee accidents during quarter 1 of 
2011/12. Only one of these incidents was designated as a major reportable 
incident when an employee fell down some stairs chipping a bone and a 
tooth.  
 
2.82  Changes in Legislation 
 
There is a potential change to the asbestos regulations, with the European 
Commission asking for changes with respect to activities currently listed as 
non-notifiable. The potential changes would mean that short, non-continuous 

197



 

maintenance activities and the removal of materials in which the asbestos 
fibres are firmly linked in a matrix would become notifiable to the HSE. These 
changes may be implemented in October 2011 or April 2012.    
 
2.83 Restructure 
 
The process for delivering a restructure and building an in-house health and 
safety service is currently underway and has reached the consultation stage.  
 
Section 3 – Further Information 
 
3.1 None. 
 
Section 4 – Financial Implications 
 
4.1 The work of the Risk, Audit and Fraud division is carried out within the 

budget available and supports the achievement of financial objectives 
across the council. 

 
Section 5 – Corporate Priorities  
 
5.1 Collectively the division contributes to the delivery of all the corporate 

priorities through supporting the council as a whole to achieve their 
targets and objectives. 

 
 
 
 

   
On behalf of the  

Name: Steve Tingle X  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 17th August 2011 

   
 
 
Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  David Ward Tel: 020 8424 1781 
david.ward@harrow.gov.uk 
 
 
Background Papers:  None 

198



 

REPORT 
FOR: 

GOVERNANCE AUDIT AND 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE  

Date of Meeting: 6 September 2011 
Subject: Risk Management Update and Draft Risk 

Management Strategy 
 

Responsible 
Officer: 

Tom Whiting, Assistant Chief Executive  

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Graham Henson -  
Portfolio Holder for Performance, Customer 
Services and Corporate Services 

Exempt: No 
Enclosures: Appendix 1 – Draft Risk Management 

Strategy 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
The Governance Audit and Risk Management Committee (GARM) support 
Cabinet in its role by reviewing internal policies and arrangements. This 
includes providing an assurance to Cabinet that the Risk Management 
Strategy is in line with current guidance and best practice.  
This report is provided to ensure GARM is aware of the Council's progress in 
risk management, to comply with the governance framework and ensure the 
Council’s risk management framework continues to align with best practice. 
 
Recommendations:  
 
GARM is requested to: 
• note the risk management position; and 
 
• comment on and endorse the draft Risk Management Strategy. 
 

Agenda Item 15 
Pages 199 to 226 

199



Section 2 – Report 
 
Risk Management position 
 
The Council’s key risk management achievements in the past 12 months and 
planned initiatives in 2011/12 are: 
 
Key Achievements 
• Delivery of a council-wide assurance mapping project to identify and 

strengthen the operation of assurance groups at the Council and also the 
robustness of risk registers in relation to these key groups 

• Best practice visit and sharing of information on risk management with 
Councils recognised as excellent  

• Review and update of the risk management strategy 
• Attending CSB Performance meetings as required 
• Quarterly update of the strategic risk register, corporate operational risk 

register and directorate risk registers with corporate directors, providing 
challenge to ensure risk registers were complete and robust. 

• Facilitating meetings and provision of secretariat functions to the 
Corporate Risk Steering Group (CRSG). 

• The Corporate Risk Steering Group met 4 times during 2010-11 covering 
such issues as risk management training, the assurance mapping project 
and the risk management strategy, as well as generally sharing 
information and lessons learned on risk and risk issues at the Council 

• The CRSG also provided challenge on the robustness of the strategic and 
corporate operational risk registers and the adequacy of controls to 
mitigate the risk  

• Membership and strong risk management input into to the following project 
groups/work streams at the Council – the Corporate Governance Working 
Group, the Capital Forum, Planned and Reactive Maintenance and Harrow 
Highways Construction tender/procurements 

 
Key Deliverables and Initiatives Underway / Planned 
• Ensure that approved changes to the risk management strategy are 

reflected in other council risk management policies, guidance and training, 
where appropriate.  

• Integrate and embed the approved risk management strategy  
• Establish and develop the roles of GARM Lead Member Risk Champion 

and Council Risk Champion  
• Capture of positive risk opportunities in risk registers 
• Merge, consolidate and streamline the strategic and corporate operational 

risk registers into a single corporate risk register 
• Produce a high level risk summary report for distribution to CSB 
• Investigate and recommend a course of action relating to the potential 

purchase and use of a risk management software system, particularly in 
regard to the generation of risk management reports.  

• Review/refresh the terms of reference  of the CRSG to ensure it continues 
to be effective and continues to meet the needs of members 

 
 

200



 
 
 
Risk Management Strategy 
 
The Risk Management Strategy (October 2010) was reviewed to identify ways 
to further enhance it and to ensure it continues to reflect best practice. The 
updated strategy: 
• Is linked more strongly and explicitly to the new strategic vision set for the 

Council of Working Together; Our Harrow, Our Community  
• Streamlines risk reporting outputs/formats to more efficiently meet the 

information needs of users of risk management information, e.g. the 
strategic and corporate operational risk registers are being consolidated 
into a single corporate risk register so that all key strategic risks are 
reported in a consistent way in one risk register 

• Recognises relevant changes since 2010 in the structure and workings of 
the Council affecting the risk management function e.g. in the introduction 
of commissioning panels. 

 
To support the new Risk Management Strategy, the existing Risk 
Management Guide will also be reviewed so as to ensure it is fully consistent 
with it. The Guide provides detailed step-by-step advice on how to conduct a 
risk assessment and complete the risk register. The Corporate Risk Steering 
Group will be asked to approve the Guide. 
 
To ensure the new Risk Management Strategy is fit for purpose, comments 
have been sought from a range of stakeholders in the risk management 
function , e.g. corporate directors, heads of service and the corporate risk 
steering group and amendments will be made where appropriate to make the 
strategy more focused on their needs. 
 
Comments are sought from the Committee as part of this consultation 
process.  
 
Financial Implications 
 
The risk management support service is delivered within the available budget 
within the Risk, Audit & Fraud Division and part of this support role is to 
ensure that resources across the council are prioritised on a risk based 
approach. 
 
Risk Management Implications 
 
There are no risks to the Council in approving the Risk Management 
Strategy. Should the recommendation not be accepted, there is a risk that 
the Council’s Risk Management Strategy and related guidance will not 
continue to align with best practice or clearly define the Council’s 
requirements for the management of its risk.  

201



 
Corporate Priorities 
 
The Risk Management Strategy supports the achievement and delivery of all 
of the Council’s Corporate Priorities and the vision set for it in Working 
Together; Our Harrow, Our Community 
 
Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

   
on behalf of the* 

Name: Jennifer Hydari X  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 25 August 2011 

   
 
 

   
on behalf of the* 

Name: Matthew Adams  X  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date: 26 August 2011  

   
 

 
Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact: Neale Burns, Interim Risk Manager, Extension 5299 
 
Background Papers: None 
 
 

202



A 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RISK  
 

MANAGEMENT 
 

STRATEGY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Version: First Draft 
Date: August 2011  

 

203



Appendix 1 

 

Document Control 
 
Document Information 
Reference London Borough of Harrow Risk Management Strategy 
Location Civic 1 
Owner David Ward, Division Director – Risk Audit and Fraud 
Author: Neale Burns, Interim Risk Manager 
History of Changes 
Version Date Incorporates Changes By: 

0.1  Neale Burns, Interim Risk Manager 
0.2  David Ward, Divisional Director – Risk Audit & Fraud 
0.3  Corporate Director Cross-Section Consultation  
0.4  Corporate Risk Steering Group 
0.5  Governance Audit and Risk Management Committee [Draft] 
0.6  Corporate Strategic Board 
0.7  Governance Audit and Risk Management Committee [Final] 
0.8  Cabinet 

Distribution 
Name Role v0.1 v0.2 v0.3 V0.4 v0.5 v0.6 

Neale Burns, 
Interim Risk 
Manager 

Responsible for ensuring that the 
Council, directorates, services 
and staff are supported in the 
development and implementation 
of the risk management strategy 
and framework. 

- - -    

RAF Divisional 
Director 

Responsible for the management 
of RAF.  -     

Corporate 
Director Cross-
Section 
Consultation 

Considers they key finance and 
performance standing of the 
Council, including corporate risks, 
and endorses Cabinet papers. 

  -    

Corporate Risk 
Steering Group 
(CRSG) 

Support and review the Risk 
Management Strategy/Policy and 
related guidance. 

      

Governance, 
Audit and Risk 
Management 
Committee 
(GARM) [Draft] 

Responsible for reviewing the 
efficacy of internal policies and 
arrangements, including the Risk 
Management Strategy. 

      

Corporate 
Strategic Board 
(Performance) 

Considers they key finance and 
performance standing of the 
Council, including corporate risks, 
and endorses Cabinet papers. 

      

Governance, 
Audit and Risk 
Management 
Committee 
(GARM) [Final] 

Responsible for reviewing the 
efficacy of internal policies and 
arrangements, including the Risk 
Management Strategy. 

      

Cabinet 
Responsible for the 
preparation/agreement of other 
policies and plans for making key 
decisions, including risk 
management. 

      

 

204



Appendix 1 

 

 
Code Reason For Issue: 
- Not issued. 
I For information only – no action required. 
R For review – comments to be directed to the Risk Manager 
S For endorsement / approval. 
A Endorsed or Approved for issue. 

Code Review Response: 
C Comments received. 
O Document OK.  
T (Timeout) No comment(s) received within allowed review period. 
U Updated 

 
 

205



Appendix 1 

 

 
CONTENTS 

 
 
INTRODUCTION ..........................................................................................................................1 
 
 
THE RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS ........................................................................................2 
 
 
OBJECTIVES ................................................................................................................................3 
 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES............................................................4 
 
 
RISK APPETITE AND DELEGATED RISK APPETITE.................................................................5 
 
 
RISK ESCALATION AND REPORTING .......................................................................................6 
  
 
RISK MANAGEMENT RESOURCE .............................................................................................8 
 
 
OWNERSHIP AND RESPONSIBILITY FOR RISK MANAGEMENT ............................................9 
 
 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT ................................................................................................9 
 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT SUPPORT, GUIDANCE AND TRAINING..................................................9 
 
 
REVIEW AND CONTROL ...........................................................................................................10 
 
 
 
Annex A:  Detailed Risk Management Responsibilities  11 
Annex B:  Risk Reporting Cycles 13 
Annex C:  Standard Risk Register Template 15 
Annex D:  High Level Summary Report [WIP extract] 17 
 
 

206



Appendix 1 
 

             Risk Management Strategy Version 0.3 Page 1 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Risk is the uncertainty of an event occurring, which could be a negative threat, or a positive 

opportunity, that could have an impact on the achievement of the Council’s key objectives. It is 
the “effect of uncertainty on objectives“(BS ISO 31000:2009 Risk Management – Principles and 
Guidelines). Risk Management is “the process of understanding and managing the risks that an 
organisation is inevitably subject to in attempting to achieve its corporate objectives” (CIMA 
Official Terminology) and is the process whereby the Council methodically addresses those risks 
or barriers to achieving its vision, corporate and directorate objectives. Risk arises from possible 
threats to objectives, as well as failure to take advantage of possible opportunities. Only those 
risks that impact on the achievement of objectives should be captured in risk registers.  

 
1.2 Risk can also be operational in nature and exist at service or team level within an organisation, 

such as disaster recovery risks, health and safety risks or in risks relating to the care and 
protection of vulnerable clients, but are likewise to be seen as barriers to achieving operational 
outcomes and objectives. Unless effectively managed, such risks can escalate in their nature and 
impact to become much more significant and strategic in their potential impact.  

 
1.3 Harrow Council provides a wide range of services that improve the quality of life for residents, 

support vulnerable people and which enhance community cohesion.  Over the last five years, the 
quality of those services generally has improved from in some areas being one of the worst 
performing Councils in London to being awarded the title of best achieving Council in the UK in 
the Municipal Journal awards in June 2011.  The Council’s key challenge is to maintain and 
advance its excellent services while managing significant reductions in spending power.  The 
Council’s key objectives and priorities are: 

 
• Keeping neighbourhoods clean, green and safe; 
• United and involved communities: a Council that listens and leads; 
• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need; and 
• Supporting our Town Centre, our local shopping centres and business;  

 
These will help decide how to best allocate our reducing resources. We will do this in strong 
collaboration with our partners and our communities demonstrating our vision: Working Together; 
Our Harrow, Our Community. 

 
1.5 Harrow is generally a pleasant and prosperous place to live. Recently, however, there have been 

increases in relative income deprivation and a sharp increase in relative income deprivation of 
children.  Harrow’s economy is dominated by public sector employment but with a high proportion 
of small enterprises, both of which are under great pressure in the current economic 
circumstances.   

 
1.6 The most distinctive aspect of Harrow is the diversity of its population. Harrow is the fifth most 

ethnically diverse place in England and Wales and the most religiously diverse in the entire 
country.  78% of the school population have a non-white British heritage showing that 
demographic change is continuing and will accelerate. The nature and future predictive profile of 
our borough is a changing one.  

 
1.4 In support of the Council’s corporate strategy has been the risk management strategy which has 

evolved to help drive Harrow forward in the knowledge that the key risks we now face, particularly 
financial, savings and efficiencies risks in implementing the strategy, are being effectively 
identified, assessed and managed. 

 
1.7 Effective risk management is also a keystone of effective corporate governance and the 

maintenance of a strong control environment. It is at its most effective as an integral part of the 
Council’s key business processes, particularly its business planning, budgeting and performance 
review processes. Risk management is the process whereby the Council identifies and controls 
the level of risk attached to its business and service activities that could impact upon the 
achievement of our objectives. However, the aim of risk management is not to remove all risks, 
but to understand the nature of risks and to implement controlled, sensible, balanced and cost 

207



Appendix 1 
 

             Risk Management Strategy Version 0.3 Page 2 

effective measures, to manage risk and achieve objectives within each activity and across the 
portfolio of all activities. Risk management is not about being ‘risk averse,’ but about being ‘risk 
aware’ and this awareness will mean that the Council and its leadership team is better able to 
avoid threats and hazards and also take full advantage of opportunities/benefits that arise in the 
course of our business. 

 
1.8 The relationship between risk management and objectives outlined above is shown below in 

Diagram 1:- 
 

Diagram 1: Risk and Objectives  

 
2. THE RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS  
 
2.1 The risk management process underlying this relationship with objectives above is shown in 

Diagram 2 below,  
 

Diagram 2: The Risk Management Process 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 This process ensures that risks are constantly identified evaluated, monitored and managed as 

part of a continuous cycle within the lifetime of the associated activity.  
 

Re
du

ces
 

Leading to 

London Borough of 
Harrow Council 

 
Risk Management 

Strategy 

Me
asu

red
 ag

ain
st 

Management 
Action / Control Performance 

Objectives May threaten RISKS 

Objective  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Communication 
and 

Consultation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Monitoring 

and 
Review 

Risk Assessment 

Risk Treatment/Action 

Risk Evaluation 

Risk Analysis 

Risk Identification 

208



Appendix 1 
 

             Risk Management Strategy Version 0.3 Page 3 

 
 
 
2.3 As mentioned above, risk can also exist at more operational levels as part of the Council’s day to 

day activities and also programmes and project management. At Harrow, and similar to the 
strategic level, this has already been embedded and integrated into the culture of the Council, 
with responsibility assigned to managers and staff responsible for the management of risk as part 
of their individual job profile and performance objectives.  

 
2.4 It is also important to note that risk management is a tool whose benefits and use can extend 

beyond managing risk directly via the operation of risk registers and which can also be used to 
support managers in decision-making in other activities, such as the basis for allocating their 
limited resources, designing business processes and for choosing and prioritising what areas of 
performance are monitored and the level of that monitoring.  All directorates and services within 
the Council are contingent and frequently may not carry the same risk profile and priorities for 
their focus and action in risk terms. 

2.5 In seeking to take action, manage and mitigate its risks the Council will have recourse to a 
number of broad control strategies available to manage those risks. These include:-  

 

• Tolerate: The exposure may be tolerable without any further action being taken. Even if it is 
not tolerable, ability to do anything about some risks may be limited, or the cost of taking any 
action may be disproportionate to the potential benefit gained. In these cases the response 
may be to tolerate the existing level of risk. This option, of course, may be supplemented by 
contingency planning for handling the impacts that will arise if the risk is realised.  

• Treat: By far the greater number of risks will be addressed in this way. The purpose of 
treatment is that whilst continuing within the organisation with the activity giving rise to the 
risk, action (control) is taken constrain the risk to an acceptable level.  

• Transfer: For some risks the best response may be to transfer them. This might be done by 
conventional insurance, or paying a third party to take the risk in another way. If a risk is 
transferred, accountability for the management of the risk remains with the Council.  

• Terminate: Some risks will only be treatable, or containable to acceptable levels, by 
terminating the activity. This option can be particularly important in project management if it 
becomes clear that the projected cost / benefit relationship is in jeopardy.  

• Take the Opportunity: This option is not an alternative to those above; rather it is an option 
that should be considered whenever tolerating, transferring or treating a risk. There are two 
aspects to this. The first is whether or not at the same time as mitigating risk, an opportunity 
arises to exploit positive impact. The second is whether circumstances arise, which, whilst 
not generating threats, offer positive opportunities.  

 
3. OBJECTIVES 
 
3.1 The objectives set for this risk management strategy are to: - 

� Continuously develop the Council’s embedded risk management framework to support 
the achievement of Working Together; Our Harrow, Our Community 

� Clearly state and communicate to all council officers, managers, partners and residents 
their risk management responsibilities  

� Promote risk-awareness and risk management throughout the Council and its partners 
� Ensure where appropriate risks are effectively escalated and escalation is timely 
� Manage the corporate risk function efficiently in resource terms with a focus on the 

customer 
� Manage risk in line with public sector best practice in corporate governance  
� Capture and expand positive risk opportunities  
� Ensure risk management processes are engaging and relevant to all staff  

 
3.2 This risk management strategy draws on recognised best practice guidance in risk management 

in the public sector [such as the Turnbull Report (2005), CIMA and CIPFA guidance] and is 
supplemented by the Risk Management Guide, available on the intranet at 

209



Appendix 1 
 

             Risk Management Strategy Version 0.3 Page 4 

http://harrowhub/info/200193/risk_management/313/risk_management/2 which provides further 
detailed guidance on the Council’s risk management processes. 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES   
 
4.1 Although the corporate risk management framework is set and regularly monitored by Members 

who have ultimate responsibility for it, and the Council Strategic Board (CSB), working in 
conjunction with the Risk, Audit and Fraud (RAF) Division, core delivery of the approved risk 
management framework, and of the above related risk management processes, is led by and 
rests with corporate directors, acting individually and collectively in CSB, and supported by their 
directorate management teams, or equivalent. The corporate risk management function will work 
in collaboration, advice, training, challenge and reporting and monitoring terms only to this 
protocol. 

 
4.2 Furthermore, all staff, managers, members at the Council, as well as our partner organisations, 

have a general responsibility and duty to manage risk as an integral part of their role. 
 
4.3 In addition, specific core risk-related/risk-driven support service activities, such as internal audit, 

health and safety, insurance, emergency business continuity planning, performance management 
and project management all contribute to the overall corporate risk management process. A 
summary overview of responsibilities for risk management at the Council is outlined below:- 

 
  Diagram 3: Overview of Risk Management Responsibilities 

 
 
 
RISK 
STRATEGY   
ACTIVITY  
 
                                
                                COUNCIL  
                           GROUP/TEAM/ 
                                 OFFICER             

De
ve

lop
 th

e C
orp

ora
te 

Ris
k 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Str

ate
gy

  

Ag
ree

  th
e C

orp
ora

te 
Ris

k 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Str
ate

gy
  

Pr
ov

ide
 Ad

vic
e, 

Tra
ini

ng
 

an
d S

up
po

rt o
n t

he
 

Str
ate

gy
  

Im
ple

me
nt 

the
 St

rat
eg

y 

Sh
are

 ex
pe

rie
nc

e o
f ri

sk
 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
iss

ue
s  

Re
vie

w 
the

 ef
fec

tiv
en

es
s o

f 
the

 St
rat

eg
y  

Cabinet   �    � 
GARM Lead Member     � � � 
CSB �   � � � 
Council Risk Champion    �  � � 
Corporate Directors �   � � � 
Directorate DMTs   � � � � 
Hds of Service/Service Managers    � � � � 
Improvement Boards    � �  
Programme & Project Boards     � �  
Council Committees/Boards/Groups    � �  
Partnerships & Large Contracts     �  
GARM   �  � � 
Risk Manager  �  � � � � 
Support Services  �  � � � � 
CRSG & Risk Champions   �  � � 
Council Staff     � �  
Harrow Residents      �  

210



Appendix 1 
 

             Risk Management Strategy Version 0.3 Page 5 

 
 (Model source: CIPFA; Risk Management in the Public Services 2001) 
 
 
4.5 A more detailed breakdown of these responsibilities is attached at Annex A.  
 
4.6 Whilst the management of risk at different management levels within the Council will vary in 

terms of focus and level of formal analysis, in order to ensure further to good practice that “a 
common language is spoken on risk across the organisation” (Turnbull Report 2005), it is 
important that consistency and clarity of risk information is achieved on risk registers.  

 
4.7 For this reason, the mandatory adoption of a standard risk register format or where appropriate a 

risk action plan is required. The standard risk register template, which covers both the corporate 
and directorate risk registers, is maintained on an Excel format, and is provided in the Risk 
Management Guide available on the intranet and is also attached at Annex C. It is to be noted 
that the former strategic risk register is now in the process of being merged into the former 
corporate operational risk register to form a single new unified corporate risk register in the 
standard risk register template. 

 
4.8 Managers, project managers and partners, whilst retaining the ‘core’ information, may adapt the 

standard risk register (for example adding additional fields such as risk category and/or proximity, 
etc), where justified by business or project need. However, more substantive revision to the 
standard risk register format must be referred to the Risk Manager within the RAF Division in the 
Chief Executives directorate, who will advise on the proposed changes and how they fit within the 
Council’s overall risk framework. 

 
5. RISK APPETITE AND DELEGATED RISK APPETITE 
 
5.1 The amount of risk, at the strategic level, the Council’s and its leadership team is willing to take 

on, accept, tolerate or be exposed to, in the pursuit of its objectives, is known as its risk appetite.  
 
5.2 Risk appetite and delegated risk appetite is expressed in terms of boundaries, which give clear 

guidance at each level (strategic, programme, operational and project) on the amount of risk 
exposure they can take before action is necessary. 

 
5.3 The amount of risk that the Council is willing for the programme, operational and project level to 

tolerate is known as the delegated risk appetite (also known as risk tolerance level - the threshold 
level of risk exposure).  

 
5.4 The Council maintains an effective control framework designed to manage risks. Any risks that 

are an unacceptable exposure to the Council are mitigated as far as possible. Where a proposed 
activity or venture has a residual risk that is considered unacceptable and there is no means of 
reducing the risk to an acceptable level the activity may be rejected. However there may be 
occasions where there is a statutory obligation to undertake the activity despite the risk exposure. 
There will also be occasions where, in entrepreneurial terms, it will be appropriate to take 
measured levels of risk, in furtherance of the Council’s business and service objectives. Where it 
is feasible and cost effective to do so, the financial impact of risks may be minimised by 
insurance or other third party indemnities. 

 
5.5 Risk appetite is normally reviewed annually, is not static and can be adjusted by the Cabinet with 

supporting advice from the Corporate Strategic Board (CSB).  
+ 
5.6 In deciding the risk appetite and delegated risk appetite (risk tolerance levels), Cabinet considers: 
 

• Environmental and wider macro-economic factors, including current government required 
reductions in budgetary spending     

• The Council’s funding levels and its overall capacity to bear risk. 

211



Appendix 1 
 

             Risk Management Strategy Version 0.3 Page 6 

• The areas/directorates within the Council that have an expertise and skill-set for taking risk 
and vice versa. 

• The amount of risk that is acceptable (what risk could be justified if it actually happened). 
 

5.7 The Cabinet has set the Council’s risk appetite and delegated risk appetite as C2+ (significant 
likelihood x critical impact). This means than any risks with a risk register risk ranking of C2 or 
more (red risks-see Risk Escalation and Reporting section below) must be escalated to the next 
management level for action and discussion, as part of normal risk reporting, e.g. department to 
division, division to directorate, improvement boards to directorate, project risks to project or 
programme boards.   

 
6. RISK ESCALATION AND REPORTING 
 

Risk Escalation 
 
6.1 A key element to effective risk management is on-going vigilance and the communication and 

escalation of risk information to the appropriate management level. The framework for the 
reporting and escalation of risk within the Council is based on the organisational structure and 
normal reporting lines and which also recognises the increasing role of Harrow’s residents. 
Programmes and projects can ensure communication by reporting and escalating risks to their 
respective Boards/Committees through the appropriate channels.  

 
6.2 Risk escalation is based on the following key principles:  

• Escalation needs to be managed. It is not sufficient to simply escalate a risk to the next 
management level. It is important that when a risk is escalated, it is reassessed as to its 
impact on the achievement of objectives at that next level.  

• All Directors, managers, staff and residents are empowered to escalate. Importantly, 
escalation should not be not seen as a failure. Escalation is a tool to ensure that risks that 
cannot be resolved at one level are relayed to thee next level to ensure that every effort is 
made to mitigate the risk.  

• Escalation needs to be timely. It is important that risks are escalated early and in good time 
to affect a resolution.  

• Escalation should be documented. It is important that all risks are recorded, where 
appropriate, in risk registers or risk action plans. Any verbal escalation should be followed up 
with written or email documentation detailing the risk and retained. 

 
6.3 Once escalated, the next management level becomes alerted to the risk, reassesses the risk as 

to its impact on the achievement of objectives at that next level and takes appropriate action. This 
may mean: 

• managing the risk directly 
• changing the activity; or  
• adjusting the level of risk they judge suitable for the level below to manage.  

 
6.4 When escalating risk, the impact may be lower, due to the wider range of priorities and high level 

objectives considered. Alternately, the risk may be incorporated into an existing risk if it is related 
to that risk, or the controls in place to treat the risk would also mitigate / treat the escalated risk. 
Risk escalation is thus an important tool for ensuring that risks are known and understood by the 
council officers with the authority to appropriately manage them.  

 
6.5 Escalating risk does not always delegate the management of risk upwards. Risks can sometimes 

be de-escalated if management feel there are appropriate resources to mitigate the risk at the 
lower level. Generally, this follows discussion and agreement between Managers/Directors in 
relation to the appropriate level of decision making to manage the risk. The escalation and de-
escalation of risk involves discussion and agreement between Managers/Directors in relation to 
the appropriate level of decision making to manage the risk.  

 
6.6 Once evaluated and assessed by the appropriate managers or risk owner, any risks with a risk 

register risk ranking of C2 or more (ie red risks) must be escalated to the next management level 
212



Appendix 1 
 

             Risk Management Strategy Version 0.3 Page 7 

for discussion, as part of normal risk reporting, e.g. department to division, division to directorate, 
improvement boards to directorate, project risks to project or programme boards.   

 
6.7 Further detailed guidance for officers on assessing and evaluating risks can be found in the Risk 

Management Guide available on the intranet. 
 
 
Risk Reporting 

 
6.8 On a quarterly basis each corporate director, or duly delegated officer, updates any corporate 

risks owned by them, or their directorate, which are stated on the corporate risk register, 
including newly emergent risks. This occurs via one-to-one meetings with the Risk Manager just 
prior to the Performance Morning meetings of CSB where the above corporate risks are 
collectively discussed.  

 
6.9 Normally, only the corporate risk register, containing only corporate risks, is reported quarterly to 

CSB. However, any corporate director can request that any other risk, eg corporate, directorate, 
project or partnership risk, or any risk matter, or risk analyses, can be discussed or asked for in a 
CSB context.  

 
6.10 In addition, a high-level strategic summary report is currently being developed, which will report 

to CSB, alongside the corporate risk register on quarterly basis, the overall risk position, trend 
and exposure of corporate risks. An in principle representation of this report is attached at Annex 
D. The purchase and use of a software system to produce this and similar risk reports is also 
currently being explored by the Risk Audit and Fraud section.  

 
6.11 In seeking to designate a risk corporate in nature, and therefore to be monitored and reported to 

CSB for action, officers should consider a number of factors. For example:- 
 

• Is the risk concerned corporate and cross-cutting in nature (ie a strategic risk)  
• Is the risk concerned a business-critical risk fully justified in business planning, budgetary 

process and service delivery terms 
• If a directorate risk, is it otherwise sufficiently serious to be discussed at CSB level  
• Is it appropriate for the risk, or would it require, or benefit from, being discussed in the 

collective forum of CSB, eg CSB agreed and collective action is necessary for any 
mitigation. 

• Is the risk free standing or should it be allied or aggregated into an existing risk? 
• Does the risk increase the significance and threat of other risks or otherwise significantly 

or disproportionately increase the cumulative level of risk being taken by the Council  
• Is the risk an emerging corporate risk (ie a new risk not yet captured in the corporate risk 

register) in the above terms 
 
6.12 t is important to ensure that the number of risks being discussed at CSB is sufficiently few (but 

critical in risk terms) to avoid information overload on risk and to ensure CSB discussion and 
action is sufficiently strategic and targeted where it is most needed. 

 
6.13 t is expected also that at directorate level, the directorate risk register, with an emphasis on red 

risks, will be reported quarterly and monitored for action by the directorate DMT, or equivalent, 
and this will often be in the forum of Improvement Board meetings and reporting.   

 
6.14 Directorates should also seek to apply the same principles outlined above but in directorate 

terms, so that the following factors are considered in designating a risk directorate in nature:-  
 

• Is the risk concerned a business-critical risk to the directorate fully justified in business 
planning, budgetary process and service delivery terms 

• If a divisional or service risk, is it sufficiently significant to be discussed at DMT level  

213



Appendix 1 
 

             Risk Management Strategy Version 0.3 Page 8 

• If a divisional or service risk, does it require, or would it benefit from, being discussed in 
the collective forum of DMT, eg DMT agreed and collective action is necessary for any 
mitigation. 

• Is the risk free standing or should it be allied or aggregated into an existing risk? 
• Does the risk increase the significance and threat of other risks or otherwise significantly 

or disproportionately increase the cumulative level of risk being taken by the Council 
• Is the risk an emerging directorate risk (ie a new risk not yet captured in the directorate 

risk register) in the above terms 
 
6.15 Likewise it is important to ensure that the number of risks being reported to DMT is sufficiently 

few (but critical in risk terms) to avoid information overload on risk and to ensure DMT discussion 
and action is sufficiently strategic and is targeted where it is most needed. 

 
6.16 This principle should also be extended to reporting risks within a programme/project framework, 

including on the VERTO system, by reference to how critical/key it is to the achievement of 
project outcomes and objectives. Guidance on project risk management is provided in the Harrow 
Council Project Management guide on the intranet at 
http://harrowhub/downloads/file/2319/project_management_toolkit.   

 
6.17 It is expected that divisional directors will maintain divisional risk registers relating to their 

functions/services and that these are reviewed and updated at least on a quarterly basis. The 
maintenance of team/departmental risk registers on the same basis by service managers whilst 
good practice is optional. 

 
6.18 It is to be noted that notwithstanding these arrangements, and in conjunction with the Assistant 

Chief Executive and the RAF Divisional Director, that any significant or serious risk, or risk 
related issue, demanding immediate attention or action, will be “flash reported” to relevant and 
responsible officers of the Council.   

 
6.19 In addition to the above, a range of meetings/forums involving deliberative groups are currently 

held within the Council that provide the opportunity for regular discussion of risks, including 
directorate, cross-cutting risks and risks with partners (internal and external). These include the 
Corporate Leadership Group and Commissioning Panels.  

 
6.20 Corporate directors, directors, divisional directors, service managers and programme/project 

managers are therefore responsible for ensuring that processes are in place to provide 
opportunities to regularly discuss and capture those risks, cross cutting risks and risks with 
partners that impact upon objectives. At a minimum, risks should be discussed and formally 
documented on a quarterly basis.  

 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT RESOURCE  
 
7.1 Sufficient resources are devoted to risk management to ensure that it is organisationally effective 

and co-ordinated.  
7.2 At Cabinet level the risk management process is supported and actively promoted by the GARM 

Lead Member as Member Risk Champion of the Council.  The Asst Chief Executive as Council 
Risk Champion acts in support of the above Member Risk Champion by leading, promoting and 
embedding risk management corporately across the Council. 

7.3 The Risk Manager, working in close collaboration with the Internal Audit Services Manager, 
reports to the RAF Divisional Director who reports to the Assistant Chief Executive and is 
supported centrally by colleagues from the Risk, Audit and Fraud team. 

7.4 At Directorate level the risk management process is supported and actively promoted by a 
network of directorate and divisional risk champions who meet collectively as the Corporate Risk 
Steering Group (CRSG) chaired by the Asst Chief Executive as Council Risk Champion. The 
group consists of representatives from across the Council who meet to co-ordinate, network and 
share experience on risk management issues. The Group also exercises a review and challenge 
function on corporate risks. Membership reflects the risk profile of the Council and the strategic, 

214



Appendix 1 
 

             Risk Management Strategy Version 0.3 Page 9 

operational and risk management context within which the Council operates.  
7.5 CRSG actively champion risk management as a key activity and responsibility of all staff in the 

Council and assist the Council in embedding and enhancing the risk management process.  It 
also provides challenge on the robustness of the corporate risk register and the adequacy of 
controls to mitigate the risk.  

7.6 Other specialist risk-related disciplines such health and safety, insurance, emergency & business 
continuity planning and performance management all closely contribute to the council’s risk 
management process. 

 
 
8. OWNERSHIP AND RESPONSIBILITY FOR RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
8.1 It is important that Risk Management is integrated into the culture of the Council and led and 

owned at executive member level, senior management, with responsibility for the management of 
risk further delegated and assigned to individual council managers and staff as part of their 
individual job profile and performance objectives. 

8.2 The Cabinet acting in conjunction with the GARM Lead Member are responsible for the 
agreement and approval of policies and plans relating to risk management and have ultimate 
responsibility for it.  

8.3 The Governance, Audit and Risk Committee (GARM), further to good corporate governance 
practice, supports and advises the Cabinet by monitoring and annually reviewing the Council’s 
risk management arrangements.  

 
8.4 The Corporate Strategic Board (CSB), comprised of the Chief Executive and Corporate Directors, 

is responsible for considering the key finance and performance standing of the Council, including 
strategic and corporate operational risks. 

  
8.5 The Divisional Director of Risk, Audit and Fraud (RAF) reports directly to the Assistant Chief 

Executive and has direct operational responsibility for the management of the corporate risk 
management function as part of the RAF Division. The RAF Division provides expertise/specialist 
support and advice to the Council relating to corporate risk management and its closely related 
activities, particularly the internal audit function, and also including health and safety, business 
continuity/emergency planning, corporate anti-fraud and information governance. 

 
8.6 The Risk Manager reports to the RAF Divisional Director and is responsible for ensuring that the 

Council, its Directorates, services and staff are supported and engaged in the development, 
implementation and review of the Council’s risk management strategy framework.  

 
8.7 The Corporate Risk Steering Group (CRSG) support and review the risk management strategy 

and related guidance as detailed in its terms of reference. As mentioned above, CRSG is chaired 
by the Assistant Chief Executive and facilitated by the Risk Manager and its membership 
comprises a representative cross-section of staff with dedicated and specialist risk 
responsibilities and who share experience at the Council on risk management.  

 
 8.8 A full list of the formal and specific risk management roles and responsibilities are provided at 

Annex A. Notwithstanding this, all members, managers and staff at the Council have an indirect, 
if not a direct responsibility, to manage risk as an integral part of their role so as risk awareness 
and management is integral to the culture of the Council. 

  
9. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT  
 
9.1 The effectiveness of the risk management function is reviewed on an on-going basis by CSB and 

also as outlined above its effectiveness is annually appraised and evaluated by GARM, who also 
closely monitor and challenge activities and progress in-year on a quarterly basis. Risk 
management is also regularly audited against public sector best practice by internal audit.  

 

215



Appendix 1 
 

             Risk Management Strategy Version 0.3 Page 10 

9.2 The views of key stakeholders and internal customers in the risk management function, 
particularly corporate directors and the CRSG, are regularly sought. The risk management 
process will be continuously improved in line with this feedback.  

 
10. RISK MANAGEMENT SUPPORT, GUIDANCE AND TRAINING  
 
10.1 This strategy and supporting risk management guidance, templates and tools is available on the 

Council’s intranet.  
 
 
 
 
 General Support 
 
10.2 Support on the content of this strategy and the Risk Management Framework is available 

through directorate Risk Champions and/or the Corporate Risk Manager. Contact details are 
available on the Council’s intranet. Specialist support and advice on risks around health & 
safety, information management, fraud, and business continuity/emergency planning, including 
the transfer of risk through insurance arrangements and risk-based audits/reviews is available 
from the RAF Division. Contact details are available on the Council’s intranet. 

 
 
 Training Events / Materials 
 
10.4 The RAF Division delivers management training courses and materials to assist and support staff 

in risk management across the Council. Information on these courses and materials is available 
from the Risk Manager. Risk management courses are accessed via the Harrow Council e-
Learning Portal at http://www.learningpool.com/harrow/, or via Coursebooker at 
https://cb.learndev.ad.capita.co.uk/HarrowSSL/desktopdefault.aspx.  

 

11. REVIEW AND CONTROL 
 
10.1 This strategy will be subject to regular review (at least annually) with any changes reflected in 

related guidance, training and tools as appropriate,  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

216



Appendix 1 
 

             Risk Management Strategy Version 0.3 Page 11 

 
Detailed Risk Management Responsibilities                                       Annex A 
 

Position Role / Responsibilities 
Cabinet  • Formally and annually approve the Council’s Risk Management Strategy 

• Provide leadership on and champion risk management  
• Consider the strategic risks associated with the decisions taken. 
• Monitor the Council’s risk management arrangements, including via the 
Council’s strategic performance and audit reports.  

• Assess risks in Cabinet reports and provide challenge, where necessary. 
GARM Lead 
Member 

• Promote, support and co-ordinate risk management at Member level ensuring a 
positive attitude toward the understanding and treatment of risk at the Council  

CSB • Develop, implement and review the Council’s risk management strategy  
• Seek assurance at least annually that all risks comprising barriers to 
achievement of the Council’s strategic objectives [the Corporate Plan] have 
been identified and accurately assessed and are being managed  

• Seek assurance at least annually that all directorates are appropriately 
complying with the Council’s risk management policies and framework  

 
 
Corporate 
Directors  

• Take personal responsibility for managing risk, including both negative threat 
risks and positive entrepreneurial/opportunity risks  

• Manage the strategic risks associated with their directorates, including those 
crossing business, service or directorate boundaries  

• Escalate and report risks, as appropriate, quarterly for consideration and action 
by CSB and the corporate risk management function   

• Ensure that a formal risk assessment is conducted each year for their 
directorate (as part of the business and budget planning process) and any risks 
that impact upon the achievement of objectives are captured  

• As required, as a part of their delegated authority, manage the risks associated 
with their budget allocation and Service Plan 

• Seek assurance that a risk-aware culture is appropriately and thoroughly 
embedded in their directorate and all staff 

• Ensure arrangements are in place for partnership and contract activities where 
risks are shared, so that: risks are identified and captured and joint risk registers 
are in place and risks are regularly monitored and risk ownership allocated 

• Nominate and provide advice to a directorate risk champion(s) on key risks to 
the Directorate’s objectives for reporting to Improvement Boards  

• Review their Directorate risk register(s) each quarter 
• Comply with the Council’s strategy, policies and framework on risk 

Directorate 
Management 
Teams, or 
Equivalent  

• Collectively support and contribute to their Corporate Director and risk 
champion(s) discharge of their risk management responsibilities  

• Make arrangements for continuing to embed risk management and a risk aware 
culture throughout their respective directorates 

• Ensure risk is regularly reported (at least quarterly) to their Corporate Director 
and at Improvement Boards  

• Maintain and review directorate rate risk register(s) on a quarterly basis 
Hds of Service 
& Service 
Managers  

• Accept responsibility for managing risk as a core managerial competency  
• Manage the risks associated with their area, including those crossing area 
boundaries within their Directorate and their delegated budget allocation and 
service plan responsibilities 

• Ensure a risk register is in place for any business or project related risks and the 
risk registers are reviewed at least quarterly 

• Compliance with risk policies and ensure staff are trained in risk management  
• Encourage staff to raise risks and send a message to staff that escalated risks 

217



Appendix 1 
 

             Risk Management Strategy Version 0.3 Page 12 

Position Role / Responsibilities 
will be evaluated and acted upon if necessary 

• Promptly advise senior managers of significant identified risks 
 

Position Role / Responsibilities 
Improvement 
Boards 

• Review and discuss risk exception reporting 
• Discuss and review Directorate risk register(s), as necessary 
• Where appropriate, escalate risks for discussion and consideration by CSB for 
inclusion on the Strategic or Corporate Operational Risk Register. 

Programme and 
Project Boards  

• Review and update risk registers/action plans.  
• Escalate any risks that exceed the delegated risk appetite to the next level. 
• Provide a copy of the updated risk register/action plan to the Risk Manager. 

Other Council 
Boards, Panels, 
Steering Groups 
& Committees 

• Produce a written Terms of Reference which requires risks to achieving 
Board/Committee/Panel/Group objectives, or opportunities to accelerating or 
enhancing achievement, to be identified, assessed, managed and reported by 
the Board/Committee/Panel/Group 

GARM  • Monitor, advise and report to Cabinet, at least annually, on the effectiveness of 
the Council’s overall risk management framework and arrangements  

• Quarterly review the Council’s key of risks to ensure these are being adequately 
managed  

Organisational 
Partners  

• Ensure that appropriate arrangements are in place to manage partnership 
related risks.  

• Actively manage risks within the partnership and participating in the regular 
update and maintenance of a joint partnership risk register.  

• Report on risk management issues to the respective partnership board. 
• Show a clear link between objectives and outcomes that is customer focused. 

Risk Manager  • Engage, monitor and challenge in on-going terms the Council and its staff on 
key risk management issues, 

• Oversee, monitor and report compliance with the Councils risk management 
framework and policies  

• Develop the risk management strategy and related guidance, templates 
• Provide tools, training/awareness and materials in support of risk champions 
and council staff 

• Be a central and professional point of contact on risk management, creating 
alliances/liaisons with council staff, corporate directors and directorate risk 
champions to support them in their risk roles  

• Lead on quarterly corporate reporting of risk management  to CSB 
• Undertake ad hoc risk assessments 

Council Risk 
Champion  

• Promote, support and co-ordinate risk management across all levels of the 
Council ensuring a positive attitude, understanding and treatment of risk 

Risk Champions  • Promote, support and co-ordinate risk management within their Directorate 
including providing guidance to staff across within their Directorate 

• Participate in the Corporate Risk Steering Group 
• Maintain hold their respective Directorate risks registers (commissioning and 
collating contributions from all parts of their business)  

• Provide quarterly risk reports to the appropriate Improvement Boards  
• Provide challenge on the content of Directorate risk register and scrutinise the 
effectiveness of controls (in place, planned or underway) to mitigate risks and 
enable value adding feedback to Risk Owners and Risk Control Owners  

• Attend risk related training/awareness, as required 
• Provide copies of their risk registers to the Risk Manager each quarter 

All Council 
Officers 

• Raise/escalate any risks identified or considered are not being sufficiently 
addressed or directly to the appropriate Directorate Risk Champion 

218



Appendix 1 
 

             Risk Management Strategy Version 0.3 Page 13 

Position Role / Responsibilities 
• Maintain vigilance and a risk-aware attitude of mind at all times 

Residents  • Raise any risk concerns considered not being sufficiently addressed by the 
Council,  via your local statutory, residents, activity or consultative group(s), or 
through your councillor or other elected representative  

• Maintain vigilance and a risk-aware attitude of mind at all times 
 
  

219



Appendix 1 
 

             Risk Management Strategy Version 0.3 Page 14 

  Risk Reporting Cycle       Annex B 
    

Author  Risk Report/Output/Analysis  Distribution   Frequency 
Cabinet  Approval of Risk Management 

Strategy  
CSB Annual  

Risk Manager  As required, facilitate a 
formal Corporate Risk 
Assessment (CSB level) and 
Operational Risk 
Assessments (at the 
Directorate, Divisional and 
Team levels as part of the 
annual business and budget 
planning process. 

CSB Annual  

Chief Executive  Sign off the Corporate Risk 
Register. 
Review and approve the 
Annual Governance 
Statement (AGS) 

CSB, Risk Manager, 
GARM 

Annual  

GARM  Evaluation of Risk 
Management Arrangements  
Approve Draft (risk-based) 
Internal Audit Plan 
Approve Final AGS 

Cabinet, CSB Annual  

Corporate Governance Group 
and Internal Audit 

Approve Draft AGS GARM  Annual  
Corporate Directors/DMTs   Directorate Risk Assessment 

to create directorate Risk 
Register    

DMT, Dir. Heads of 
Service, Risk 
Manager   

Annual  

Improvement Boards Review directorate risk 
registers and escalate any 
issues to CSB 

CSB Quarterly  

Internal Audit Draft (risk-based) Internal 
Audit Plan  
Draft AGS 

GARM Annual  

CSB Review & discuss risk 
exception reporting 
Consider CRSG 
recommendations. 
Review and approve updates 
to the corporate risk register   
Review high-level risk report  
Approve new risks to and/or 
risks to be removed from the 
corporate risk register. 

Corporate Directors, 
Risk Manager, CRSG  

Quarterly 

Corporate 
Directors/DMTs/Improvement 
Boards   

Review & update of Dir. Risk 
Register 
Escalate any risks that 
exceed the corporate and 
delegated risk appetite or 
have a corporate impact to 
CSB for inclusion on 
corporate risk register  

CSB, DMT, Dir. 
Heads of Service, 
Risk Manager   

Quarterly 

Programme/Project Managers Review/ update programme 
and project risk registers and  
Risk reports  

Programme/Project 
Board 

Quarterly & 
Ad Hoc  

220



Appendix 1 
 

             Risk Management Strategy Version 0.3 Page 15 

 
Risk Report/Output/Analysis  Distribution   Frequency 

Internal Audit Provide a full/summary copy 
of corporate risks as 
appropriate 

GARM, Cabinet  Quarterly  

CRSG  Share experience on risk 
Review and challenge of the 
corporate risk register, eg in 
areas of ratings and controls. 
Provide recommendations to 
CSB for update and discussion 
of the corporate risk register 
related issues   

CSB, CRSG, Risk 
Manager  

Quarterly  

Harrow Strategic 
Partnership Board (HSP 
Board) 

Review and discuss risk 
exception reporting 
Review and update the joint 
strategic HSP risk register, 
as necessary. 

Harrow Strategic 
Partnership Board 
(HSP Board) 

Quarterly 

Partnership Development 
& Performance 

Assist Harrow Strategic 
Partnership (HSP) 
Management Groups’ with 
the quarterly update of their 
risk registers. 
Provide quarterly risk 
exception reports on HSP 
Management Group risks to 
HCE. 
Provide a summary/full version 
of HSP Management Groups’ 
risks to HCE, as necessary. 

Harrow Strategic 
Partnership (HSP) 
Management Groups’ 
 
 
 
HCE 
 
 
HCE  

Quarterly  

Harrow Chief Executives 
(HCE) 

Review and discuss HSP 
Management Groups’ risk 
exception reporting. 
 
Discuss and review HSP 
Management Group risk 
registers, as necessary 

Harrow Chief 
Executives (HCE) 

Quarterly 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

221



Appendix 1 
 

             Risk Management Strategy Version 0.3 Page 16 

Standard Risk Register Template                   Annex C 
 

RISK RIGISTER  
 
            

   
Review Date: 
Next Review Date:   
 
Risks 
1.   
2.  
3.  
4.  
5.   
6.  
7. 
8. 
9. 
10. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LIKELIHOOD

A
Very High

B
High

C
Significant

D
Low

E
Very Low

F
Almost 
Impossible

1 
Catastrophi
c Impact / 

Exceptiona
l BenefitIMPACT

4 
Negligible 
Impact / 
Benefit

3 
Marginal 
Impact / 
Minor 

Benefit

2       
Critical 
Impact / 

Major 
Benefit

222



Appendix 1 
 

             Risk Management Strategy Version 0.3 Page 17 

Standard Risk Register Template            Annex C (Cont’d) 
 

Ri
sk

 N
o. 

Ob
jec

tiv
e N

o. 

Risk Description Controls 
(in place and effective) 

Risk 
Rating 
This 
Qtr 
(after 
contro
ls) 

Risk 
Rating 
Last 
Qtr 

Controls  
(underway or planned) 

Control 
Owner(s) 

Target 
Risk 
Rating 

Target 
Risk Date Risk Owner 

Ris
k (

Ev
ent

) 

 

Ca
use

(s)
 

 

Fu
rth

er 
ac

tio
ns 

   

Co
nse

qu
en

ce(
s) 

 

   

Co
nti

ng
en

cie
s 

 

 
 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

223



Appendix 1 
 

             Risk Management Strategy Version 0.3 Page 18 

High-Level Strategic Summary Report                                                                                                      Annex D 
CSB HIGH LEVEL SUMMARY REPORT  - [WIP EXTRACT/SAMPLE] 
Risk 
No 

Key Risk  Risk 
Rating 

Control 
Strategy 

Key Controls   Control 
Progress 

Control 
Indicator  

COR 
18 

Disruption to services to 
children due to CS 
directorate reorganisation 

B2 Treat Robust project management & casework operational continuity plan in place 
Extensive pre-consultation on reorganisation model 
Fundamental of the model is that children will not be placed at risk 
Reorganisation roll-out is piloted/phased to reduce risk and disruption  
Planning/synchronization with corporate timetable and support 
Further consultation, e g with partners  

75% 
complete   

 

COR 
5 

Successful legal challenge 
of a Council decision 

B2 Treat  Legal review & clearance of Member reports. Monitoring officer 
File reviews. Voluntary transparency notices  
Legal training for DMTs and MDP in relation to decision-making.  
Legal input into projects. Procurement & contract management strategy  

65% 
complete  

 

SRR 2 Failure to deliver a 
balanced budget and 
medium term financial plan 

Treat  Rigorous budget monitoring and reporting 
Challenge panels & 3 year financial plan (revenue and capital) 
Savings targets (with sanctions if necessary) set for all directorates 
Capital Forum & capital overspend improvement plan 
Member involvement throughout budget process. Clear Comms. Strategy 

65% 
complete 

SRR 4 
 

Ineffective Partnership 
working  

B2 
 
 
 

 
 
C2 Treat  Health & Well-Being & Clinical Commissioning Boards .Review of HSP Mgm. 

Groups.  
Regular HCE Group meetings & Updated HSP Governance Handbook 
Joint working PCT/LBH, BD4R , police. Sustainable Community Strategy 

60% 
complete  

 

SRR 9 Damage to council 
reputation  

C2 Treat  Whistle-blowing policy. Member’s Code of Conduct & Member Development  
Communications Strategy, Consultation Strategy 
Media training for senior members, chief officers and key staff 
Communications Team Business Continuity Plan.  
Branding guidelines & templates, fact sheets  
Liaison and partnerships with community and volunteer groups. 
Corporate Balanced Scorecard  & involvement Tracker 

80% 
complete  

 

 
RISK INDICATOR  CONTROL INDICATOR 
 Risk Increasing  No Progress On Controls (or No Controls)  
 Risk No Change  Progress Made on Control Implementation   
 Risk Reducing  All Controls Implemented  

224



Appendix 1 
 

             Risk Management Strategy Version 0.3 Page 19 

 

225



226

This page is intentionally left blank



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\4\4\AI00073444\$fxgaupws.doc 

REPORT FOR: 
 

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT & 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 
 

6 September 2011  

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT – Civil 
Contingencies Team 
(Emergency Planning & 
Business Continuity) Activity 
Update Report  

Responsible Officer: 
 

Tom Whiting, Assistant Chief Executive  
 

Exempt: 
 

No but with Part II Appendices. 
Appendices 2-4 to the report is exempt. 
The report contains information relating 
to paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 
12A to the Local Government Act 1972 
(as amended) as it contains information 
relating to the financial and business 
affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that 
information)  
 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix 1: Governance Audit and 
Risk Management Committee -  
Emergency Planning Update (28 June 
2011)   
Appendix 2: Business Continuity, 
Telephone Cascade Test (23 Nov 
2010) (Exempt)  
Appendix 3: Exercise Brisbane, Briefing 
Note (7 July 2011) (Exempt) 
Appendix 4: CSB For Information 
Report, Bomb Threat (27 July 2011) 
(Exempt) 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 16 
Pages 227 to 238 

227



Section 1 – Summary 
 
 
This report sets out the recent activity of the Civil Contingencies Team, which 
includes Emergency Planning, Business Continuity and Civil Protection, as 
defined by the Civil Contingencies Act 2004.  
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 
Section 2 – Report 
 
Introduction  
 
The Civil Contingencies Team, also known colloquially as the “Emergency 
Planning Team”, is one of six distinct teams that sit within the Risk, Audit & 
Fraud Division of the council.   
 
The Civil Contingencies Team is a small, but effective unit of three staff.  The 
team provide a corporate service delivering Emergency Planning, Business 
Continuity, and Civil Protection, as defined by the Civil Contingencies Act 
2004; and is the Counter Terror link with the Police Service and HM 
Government.   
 
This report will provide an activity update on each of these areas, and in 
particular Business Continuity, as requested at the last GARMC meeting on 
28th June 2011.   
 
 
Business Continuity   
 
Background and process  
 
The council’s Business Continuity plans and ethos are firmly embedded in the 
council.  In order to explain the current issues, risks, and deliverability, it is 
useful to explain the background and process that led us here.   
 
The council’s approach to Business Continuity was based on the British 
Standard BS25999 ‘bottom – up’ process.  The ‘bottom – up’ process began 
in 2006, with Business Continuity workshops being delivered to service 
managers (and similar grades) to identify and classify the council’s essential 
and critical services.  Over 130 key service areas were identified.   
 
During 2007, Business Continuity training sessions were held with divisional 
directors (and similar grades) to develop Business Continuity plans for the key 
service areas within their divisions.  From these Business Continuity plans, 
key infrastructure and IT requirements were identified.   
 
In 2008, table top exercises were held to simulate a major incident occurring, 
such as fire, flood or explosion; and to practice the response of individual 
departments, to see if their Business Continuity plans were viable, and to test 
the corporate response to infrastructure and IT demands.  The key learning 

228



point identified was the dependency on IT, and in particular the 34 key IT 
applications, out of the council’s 200 plus legacy IT applications.   
 
During 2009, the 34 key IT applications that had been identified were taken 
into account as part of the IT Disaster Recovery project, and the wider ‘LBH 
Anywhere’ proposal.  This was going to provide a credible Business 
Continuity response to a major incident occurring.   
 
The council now has Business Continuity plans for all its key 37 departments.  
These were reviewed, refined and tested at director level.  The departmental 
Business Continuity plans now feed into a corporate Business Continuity plan, 
an overarching plan for the whole council.  The end had been reached to the 
‘bottom – up’ process.   
 
As part of the corporate Business Continuity plan, arrangements were made 
for key staff to be deployed to a remote location, in the event of a major 
incident occurring at the civic centre complex.  These key staff were identified 
through a series of table top exercises: 280 key staff were identified in total, 
with 150 being allocated seats at the remote site known as ‘relocators’, and 
130 being expected to work from home or another location being known as 
‘isolators’.  This plan was physically tested during a live exercise in 2010, with 
key managers driving to the remote site and setting up as if dealing with a real 
incident.   
 
Risks and weaknesses   
 
One of the key dependencies of the overarching business continuity plan is 
the provision of IT disaster recovery (DR) which has been identified through 
workstreams which commenced in 2009. 
 
 There are already some arrangements in place to meet this requirement 
(including an annual DR test) and a comprehensive range of improvements 
have been developed to ensure resilience and recovery capabilities as part of 
the new Capita IT contract. 
 
One of the main projects to support this is the migration of the council’s IT 
applications to the Capita West Malling site, which is due to commence in 
September on a phased programme which will be completed in April 2012. 
 
There is a continuing risk until this project is complete although the wider 
business continuity plan takes this into account and the risk is no greater than 
it has been historically over a number of years. 
 
Deliverability of the plans   
 
The council’s corporate Business Continuity plan and 37 departmental 
Business Continuity plans are tested and reviewed on an annual basis.  The 
plans are workable and are amended to reflect any staff or structural changes.   
 
As the improvements in IT DR capability are delivered this will significantly 
enhance business continuity resilience across all council services. 
 
 

229



HR issues   
 
The council’s 37 departmental Business Continuity plans take into account 
three generic issues to plan for: non-availability of ICT, denial of access to the 
building, and reduced staff attendance.   
 
Reduced staff attendance is the main HR issue that Business Continuity 
planning takes into account.  This planning takes place because lower staff 
attendance could happen for a number of reasons, e.g. severe weather, travel 
disruption or influenza pandemic.  During the recent influenza pandemic 
during 2009, extensive planning was conducted with managers and HR to 
ensure Business Continuity plans were in place to deal with staff absence 
rates of 25% and 40%.   
 
Communications issues   
 
The main communications issue during a Business Continuity incident is the 
ability to communicate with all staff in a timely and effective manner.  During a 
major incident we may not have access to the building or be able to use ICT, 
so Business Continuity plans have been developed and tested to ensure that 
key messages can be given to staff.   
 
Each manager of a service has as part of their Business Continuity 
arrangements, a staff contact list, including personal and home telephone 
numbers.  These arrangements were made in consultation with HR and the 
trade unions, to ensure that these contact details were only used in an 
emergency or during the annual test.   
 
We test these communications arrangements each year as part of the 
Business Continuity Phone Cascade Test in November.  The test is carried 
out of hours on a non-specified date.  We initiate the test by contacting 
Corporate Directors, who in turn call their Divisional Directors, who call their 
Service Managers, who then contact their staff members.   
 
For the past two years we have included the Leader of the Council, Group 
Leaders, and their Deputies, so that elected members are included in the 
process; so make sure Democratic Services have your up to date contact 
details.    
 
Disaster Recovery   
 
As mentioned before, this is our biggest area of concern.  All the work has 
been done to identify which IT applications are critical and the timescale that 
they are required to be reinstated.  The decision to outsource took longer to 
bring about which in turn affected the decision on how to deliver the IT 
Disaster Recovery arrangements.    
 
Emergency Planning   
 
Since our last report to GARMC on 28th June 2011, we organised and hosted 
our annual Emergency Planning training exercise, ‘Exercise Brisbane’, at 
Churchill Place.  Exercise Brisbane was held on the 7th of July, with over 50 
officers from the police, fire, ambulance, health service, health protection, red 

230



cross and Harrow Council in attendance.  The main objective was to practise 
our resilience work with multi-agency partners.   
 
The scenario involved a local fire, with acetylene cylinders, necessitating the 
evacuation of local residents to a council run temporary ‘Rest Centre’.  A rest 
centre was set up at Churchill Place where council Emergency Response 
Officers and volunteers practised their drills in registering displaced people, 
making provision for their needs, providing refreshments and arranging for 
their onward accommodation.  The day went well, with Michael Lockwood 
sending a personal thank you to our team.     
 
On the 14th of July, we participated in the West London Sub Regional 
Resilience Forum’s Major Accident Pipelines Emergency Plan Exercise.  This 
was hosted by the London Borough of Hillingdon and attended by multi-
agency partners including the police, fire, ambulance, health service, health 
protections, red cross and West London council officers.   
 
For your diaries, in December, we will be delivering annual training to Elected 
Members on their role during a major incident, as part of the Member 
Development Programme.  This is something members have asked for, 
although three members attended in 2009 and ten members in 2010.   
 
This year it will be held on the evening of Thursday 8th December 2011, 
starting at 7:00pm, in the Members Lounge.  Please put this date in your diary 
and encourage your colleagues to attend.  Members have an important role to 
play during a major incident, and it is important that you receive your annual 
refresher training.    
 
 
Civil Protection   
 
Since our last report to GARMC on 28th June 2011, a bomb threat was made 
and subsequent evacuation of the civic centre carried out.  On the afternoon 
of Tuesday 19th July 2011, a bomb threat was made to the Civic Centre.  The 
call was received in Access Harrow, Security was informed and the Police 
called.   
 
The civic site was evacuated and a cordon placed around the site.  The Bomb 
Squad attended from Brixton.  The all clear was given by the Police and staff 
returned to the building.  Facilities Management invoked the evacuation 
procedure, but there was some initial confusion amongst some staff.   
 
Overall the incident was handled well as all staff were evacuated.  However, 
there were some key learning points to improve our future response.  CSB 
requested us to write a report on the incident and key learning points.  
Following this report to CSB we are now assisting Facilities Management in 
improving their evacuation procedure.  The Assistant Chief Executive has 
been keeping the Leader of the Council informed of the developments.   
 
We have been assisting the Chief Executive during the ‘London Riots’ that 
started on 6th August 2011, by attending strategic partnership meetings with 
the Leader of the Council and opposition Group Leader, and also tactical 

231



deployment meetings with the Police and key council services, during this 
period of public disorder.   

232



 
Section 3 – Further Information 
 
There will be further update reports every 6 to 12 months, as and when 
requested by GARMC.   
 
Section 4 – Financial Implications 
 
None   
 
Section 5 – Corporate Priorities  
 
Keeping neighbourhoods clean, green and safe   
 
The Civil Contingencies Team helps the council keep neighbourhoods and the 
borough as a whole safe, by developing, exercising and reviewing: 
emergency plans, business continuity arrangements, and assisting the 
emergency services in civil protection.   
 
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Steve Tingle  X  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 8 Aug 2011 

   
 
Section 6 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Kan Grover, Service Manager – Civil Contingencies (Emergency 
Planning & Business Continuity)  
020 8420 9319    kan.grover@harrow.gov.uk  
 
 
Background Papers:  None 
 
 

233



234

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

 1 

GARMC  
 

28th June 2011 
 

Emergency Planning Update  
 
 
1. Key work achieved January to June 2011     
 
1.1 The Emergency Planning team is a small, but effective unit of three staff.  The team 

provide a corporate service delivering Emergency Planning, Business Continuity Planning, 
Civil Protection as defined by the Civil Contingencies Act 2004, and is the Counter Terror 
Link with the Police Service and HM Government.   

 
1.2 In January, the Emergency Planning (EP) team implemented a formalised training 

programme for the council’s Emergency Response Officers (ERO).  The council’s EROs 
are middle managers who have ‘volunteered’ to take on extra duties in the event of a 
major incident or disaster occurring.  The EP team conduct monthly training sessions 
covering the four core ERO subjects of:  

a) Borough Emergency Control Centre (BECC) procedure   
b) Local Authority Liaison Officer (LALO) role   
c) Rest Centre (RC) operation   
d) Airwave Radio and Voice Procedure   

The training has been well received by the EROs with high attendance rates.   
 
1.3 We participated in the Cabinet Office’s Civil Contingencies Act Enhancement Programme 

Consultation.  This included the Government’s proposals on restructuring the UK 
Resilience Framework, with major changes to the regional, sub-regional and local 
arrangements.  The final structural changes are due to be announced by Ministers.   

 
1.4 We participated in the London Human Infectious Diseases Framework Validation.  This 

involved working with health sector colleagues both locally and regionally, looking at the 
recent responses to swine flu and seasonal flu.   

 
1.5 In February, the EP team delivered its annual senior management training event to CSB 

and CLG, on strategic management during a major incident.  The session included 
refresher training on the Civil Contingencies Act 2004, major incident response, counter 
terror awareness with the police service, and a table top exercise dealing with a chemical 
incident.   

 
1.6 We took part in the Pan London peer review of emergency planning across all 33 

boroughs.  This was organised by the London Fire Brigade Emergency Planning 
department.  We reviewed the London Borough of Hounslow.  We were reviewed by the 
London Borough of Hillingdon.  We scored well, with an overall Green rating, with just a 
few Amber areas to be addressed.   

 
1.7 The EP team continue to host and attend multi agency emergency planning liaison 

meetings with the Metropolitan Police Service, London Fire Brigade, London Ambulance 
Service, NHS Harrow, Environment Agency, Ministry of Defence, British Red Cross, St 
John Ambulance, and WRVS; as well as the neighbouring local authorities, including the 
West London boroughs and Hertfordshire County Council.   

 

235



Appendix 1 

 2 

1.8 We have been working with other council departments, including highways, engineers, and 
planning; on the Drain London project, which is looking at dealing with the risk of flood 
across Greater London, following the Pitt Review.   

 
1.9 The EP team and EROs have responded to a number of incidents and their aftermath, 

including the power outage in Somervell Road, South Harrow in December 2010, and the 
fire at Parrs Garage, Hindes Road, Harrow in March 2011.     

 
 
2. Main tasks for July to December 2011     
 
2.1 As the Olympics draws nearer, we are becoming more involved with the strategic planning 

for responding to an incident during games time.  This includes meeting, training and 
exercising with other London Boroughs and the emergency services.  This is an area 
where the workload is set to increase as 2012 approaches, with exercises already planned 
for October. 

 
 
2.2 We hold an annual exercise to test our, and our local multi agency partners’, responses.  

Last year we hosted Exercise Canberra to test the council’s response to a CBR (Chemical, 
Biological and Radiological) incident with multi-agency partners.  50 officers attended from 
the Police, Fire, Ambulance, NHS, Health Protection Agency, Red Cross, neighbouring 
boroughs and the council.  This year in July, we are holding Exercise Brisbane, to test our 
Rest Centre and Humanitarian Assistance procedures.    

 
2.3 We continue to support Michael Lockwood as Chair of the London Regional Resilience 

Forum – Local Authorities Panel – Implementation Group (LRRF – LAP – IG), and also as 
Deputy Chair of the London Regional Resilience Forum – Local Authorities Panel (LRRF – 
LAP).   

 
2.4 The EP team assists other council departments to discharge their duties.  For example, we 

assist Community & Environment’s Safety Advisory Group (SAG) that risk assesses and 
plans for large events, such as Pinner Fair, Under One Sky and the K Festival.  This is 
ongoing work through the summer months.   

 
2.5 Last year, we also assisted Community & Environment’s Facilities Management (FM) in 

reviewing their evacuation procedures for both the Civic Centre site and the Depot.  This 
included an exercise at each location with key emergency services.  During this summer, 
we will assist FM in conducting a review of these procedures.   

 
2.6 During the autumn, we will be assisting the police in delivering awareness training to the 

public and local businesses.  This includes preparing for emergencies, business continuity, 
and counter terror awareness.  During the summer, we assist on Project Argus, which is 
aimed at local businesses.  We also help on Operation Fairway, which aims to raise 
counter terror awareness.  We also work with schools and hospitals on their major incident 
planning.   

 
2.7 In November, we will be holding the annual Business Continuity phone cascade test, and 

contacting all staff, through their management chains, during a simulated major incident.  
Like last year, this will include the Leader of the Council and the Group Leaders and their 
Deputies, so make sure Democratic Services have your up to date contact details.    

 

236



Appendix 1 

 3 

2.8 In December, we will be delivering annual training to Elected Members on their role during 
a major incident, as part of the Member Development Programme.  This will be held on the 
evening of Thursday 8th December 2011, starting at 7:00pm, in the Members Lounge.  
Please put this date in your diary.  Members have an important role to play during a major 
incident, and it is important that you receive your annual refresher training.    

 
 
Contact  
Kan Grover  
Service Manager – Emergency Planning & Business Continuity   
020 8420 9319  
kan.grover@harrow.gov.uk  
 

237



238

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 19 
Pages 239 to 254 

239

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



244

This page is intentionally left blank



245

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



248

This page is intentionally left blank



249

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



254

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	11 Whistleblowing Report
	WhistleblowingAppendix

	12 Annual Governance Statement  2010/11
	Appendix 1_Draft AGS 1011v5
	Appendix 2_AGS Action Plan 1011
	Appendix 3_AGS Evidence Table 1011 Master Copy
	Appendix 4_AGS Action Plan 0910 - updated July 2011
	Appendix 5_Updated Code of Corporate Governance July 2011 v2

	13 Management Assurance Report 2010/11
	Appendix 1_Management Assurance Report
	Appendix 2_Chief exec corporate statement

	14 INFORMATION REPORT - Risk, Audit & Fraud Activity Update Report
	15 Risk Management Update and Draft Risk Management Strategy
	Draft Risk Managment Strategy2011-12

	16 INFORMATION REPORT - Civil Contingencies Team (Emergency Planning & Business Continuity) Activity Update Report
	GARMC update JUN 11

	19 INFORMATION REPORT - Civil Contingencies Team (Emergency Planning & Business Continuity) Activity Update Report
	Ex Brisbane Participant Briefing Note Jul 11
	CSB report & actions EP Bomb Evac JUL 2011


